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whAt wAs

key fIgures of JenoPtIk

(in million euros) 2012 2011
change  

in %
Oct. – Dec  

2012
Oct. – Dec.

2011
change  

in %

Sales 585.0 543.3 7.7 161.9 159.4 1.6

 Domestic 208.1 221.8 – 6.2 58.0 69.3 – 16.3

 Foreign 376.9 321.5 17.3 103.9 90.1 15.4

EBITDa 77.7 76.8 1.1 18.9 23.7 – 20.4

EBIT 54.8 49.2 11.4 12.7 14.3 – 10.9

EBIT margin (EBIT in % of sales) 9.4 % 9.1 % 9.4 % 9.0 %

Earnings before tax 46.1 36.2 27.3 9.7 10.2 – 4.4

Earnings after tax 50.2 35.3 42.2 20.2 13.9 –

Free cash flow (before income taxes) 43.7 44.0 – 0.6 17.0 19.9 – 14.4

Investments in tangible  
and intangible assets 31.2 25.1 24.3 14.0 7.7 82.7

Order intake 587.2 647.9 – 9.4 150.1 134.2 11.8

(in million euros) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
change  

in %

Order backlog 446.8 448.5 – 0.4

Employees 3,272 3,117 5.0

seLected InvestMent coMPAnIes (as at february 2013)

The above mentioned investment companies are not necessarily direct shareholdings of JENOPTIK aG.

1) not consolidated

1) “Others“ include holding, real estate, consolidation.

 100 %  esW gmbh 
germany, wedel

 50 %  hIllos gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  hommel-etamic gmbh 
germany, villingen-schwenningen

 100 %  hoMMel-etaMIc america corp.  
usA, rochester hills (MI)

 100 %  hommel-etamic France sa 
france, Bayeux cedex

 100 %  hommel-Movomatic suisse sa 
switzerland, Peseux

 100 %  JenoPtIK automatisierungs technik gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  JenoPtIK Diode lab gmbh 
germany, Berlin

 99 %  JenoPtIK do brasil Instrumentos  
de Precisão e equipamentos ltda. 
Brazil, são Bernardo do campo

 66,58 %  JenoPtIK Japan co. ltd. 1) 
Japan, yokohama city (kanagawa) 

 66,60 %  JenoPtIK Korea corp. ltd. 1) 
korea, Pyeongtaek

 100 %   JenoPtIK laser gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  JenoPtIK north america, Inc.  
usA, Jupiter (florida)

 100 %   JenoPtIK optical systems gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %     JenoPtIK optical systems, Inc. 
usA, Jupiter (florida)

 100 %    JenoPtIK Polymer systems gmbh 
germany, triptis

 100 %  JenoPtIK robot gmbh 
germany, Monheim

 100 %  JenoPtIK robot Malaysia sDn. bhD.  
Malaysia, kuala Lumpur

 100 %  JenoPtIK (shanghai) Precision Instruments 
and equipment co., ltd. 
china, shanghai

 100 %   JenoPtIK south east asia Pte. ltd. 
singapore

 100 %   JenoPtIK ssc gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  lechmotoren gmbh 
germany, Altenstadt

 100 %  Multanova ag 
switzerland, uster

 100 %   PhotonIc sense gmbh 
germany, eisenach

 100 %  traffipax Inc. 
usA, Linthicum

key fIgures of JenoPtIk

who we Are

JenoPtIk Ag

Provider of reliable, efficient and 

precise laser technology for 

industrial materials processing. 

Jenoptik covers the entire val-

ue-added chain – from semicon-

ductor material, laser sources, 

laser systemsas well as system 

and automation technology for 

entire production facilities to 

exhaust cleaning systems.

Provider of integrated optical 

systems and precision optics 

designed to meet the most 

stringent demands in terms of 

quality. Jenoptik is development 

and production partner for 

opto-electronic and opto-me-

chanical systems, modules and 

assemblies based on optical, 

micro-optical and optical coat-

ing components made from 

glass, crystals as well as plastic.

Manufacturer of high-precision 

contact and non-contact metrol-

ogy systems. Jenoptik has 

many years of expertise in the 

development of tactile, optical 

and pneumatic measuring tech-

niques as well as in the realiza-

tion of customer individual 

applications pre-process, in-pro-

cess, post-process or in the 

metrology room.

supplier of components and 

systems for greater worldwide 

road traffic safety. the product 

portfolio includes speed mea-

surement and red light monitor-

ing systems as well as oeM 

products and systems for detec-

tion of other traffic violations. In 

the field of traffic service provid-

ing, every aspect of the accom-

panying process chain is cov-

ered.

the focus areas are military and 

civil vehicle, rail and aircraft 

equipment, drive and stabiliza-

tion technology and energy sys-

tems as well as laser distance 

and infrared sensor systems. 

optoelectronic instruments and 

systems for the security industry 

as well as software, measure-

ment and control technology 

complement the spectrum.

executIve boarD

corPorate center

lasers & MaterIal 

ProcessIng
oPtIcal sYsteMs InDustrIal MetrologY traFFIc solutIons

DeFense &

cIvIl sYsteMs

lasers & oPtIcal sYsteMs segMent MetrologY segMent
DeFense & cIvIl sYsteMs

segMent

(in million euros) 2012 2011
change  

in %
Oct. – Dec. 

2012
Oct. – Dec.

2011
change  

in %

Sales 585.0 543.3 7.7 161.9 159.4 1.6

of which lasers & Optical Systems 212.3 217.1 – 2.2 50.6 57.9 – 12.6

  Metrology 182.7 140.1 30.4 57.7 46.6 23.8

  Defense & civil Systems 186.4 183.3 1.7 53.4 52.8 1.1

  Others 1) 3.6 2.8 28.6 2.1 2.1 1.5

EBITDa 77.7 76.8 1.2 18.9 23.7 – 20.3

of which lasers & Optical Systems 36.4 40.5 – 10.1 5.2 7.6 – 31.6

  Metrology 28.6 15.4 85.7 12.7 6.8 86.4

  Defense & civil Systems 13.3 16.6 – 19.9 2.2 7.2 – 69.4

  Others 1) – 0.6 4.3 – 114.0 – 1.2 2.0 5.0

EBIT 54.8 49.2 11.4 12.7 14.3 – 11.2

of which lasers & Optical Systems 27.1 29.2 – 7.5 2.3 4.4 – 47.7

  Metrology 25.6 12.0 113.3 12.1 5.8 108.6

  Defense & civil Systems 7.8 11.6 – 32.8 0.2 5.8 – 96.6

  Others 1) – 5.7 – 3.6 – – 2.5 – 1.7 –

EBIT margin (EBIT in % of sales) 9.4 % 9.1 % 7.8 % 9.0 %

of which lasers & Optical Systems 12.8 % 13.5 % 4.5 % 7.6 %

  Metrology 14.1 % 8.6 % 21.1 % 12.4 %

  Defense & civil Systems 4.2 % 6.3 % 0.4 % 11.0 %

R + D output 49.1 45.4 8.1 13.3 14.6 – 8.9

of which lasers & Optical Systems 19.0 16.8 13.1 4.7 4.6 2.2

  Metrology 16.9 13.9 21.6 4.7 5.4 – 13.0

  Defense & civil Systems 13.1 14.6 – 10.3 3.8 4.5 – 15.6

  Others 1) 0.1 0.1 – 0.1 0.1 –

Order intake 587.2 647.9 – 9.4 150.1 134.2 11.8

of which lasers & Optical Systems 219.9 224.4 – 2.0 52.7 57.5 – 8.3

  Metrology 198.7 166.7 19.2 40.7 34.2 19.0

  Defense & civil Systems 165.0 254.5 – 35.2 56.0 39.5 41.8

  Others 1) 3.6 2.3 56.5 0.7 3.0 – 77.0

(in million euros) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
change  

in  %

Order backlog 446.8 448.5 – 0.4

of which lasers & Optical Systems 105.2 101.3 3.8

  Metrology 87.4 69.0 26.7

  Defense & civil Systems 255.8 279.9 – 8.6

  Others 1) – 1.6 – 1.7 –

Employees 3,272 3,117 5.0

of which lasers & Optical Systems 1,349 1,296 4.1

  Metrology 814 719 13.2

  Defense & civil Systems 913 924 – 1.2

  Others 1) 196 178 10.1

shareD servIces
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2012
Oct. – Dec.

2011
change  

in %

Sales 585.0 543.3 7.7 161.9 159.4 1.6

 Domestic 208.1 221.8 – 6.2 58.0 69.3 – 16.3

 Foreign 376.9 321.5 17.3 103.9 90.1 15.4

EBITDa 77.7 76.8 1.1 18.9 23.7 – 20.4

EBIT 54.8 49.2 11.5 12.7 14.3 – 10.9

EBIT margin (EBIT in % of sales) 9.4 % 9.1 % 9.4 % 9.0 %

Earnings before tax 46.1 36.2 27.3 9.7 10.2 – 4.4

Earnings after tax 50.2 35.3 42.2 20.2 13.9 –

Free cash flow (before income taxes) 43.7 44.0 – 0.6 17.0 19.9 – 14.4

Investments in tangible  
and intangible assets 31.2 25.1 24.3 14.0 7.7 82.7

Order intake 587.2 647.9 – 9.4 150.1 134.2 11.8

(in million euros) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
change  

in %

Order backlog 446.8 448.5 – 0.4

Employees 3,272 3,117 5.0

seLected InvestMent coMPAnIes (as at february 2013)

The above mentioned investment companies are not necessarily direct shareholdings of JENOPTIK aG.

1) not consolidated

1) “Others“ include holding, real estate, consolidation.

 100 %  esW gmbh 
germany, wedel

 50 %  hIllos gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  hommel-etamic gmbh 
germany, villingen-schwenningen

 100 %  hoMMel-etaMIc america corp.  
usA, rochester hills (MI)

 100 %  hommel-etamic France sa 
france, Bayeux cedex

 100 %  hommel-Movomatic suisse sa 
switzerland, Peseux

 100 %  JenoPtIK automatisierungs technik gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  JenoPtIK Diode lab gmbh 
germany, Berlin

 99 %  JenoPtIK do brasil Instrumentos  
de Precisão e equipamentos ltda. 
Brazil, são Bernardo do campo

 66,58 %  JenoPtIK Japan co. ltd. 1) 
Japan, yokohama city (kanagawa) 

 66,60 %  JenoPtIK Korea corp. ltd. 1) 
korea, Pyeongtaek

 100 %   JenoPtIK laser gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  JenoPtIK north america, Inc.  
usA, Jupiter (florida)

 100 %   JenoPtIK optical systems gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %     JenoPtIK optical systems, Inc. 
usA, Jupiter (florida)

 100 %    JenoPtIK Polymer systems gmbh 
germany, triptis

 100 %  JenoPtIK robot gmbh 
germany, Monheim

 100 %  JenoPtIK robot Malaysia sDn. bhD.  
Malaysia, kuala Lumpur

 100 %  JenoPtIK (shanghai) Precision Instruments 
and equipment co., ltd. 
china, shanghai

 100 %   JenoPtIK south east asia Pte. ltd. 
singapore

 100 %   JenoPtIK ssc gmbh 
germany, Jena
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switzerland, uster
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germany, eisenach
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key fIgures of JenoPtIk

who we Are

JenoPtIk Ag

Provider of reliable, efficient and 

precise laser technology for 

industrial materials processing. 

Jenoptik covers the entire val-

ue-added chain – from semicon-

ductor material, laser sources, 

laser systemsas well as system 

and automation technology for 

entire production facilities to 

exhaust cleaning systems.

Provider of integrated optical 

systems and precision optics 

designed to meet the most 

stringent demands in terms of 

quality. Jenoptik is development 

and production partner for 

opto-electronic and opto-me-

chanical systems, modules and 

assemblies based on optical, 

micro-optical and optical coat-

ing components made from 

glass, crystals as well as plastic.

Manufacturer of high-precision 

contact and non-contact metrol-

ogy systems. Jenoptik has 

many years of expertise in the 

development of tactile, optical 

and pneumatic measuring tech-

niques as well as in the realiza-

tion of customer individual 

applications pre-process, in-pro-

cess, post-process or in the 

metrology room.

supplier of components and 

systems for greater worldwide 

road traffic safety. the product 

portfolio includes speed mea-

surement and red light monitor-

ing systems as well as oeM 

products and systems for detec-

tion of other traffic violations. In 

the field of traffic service provid-

ing, every aspect of the accom-

panying process chain is cov-

ered.

the focus areas are military and 

civil vehicle, rail and aircraft 

equipment, drive and stabiliza-

tion technology and energy sys-

tems as well as laser distance 

and infrared sensor systems. 

optoelectronic instruments and 

systems for the security industry 

as well as software, measure-

ment and control technology 

complement the spectrum.
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DeFense & cIvIl sYsteMs

segMent

(in million euros) 2012 2011
change  
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Oct. – Dec. 

2012
Oct. – Dec.

2011
change  

in %
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  Others 1) 3.6 2.8 28.6 2.1 2.1 1.5
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  Others 1) – 5.7 – 3.6 – – 2.5 – 1.7 –

EBIT margin (EBIT in % of sales) 9.4 % 9.1 % 7.8 % 9.0 %

of which lasers & Optical Systems 12.8 % 13.5 % 4.5 % 7.6 %

  Metrology 14.1 % 8.6 % 21.1 % 12.4 %

  Defense & civil Systems 4.2 % 6.3 % 0.4 % 11.0 %
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Brand positioning

Jenoptik is the brand that connects 

people, expertise and technology in 

perfect interplay, creating solutions 

which set standards and impress with 

their intelligence and precision.



Foreword of the Executive BoardINFORMATION FOR The shARehOldeRs

+11.4 %

GROup ebIT 

in 2012, the group EBit reached a record 
in the company‘s more recent history.

dR. MIchAel MeRTIN

Chairman of the Executive Board
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3JEnoptiK 2012

Jenoptik enjoyed its best year in the company´s more recent history in 2012, even in the face of a diffi-

cult economic climate. Our sales rose by roughly 8 percent to 585 million euros, with group operating 

earnings improving at an even faster pace, by 11 percent to 54.8 million euros. We clearly exceeded our 

March 2012 forecast, and reached our sales and results goals that we last adjusted upward in July 2012. 

Jenoptik has again grown organically for the third year in succession.

A continued high demand in our target industries and the focused development of projects with key 

customers combined for a solid order intake in 2012, totaling 587.2 million euros. This also reflects the 

trust that our customers and investors around the world have been placing in us! We received several 

major orders, particularly in the Metrology segment. These figures indeed speak volumes, and about 

our employees in particular.

The successful development of Jenoptik, your company, is not just a momentary event, but in fact the 

result of our sustainable long-term strategy. We have continued to propel our internationalization pro-

cess by founding a number of further companies around the world and by expanding our presence 

abroad with our own companies in countries such as Brazil and Singapore.

We are proud to have been successful in all three of our segments: The Lasers & Optical Systems seg-

ment continued to see high sales and earnings contributions, especially as the result of an expanded range 

of intelligent system solutions. The Metrology segment benefited from a continually high demand in the 

automotive industry and for traffic safety technology in emerging economies, resulting in an order record 

for the segment. And the Defense & Civil Systems segment provided for stable sales and earnings figures, 

taking an important strategic step toward improving on the internationalization of the Group as a whole 

with the founding of Jenoptik Defense Inc. in the United States. 

Jenoptik has been strong in financial terms as well. Our shareholders’ equity increased, net debt fell 

slightly, and our free cash flow came to over 43 million euros, after we paid a dividend and made pay-

ments to silent real estate investors. 

We have now begun a phase of profitable growth to follow on our strategic reorganization. It is our 

goal to develop Jenoptik from being a good company to a great company – this describes Jenoptik’s 

way and goal over the next few years. And one key to this goal is in fact our continued process of inter-

nationalization. Our comprehensive expertise in all facets of optoelectronics enables us to provide our 

customers and partners with excellent solutions – whether in Germany or in our foreign growth mar-

kets, and in Asia and the Americas in particular. We will continue to invest there in our distribution 

and service competence. Our Asian holding in Singapore and U.S. holding in Florida will act to oversee 

our expansion within these markets as “strategic architects”. We plan to derive over 40 percent of our 

overall sales there by 2016.

dR. MIchAel MeRTIN

Chairman of the Executive Board



4 JEnoptiK 2012

For us, improving also means being even more efficient. 2012 marked the fourth year of pursuing our 

Jenoptik Excellence Program. In order to further optimize our cost structures and processes, we also 

need globally uniform systems and financing for corporate planning and control. We are set to put this 

into full motion in our Jenoptik One ERP program (Enterprise resource planning). The site improve-

ments in Germany and America that have been announced will also serve to combine our competences, 

increase our flexibility, and serve as a basis for our future growth.

The stage is set for us to reach our mid-term growth and profitability goals of 9 to 10 percent through 

cycles. We have now shown, for two consecutive years, that we are in fact able to do this. We are pres-

ent in attractive growth segments of our target markets and are able to benefit from global megatrends. 

These trends include the increasing digitalization of our daily lives, rising demands on our mobility and 

energy efficiency, a greater awareness for health and well-being, a better infrastructure, and a higher 

need for security.

We were not, however, able to extract ourselves entirely from the ambient economic situation. We expect 

that the general economic development and our particular markets will at least stabilize in the second 

half of 2013.

What will all this mean for the current fiscal year in particular? In addition to a slight increase in sales 

we expect group operating earnings of between 50 and 55 million euros for 2013. There will also be 

costs in the middle single-digit euro range for site optimization and for various programs such as JOE 

and Go Lean. As you can see, we are cautiously optimistic for this fiscal year, one in which we will also 

be building the fundaments for our growth for years to come!

We also want you, dear shareholders, to be able to participate in Jenoptik’s success again, and a divi-

dend will again cap off the share’s positive development of the past year.

It is particularly thanks to our employees, customers and partners that we are able to announce the very 

good news contained in the present annual report. We would like to thank you, our shareholders, for 

the trust you have placed in Jenoptik. We have determined which future growth opportunities lie in 

store for us and are very optimistic that our company will continue to develop positively. We would be 

pleased if you were to remain with us as we move forward into the future together. 

Sincerely yours, 

Michael Mertin Rüdiger Andreas Günther

Jena, March 2013
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RüdIGeR ANdReAs GüNTheR

Chief Financial officer

GROup eARNINGs peR shARe 

as a result of the increase in the operating 
result as well as an improved financial 
result, earnings per share rose significantly.

+41.9 %



Report of the Supervisory BoardINFORMATION FOR The shARehOldeRs

6 JENOPTIK 2012

Despite the difficult external factors of an economically challenging framework and uncertain global 

financial markets, we are able to look back on a very successful fiscal year 2012. We have been able to 

increase our operative excellence, and improve the group earnings position substantially compared with 

2011, which had already been our most successful year in recent company history. One major reason 

for this was the continued internationalization process of our business in growth regions, in which the 

Supervisory Board played an intensive role in accompanying the Executive Board.

This past fiscal year, the Supervisory Board carefully fulfilled its legally and contractually stipulated 

tasks, regularly advising the Executive Board in its management of the Group, and continually super-

vising its activities. The Executive Board involved the Supervisory Board intensively and at an early 

date in all decisions of fundamental importance to Jenoptik. To this end, the Supervisory Board was 

regularly presented with timely and comprehensive information by the Executive Board, both orally 

and in written form, on the state of business and the current economic situation, matters involving risk 

and risk management, relevant compliance matters, strategy, and planning. Business events of impor-

tance to Jenoptik were discussed in depth in both the committees and plenary meetings on the basis of 

reports submitted by the Executive Board. The Executive Board also provided the Supervisory Board 

with regular information on divergences in the company’s business from its plans and goals, with 

detailed explanations of such cases. The reporting obligations stipulated in the German Stock Corpora-

tion Act (§ 90 AktG) and the German Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) were fulfilled in their 

entirety.

The Supervisory Board, after careful examination and discussion, granted its approval for the measures 

that required it. The Supervisory Board met a total of five regular sessions in the course of fiscal year 

2012, in which the members of the Executive Board also took part. Decisions were also made through 

the exchange of written correspondence. No member of the Supervisory Board was present at less than 

half of all meetings, and overall attendance came to an average of 98 percent. A total of 12 committee 

meetings took place, at three of which one of the members was absent. 

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board always collaborated in an open and trusting atmosphere. 

The chairman of the Supervisory Board and the committee chairs also maintained regular contact with 

the Executive Board in the periods between plenary and committee meetings. Between meetings, each 

Supervisory Board member received regular detailed monthly reports on the situation of the company. 

As in previous years, the Supervisory Board met for a special strategy day before its December meeting 

with the Executive Board and members of the Executive Management Board. The strategy day focused 

on the long-term strategic positioning of the Group in relation to the market, the competition, and cus-

tomers, in addition to an in-depth discussion of potential areas of growth in each of the business areas. 

supErvisory Board rEport



Group manaGement report

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

responsibility statement
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report of the Supervisory Board

audITOr’S rEPOrT

INFORMATION FOR The shARehOldeRs

PARTICULAR SUBJECTS DISCUSSED By ThE SUPERvISORy BOARD

One topic of discussion repeated at all meetings were the reports of the Executive Board on the state of 

business for JENOPTIK AG and the Group, and particularly the current development of sales and earn-

ings and the financial and asset position. Further topics in focus were corporate planning, the Jenoptik 

One ERP program, and the continued further focusing of Jenoptik’s real estate management.  

In a written circulation procedure in February 2012, the members of the Supervisory Board approved 

their report to the 2012 Annual General Meeting and the corporate governance report, which was part 

of the corporate governance statement for 2011. 

At its March 22, 2012 meeting, the Supervisory Board, in the presence of two auditor representatives, 

worked intensively on the financial statements of JENOPTIK AG, the consolidated financial statements, 

the management report and group management report, and the appropriation of retained profits. Fol-

lowing in-depth discussions, the Supervisory Board approved the Executive Board’s proposal for the 

use of retained profits, providing for a dividend to be paid for the first time since 2002. The Supervi-

sory Board approved the JENOPTIK AG financial statements and the consolidated financial statements, 

the financial statements were thus adopted. The board also focused its attention on the adoption of the 

agenda for the Annual General Meeting on June 6, 2012. This included an in-depth look into the can-

didates proposed by the Nomination Committee for the election of shareholder representatives at the 

Annual General Meeting. The settlement of the Executive Board members’ target agreements for 2011 

and the conclusion of new agreements for 2012 were also discussed. The Executive Board also reported 

on a newly won major contract from Malaysia for the Traffic Solutions division and the debenture 

loans issued in fiscal year 2011 with the approval of the Supervisory Board.

The focus of the meeting on June 5, 2012 was the business and financial position of JENOPTIK AG and 

the Group at the end of the first quarter and of the month ending April 30, 2012. The Supervisory 

Board was informed about the development of the Jenoptik share and current analyst evaluations. The 

board also worked on the current status of the real estate portfolio and the Jenoptik One ERP program.

In the initial constitutive meeting following the Annual General Meeting of June 6, 2012, Rudolf humer 

was reelected chairman, and Michael Ebenau as deputy chairman. After that the members of the com-

mittees were appointed. The Supervisory Board rules of procedure were updated and adapted to the 

changes of the Code in the version of May 15, 2012.

On September 13, 2012, the Executive Board reported on the current business and financial position of 

the Group presenting the half-year report and on the monthly report ending July 31, 2012. The Super-

visory Board looked into a project on the restructuring of the Jenoptik Group’s mid-term financing 

framework. The Supervisory Board received comprehensive information from the Executive Board on 

the implementation of an anti-corruption guideline, the publication of the first Jenoptik sustainability 
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report, and changes in the German Corporate Governance Code. There was also a report on the cur-

rent status of the Jenoptik One ERP program and investor relations efforts.

Following a detailed report on the business and financial position of the Group after the end of the  

3rd quarter, the Supervisory Board focused on corporate planning for fiscal year 2013, and on mid-term 

planning in the final meeting of the year on December 13, 2012. The Supervisory Board discussed 

information in depth on the optimization of two sites in the United States and Germany. In view of the 

new recommendations of Point 5.4.1, Para. 2 and 5.4.2, clause 1 of the Code, the shareholder represen-

tatives of the Supervisory Board determined that at least three independent members should be among 

them in the future. The Supervisory Board, together with the Executive Board, adopted the declaration 

of conformity in accordance with § 161, Para. 1 of the German Stock Corporation Act (AktG). Upon 

the recommendation of the Audit Committee, and in accordance with the decision of the Annual Gen-

eral Meeting on June 6, 2012, KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft of Berlin was chosen to be 

the auditor and group auditor for fiscal year 2012. The Executive Board provided information to the 

Supervisory Board on the latest status of measures for the restructuring of the mid-term financing frame-

work and on new Jenoptik plans in the field of corporate social responsibility. The Supervisory Board 

also approved the planned coverage increase for the D & O policies of Jenoptik management and the 

Supervisory Board.

WORK IN ThE COMMITTEES

In order to make its work more efficient, the Supervisory Board set up five committees, which can, in 

some legally permissible cases, make decisions on behalf of the plenary board, and which can prepare 

topics for further treatment by the Supervisory Board. The committee chairs present the content and 

results of their committee meetings in detail to the subsequent plenary meetings of the Supervisory 

Board. Details on the composition of the individual committees are provided from page 182 of the 

Annual Report.

The Audit Committee, led both before and after the Annual General Meeting by Mag. heinrich Reimitz, 

met four times and held four telephone conferences during the year. The meetings were attended by the 

CFO, and the first of the year’s meetings by two auditor representatives as well. In accordance with 

legal requirements and the requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code, at least one inde-

pendent member of the Audit Committee, and particularly heinrich Reimitz as its chairman, should 

have expert knowledge in the areas of financial accounts, internal control processes, and annual accounts 

auditing. The committee focused its activity on intensive audits of the financial statements and the con-

solidated financial statements, the management report and the group managementl report, the appro-

priation of profits, and discussions of the detailed quarterly and half-year reports, each before their pub-

lication. 

In two telephone conferences in January 2012, before the publication of preliminary figures, the Audit 

Committee and Executive Board discussed current balance sheet questions in connection with the 
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preparation of the financial statements for fiscal year 2011. At the March 9, 2012 balance sheet meet-

ing, the focus lay on the audit of the JENOPTIK AG financial statements and the consolidated financial 

statements. The Audit Committee also worked on the balance sheets and profit and loss statements of 

important individual companies of the Jenoptik Group. The committee recommended to the Supervi-

sory Board that KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft of Berlin be proposed to the Annual Gen-

eral Meeting of June 6, 2012 to be the auditor and group auditor for fiscal year 2012. The committee 

evaluated in detail the independence and qualifications of the auditor and the additional services pro-

vided by the auditor the previous year. The committee also looked into the current group risk report 

and the planned future development of the Jenoptik compliance management system.

At its May 9, 2012 meeting, the Audit Committee focused in detail on the quarterly figures and the cur-

rent status of the real estate portfolio. It heard about the Jenoptik insurance scheme and looked in 

depth into the organizational structure and processes of the company’s internal auditing.

In August 2012, the committee worked on the half-year figures and the determination of focal points 

for the audit of fiscal year 2012, and again into the current group risk report and the current status of 

the real estate portfolio. The Audit Committee also looked into the implementation of an anti-corrup-

tion guideline and two group-wide programs, Finance Transformation (FIT) and Jenoptik One ERP 

(JOE).

At its last meeting of the year in November 2012, the Audit Committee prepared the granting of the 

auditing assignment to the auditor, including the fee agreement, and gave its recommendation for 

appointment to the plenary board. The meeting also looked at the results of internal auditing results 

and its evaluation plans for the coming fiscal year as well as information on investor relations work. 

The Audit Committee worked both at its November meeting and in two further telephone meetings  

on the possible restructuring of Jenoptik’s medium-term financing framework.

The Personnel Committee is headed by the Supervisory Board chairman, Rudolf humer. One of the 

committee’s tasks is to prepare personnel decisions for the Supervisory Board with regard to Executive 

Board contracts. The committee met twice this past fiscal year, discussing, among other things, the eval-

uation and finalization of new target agreements with the members of the Executive Board as well as 

consultations on the early evaluation of variable remuneration components for Frank Einhellinger, who 

left the Executive Board as of March 31, 2012. The Personnel Committee made appropriate recom-

mendations for decision to the plenary board.

The Nomination Committee, also led by the Supervisory Board chairman, Rudolf humer, consists of 

the three shareholder representatives of the Personnel Committee, and has the task of proposing appro-

priate candidates to the Supervisory Board to be proposed to the Annual General Meeting. The com-

mittee met once this past fiscal year, taking into account in its recommendations not only the require-
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ments of the German Stock Corporation Act (§ 90 AktG), the German Corporate Governance Code, 

and rules of procedure, but also especially the targets set by the Supervisory Board for its own member-

ship. 

The Capital Market Committee, led by Dr. Lothar Meyer through June 6, 2012, had the task of working 

on capital market topics, and capital measures in particular. At its constitutive meeting of June 6, 2012, 

the Supervisory Board decided to dissolve the Capital Market Committee for reasons of efficiency, and to 

pass on its tasks to the Audit Committee.

The Mediation Committee, formed in accordance with § 27, Para. 3 MitbestG, did not convene in the 

past fiscal year.

CORPORATE GOvERNANCE

The Supervisory Board again continually focused on the fundaments of good corporate governance in 

fiscal year 2012, looking into the further developments and implementation of the German Corporate 

Governance Code at its meetings in June, September, and December. At its June meeting, the Supervi-

sory Board already adapted its rules of procedure to the changes in the Code. Both Executive Board 

and Supervisory Board report on corporate governance as part of its Corporate Covernance Statement 

in the Corporate Governance Report, as found from page 13 of the Annual Report. A comprehensive 

description of the remuneration systems of both Executive Board and Supervisory Board and changes 

affecting those systems can be found in the management report from page 48. Information on the 

remuneration of individual members of the two boards can be found in the Group Notes (page 181  

and page 185).

The Supervisory Board regularly uses a questionnaire to evaluate the efficiency of its activities. Since the 

Supervisory Board has only been active in its current membership since June 2012, the next formal 

self-evaluation is to take place in June 2013. At its December 13, 2012 meeting, the Supervisory Board, 

together with the Executive Board, resolved to submit the current declaration of conformity in accor-

dance with § 161, Para. 1 of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG). The declaration of conformity, including 

explanations for exceptions from recommendations, is posted to the company website for shareholders 

to access on a permanent basis. It can be found at www.jenoptik.com under Investors / Corporate Gover-

nance.

Individual members of the Supervisory Board play an executive role with other companies, with which 

Jenoptik has a business relationship. All such business was conducted under the same conditions that 

Jenoptik would have maintained with third party companies as well. This also only involved business 

that did not have a particularly great impact on Jenoptik. All members of the Supervisory Board reveal 

any conflicts of interest they may have to the Supervisory Board. This past fiscal year there were no 

conflicts of interest that would have required reporting, i.e. involving the independence of the board 

members in accordance with the stipulations of the German Corporate Governance Code.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KPMG AG Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft of Berlin audited and gave their unqualified approval of the 

financial statements and the management report 2012 of JENOPTIK AG, prepared in accordance with 

hGB regulations, and the consolidated financial statements and the group management report prepared 

in accordance with § 315a of the hGB and based on the International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS), submitted by the Executive Board. The auditing commission was granted by the Supervisory 

Board in accordance with the resolution of the Annual General Meeting of June 6, 2012 and in line 

with the recommendation of the Audit Committee of its meeting on December 13, 2012. The auditor 

confirmed that the Executive Board took appropriate steps to ensure an early identification of risks 

which could jeopardize the continued existence of the company.

The auditor undertook the audit in accordance with the German principles of correct auditing estab-

lished by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW) and in accordance with the International Standards 

on Auditing (ISA). The audit reports were immediately sent out upon completion and intensively and 

comprehensively discussed along with the documents supplied by the Executive Board, both by the 

Audit Committee at its March 11, 2013 meeting and the plenary board’s March 25, 2013 meeting. 

Two auditor representatives reported in person at the meetings on the major findings of their audit as 

well as on the services that were provided in addition to those concerning the annual account audit, 

and were available for further questions and information. The Audit Committee chairman also pro-

vided the plenary board with a comprehensive report on the examination of the financial statements 

and the consolidated financial statements. 

Following the final results of the Audit Committee’s pre-evaluation, as well as its own examination and 

discussion, the Supervisory Board agreed to the auditors’ results with no reservations and approved the 

financial statements and the consolidated financial statements submitted by the Executive Board at its 

March 25, 2013 meeting. The 2012  financial statements were thus adopted in accordance with § 172, 

Para. 1 of the Stock Corporation Act (AktG). The Supervisory Board discussed in-depth the recommen-

dation for the appropriation of profits made by the Executive Board, and approved of it following its 

own examination.

COMPOSITION OF ThE ExECUTIvE BOARD AND SUPERvISORy BOARD

Upon his own request, Frank Einhellinger left the Executive Board on March 31, 2012. The Supervi-

sory Board named Rüdiger Andreas Günther to succeed Frank Einhellinger as CFO as of April 1, 2012. 

The periods of service of the members of the Supervisory Board ended with the Annual General Meet-

ing on June 6, 2012. In late March 2012, the election process for employee representatives was com-

pleted as a direct election in accordance with the regulations of the Codetermination Act. Effective fol-

lowing the Annual General Meeting, Sabine Lötzsch, Thomas Klippstein, and Dieter Kröhn were 

elected to be the employee representatives. Ronald Krippendorf became the representative of senior 

staff, and Michael Ebenau and Stefan Schaumburg were elected to the Supervisory Board as representa-

tives of the unions.
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At the Annual General Meeting on June 6, 2012, the shareholders elected their representatives. In addi-

tion to Rudolf humer, Christian humer, heinrich Reimitz, and Prof. Andreas Tünnermann, the Annual 

General Meeting elected two new members as shareholder representatives, Brigitte Ederer and Matthias 

Wierlacher, both of whom we are happy to welcome to the board.

The Supervisory Board would like to thank all of the members who left the board this past fiscal year 

for their years of loyal teamwork.

We would also like to express our appreciation to the members of the Executive Board and to all the 

employees for their great personal commitment, as well as to our shareholders for the trust they place 

in us.

Jena, March 2013

On behalf of the Supervisory Board 

Rudolf humer

Chairman



Group manaGement report

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

INFORMATION FOR The shARehOldeRs

13JENOPTIK 2012

G
r

O
u

P
 m

a
N

a
G

Em
EN

T 
r

EP
O

r
T

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

 F
O

R
 T

h
e 

sh
A

R
eh

O
ld

eR
s

Statement of Corporate Governance

rESPONSIbIlITy STaTEmENT

audITOr’S rEPOrT

Declaration of conformity by the executive 

boarD anD the SuperviSory boarD of JenoptiK 

aG in fiScal year 2012

under § 161, para. 1, sent. 1 of the german stock Corporation 

act (aktg), the Executive Board and the supervisory Board of a 

stock-listed company are required to issue an declaration once 

a year that the recommendations of the “government Commis-

sion on the german Corporate governance Code” as published 

by the Federal ministry of Justice in the official section of the 

Federal gazette (Bundesanzeiger) have been and are complied 

with or to indicate which recommendations have not been or 

are not applied and why not.

the JEnoptiK ag Executive and supervisory Boards support the 

recommendations of the government Commission on the  

german Corporate governance Code and state that pursuant 

to § 161, para. 1 sent. 1 german stock Corporation act:

since the last declaration of conformity of december 2011, all 

recommendations of the “government Commission on the 

german Corporate governance Code” (Code) in the version 

dated may 26, 2010, have been followed with the following 

exception stated under 1. and will be followed in the version 

dated may 15, 2012, with the following exceptions:

1.  in accordance with point 4.2.3. para. 4 of the Code, care will 

be taken in concluding Executive Board contracts to ensure 

that payments made to an Executive Board member upon the 

premature termination of his contract including fringe bene-

fits do not exceed the value of two years’ compensation  

(severance payment cap) and compensate for no more than 

the remaining term of the contract. the severance payment 

cap shall be calculated on the basis of the total remuneration 

for the past full fiscal year and, if appropriate, the expected 

total remuneration for the current fiscal year as well.  

the corporate governance statement in accordance with § 289a 

of the german Commercial Code (hgB) is an unaudited part of 

the group management report. in this declaration, the Executive 

Board also reports in accordance with point 3.10 of the ger-

man Corporate governance Code in the version dated may 15, 

2012, and in sections i. and ii.1 on behalf of the supervisory 

Board as well.

i. declaration of conformity

it is the view of the JEnoptiK ag Executive Board and supervi-

sory Board that a responsible, values-oriented, and sustainably 

successful corporate policy provides a major foundation for the 

long-term success of the group as a whole. this includes, at its 

core, a sound corporate governance system throughout all of 

the group’s segments, which boosts trust in the company on 

the part of shareholders at home and abroad, business partners, 

employees, and the general public. this also allows for greater 

efficiency in collaboration between the Executive Board and 

supervisory Board and the appropriate management of risk.

Jenoptik structures its policies to adhere to recognized stan-

dards, and supports the recommendations of the german Cor-

porate governance Code (“Code”). the Executive and supervi-

sory Boards issued their declaration of conformity, in adherence 

with § 161 of the stock Corporation act at the meeting of the 

supervisory Board on december 13, 2012, which is accessible 

on a permanent basis along with those of the past several years 

at www.jenoptik.com under investors / Corporate governance. 

with only the exceptions listed there, Jenoptik is currently in full 

compliance with the recommendations of the german Corpo-

rate governance Code in the version dated may 15, 2012. in 

addition to the recommendations of the Code, Jenoptik has also 

followed a majority of the other suggestions made in the Code. 

if future changes should arise, the declaration of conformity will 

be updated in the course of the year.

CorporatE govErnanCE rEport
CorporatE govErnanCE statEmEnt
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  the code itself does not define what is meant by a sustain-

able development of the company. if the term was to be 

understood following § 87 paragraph 1 sentence 2 and 3 of 

the german stock Corporation act (aktg) performance-re-

lated components should always have a calculation basis 

which is several years long. as this is not the case at Jenop-

tik, we disclose a deviation from point 5.4.6 paragraph 2 

sentence 2 of the code due to uncertainty of the definition 

as a purely precautionary measure. the members of the 

supervisory Board are obliged to serve the interests of the 

company and are not affected in their decision-making  

process by the opportunity to get a variable remuneration 

and its amount. they, just as the members of the Executive 

Board, employees and shareholders profit from a general 

sustainable development of the company. the return on 

equity of 10 percent or 15 percent respectively which trig-

gers the payment of the variable remuneration is ambitious 

enough and was decided by the annual general meeting in 

June 2012 with almost 98 percent of the votes.

 december 13, 2012

 JEnoptiK ag

 on behalf of the Executive Board 

 dr. michael mertin, Chairman

 on behalf of the supervisory Board

 rudolf humer, Chairman

  this recommendation has not been followed since the last 

declaration of conformity and will also not be followed in 

the future. it has been found that this type of compensation 

regulation contradicts the principle of concluding the con-

tracts with members of the Executive Board regularly for the 

full term of their office which has been applied by Jenoptik 

in accordance with the german stock Corporation act 

(aktg). the premature termination of a contract as a princi-

ple requires a serious cause. in this case, no severance pay-

ment will be made. in the case of a mutually agreed termi-

nation of the contract; it would be difficult for the company 

to unilaterally enforce a severance payment cap; it could 

also not be ensured that the specific circumstances for the 

premature termination would be sufficiently taken into 

account. the idea behind the regulation of point 4.2.3 para-

graph 4 of the Code will be taken into account by ensuring 

that the compensation will be appropriate in the event of  

a premature termination of the contract by mutual agree-

ment. therefore, the supervisory Board applied a grand-

fathering clause when renewing the contract with the Chair-

man of the Executive Board. however, the recommendation 

was taken into account in the employment contract with 

the new chief financial officer.

2.  in accordance with point 5.4.6. paragraph 2 of the Code the 

compensation of the members of the supervisory Board shall 

be oriented toward sustainable growth of the enterprise if 

they are promised performance-related compensation. 

  this recommendation will not been followed in the future. 

the Executive Board and the supervisory Board take the view 

that the performance-related compensation as stipulated in 

the articles of association is appropriate. this performance- 

related compensation of 10,000 euros or 20,0000 euros 

respectively will only be paid if group earnings before tax 

exceed 10 percent or 15 percent of the group shareholders’ 

equity at the end of the fiscal year. if the return on equity is 

lower than 10 percent there is no right to compensation in 

addition to the fixed compensation.
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ii.  details on management practices

1.  corporate Governance report

Shareholders and annual General meeting

JEnoptiK ag shareholders exercise their rights at least once 

each year at the annual general meeting. Each share is 

accorded one vote. shareholders can either participate directly 

in the annual general meeting or can do so by proxy, for which 

they can either authorize a person of their choice or a compa-

ny-nominated proxy acting on their instructions. postal voting 

has also been available since last year. all documents and infor-

mation on the annual general meeting are provided on our 

internet page www.jenoptik.com under investors / annual gen-

eral meeting. the company thereby adequately supported its 

shareholders in exercising their rights also in 2012. the partici-

pation and voting results are subsequently published on the 

webpage. 

transparency

in its dialogue with participants in the capital market as well as 

the general public, Jenoptik follows the principle of providing 

comprehensive and up-to-date information of direct relevance 

to the company and significant to the evaluation of its develop-

ment. annual and interim reports provide comprehensive infor-

mation on the group’s earnings, assets and finances. press 

releases cover important events and current developments. this 

and further information is made available at the Jenoptik web-

site. shortly after the reports are published, conference call are 

also held with journalists, analysts, and investors, and analyst 

conferences are held for each annual and half-year financial 

statements as well as an annual balance sheet press confer-

ence. Further information on our investor relations activities 

can be found in the section on the Jenoptik share from page 

36 of the annual report.

in accordance with securities trading act, inside information 

is published immediately inasmuch as JEnoptiK ag is not, in 

individual cases, exempted from this obligation. the capital 

market working group evaluates, both regularly and for spe-

cific concerns, individual circumstances with regard to their 

ad-hoc relevance in order to ensure that potential inside infor-

mation is treated in accordance with the law. the working 

group met five times this past fiscal year and will meet 

monthly in 2013 in order to intensify information exchange.

there is a group guideline on upholding the statutes of the 

securities trading act and major obligations and responsibili-

ties on the part of board members and employees concerning 

inside information, ad-hoc publicity, market manipulation, 

and directors’ dealings. there is a list of those authorized to 

have access to inside information.

Jenoptik also immediately publishes major changes to its 

shareholder structure whenever it comes to the company’s 

attention that someone has reached, surpassed, or fallen 

below the relevant thresholds of all JEnoptiK ag voting 

rights, whether due to purchases, sales, or other occurrences. 

JEnoptiK ag received several such reports over the past fiscal 

year. these are published at www.jenoptik.com under inves-

tors / share / voting rights announcements.

as at december 31, 2012, the Jenoptik group maintains secu-

rities-oriented incentive plans in the form of virtual shares for 

the members of the Executive Board and parts of upper man-

agement. the principles of the allocation and issue of the vir-

tual shares is chiefly identical for the Executive Board and 

members of upper management, and is described in the re-

muneration report from page 48 and under the point Employ-

ees from page 75.

Securities transactions requiring reporting and shares held by 

the members of the executive board and Supervisory board

in accordance with § 15a of the german securities trading act 

(wphg), Executive and supervisory Board members and people 

close to them are require to disclose securities transactions 

(directors’ dealings) that require reporting. reports in accord-

ance with § 15a wphg reported to us are immediately pub-

lished and are also available at www.jenoptik.com under inves-

tors / Corporate governance / directors’ dealings. on July 7, 

2012, Brigitte Ederer, a member of the supervisory Board, 

acquired 3,940 shares for a total value of 19,700 euros.
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risk management

the responsible treatment of risk is also part of a good corpo-

rate governance system. Jenoptik has a group-wide risk man-

agement system that includes all companies, within germany 

and internationally, in which Jenoptik controls more that 50 per-

cent. detailed information on risk management including the 

significant characteristics of the internal control and risk man-

agement system with regard to the financial reporting process 

are included in the risk report of the annual report beginning 

from page 98. 

executive and Supervisory boards

the supervisory Board, reflecting the new regulations of the  

german Corporate governance Code in the version of may 15, 

2012, has adapted the goals it set in december 2010 for its 

future composition as follows:

“the supervisory Board will see to it that it includes, at all 

times, members who particularly fulfill the criterion of interna-

tionality (such as foreign citizens and those with relevant expe-

rience abroad). the supervisory Board will see to it that its 

members play neither an advisory nor an executive role with 

customers, suppliers, creditors, or other business partners of 

JEnoptiK ag, inasmuch as this is the basis of a significant and 

not merely temporary conflict of interests. in cases of such con-

flicts of interest, especially when it comes to responsibility in 

companies that are in direct competition with JEnoptiK ag or 

group companies, the supervisory Board will normally refrain 

from such a nomination for election. the supervisory Board will 

see to it that at least two women are on the board. the share-

holder representatives of the supervisory Board will make sure 

that at least half of its members have an independent status. 

no candidates are to be considered who, at the time of the 

election, have already reached the age of 70. the supervisory 

Board will recommend the best possible candidates, from its 

point of view, to the annual general meeting, taking into con-

sideration their expertise and personal integrity.”

as at december 31, 2012, no shares or derived financial 

instruments were held by Executive Board members. supervi-

sory Board members held a combined total of 960,095 shares 

for over 1 percent of the JEnoptiK ag nominal capital. this 

includes 675,000 shares held directly and indirectly by rudolf 

humer.

accounting and auditing

the consolidated financial statements and all consolidated 

interim financial statements are compiled in accordance with 

the international Financial reporting standards (iFrs). the 

financial statements are compiled in accordance with the 

requirements of the german Commercial Code (handelsgesetz-

buch, hgB). the consolidated financial statements and the 

financial statements, including management reports, are exam-

ined by balance sheet auditors. the auditor for fiscal year 2012 

was Kpmg ag wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft of Berlin (Kpmg), 

as selected on June 6, 2012 by the annual general meeting. 

the auditors inform the supervisory Board chairman of any 

grounds for bias or disqualification as well as of all important 

events and findings that emerge during the audit. this includes 

occasions when the auditors should discover facts that point to 

inaccuracies in the declaration of conformity submitted by the 

Executive Board and supervisory Board in accordance with the 

german stock Corporation act (§ 161 aktg).

Before submitting its proposal for the election of the firm to the 

annual general meeting, the supervisory Board received a dec-

laration of independence from the auditing firm, stating that 

there were no employment, financial, personal, or other links 

between Kpmg, its board members and head auditors, and the 

company and its board members. Kpmg also reported in its 

declaration on the degree to which it provided Jenoptik with 

other services over the past fiscal year, especially in terms of 

consulting, and which services have been contractually agreed 

for the following year. it was also established that none of the 

auditors involved in the audit had exceeded the seven-year over-

all limit for the authorization of issuing audit certificates.
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as of december 31, 2012, the supervisory Board already ful-

filled the guidelines agreed for its make-up, which are to be 

maintained into the future. one woman was elected in 2012 to 

represent the employee representative on the supervisory 

Board, taking effect at the end of the annual general meeting 

on June 6, 2012. in order to prepare for the election of the 

supervisory Board members on behalf of shareholders, the 

nomination Committee proposed candidates, while taking into 

account the requirements of the stock Corporation act, the 

Code, the articles of association, and its decision made on the 

targeted future composition of the board. Encouraged by the 

recommendation of the nomination Committee and the super-

visory Board, one further woman was elected as a shareholder 

representative at annual general meeting of June 6, 2012, so 

that there are currently two women on the supervisory Board. 

at least five members of the board have extensive international 

experience. the board also has a wide variety of expertise on 

offer, reflecting the broad range of its members’ career back-

grounds. Further information on the Executive Board and 

supervisory Board and especially on their work procedures and 

their members’ other responsibilities can be found under sec-

tion iii of this report, in the supervisory Board report from page 6 

and in the notes from page 182 of the annual report. 

remuneration report

the remuneration report describes the basics of the system of 

remuneration for the Executive Board. it is published as part  

of the group management report beginning from page 48 of 

this annual report. the remuneration report includes informa-

tion on compensatory agreements with Executive Board mem-

bers should it come to a change of control.

in accordance with the recommendations of the Code, infor-

mation is to be published on the individual remuneration of 

members of the Executive Board and supervisory Board, 

which can be found in the notes on pages 181 and 185. 

2.  other corporate manaGement practiceS

holding

JEnoptiK ag views itself as a financial holding company fulfill-

ing the role of a “strategic architect.” Jenoptik’s operative busi-

ness is divided into segments, divisions and business units. the 

work of JEnoptiK ag lies, in particular, in defining, implement-

ing, and monitoring overarching processes as well as the devel-

opment and implementation of corporate strategy. the strate-

gic decisions of the Executive Board are prepared by the central 

strategy and Business development department, supported by 

the Executive management Board, which includes the Executive 

Board as well as the heads of the segments and divisions and 

the head of personnel, supply Chain & shared services. the 

heads of the segments and divisions keep the Executive Board 

informed regularly, comprehensively, and rapidly on all events 

of relevance to the company, particularly within the framework 

of monthly results meetings. there are once a year annual cen-

tral management meetings which numerous group managers 

from within germany and around the world attended along 

with the Executive Board and Executive management Board.

Jenoptik is a high-tech company for which innovation is indis-

pensable to profitable growth. its global research and develop-

ment portfolio receives central guidance within the framework 

of its group-wide innovation management road map. its strate-

gic intellectual property management program serves to ensure 

the marketability of innovations through intellectual property 

rights and well-chosen cooperative agreements with research 

partners. Further information on Jenoptik´s innovation manage-

ment can be found in the group management report from 

page 80.

since 2008 JEnoptiK ag has had a central project manage-

ment office as a means of guaranteeing uniform standards in 

project management and continued transparency with regard 

to progress on projects of strategic importance to the company 

as a whole. the office uses an intranet-based platform to regu-

larly follow the state of over 100 current projects that not only 
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code of conduct

Jenoptik views the pursuit of sustainable economic and social 

activity while observing prevailing legislature as a top priority 

and a major part of its corporate culture. this entails trust, 

respect, fairness, honesty, and integrity in all its dealings with 

employees, business partners, shareholders, and the general 

public. the most important principles of conduct have been 

compiled into a code to ensure a uniform level of ethical and 

legal standards throughout the company. the code of conduct 

is a guidepost for everyone, whether the Executive Board, 

supervisory Board, managers, or employees all throughout 

the enterprise. the code of conduct provides minimum stan-

dards and serves as a point of orientation to meet the ethical 

and legal challenges at work each day, and to serve to avoid 

possible conflicts of interest from arising while creating trans-

parency in this regard. the code of conduct is of particular 

use in conflict situations.

Each new employee receives a code of conduct upon being 

hired. Compliance is monitored by the internal auditing, and 

any possible violations are investigated and their causes elimi-

nated in the interest of the company and all its employees.  

any employee who wishes to lodge a personal complaint or 

who wishes to mention any circumstances indicative of legal or 

guide line violations can turn to his or her supervisor, to the 

Chief risk & Compliance officer, to the heads of internal audit-

ing and of human resources, purchasing, supply Chain & 

shared services, or to the works council. the code of conduct 

can be viewed at www.jenoptik.com under investor relations /  

Corporate governance. it is regularly evaluated in terms of its 

accordance with general compliance standards and is to be 

updated again this current fiscal year.

support the strategic development of the group but also the 

continual improvement of the group’s operative excellence. 

this also includes the long-term implementation of lean princi-

ples as part of the group-wide go-Lean initiative. this initiative 

was rolled out in 2012 and is already expected to generate its 

first benefits in 2013. this furthers the implementation of the 

decisions and recommendations made at the semi-annual strat-

egy meetings that provide a basis in terms of market and com-

petition for the subsequent planning the following year and in 

the medium term. the individual steps within the strategy and 

planning process are discussed at specific times with the heads 

of the segments and divisions, with results reviewed, and activi-

ties determined and presented to the Executive Board for adop-

tion at its autumn strategy and planning meetings.

over the past several years, moreover, there has been a contin-

ual centralization of certain overarching functions such as the 

expansion of the operative legal advisement provided by the 

central legal department, that of worldwide strategic group pro-

curement and central procurement controlling, and the group-

wide harmonization of authorization structures. important per-

sonnel-related topics such as recruitment, remuneration, the 

harmonization of target schemes, and personnel controlling as 

well as a uniform branding have been centralized. Further infor-

mation on managerial organization can be found in the group 

management report on page 46.

social commitment is of particular importance to Jenoptik, 

geared toward the goals and basic values of the company. 

Jenoptik provides regular support for a number of benevolent 

projects, organizations, and initiatives, and seeks involvement in 

science, education, and culture, as well as in social and charita-

ble works. Further information on this topic can be found from 

pages 79 and 86.
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compliance

in addition to these general guidelines used to ensure that all 

employees act in a legally compliant manner, Jenoptik has 

developed its own internal group guidelines with regard to all 

important company processes, which are continually being 

reexamined, expanded, and updated. all group guidelines are 

published via the group-wide Jenoptik intranet. a process has 

also been developed to distribute all new or updated guidelines 

all throughout the group. Effective december 1, 2012, the 

position of Chief risk & Compliance officer (CrCo) was filled to 

work closely together with the Legal department and internal 

auditing. the CrCo is responsible for the minimization of the 

risk of legal violations by the companies of the Jenoptik group 

as well as the continued further development of modern risk 

and compliance structures and processes within the group. the 

CrCo reports to the CFo.

this past fiscal year, compliance activities focused on the intro-

duction of an anti-corruption guideline, serving to lead to  

uniform processes throughout the group meant to help avoid 

corrupt behavior. a checklist system helps to improve the main-

tenance of Jenoptik compliance standards, including that on 

the part of business partners. this past fiscal year, training was 

provided for the anti-corruption guideline in a large part of  

the group. training sessions on cartel law, begun in 2011, were 

continued with participants going into the field in greater depth. 

Compliance training will continue to be carried out in the future 

and expanded to include new programs such as e-learning.

a contract guideline was also implemented this past year that 

includes general principles on the preparation, conclusion, and 

implementation of contracts in the Jenoptik group. this is to 

serve to make the contractual process uniform, to make risks 

transparent, and to increase legal security. training for this con-

tractual guideline will also be provided throughout the group 

in the current fiscal year.

the Compliance Board met three times this past year and 

accompanied and monitored a project for the further optimi-

zation of the Jenoptik compliance management system, con-

ducted with an external consultant. the board also discussed, 

together with an interdepartmental compliance officer, a num-

ber of special topics on compliance such as compliance decla-

rations that are requested by customers.

Sustainability

as a high-tech company, Jenoptik strives, through its range of 

services and innovative products, to contribute toward greater 

efficiency and thus to a responsible use of resources. this past 

year, Jenoptik issued its first sustainability report, which can be 

accessed at www.jenoptik.com under press / publications / sus-

tainability. this will be continually developed in the future. 

Comprehensive information on further sustainability initiatives 

in the Jenoptik group can be found from page 83.

iii.  Executive Board and supervisory Board 
procedures

JEnoptiK ag is a stock corporation under german law with a 

dual management system in which the Executive Board runs 

the company on its own responsibility in the interests of the 

company. it takes into account, in particular, the concerns of its 

shareholders and employees, with the goal of the sustainable 

creation of value. the supervisory Board advises and monitors 

the Executive Board in its leadership of the company. the two 

boards work closely together for the good of the company, and 

all discussions between them take place in open and trusting 

atmosphere.

the members of the JEnoptiK ag Executive Board are 

appointed by the supervisory Board. the Executive Board is 

composed of two members who share common responsibility 
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for the overall management of the group and decide on pri-

mary matters of group corporate policy, its leadership, corpo-

rate strategy, and annual and longer-term planning. the specific 

allocation of responsibilities and tasks within the portfolios is 

set down in a schedule of responsibilities. Further information 

on this topic can be found in the management report on page 

46. there are no Executive Board committees. the members  

of the Executive Board work together in a collegial manner and 

continually inform one another of important measures and 

events within their assigned areas. Executive Board meetings 

take place at least once a month. measures of major importance 

and specific matters regulated by the Executive Board rules of 

procedure always require the approval of the entire Executive 

Board. the Executive Board rules of procedure, which are regu-

larly reevaluated and updated, contain further regulations on 

the internal procedures of the Executive Board, and on report-

ing to and cooperation with the supervisory Board.

the Executive Board continually informs the supervisory Board 

in a timely and comprehensive manner, and in both written and 

spoken communication, on all matters relevant to strategy and 

to the current development of the group’s business and 

finance. this includes its effects on employment, investment 

plans, corporate planning, the company’s strategic positioning 

and state of strategic implementation, as well as its risk situa-

tion and management, and relevant compliance issues. in 

accordance with legal stipulations, certain decisions of the 

Executive Board of particular importance, especially decisions or 

measures that involve considerable changes to the company’s 

assets, finance, or earnings, require the approval of the supervi-

sory Board. Conditions for agreement are listed in the Executive 

Board rules of procedure, and were last specified in december 

2011. the Executive Board members are required to report 

conflicts of interest to the supervisory Board immediately.

the supervisory Board of JEnoptiK ag consists of twelve mem-

bers, with six members elected by the shareholders in the 

annual general meeting and six nominated by employees in 

accordance with the Codetermination act. all members are 

elected for the same period of time, and ended with the con-

clusion of the annual general meeting on June 6, 2012. the 

system of direct voting for the employee representatives, in 

accordance with the Codetermination act, was concluded in 

late march 2012. the shareholder representatives on the 

supervisory Board were newly elected in an individual vote by 

the annual general meeting on June 6, 2012. the nomination 

Committee proposed suitable candidates to the supervisory 

Board to be recommended to the annual general meeting. the 

aims for the composition of the supervisory Board established 

in december 2010 were taken into consideration in both the 

recommendations of the nomination Committee and in the 

decision of the supervisory Board on candidates to be pro-

posed. this also applied to the election of the employee repre-

sentatives inasmuch as this was possible within the procedure 

carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Code-

termination act. Further information on the election of the 

supervisory Board members can be found in the supervisory 

Board report on page 12.

at its first constitutive meeting immediately following the 

annual general meeting, the supervisory Board elected a chair-

man and deputy from among the board members in accor-

dance with the Codetermination act (§ 27, para. 1 and 2). the 

supervisory Board is composed in such a way that, as a whole, 

it is endowed with the knowledge, ability, and experience nec-

essary to carry out its tasks in an orderly manner. in observance 

of the new regulations of the Code in the version of may 15, 

2012, the supervisory Board also separately evaluated the inde-

pendence of its members. on the basis of the Code’s new cri-

teria, the supervisory Board returned to discuss the matter of 

the goals it set in december 2010 for the board’s own compo-

sition. assuming that the new stipulations of the first clause of 

point 5.4.2. of the Code only refers to shareholders, the board 

resolved that, in the future, its membership would include at 

least three independent shareholder representatives. all share-

holder representatives currently on the supervisory Board can 

be viewed as independent in accordance with the Code’s criteria.
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the chairman of the supervisory Board coordinates the work of 

the supervisory Board, presides over its meetings, and represents 

the body externally. the chairman maintains regular contact 

with the Executive Board, and its chairman in particular, who 

provides the supervisory Board chairman with immediate infor-

mation on important events which are of crucial importance  

for the position and development of the company. an equal 

number of votes within the supervisory Board results in a second 

round of voting on the same matter in which the board chair-

man casts two votes. the supervisory Board chairman also 

chairs the personnel, mediation, and nomination Committees, 

but not the audit Committee.

the supervisory Board meets at least four times a year. Extra-

ordinary meetings are called for major events that cannot be 

delayed. the supervisory Board examines the consolidated 

finan cial statements and the financial statements, the manage-

ment reports, and gives official approval to the consolidated 

financial statements and the financial statements, taking into 

account the results of the audit and the recommendations of 

the audit Committee. Further details can be found in the chap-

ter on accounting and auditing of the corporate governance 

report and in the supervisory Board report from page 6 of this 

annual report.

the board carries out a comprehensive formal investigation of 

the efficiency of its activities by questionnaire at least once 

every two years and discusses the results of the investigation at 

a meeting. since the supervisory Board has only met in its cur-

rent membership for half a year, the next self-evaluation is to 

take place in June 2013. all of the board’s members can make 

suggestions for improvement or changes at any time, which 

are then evaluated without delay. supervisory Board members 

are independently responsible for undergoing the training mea-

sures necessary for their tasks. they are supported by JEnoptiK 

ag in ways such as providing information about training oppor-

tunities.

the supervisory Board has adopted rules of procedure, which 

govern important aspects of its internal cooperation and collab-

oration with the Executive Board. the rules also mandate the 

creation of committees as a means of improving efficiency 

when it comes to supervisory Board work on complex topics. 

the supervisory Board had five committees this past fiscal year. 

in its first constitutive meeting after the closure of the 2012 

annual general meeting, the decision was made, for the sake 

of simplicity, to transfer the tasks of the Capital market Com-

mittee to the audit Committee, so that there are now only four 

committees. all committees with the exception of the nomina-

tion Committee, which is composed only of shareholder repre-

sentatives, are made up of equal numbers of shareholder and 

employee representatives. the candidates’ expertise is taken 

into account in the formation of the committees. an overview 

of the composition of the committees can be found in the 

notes from page 182.

the committees prepare resolutions for the supervisory Board, 

and make decisions on behalf of the full board inasmuch as this 

is legally permissible. Committee chairs report back regularly on 

the content, results, and recommendations of the committee 

meetings, mostly in the subsequent supervisory Board meetings.

the audit Committee meets at least four times each year. its 

discussions involve, in particular, the monitoring of the account-

ing process, the effectiveness of the internal control system  and 

the internal revision system, auditing, and compliance issues.  

in accordance with stock Corporation act, the committee must 

have at least one independent member who is well versed in 

accounting or auditing. this is particularly the case for the audit 

Committee chairman, who is independent in terms of the new 

stipulations of the german Corporate governance Code. he is 

not a former member of the JEnoptiK ag Executive Board.
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the personnel Committee meets at least once a year and 

focuses on concluding and altering service contracts with mem-

bers of the Executive Board with the exception of the determi-

nation of the total amount of remuneration, a matter reserved 

for the plenary. the personnel Committee acts in a preparatory 

manner in matters that regard the remuneration system and 

target agreements for the Executive Board. it works together 

with the Executive Board on the long-term succession planning.

the nomination Committee meets only when necessary, as for 

example this past fiscal year, when it recommended candidates 

to the supervisory Board for subsequent submission to the 

annual general meeting. the mediation Committee, which 

deals with matters having to do with § 31, para. 3, sent. 1 of 

the Codetermination act, also only meets when necessary.

Further information on the supervisory Board and its commit-

tees in fiscal year 2012 can be found in the supervisory Board 

report published beginning on page 6 of the annual report.

JEnoptiK ag has taken on d & o insurance for all its Executive 

Board and supervisory Board members, with both boards 

agreeing to an appropriate deductible pegged at 10 percent of 

any liability but capped at a maximum of one and a half times 

the fixed annual remuneration of each insured board member.
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sharing ExCELLEnCE
that is what JEnoptiK doEs.

24 LasErs & matEriaL proCEssing

26 optiCaL systEms

28 industriaL mEtroLogy

30 traFFiC soLutions

32 dEFEnsE & CiviL systEms

∞ possibilities
we use our expertise in all aspects of optoelectronics to support 
global trends. it is our philosophy to connect people, organiza-
tions, and institutions. we combine our competencies with the 
knowledge of many partners and requirements of our customers. 
we collect and share our wealth of experience and excellent 
ideas for the benefit of our customers – consistently, in an opti-
mal way and all over the world. our motto is indeed “sharing 
Excellence”, as is reflected in our teams on the following pages.
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LasErs & MaTErIaL PrOcEssINg

Sharing Excellence
in Lasers & Material 
Processing



Dr. agnieszka pietrzak

Project head, research & Development, Jenoptik´s Lasers & Material Processing division.

» My research experience with the Ferdinand Braun 

Institute helps me to translate developments into 

new laser products in a short period of time. I work 

together closely and intensively with my former 

institute colleagues.«



LasErs & MaTErIaL PrOcEssINg

21

JenOptik i Lasers & MateriaL prOcessing

The Jenoptik Lasers & Material Processing division is one of the leading 
providers of reliable and precise laser technology for industrial processing 
of various materials. The division’s high-power diode lasers are used as  
efficient instruments especially in industry, medical technology, and science. 
In its research in this field, Jenoptik works particularly intensively together 
with the Ferdinand Braun Institute, Leibniz Institute for High-Frequency 
Technology in Berlin.  

Turning ideas into reality

Wafers Laser bars Laser stacks

These laser bars are processed by 

Jenoptik into high-power diode 

lasers as single lasers, stacks, and 

modules. It is then easy to inte-

grate them into laser systems.

Jenoptik’s Lasers & Material Pro-

cessing division processes wafers 

made of semiconductor materials 

into laser bars at its Berlin site.
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FerDinanD Braun institute, LeiBniz institute   
FOr HigH-Frequency tecHnOLOgy (FBH) 

The cooperation between Jenoptik and the FBH in Berlin-adlershof is an ex-
ample for the successful transfer of technology between science and indus-
try. In March 2012, the cooperation between the two in the development of 
particularly efficient diode lasers was recognized by the Technologiestiftung 
Berlin foundation with its 50,000-euro WissensWerte Transfer Prize.

Use in medical technology

Incandescent
 bulb

Energy-saving
bulb

Diode lasers

5 % 25 % 70 %

Diode lasers have the highest rate 

of electro-optical efficiency, trans-

forming up to 70 percent of the 

original electrical energy into light. 

By means of comparison, incan-

descent bulbs convert only 5 per-

cent, and energy-saving bulbs con - 

vert 25 percent into light.

High-power diode lasers are 

used, for example, in material 

processing and medical tech-

nology. They serve as pumping 

source for laser systems used  

for processing of plastics and 

metals. In medical technology, 

they are used in applications in 

fields such as ophthalmology, 

surgery, and dermatology.



Dr. pauL cruMp

Ferdinand Braun Institute, Leibniz Institute for High-Frequency Technology (FBH) 
group leader, Broad area Lasers & Bars in the Diode Lasers research department.

» Our close cooperation with Jenoptik helps us 

transfer research results to the industry. One  

great advantage is the close proximity of our  

institute to Jenoptik here in Berlin-Adlershof.«
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OPTIcaL sysTEMs

sharing excellence
in Optical systems



Jay kuMLer

Head of the Optics business unit of Jenoptik’s Optical systems division 
in North america and sPIE Fellow, wearing the sPIE tie on the occasion 
of the competition at Photonics West 2013.

» As a sponsor of the SPIE Startup Challenge,  

Jenoptik supports innovative entrepreneurial  

projects. The competition is an excellent  

oppor tunity to see innovations at an early  

phase in their development.«



OPTIcaL sysTEMs

JenOptik – tHe LeaD spOnsOr

For the second time, Jenoptik is supporting the sPIE startup challenge as 
its main sponsor. supporting this event encourages entrepreneurial spirit 
within the industry and company while promoting Jenoptik values and cor-
porate culture. During a preliminary phase of the startup challenge, young 
entrepreneurs with promising business ideas are brought together for a 
“pitch competition” judged by executives and investors.

at this year’s Photonics West in 

san Francisco, 20 young devel-

opers presented their ideas and 

products involving optical and 

photonic technologies to a team 

of experts, including Jay Kumler. 

Ten participants made it to the 

finals.

2

Jay Kumler was named an sPIE 

Fellow in March 2011, an honor 

recognizing both support for the 

global optics community and 

technical expertise. sPIE Fellows 

are prominent members of the 

society who have made impor-

tant scientific and technical con-

tributions across disciplinary lines.

1

Promoting Innovation

sPIE Fellows Business Idea



OPTIcaL sysTEMs

spie – tHe event’s Organizer

sPIE is the international society for optics and photonics, a non-for-profit 
organization founded in 1955 to advance light-based technologies. The 
society serves 225,000 constituents from over 150 countries, offering con-
ferences, continuing education, and publications in support of interdisci-
plinary information exchange, professional growth, and patent precedent. 
sPIE provided over $ 3.2 million in support of education and outreach pro-
grams in 2012. since its founding, sPIE has named some 800 sPIE Fellows.

The ten finalists of the competi-

tion are given the opportunity 

to take part in a sponsored entre-

preneurial workshop at the Uni-

versity of california. The top three 

also receive prize money as well.

3

Network

8tree co-founders arun chhabra 

and Erik Klaas were awarded 1st 

place with fastcHEcK™, an op-

tical 3D surface inspection system. 

Using the principle of computer-

generated augmented reality, the 

system projects measurement 

results in real-time directly onto 

the target object. In doing so,  

it delivers instant analysis that is 

orders of magnitude faster and 

more actionable than existing 

methods.

4

startup company



arun cHHaBra FrOM 8tree

Winner of the 2013 sPIE startup challenge. 8tree co-founders arun chhabra & Erik 
Klaas have developed a new optical 3D scanning system for surface inspection.

» The SPIE Startup Challenge was a great opportu-

nity for us. We were able to present our business 

idea and pre-revenue company to several technol-

ogy and business experts. Their feedback and 

network effect have been invaluable.«
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INDUsTrIaL METrOLOgy

sharing excellence
in Industrial  
Metrology



tHOMas unger 

Employee Training & service, Jenoptik´s Industrial Metrology division.

» With our measurement technology, we are a recog-

nized partner for precision in industrial produc-  

tion. We support our customers from the first request 

through to an individual service package.«



INDUsTrIaL METrOLOgy

ServiceTraining

training & service

Jenoptik’s Industrial Metrology division is a leading specialist in high-preci-
sion production metrology. Its global distribution and service network 
guarantees customer proximity and ensures the precision and quality of 
the customer’s production. Jenoptik is involved in each and every phase 
of the process, from the planning and installation of measurement sys-
tems to service calls. Jenoptik also supports its customers with training 
programs and qualified technicians in the field – all for the optimal use of 
its measurement technology.

Ensuring worldwide service

Maintenance / calibration

remote maintenance

repairs

replacement parts / Exchange service

Help desk

consulting

Training

Production monitoring

resident engineer



INDUsTrIaL METrOLOgy

Support Optimizing

suppOrt & OptiMizing 

In close cooperation with its customers, Jenoptik develops designs that  
allow for existing measurement systems to be employed as efficiently as 
possible. Jenoptik also offers its customers a range of services for greater 
measurement accuracy and flexibility – making it possible to fulfill partic-
ular requirements without great difficulty. Jenoptik regularly improves on 
components, devises metrology programs, and updates software, thus 
optimizing its measurement technology.

Measurement to order

rental / Leasing

returns / Disposal

Used systems

Moving service

software Updates / Upgrades

Metrology program design

redesign

Optimization support

Service network



cHarLie Hung

MTc-Mercury Trading co., Ltd., Jenoptik customer in Taiwan.

» At a training program with qualified staff, devel-

oped specifically for us, we practiced to become 

proficient at using our metrology systems – very 

efficient and user-oriented.«
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TraFFIc sOLUTIONs

sharing excellence
in Traffic solutions



Danuta eBerLe

Head of the group for order fulfillment in Jenoptik’s Traffic solutions  
division, responsible in particular for major projects in Oman, saudi  
arabia, and Qatar.

» Each project in the Middle East involves special 

system technologies. This is always a particular 

challenge, but also makes it exciting for our team: 

Once contacts are made and projects prepared, 

we accompany every custom-designed order from 

the first offer through to delivery.«



TraFFIc sOLUTIONs

1

Meeting requirements 
with flexibility

Product portfolio

Laser scanners

Piezo sensors

radar technology

The new Traffistar s350 laser scan-

ner system now rounds out the 

Traffic solutions division’s sensor 

technology portfolio. Jenoptik pro-

vides everything needed in the 

fields of laser scanners and radar 

technology as well as technologies 

using piezoelectric sensors and in-

duction loops.

strOng LOcaL presence 

With its Traffic solutions division, Jenoptik is present as a solution provider 
in the Middle East. The division’s solutions are tailored to customer needs 
and adapted to the individual conditions and requirements of the coun-
tries involved. a modern laser scanner system was, for example, installed 
in Dubai for a customer to test in late 2012.

Induction loop



TraFFIc sOLUTIONs

2

traFFic saFety wOrLDwiDe

Jenoptik won several major contracts in the field in 2012. Jenoptik will, 
for example, provide traffic safety systems and services for the roads of 
Northern and Eastern Malaysia. Traffic safety systems are also delivered by 
Jenoptik to the arabian Peninsula, that is to the sultanate of Oman and 
saudi arabia. The Traffic solutions division has been active in Qatar for 
several years, receiving another contract in 2012 for the delivery of traffic 
light and speed monitoring systems. 

TraffiStar S350
Laser scanner

Middle East Traffic Service Provision
service package

The product portfolio is complet-

ed by the Traffic service Provision 

range, and covers all traffic moni-

toring processes: traffic analysis, 

consulting, and designs, as well 

as system maintenance, data 

processing, and customer service.



eLias eL Hage

sales representative for Jenoptik´s Traffic solutions in the Middle East.

» To have a wide range of important products is of 

great importance in the Middle East region – as well 

as a comprehensive selection of services. And it is 

important to be on location in order to understand 

the people, processes, and requirements there.«
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DEFENsE & cIvIL sysTEMs

sharing excellence
in Defense &  
civil systems



anDreas HärteL

software developer, Jenoptik´s Defense & civil systems division.

» The quality, efficiency, and innovative nature of 

our products combined to win Dräger over. It was 

the Jenoptik process chain as a whole that made 

a particular difference – from the optics and elec-

tronics through to the software development.«



DEFENsE & cIvIL sysTEMs

1

saving lives together 

JenOptik   inFrareD MODuLe 

Jenoptik specializes in thermal imaging cameras and infrared camera mod-
ules that make heat visible and measure temperatures with precision for 
industrial, scientific, and security applications. The Defense & civil systems 
division’s infrared camera modules have been produced in series since 2010, 
with over 10,000 to be delivered by 2015. Dräger and Jenoptik have not, 
however, only worked together in the sensor business, as their cooperation 
in optoelectronic system solutions was expanded to Jenoptik’s Optical sys-
tems division in 2012.

UcF 9000rescue crews

Infrared modules, developed 

and produced in Jena, form the 

core of Dräger cameras for fire-

fighters. Their purpose is to reli-

ably record and display precise 

thermal images quickly and  

automatically and in every possi-

ble situation including extreme 

conditions.



DEFENsE & cIvIL sysTEMs

2

900°C

600°C

300°C

Dräger tHerMaL iMaging caMera range

The Lübeck-based Dräger company is a strong partner in the thermal im-
aging market, allowing Jenoptik to expand into new markets. The UcF 
thermal imaging camera range has been a great success for Dräger and is 
now used by firefighters the world over. The UcF 9000 tops the camera 
line with the greatest resolution and most versatile range of functions.

The UcF thermal imaging camera range 

was developed together by Dräger and 

Jenoptik, specifically for rescue crews.  

The system allows for sight and orienta-

tion to be maintained whether in a fire,  

in smoke, or in darkness, thus providing 

rescue teams with rapid information  

that saves lives.

Thermal image



Dr. BernD speLLenBerg

Product manager, Dräger.

» The heart of our cameras comes from Jenoptik. 

We have already been partners since 2009. In the 

year 2012, we recognized Jenoptik’s efforts and 

reliability with our Innovation Award as a Dräger 

Key Supplier.«



JENOPTIK 2012 33



INFORMATION FOR The shARehOldeRs

34 JENOPTIK 2012

2012 in review

2012 yEar in rEviEw

an order placed by an asian customer has 

strengthened Jenoptik’s position as a leading 

supplier of customized, optical systems for 

semiconductor and flat panel display equip-

ment.

Jenoptik has a successful outing at photonics 

west in san Francisco, the photonics indus-

try’s leading trade fair, finding great resonance 

among visitors and the press. the Jenoptik 

group sponsors the spiE startup Challenge for 

the first time, in which young entrepreneurs 

present their business ideas, with the winners 

receiving sponsorship support.

Jenoptik introduces its new KatasorB™ m 

exhaust cleaning system. the new system, 

developed together with Jena’s Friedrich  

schiller university, makes good use of the 

advantages of energy-efficient microwave 

technology.

Jenoptik makes a donation of 16,500 euros, 

collected at the company’s new year’s recep-

tion, to the Bad dürrheimer off road Kids 

stiftung.

Jenoptik launches its expanded manufacturing 

facility for high-quality semiconductor lasers. 

this investment will lead to the doubling of 

production capacity beginning in early 2013.

a total of 39 young people, including 6 Career 

academy students, begin their training with 

the Jenoptik group throughout germany.

Jenoptik receives several multi-million-euro 

orders from the commercial vehicle industry 

for industrial technology for the measurement 

of crank and gear shafts.

Jenoptik won a major contract for medical 

lasers for 13 million u.s. dollars to be deliv-

ered to an american company over the next 

three years.

Jenoptik delivers traffic safety systems to the 

sultanate of oman.

Jenoptik and dräger, based in Lübeck, ger-

many, expand their collaboration in the area 

of thermal imaging cameras, which had 

begun in 2008. in its cooperation agreement, 

Jenoptik is to develop and manufacture inte-

grated optoelectronic modules, systems, and 

equipment for dräger.

the traffic solutions division receives a major 

order from malaysia to equip roads with traf-

fic safety systems in the north and east of the 

country and to provide services.

in Jena, 102 young researchers come together 

for the 22nd annual “Jugend forscht” thuringia 

state youth science and research competition. 

Jenoptik has sponsored the competition from 

the very beginning.

highly efficient diode lasers developed through 

the cooperation of Jenoptik’s Lasers & material 

processing division and the Ferdinand Braun  

institute in Berlin are awarded the 2012 wis-

senswerte transfer award.

Jenoptik publishes the results of its best fiscal 

year in the company’s recent history.

JuLy august sEptEmBEr

FEBruaryJanuary marCh

DonationS for Social worK. more fab capacity for Semicon laSerS. meDical laSerS for uS cuStomer.

the roaDS of malaySia are now a bit Safer. awarD for hiGh-efficiency DioDe laSerS.SucceSS at photonicS weSt.
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2012 in review

Jenoptik expands its production area for opti-

cal shaft metrology at its Jena site. this will 

provide for a more flexible and rapid fulfill-

ment of customer orders in the future.

Jenoptik’s traffic solutions division receives  

an order from the netherlands for up to 225 

mobile speed measurement systems.

Jenoptik delivers its first new high-power kilo-

watt fiber lasers to an asian customer. the 

systems are used for cutting metals at great 

speeds.

as the president of photonics21, dr. michael 

mertin will represent the technology platform 

of the photonics industry over the next several 

years.

Jenoptik and the ig metall trade union agree 

on a new collective wage agreement.

Jenoptik’s site optimization efforts lay the 

foundations for future international growth, 

with north american optics manufacturing 

being concentrated at the site in Jupiter, Flor-

ida, and the production of energy systems 

focused at two german sites.

at the 40th edition of the tangente art series, 

Jenoptik presented the light art of anke neu-

mann, who is based in Jena.

rüdiger andreas günther becomes the new 

CFo of JEnoptiK ag, joining Chairman 

michael mertin on the Executive Board. gün-

ther takes the reins from Frank Einhellinger, 

who leaves the company.

with its varioCam® hd, Jenoptik introduces 

to the market the world’s first handheld, 

uncooled thermographic camera offering 3.1 

megapixels infrared resolution, and providing 

thermal images in photo quality.

a project group composed of different com-

panies and institutes receives the stifterver-

band science award for the development of a 

platform for ultra-short laser pulses. Jenoptik’s 

Lasers & material processing division plays an 

important role in the research project.

Jenoptik Chairman michael mertin is ranked 

second in the “CEo of the year” rankings pub-

lished by wirtschaftswoche magazine.

the defense & Civil systems division in wedel 

concludes a cooperative agreement with the 

Fröbel group for a kindergarten.

Jenoptik boosts its activities in south america 

with the founding of JEnoptiK do Brasil. this 

will afford Jenoptik with greater proximity to 

its south american customers in the automo-

tive and automotive supplier industries.

For the first time since 2002, the annual gen-

eral meeting approves the payment of a divi-

dend, coming to 0.15 euros per share.

speed measurement technology of Jenoptik’s 

traffic solutions division is installed at four 

locations in Jena, providing greater safety on 

the streets.

oCtoBEr novEmBEr dECEmBEr

mayapriL JunE

more Space for optical Shaft metroloGy. a new preSiDent for photonicS21. liGht SculptureS in JenoptiK Gallery.

Science prize for the Group proJect. a new baSe of operationS in brazil.new executive boarD team for JenoptiK.
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the Jenoptik share

the figure came to 422.5m euros at the end of the year for a 

rise of over 60 percent (prev. year 261.1m euros). through  

February 28, 2013, market capitalization rose to 440.0 million 

euros. the increase in interest by investors and public media 

was reflected in exchange turnover, which rose significantly in 

the fourth quarter of 2012. the average number of Jenoptik 

shares traded each day rose to 121,486 last year (2011: 

120,407 shares), against the general market trend. the Jenop-

tik shares improved in the tecdax ranking of the deutsche 

Börse, and finished the year 18th in market capitalization with 

regard to the free float, and 30th in exchange turnover 

(31.12.2011: 22nd and 32nd place).   4

inveStor relationS

it is our aim to conduct open and reliable communications with 

all the company’s stakeholders, and especially with stockhold-

ers, investors, analysts, and press representatives, as well as 

with employees and others interested. we provide comprehen-

sive and up-to-date information on the development of our 

business, while also seeking an active exchange with others. it 

is important to us to achieve transparency and trust through 

our continual dialogue.

we pursued this goal in 2012 with a total of 25 presentations 

at capital market conferences in Frankfurt, munich, paris, and 

geneva and at road shows in other financial centers in ger-

many, switzerland, austria, Luxembourg, great Britain, and 

scandinavia. Jenoptik held an analyst conference in Frankfurt to 

mark the reporting of its annual and half-year figures, where 

management answered questions on past and future business 

development. the publication of annual and quarterly financial 

statements was also followed by both conference calls and 

individual conversations with institutional investors, analysts, 

and journalists to explain financial figures and strategy. an 

increasing number of investors have also used the opportunity 

to travel to Jena and tour Jenoptik’s production facilities them-

selves. Conversations focused, in addition to explanations of 

financial figures and rising forecasts, on strategy, increasing 

internationalization, the development of the segments, and the 

market environment.

StocK marKet trenDS

the best fiscal year in operative terms in recent years con-

trasted with a great sense of insecurity and fluctuations on the 

global capital markets. a dynamic downturn in the world 

economy, the euro crisis, and rescue attempts on the part of 

the Eu and the ECB decisively affected the atmosphere on the 

german stock markets this past year. the ECB’s liquidity mea-

sures at first contributed to a positive 1st quarter for the ger-

man markets. as the result of Europe’s sovereign debt crisis 

taking another turn for the worse and due to lowered progno-

ses, however, in the 2nd quarter of 2012 the indices lost much 

of ground they had gained. June, on the other hand, would 

see the beginning of a positive trend on the german stock 

market that would continue through the end of the year. 

overall, the dax, germany’s benchmark index, rose 25.3 per-

cent for the year, while the tecdax technology index rose  

18.4 percent.

JenoptiK Share trenDS

Jenoptik improved on the market in 2012 by a solid 58.4 per-

cent, the fourth-best performance on the tecdax. this was the 

best performance over a year since 2000, supported by a solid 

development of the operating business and two increases or 

narrowing of the forecast in fiscal year 2012. while Jenoptik did 

follow the market trend, as described above, it also clearly out-

performed the aforementioned indices. Beginning 2012 with a 

price rise from 4.66 to over 6 euros per share by the end of 

april, the share price fell strongly in may. the firming up of the 

forecast in early June and an increase in expected earnings in 

July led to the share price regaining momentum, especially  

from early october. Jenoptik topped the year at 7.998 euros  

on december 3, 2012, the highest it had been since early 2007. 

the share closed the year on december 28, 2012 at 7.383 euros. 

up to February 28, 2013, the share price further increased to 

7.687 euros, a rise of 65 percent since the beginning of 2012. 

all figures are for xetra closing prices.   1

as the result of the strong rise in price this past year, market 

capitalization (number of issued shares multiplied by the closing 

price) also increased considerably. at 57,238,115 shares issued, 

thE JEnoptiK sharE
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the Jenoptik share

JEnoptiK sharE KEy FigurEs (in Eur)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

closing share price (xetra year-end) 5.00 3.79 5.40 4.56 7.382

highest share price / lowest share price (xetra) 6.07 / 3.44 6.19 / 2.83 5.70 / 3.85 6.58 / 4.30 7.998 / 4.502

non-par value bearer shares issued 52.03m 52.03m 57.24m 57.24m 57.24m

market capitalization (xetra year-end) 260.2m 197.2m 309.1m 261.0m 422.5m

average daily trading volume 1) 160,866 147,065 174,627 120,407 121,486

per (based on highest share price) /  
per (based on lowest share price) 26.39 / 14.96 n. a. 35.63 / 24.06 2) 10.61 / 6.93 9.09 / 5.12

operating cash flow per share 0.89 1.02 0.74 2) 1.07 1.41

Group earnings per share 0.23 – 0.73 0.16 2) 0.62 0.88

1) Source: Deutsche börse
2) adjusted for discontinued business division

 4

isin dE0006229107  wKn 622910  ticker symbol JEn   

reuters xetra JEng.dE  Bloomberg JEn gr

Listed in the following indices: tecdax  Cdax  hdax  dax interna-

tional mid 100  prime all share  technology all share  midCap 

market  different dax sector and subsector indices

JEnoptiK sharE inFormation  3sharEhoLdEr struCturE (as of February 28, 2013) 2

  freefloat     ece industriebeteiligungen Gmbh     thüringer industriebeteiligungs-Gmbh & co. KG

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

JEnoptiK sharE priCE dEvELopmEnt (Januar 2, 2012 through Februar 28, 2013) 1

  Jenoptik xetra     tecDax (indexed)     Dax (indexed)

mar ’12 apr ’12 may ’12 Jun ’12 JuL ’12 aug ’12 sEp ’12 oCt ’12 nov ’12 dEC ’12 Jan ’13 FEB ’13Jan ’12 FEB ’12

14.01 %74.99 % 11 %

4 €

6 €

8 € +65 %
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DiviDenDS

in fiscal year 2012, Jenoptik paid a dividend to its shareholders 

for the first time in ten years. the dividend came to 0.15 euros 

per share for a pay-out ratio (amount of the dividend in relation 

to the company’s earnings) of 25 percent. in addition to financ-

ing further growth, management’s aim is a policy of dividend 

continuity. in the view of management, a solid basis of share-

holders’ equity is of crucial importance, and indeed in the inter-

est of shareholders, as a means of sustaining organic growth 

and making use of acquisition opportunities.

in fiscal year 2012, the Jenoptik group was again able to 

increase its sales and earnings considerably. the group now 

has a solid financing structure, geared for the long term, with 

its equity ratio rising to 49.3 percent. the operative cash flow 

could be used for the ongoing financing of business and the 

payment to silent real estate investors. 

ShareholDer Structure

74.99 of shares in JEnoptiK ag are in free float, with a large 

portion held by institutional investors. ECE industriebeteili-

gungen gmbh (ECE) of vienna, austria is the largest share-

holder at 14.01 percent, while thüringer industriebeteili-

gungs-gmbh  & Co. Kg, Erfurt (tiB) holds 11.00 percent of all 

shares. as of december 31, 2012, Jenoptik holds none of its 

own shares.   2

Jenoptik published its first group sustainability report in august 

2012 and with that met increasing interest among investors and 

the general public in sustainability topics, but also the growing 

importance of these subjects within the group.

private investors, analysts, institutional investors, and all who are 

interested can also find comprehensive and up-to-date informa-

tion on all aspects of the Jenoptik share and the development of 

the Jenoptik group at www.jenoptik.com under “investors”.

in fiscal year 2012, 13 analysts published regularly updated  

recommendations on the Jenoptik share, with Kepler Capital 

markets and independent research beginning their coverage. 

as of the end of February 2013, 8 analysts recommended  

buying Jenoptik shares and 5 recommended that shares be 

held. there were no recommendations to sell.

annual General meetinG

over 300 shareholders, representing around 56 percent of 

nominal capital, and numerous guests were on hand for the 

JEnoptiK ag annual general meeting on June 6, 2012. the 

Executive Board reported on the success attained in fiscal year 

2011 and the company’s further strategic development. the 

agenda included the payment of a dividend, changes in the 

articles of association, and the election of the supervisory 

Board. the Jenoptik shareholders approved all points of the 

agenda with a vast majority. this year, the annual general 

meeting is to take place in weimar on June 4, 2013.

anaLyst rECommEndations (as of February 28, 2013)

8 x buy, overweight 5 x hold 0 x sell

buy, overweight = positive recommendation, hold = neutral recommendation,  
sell = negative recommendation

 5

the Jenoptik share
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64.4 % 
of sales were generated by Jenoptik abroad in 2012.  
With approx. 377 million euros in absolute terms  
we have increased the foreign share compared with  
the previous year – a confirmation of our consistent  
strategy of internationalization.

 40 business and frameWork conditions

 57 economic situation

 74 development of the key performance factors

 88 segment reporting

 97 report on post-balance sheet events

 98 risk report

 112 forecast report

Jenoptik group management report
for fiscal year 2012
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Business and framework conditionsgroup management report

information on the products and services offered by the seg-

ments can be found in the segment reporting from page 88.

key locations

the Jenoptik group is represented in 70 countries worldwide, 

with a direct presence in 18 of these, e.g. through its own 

companies or investment holdings. in recent years, Jenoptik has 

significantly expanded its own international structures. at the 

end of 2012 an asiatic holding company was founded, under 

the umbrella of which Jenoptik will combine its entire asian 

business in the future. under the leadership of a us holding 

company at the Jupiter location in florida the overall strategy, 

finances (corporate center) as well as the shared services will  

be controlled for the american market. Jenoptik do brasil and 

Jenoptik robot malaysia were established in spring 2012.  

Jenoptik has had its own operative presence in singapore since 

June 2012 from where it will increasingly target the south-east 

asian market.   7    8

in december 2012, the group announced its planned optimi-

zation of the locations in the united states and germany. in 

future, optics manufacturing in north america will be concen-

trated at the Jupiter site. the production of energy systems will 

be combined at two german sites in order to continue reduc-

ing costs, achieve greater manufacturing flexibility and better 

drive the technological integration of issues of the future.

1.1  group structure and business activity

business activity and organization

Jenoptik is a globally operating integrated optoelectronics 

group that operates in the five divisions of lasers & material 

processing, optical systems, industrial metrology, traffic solu-

tions and defense & civil systems. the divisions form the three 

segments lasers & optical systems, metrology and defense &  

civil systems. group-wide processes are combined within the 

shared service center. the strategic further development of 

Jenoptik is the responsibility of the corporate center together 

with the central areas.   6

Jenoptik is a supplier of high-quality and innovative capital 

goods and consequently primarily a partner for industrial com-

panies. Jenoptik’s customers also include the public sector – 

directly or indirectly via system integrators. our range of prod-

ucts comprises oem or standard components, modules and 

subsystems through to complex systems and production lines 

for numerous key sectors. the range also includes total solu-

tions and full-service operator concepts. research and develop-

ment play a key role. development cooperations and develop-

ments on behalf of customers are often the beginning of 

partnerships and business relationships along the value-added 

chain. 

1 business and frameWork conditions

organizational structure6

shared services

Lasers & opticaL systems

seGmeNt

metroLoGy

seGmeNt

defeNse & civiL systems 

seGmeNt

lasers & material 

processing
optical systems

industrial  

metrology
traffic solutions

defense &  

civil systems

corporate center



Responsibility statement

41JENOPTIK 2012

IN
FO

RM
A

TI
O

N
 F

O
R 

Th
E 

sh
A

RE
h

O
ld

ER
s

G
r

o
u

p
 m

a
n

a
G

e
m

e
n

t
 r

e
p

o
r

t

AudITOR´s REPORT

Business and framework conditions Group manaGement report

cONsOlIdATEd FINANcIAl sTATEMENTs

INFORMATION FOR ThE shAREhOldERs

NOTEs TO ThE cONsOlIdATEd FINANcIAl sTATEMENTs

Jenoptik: the key locations

Germany 7 europe

south korea

shanghai
china

india

bangalore

pyeongtaek

Jupiter

usa

easthampton

huntsville
rochester

linthicum

rochester hills Japan

america and asia 8

san rafael

brighton

yokohama

triptis

hildesheim

Wedel

essen

monheim

altenstadt

villingen-schWenningen

ratingen

berlin

eisenach
Jena

st. petersburg

spain

czechia

russia

france

bayeuX

switzerland

teplice

madrid

peseuX uster

Brazil

sao paulo
australia

sydney

malaysia

singapore
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Jenoptik’s headquarters and main focus of production are 

located in germany. the Jena headquarters are primarily home 

to optoelectronic operations, which cover all aspects of lasers, 

optics, sensors and digital imaging. other major sites in ger-

many are at Wedel near hamburg (defense & civil systems), 

monheim near düsseldorf (traffic solutions), villingen-schwen-

ningen (industrial metrology), triptis and eisenach (optics / 

optoelectronics), berlin (lasers & material processing) and 

altenstadt (defense & civil systems). the production and devel-

opment site of the defense & civil systems segment at essen 

will be relocated to Wedel during the course of the current fis-

cal year 2013. 

outside germany, Jenoptik has production and assembly sites 

in the us, france, china and switzerland. in addition to these 

and the abovementioned sites, Jenoptik is represented in Japan, 

korea, malaysia, singapore, brazil, russia, the czech republic 

and india. 

for further details on the structure and business activity, such 

as key sales markets and competitive positioning, as well as 

economic and legal factors which influence our operating busi-

ness, we refer to the segment reporting from page 80 in this 

report.

details on corporate objectives and strategy can be found in 

the forecast report from page 112.

1.2  information on takeover law 

supplementary details in accordance With  

the takeover directive implementation act 

reporting on § 289 para. 4, 315 para. 4 hgb (german  

commercial code)

1. composition of the subscribed capital

as of the balance sheet date on december 31, 2012, the sub-

scribed capital totaled 148,819 keur (same as of 31.12.2011). 

it is divided into 57,238,115 (same as of 31.12.2011) no-par 

value bearer shares. each share is therefore worth 2.60 euros 

of the nominal capital.  

the same rights and duties apply to all shares of the company. 

each share represents one vote at the annual general meeting 

and is the determining factor for the shareholders’ share of  

the corporate profits (§§ 58 para. 4, 60 aktg (stock corporation 

act)). the shareholders’ rights also include the subscription 

right to shares in the event of capital increases (§ 186 stock 

corporation act). in addition, the shareholders are entitled to 

administrative rights, e.g. the right to participate in the annual 

general meeting and the authority to put forward questions 

and motions and to exercise their right to vote. the sharehold-

ers’ additional rights and duties are defined in the stock corpo-

ration act, in particular in §§ 12, 53 et seq., 118 et seq. of the 

stock corporation act. under § 4 para. 3 of the articles of 

association, any claim by a shareholder to the securitization of 

his/her shares is excluded. 

2. restrictions affecting voting rights or the transfer of shares

the executive board is not aware of any restrictions relating to 

voting rights or the transfer of shares.

3.  direct or indirect participations in the capital which exceed 

10 percent of the voting rights

information on direct or indirect participations in the capital 

which exceed 10 percent of the voting rights can be found in 

the group notes under point 25 “equity” from page 163.   
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4.  holders of shares with special rights which confer controlling 

powers 

there are no shares of Jenoptik ag which entail special rights. 

5.  form of controlling voting rights if employees own shares 

and do not directly exercise their control rights

there are no employee shareholdings and therefore no resul-

tant control of voting rights.

6.  statutory regulations and provisions of the articles of associ-

ation relating to the appointment and dismissal of executive 

board members and changes to the articles of association

the appointment and dismissal of executive board members is 

carried out exclusively in accordance with the statutory regula-

tions of §§ 84, 85 stock corporation act as well as § 31 mit-

bestg (codetermination act). in accordance with this, the arti-

cles of association stipulate in § 6 para.2 that the appointment 

of members to the executive board, the revocation of their 

appointment and the conclusion, modification and termination 

of contracts for services with members of the executive board 

shall be carried out by the supervisory board. in accordance 

with § 31 para. 2 codetermination act, a majority of at least 

two thirds of the members of the supervisory board is required 

for the appointment of executive board members. revocation 

of appointment as a member of the executive board is only 

permitted for serious due cause (§ 84 para. 3 of the stock cor-

poration act).

§ 6 para. 1 sent. 1 of the articles of association stipulates that 

the executive board of Jenoptik ag must comprise at least 

two members. in the absence of a required executive board 

member, in urgent cases the court must appoint the member 

on the application of a stakeholder (§ 85 para. 1 sent. 1 of the 

stock corporation act). the supervisory board can appoint a 

chairman of or spokesperson for the executive board (§ 84 

para. 2 stock corporation act, § 6 para. 2 sent. 2 of the articles 

of association).

in accordance with §§ 119 para.1 no. 5, 179 para. 1 sent. 1 of 

the stock corporation act, changes to the content of the arti-

cles of association are passed by the annual general meeting. 

however, changes relating purely to the wording of the articles 

of association can be passed by the supervisory board in accor-

dance with § 179 para.1 sent. 2 of the stock corporation act 

and article 28 of the articles of association. this also includes 

the corresponding change to the articles of association follow-

ing the utilization of the authorized capital 2010 and of the 

conditional capital 2009. under § 24 para. 1 of the articles of 

association, resolutions by the annual general meeting require 

a simple majority of the votes cast unless stipulated otherwise 

by law. in those cases in which the law requires a majority of 

the nominal capital represented for a resolution to be passed, a 

simple majority of the nominal capital represented is sufficient, 

unless specified otherwise by the law.

7.  authority of the executive board to issue and buy-back 

shares

the executive board is authorized until may 30, 2015, with the 

consent of the supervisory board, to increase the nominal capi-

tal of the company by up to 35.0 million euros through one or 

multiple issues of new, no-par value bearer shares against cash 

and/or non-cash contributions (“authorized capital 2010”). the 

new shares may be acquired by one or several credit institu-

tions, under the obligation to offer them to shareholders (indi-

rect subscription right). the executive board is authorized, with 

the approval of the supervisory board, to exclude the subscrip-

tion rights of shareholders 

(a) for fractional amounts; 

b) in the event of capital increases against non-cash contribu-

tions, in particular also as part of corporate mergers or for the 

acquisition of companies, parts of companies or investments in 

companies; 

(c) in the event of capital increases in return for cash contribu-

tions, to the extent that the portion of the nominal capital 

attributable to the new shares, taking into account resolutions 

by the annual general meeting and / or the utilization of other 

authorizations to exclude the subscription right in direct or cor-

responding application of § 186 para. 3 sent. 4 of the stock 

corporation act since the date on which such authorization 

becomes effective, neither exceeds a total of ten percent of the 
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nominal capital as of the date of registration for such autho-

rized capital, nor exceeds a total of ten percent of the nominal 

capital in existence as of the date of issue of the new shares 

and the issue price of new shares is not significantly below the 

stock exchange price; 

(d) for the issue to employees of the company and in compa-

nies in which Jenoptik has a majority participation. 

decisions on the details of the issue of new shares, in particular 

their conditions and the content of rights of the new shares, 

are taken by the executive board, with the consent of the 

supervisory board. 

the nominal capital of the company is conditionally increased 

by up to 23.4 million euros through the issue of up to 

9,000,000 new no-par value bearer shares (conditional capital 

2009). detailed information on the “conditional capital 2009” 

can be found in the group notes on page 164. the conditional 

capital increase will only be executed to the extent that

• the creditors / owners of option certificates or conversion rights 

issued up to may 30, 2014 by the company or a domestic or 

foreign company in which the company has a direct or indirect 

majority stake, pursuant to the resolution of the annual gen-

eral meeting dated June 3, 2009, exercise their options or con-

version rights and / or

• the creditors of the issued convertible bonds obliged to exer-

cise their conversion rights which were issued by the company 

or a domestic or foreign company in which the company has  

a direct or indirect majority stake, on the basis of the resolution 

of the annual general meeting on June 3, 2009, fulfill their 

conversion rights by may 30, 2014 and neither own shares are 

used nor is payment made in cash. the new shares participate 

in profits from the start of the fiscal year for which, on the  

date of their issue, no resolution has yet been passed by the 

annual general meeting in respect of the appropriation of 

profits. the executive board is authorized to define further 

details regarding the issue and terms of the convertible  

bonds and option bonds and the execution of the conditional 

capital increase.

under a resolution passed by the annual general meeting on 

June 9, 2010, the executive board is authorized up to may 31, 

2015 to purchase own no-par value bearer shares not exceed-

ing a proportion of ten percent of the nominal capital for pur-

poses other than trading in its own shares. the treasury shares 

purchased, together with shares that the company has already 

purchased and still owns (including shares to be attributed in 

accordance with § 71a et seq. of the stock corporation act), 

may not account for more than ten percent of the nominal 

capital of the company. the authorization may be exercised in 

whole or in part, on a one-off or repeat basis, for one or more 

authorized purposes by the company or by its group companies 

or by third parties for its or their account. at the decision of  

the executive board, acquisition is by purchase on the stock 

exchange or by means of a public purchase bid. further details 

regarding the buyback of shares are described in the invitation 

to the annual general meeting 2010, accessible to the general 

public on our website at www.jenoptik.com in the category 

investors / annual general meeting. 

8.  key agreements in the event of a change of control resulting 

from a takeover bid

there are clauses which apply to a joint venture which has 

been terminated in the meantime and various financing agree-

ments with a total utilized volume of approx. 97.5 million euros 

(prev. year 94.8 million euros) in the event of a change of con-

trol in the shareholder structure of Jenoptik ag as the result of 

a takeover bid. 

the conditions for the acceptance of a change of control differ 

in the respective loan agreements. in any event, contracts with a 

total volume of 49.4 million euros (prev. year 50.5 million euros), 

of which just 7.5 million euros (prev. year 4.8 million euros) was 

utilized as at december 31, 2012, provide the lender with a  

special right of termination should the threshold of 30 percent 

for the submission of a takeover bid under §§ 29 para. 2, 35 

para.1, para. 2 WpÜg (securities acquisition and takeover act) be 

reached, in some cases however once a shareholding actually 

exceeds 25 percent.
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9.  compensation agreements by the company with executive 

board members or employees in the event of a takeover bid

agreements, which are covered by the conditions of a change 

of control and meet the criteria of material relevance, have 

been concluded with both members of the executive board in 

the event that they terminate their contract of service as a 

result of a change of control through acquisition of at least  

30 percent of voting rights by a third party. the compensation 

agreements contained within the contracts of service include 

payment of the contracts for the normal remaining period of 

the contract plus the period for which bridging payments are 

made as well as compensation for the bonus calculated as an 

average value. the compensation is limited to a maximum of 

three times annual salary. in addition, in the event of voluntary 

resignation due to a change of control, both members of the 

executive board will receive a contractually vested right to their 

benefits if they continue to pay their contributions until the reg-

ular end of each of their contracts for services (however for a 

maximum of three years). a corresponding agreement was also 

contained in the service contract with mr. frank einhellinger 

which expired on June 30, 2012 and, who, resigned his mandate 

as chief financial officer last year at his own request. there are 

no comparable agreements with employees of the company.   

for the debenture loan placed in 2011 with a total utilized vol-

ume of 90.0 million euros, the lenders have the right to special 

termination of the loan in the amount corresponding to their 

share of the loan and to demand the immediate repayment of 

this capital sum plus the interest accumulated up to the repay-

ment date. a change of control applies if one or more persons 

acting in concert, with the exception of the existing main share-

holders on the date the contract is concluded, acquire more than 

30 percent of the outstanding nominal capital or more than 30 

percent of the voting rights, directly or indirectly at any time.

another financing framework agreement totaling 8.0 million 

euros, as yet unutilized, purely entails an obligation on the part 

of Jenoptik ag to notify the bank in the event of a change of 

control. if this notification leads to an increase in the risk 

assessment by the bank it will be entitled to demand the provi-

sion of or increase in existing securities.

there is a framework agreement in place with one joint venture 

partner that grants Jenoptik direct access to a comprehensive 

basis of patents, technological expertise and components that 

the partner possesses in the field of fiber laser development 

and manufacture and which contains the special agreements 

described below: in the event of a change of control in a  

competitor of the joint venture partner within a specific period, 

Jenoptik’s right of use is limited to the manufacture and distri-

bution of the product portfolio manufactured with the help  

of the rights of use granted on the date on which the change 

of control takes effect. the right granted to Jenoptik to pur-

chase components for a specific period expires at the end of  

a transitional period. although the joint venture has been in  

liquidation since mid-2011, the rights of use granted continue 

to exist and the rules relating to the consequences of a change 

of control therefore also remain in force.
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rüdiger andreas günther was elected to the executive board 

for three years and in this role has been responsible since then 

for the areas of accounting & controlling, treasury, taxes, merg-

ers & acquisitions, investor relations, the strategic management 

of the real estate portfolio as well as risk and compliance man-

agement. 

the extended management of the Jenoptik group is the execu-

tive management board (emb, see page 188), the members of 

which, in addition to the executive board, include the head of 

human resources, purchasing, supply chain & shared services 

as well as the five heads of division. the emb takes the strate-

gic and operational, cross-sectional decisions for the whole 

group and met a total of six times in 2012. 

control system anD  performance indicators

Jenoptik controls its business units on both the strategic and 

operational levels. as part of the strategy process, two meet-

ings a year are held between the executive board and the man-

agement of the respective operational unit, the aim of which is 

both to define the strategic direction and to monitor the path 

which has been mapped out. opportunities and risks are identi-

fied on the basis of global megatrends, the future product-mar-

ket combinations established, growth paths defined, the areas 

of focus for research & development determined and the prog-

ress of strategically relevant programs monitored.  

 

a medium-term budget planning for a period of five years is 

drawn up once a year on the basis of the strategic objectives, 

summarizing the proposed economic development. further 

information on the 2012 planning process can be found in the 

forecast report from page 188. 

 

monthly earnings meetings are a body for operational control 

where the areas report to the executive board on the economic 

situation, key developments in the day-to-day business and 

special business events. the comparison of the actual financial 

figures with the target and the previous year's figures is an 

important control instrument. in addition, the planning is 

updated four or five times a year as part of the forecasting. in 

1.3 management, supervision and control

supervisory board

the supervisory board of Jenoptik ag comprises twelve equal 

members, six of whom are employee representatives. rudolf 

humer, entrepreneur, hinterbrühl (austria) has been chairman 

of the supervisory board since June 2008. the elections of the 

employee representatives on the supervisory board were held 

on march 20, 2012, with the candidates taking up their roles 

on the supervisory board with effect from the end of the 

annual general meeting on June 6, 2012. the shareholder rep-

resentatives were also elected at the annual general meeting 

on June 6, 2012. detailed information on the supervisory 

board can be found in the report of the supervisory board, the 

explanation on management of the company on pages 16 as 

well as in the group notes from page 182.

eXecutive board and eXecutive management 

board (emb) 

the executive board of Jenoptik ag comprises two members 

as at the end of 2012: dr. michael mertin, chairman of the 

executive board and rüdiger andreas günther, chief financial 

officer. dr. michael mertin joined Jenoptik from carl zeiss in 

2006 as chief operating officer and since July 2007 has been 

chairman of the executive board of Jenoptik ag. in september 

2011 he was appointed chairman of the executive board of 

Jenoptik ag for a further five years commencing with effect 

from July 2012. he is responsible for the entire operating busi-

ness as well as for the areas of legal affairs, strategy, business 

development & innovation management, communication & 

marketing, quality & processes, procurement & supply chain 

management, auditing, executive support, corporate gover-

nance, data protection, it, shared service center and for the 

area of hr as employment director.

Jenoptik has had a new chief financial officer since april 1, 

2012. rüdiger andreas günther took over the running of the 

financial side from frank einhellinger who had resigned his post 

with effect from march 31, 2012, with the consent of the 

supervisory board and left Jenoptik ag at the end of June 2012 

at his own request. 
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the earnings meetings, quality-related factors such as customer 

relationships, projects, competitive environment and other indi-

cators are also discussed. a reduction in the order intake, the 

book-to-bill ratio, the development of industry indicators as 

well as selected information from the sales personnel all serve 

as an early warning system. 

the Jenoptik system of performance indicators encompasses 

financial and non-financial control parameters. the key perfor-

mance indicators focus on shareholder value and the require-

ments of the capital market. the group used in particular the 

indicators ebit and free cash flow to control activities. in addi-

tion, sales, net profit, roce, roe, working capital, investment 

volume, net debt, number of employees, order intake and 

backlog are major figures. the strategic control is supported by 

indicators which are based on the group’s five value levers. 

information on the group’s five value levers and the strategic 

further development can be found in the forecast report from 

page 112. 

Jenoptik is currently working on expanding and enhancing har-

moniziation of the control system. significant progress was 

achieved on the concept design level in fiscal year 2012. for 

example, a new multi-stage direct costing method was adopted. 

these and other concepts will be implemented on a group-wide 

basis within the framework of the Jenoptik one erp program 

(Joe) (see page 72) from 2013. the go-lean program which 

was started up in 2012 will also increase the proportion and 

quality of the process-related control indicators; a detailed 

report on this program is contained on page 72 of the annual 

report. the further development of the control system will in 

future also remain one of the key themes as part of Jenoptik’s 

process of continual improvement.
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1.4 remuneration report 

remuneration for the eXecutive board 

the remuneration report below sets out the basic principles of 

the remuneration system for the members of the executive 

board and supervisory board and gives details of the total 

remuneration for the individual members. 

eXecutive board remuneration system 

the criteria for defining the appropriateness of the remunera-

tion for the executive board of Jenoptik are primarily the tasks 

of the members of the executive board, their personal perfor-

mance, the economic situation, the success of the company 

and its prospects. customary levels within the comparative 

companies are another factor in the remuneration. the remu-

neration for the executive board of Jenoptik consists of non-

performance-related and performance-related components. 

the performance-related components include the fixed remu-

neration, fringe benefits and retirement benefits. part of the 

performance-related bonus is paid in cash and part in the form 

of virtual shares. the long-term incentive component (lti), 

based on virtual shares, incentivizes the long-term approach 

and promotes the sustainable development of the company. 

following preparation by the personnel committee, the super-

visory board is responsible for the structure of the remuneration 

system and the composition of the remuneration for the indi-

vidual executive board members. in June 2011, the annual 

general meeting approved the remuneration system for the 

executive board with a clear majority. as part of the reappoint-

ment of dr. michael mertin as chairman of the executive board 

and hr director of Jenoptik ag and the resultant extension of 

his contract, some adjustments were made to the contract of 

employment, as described in the previous year’s remuneration 

report. the current remuneration system essentially corre-

sponds to the system approved by the annual general meet-

ing. With the consent of the supervisory board, frank ein-

hellinger decided to relinquish his mandate on the executive 

board with effect from march 31, 2012 and not to extend his 

contract beyond June 30, 2012, but be available to the com-

pany as an adviser for a transitional period. at its meeting on 

december 15, 2011, the supervisory board of Jenoptik ag 

appointed rüdiger andreas günther as ordinary member of the 

executive board and successor to frank einhellinger as chief 

financial officer with effect from april 1, 2012. the appoint-

ment is for three years. the contractual provisions of the con-

tract of employment with mr. günther largely correspond to 

those of the new contract with dr. mertin, applicable from July 

2012, unless specified otherwise below.

fixed remuneration. the non-performance related basic salary 

is paid on a pro rata basis each month. the figure for dr. mertin 

has been 510 keur p.a. since January 1, 2011, and for mr. gün-

ther 380 keur p.a. since april 1, 2012, payable respectively in 

twelve equal installments at the month´s end. the fixed remu-

neration paid to frank einhellinger for the 1st quarter 2012 was 

83 keur.

variable remuneration. the members of the executive board 

are entitled to a bonus granted partly in cash and partly in the 

form of virtual shares. it is based on personal target agree-

ments to be concluded in the first quarter of each calendar 

year between Jenoptik ag, represented by the supervisory 

board, and the respective member of the executive board. the 

target agreement must be oriented towards the company’s 

sustainable development and sets targets for the group as a 

whole as well as for the company's success. the bases for the 

fiscal year 2012 were the group ebit, operating free cash flow, 

group net income, share price-related, strategic and operating 

targets for the corresponding year and of a long-term nature as 

well as an individual performance assessment. there is a cap 

and thus an upper limit but no guaranteed lower limit to the 

overall bonus. the actual amount of the variable remuneration 

is dependent upon the attainment of the targets as per the tar-

get agreement. if defined minimum requirements are not 

achieved for individual targets then no proportional bonus is 

paid for this part of the target. 
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financial targets account for 50 percent of the bonus, short 

and medium-term operational targets 25 percent and medium 

and long-term strategic objectives 25 percent. the total bonus 

is paid two-thirds in cash and one-third in the form of virtual 

shares. 

a pro rata fixed bonus based on a 100 percent target attain-

ment was agreed with rüdiger andreas günther for the period 

from the commencement of his activities on april 1, 2012 up 

to december 31, 2012 and with frank einhellinger for the 1st 

quarter of 2012. in addition, a bonus was agreed with frank 

einhellinger, dependent upon the completion of certain tasks in 

connection with the transfer to his successor.

the portion of the variable remuneration payable in cash is due 

on adoption of the respective financial statements of Jenoptik 

ag and the final auditing and approval of the consolidated 

financial statements by the supervisory board. 

the allocation of the virtual shares granted as a long-term 

incentive is carried out within the context of determining the 

level of target attainment. the calculation of the number of 

shares is based on the average closing price of the Jenoptik 

share in the fourth quarter of the calendar year before the last. 

payment is made at the end of the fourth subsequent year after 

allocation, based on the average closing price of the Jenoptik 

share in the full fourth subsequent year. the subsequent year is 

the calendar year following the calendar year for which the tar-

get agreement was concluded. in the event of virtual shares 

being granted as part of the target agreement for the year 

2012, this means that the virtual shares will be allocated within 

the framework of establishing the level of target attainment in 

the year 2013, and payment of the monetary value of the vir-

tual shares – the level of which will be calculated on the basis 

of the average price of the shares in 2016 – will be made at the 

beginning of the year 2017. 

dividend payments made to shareholders of Jenoptik ag in 

the interim are taken into account by additional virtual shares 

being granted in the equal amount of the dividends. 

the employment contracts of dr. michael mertin and rüdiger 

andreas günther contain provisions for the potential conse-

quences of certain circumstances, in particular conversion and 

capital measures on the virtual shares granted. in the year in 

which the contract of employment with the member of the 

executive board expires, the bonus is paid pro rata temporis, 

based on the actual target attainment and without division into 

cash bonus and virtual shares. payment for virtual shares allo-

cated at the time of the termination of the service contract, for 

which the fourth subsequent year has not yet expired, is made 

at the value based on the average price over the last thwelve 

months prior to the date of termination of the service contract. 

the contract of employment with dr. mertin includes an agree-

ment for an annual review of the total remuneration. 

the payment of the fixed bonus agreed with frank einhellinger 

for the 1st half of 2012 in the sum of 56 keur gross plus the 

bonus payment in the amount of 25 keur gross was made in 

february 2013. in addition, an agreement was concluded with 

frank einhellinger in January 2013 in settlement of the 66,622 

virtual shares granted to him since the year 2010 as a member 

of the executive board, plus the virtual shares granted to him in 

place of dividends, under which he was paid the sum of 489 

keur gross in January 2013. 

contracts for retirement benefits were concluded in 2007 for 

dr. mertin and frank einhellinger and in 2012 for rüdiger 

andreas günther. the pension commitment is based on a pen-

sion fund reinsured by a life insurance policy. this is a defined 

contribution scheme within the framework of a provident fund. 

the cost for the provident fund in 2012 totaled 240 keur for 

dr. mertin and 25 keur for mr. einhellinger. an annual pension 

contribution amounting to 80 keur was agreed with mr. gün-

ther, therefore 60 keur were granted in 2012.

fringe benefits exist in the form of an occupational indemnity 

insurance for dr. mertin and for frank einhellinger up to his 

departure from the company. in addition, executive board 

members are entitled to the private use of a company car. in 



50 JENOPTIK 2012

Business and framework conditionsgroup management report

addition, rüdiger andreas günther was also reimbursed for the 

temporary costs for secondary accommodation at the regis-

tered offices of the company, as well as for relocation expenses 

in 2012. there is a third party financial loss-liability insurance 

for the members of the executive board with the contractual 

obligation to pay a deductible amounting to 10 percent of the 

loss per claim, however up to a maximum sum of 150 percent 

of the fixed salary for all claims per year.

if the contract of service with the executive board chairman 

dr. mertin is not extended beyond the end of its regular term of 

June 30, 2017, with effect from this date he has an entitlement 

to bridging payments in the sum of 80 percent of one twelfth 

of the annual salary for a period of 12 months. emoluments of 

the executive board member resulting from a freelance and / or 

employed activity, in particular as a member of a management 

and supervisory body of another company, as well as any com-

pensation for a non-competition clause, will be offset against 

the bridging payments. bridging benefits are not payable if the 

non-renewal of the service contract is attributable to serious 

breaches of duty by the executive board member, in the event 

of extraordinary termination of the employment relationship, or 

if the executive board member rejects an extension of the ser-

vice contract on the same, equivalent or enhanced terms. 

under point 4.2.3 para. 4 of the german corporate gover-

nance code (code), when concluding contracts for members of 

the executive board care should be taken to ensure that pay-

ments to a member of the executive board on premature termi-

nation of his / her activity for the executive board without good 

reason do not exceed the equivalent of two years’ remuneration 

(settlement cap) and that payment does not extend beyond the 

remaining period of the contract of employment. in the decla-

ration of conformity dated december 13, 2012, Jenoptik gave 

an explanation for a deviation from this recommendation for 

the employment contract of the chairman of the executive 

board; this explanation and the reasons for it are given from 

page 13 of the annual report.

in the event of a change of control of Jenoptik ag, a change-

of-control clause will come into force for the members of the 

executive board with effect from the acquisition of a control-

ling interest in accordance with §§ 29, 35 para. 1 sent. 1 of the 

securities acquisition and takeover act (WpÜg), i. e. an acquisi-

tion of at least 30 percent of the voting rights in Jenoptik ag, 

granting the members of the executive board the right to give 

notice of termination within a specified period following the 

change of control. in the event of notice of termination being 

issued, the executive board member will be entitled to payment 

of a settlement in the maximum sum of 36 months’ salary plus 

a variable remuneration on a pro rata basis depending upon 

the residual period of his / her contract of employment. in addi-

tion, if the pension contributions continue to be paid up to the 

normal expiry of the respective contract of employment, how-

ever for a maximum period of three years, the members of the 

executive board will receive a contractually vested entitlement 

to pension benefits. 

post-contractual non-competition clauses for a period of one 

year have been agreed with the executive board members in 

their contracts of employment. the respective member of the 

executive board is paid 50 percent of the above-mentioned 

gross annual remuneration as compensation for the non-com-

petition clause. however, prior to the actual end of the con-

tract of employment Jenoptik can waive the post-contractual 

non-competition clause by way of a declaration in writing to 

the respective executive board member to the effect that on 

expiry of a period of three months from the date of the decla-

ration Jenoptik is released from the obligation to pay the com-

pensation.
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total remuneration of the individual  

members of the eXecutive board.

the table below contains a list of the remuneration components 

granted to the members of the executive board dr. michael 

mertin and rüdiger andreas günther in the fiscal year just past, 

as well as for frank einhellinger who resigned from the execu-

tive board on march 31, 2012. the summary differentiates 

between five components, the fixed component, variable remu-

neration, share-based long-term incentive component, retire-

ment benefits and fringe benefits.   9

subject to the consent of the supervisory board, the variable 

remuneration for fiscal year 2012 for dr. mertin will be 731.5 

keur in cash and 75,572 virtual shares. further details on the 

share-based remuneration in the form of virtual shares can be 

found under point 30 in the notes from page 169 which we 

also see as an integral part of this remuneration report.

remuneration system for the supervisory 

board

the remuneration system for the supervisory board of Jenoptik 

ag, which had previously been based on provisions contained 

in the articles of association from the year 2007, was modified 

in 2012. a comparison with other tecdax companies had shown 

that as a result of numerous new statutory requirements the 

remuneration of the supervisory board did not take sufficient 

account of the increased demands on the controlling activities 

of the supervisory board. however, under point 5.4.6 para. 1 

sent. 2 of the german corporate governance code (code), the 

remuneration should also take into consideration the level of 

responsibility and scope of the activities performed by the 

members of the supervisory board as well as the economic sit-

uation and the company’s results. 

the annual general meeting therefore agreed on June 6, 2012, 

to increase the fixed and performance-related remuneration 

each by one-third. the new rules have applied from the end  

of the annual general meeting on June 6, 2012. up to that 

date the previous version of § 19 of the articles of association 

applies to the remuneration of the supervisory board members. 

components of the remuneration of the eXecutive board

dr. michael mertin
(chairman  

of the executive Board)

frank einhellinger
(executive Board member 

until 31.3.2012)

rüdiger andreas Günther
(executive Board member 

since 1.4.2012)

in KeUr 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012

fixed remuneration 510.0 510.0 83.3 333.0 285.0

variable remuneration 731.5 687.7 81.3 300.0 210.0

Lti 2011 1) – 206.8 – 81.7 –

Lti 2012 valued at issue price 2) 365.8 – 29.0 – 105.0

Lti 2012 share price increase in 2012 3) 192.0 – 4.6 – 55.1

total remuneration 1,799.3 1,404.5 198.2 714.7 655.1

retirement benefits 240.0 240.0 24.8 99.9 60.0

fringe benefits 30.2 36.7 4.9 17.0 34.8

total of other benefits 270.2 276.7 29.7 116.9 94.8

1) valued at the qualifying date 31.12.2011
2) average closing price in Xetra trading, 4th quarter 2012
3) valued at the qualifying date 31.12.2012 (for frank einhellinger as at 31.03.2012)

 9
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the remuneration of the members of the supervisory board 

comprises a fixed and a performance-related component. the 

fixed annual remuneration was increased from 15 keur to  

20 keur. the chairman of the supervisory board receives dou-

ble and his / her deputy one-and-a-half times this amount.  

the fixed remuneration is payable on expiry of the fiscal year.  

in addition, each member of a committee receives an annual 

remuneration in the sum of 5 keur. the chairman of the com-

mittee receives double this amount. the annual remuneration 

for the audit committee, whose activities are particularly labor- 

and time-intensive, was increased from 5 keur to 10 keur. 

the chairman of the audit committee receives double and 

his / her deputy one-and-a-half times this amount.

if group earnings before tax exceed 10 percent of the group 

shareholders’ equity at the end of the fiscal year, each member 

of the supervisory board now receives a performance-related 

annual payment in the sum of 10 keur instead of the previous 

7.5 keur. the performance-oriented annual payment is 

increased to 20 keur (up to the annual general meeting on 

June 6, 2012: 15 keur), providing group earnings before tax 

exceed 15 percent of the group shareholders’ equity at the  

end of the fiscal year. the chairman of the supervisory board 

receives double and his / her deputy one-and-a-half times this 

amount. the consolidated financial statements for the corre-

sponding fiscal year are definitive for the calculation of the 

earnings before tax and the shareholders’ equity. the annual 

performance-oriented remuneration is payable after the annual 

general meeting which approves of the actions of the supervi-

sory board for the past fiscal year, i.e. normally after the annual 

general meeting of the following fiscal year. 

group earnings before tax for the year 2011 exceeded the 

abovementioned figure of 10 percent of the group sharehold-

ers’ equity at the end of the fiscal year 2011, consequently the 

members of the supervisory board received a performance-

related payment in the sum of 7.5 keur each for the fiscal year 

2011 following the annual general meeting in June 2012. the 

chairman of the supervisory board received double and his/her 

deputy one-and-a-half this amount.

members of the supervisory board who have only served on 

the supervisory board or a committee for part of the fiscal year 

received a pro rata payment.

the members of the supervisory board were paid a meeting 

allowance of 0.6 keur for attendance up to June 6, 2012. this 

allowance was increased to 1 keur with effect from the end of 

the annual general meeting on June 6, 2012. for conference 

calls or attending multiple meetings on the same day, they are 

now paid half of the agreed meeting allowance from the sec-

ond meeting. under the new remuneration system, verified 

expenses incurred in connection with the meeting are reim-

bursed in addition to the meeting allowance; the reimburse-

ment for travel and overnight accommodation costs in connec-

tion with a meeting held in germany is limited to 0.6 keur. 

previously, expenses incurred by a member of the supervisory 

board in connection with the performance of his / her duties 

were reimbursed in return for supporting receipts, where these 

were directly associated with participation at a meeting of the 

supervisory board or one of its committees, however, this only 

applied providing the amount involved exceeded 0.6 keur. 

Jenoptik ag also reimburses the members of the supervisory 

board for any value added tax applicable to the payment of 

their remuneration.

in fiscal year 2012, 298.2 keur was set aside as a provision for 

the fixed remuneration of the supervisory board and its com-

mittees to be paid in January 2013 and 102.6 keur for the 

variable remuneration to be paid after the annual general 

meeting in June 2013. Jenoptik did not pay any other remuner-

ation or benefits to the members of the supervisory board for 

services rendered personally by them, in particular consulting 

and intermediary services.

the chairman of the supervisory board rudolf humer issued a 

written statement to the executive board waiving all his claims 

to remuneration as chairman of the supervisory board and 

committee member to which he was entitled for his activities 

since april 1, 2011. this also applies to any meeting allowances 

and any performance-related remuneration. 
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1.5 development of the economy 

development of the economy as a Whole

the uncertainty in the global economy continued in 2012. 

although many industrialized countries had taken fiscal consoli-

dation measures at the beginning of the year, the sovereign-

debt crises increasingly affected also countries outside the euro 

area. at the end of the year, the imminent fiscal cliff in the 

united states also unsettled the markets. according to the 

international monetary fund (imf), the economy worldwide 

expanded by 3.2 percent in 2012, 0.7 percentage points less 

than in the previous year. in the view of the World bank, the 

risk of a serious financial crisis emanating from europe was 

largely avoided because appropriate measures were taken to 

shore up the euro.   10

according to the us department of commerce, after a moder-

ate start the economy in the us grew unexpectedly by 3.1 per-

cent in the 3rd quarter of 2012 but declined in the 4th quarter 

by 0.1 percent compared with the same quarter in the previous 

year. because of the impending fiscal cliff – which was tempo-

rarily postponed at the beginning of 2013 – government spend-

ing and investment had reduced. in december 2012, however, 

industrial production rose again, prompting optimism about 

the economic situation.

economic momentum in the euro zone steadily declined in 

2012, with the result that the imf calculated a fall of 0.4 per-

cent in gdp for the year 2012 as a whole. at the end of the 

year, there were signs of a slight recovery as industrial produc-

tion had grown more than expected according to the european 

statistics office eurostat.

after a good start, the german economy showed a marked 

cooling in the 2nd half of 2012 because of the difficult environ-

ment. according to the federal german department of statistics, 

economic performance shrank in the 4th quarter by 0.6 percent 

compared with the previous quarter; industrial production 

declined by 3.2 percent. for the year as a whole, the federal 

german department of statistics calculated a growth in gdp  

of 0.7 percent; exports were the key growth driver. german 

exports rose by 3.4 percent compared with the previous year  

to a new record high of 1.1 trillion euros.

in the emerging markets, economic momentum also slowed in 

2012: according to the imf, the increase in gdp declined to  

5.1 percent compared to the previous year (prev. year 6.3 per-

cent). china experienced its weakest year economically since 

1999: according to the chinese statistics office, the rise in gdp 

was 7.8 percent in 2012. however, the 4th quarter saw the 

return to a sharp rise in exports, industrial production and retail 

sales. india's economy weakened more than expected in 2012: 

gdp only grew by 5 percent compared with the previous year. 

that was the lowest increase in a decade. brazil's economy 

only expanded by about 1 percent in 2012 according to the imf.

change in gross domestic product

in percent 2010 2011 2012 2013 1) 2014 1)

World 5.2 3.9 3.2 3.5 4.1

Usa 3.0 1.8 2.3 2.0 3.0

euro zone 1.9 1.4 – 0.4 – 0.2 1.0

Germany 3.6 3.1 0.9 0.6 1.4

source: international monetary fund, World economic outlook (Update), January 2013  |  1) forecast
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development of the individual Jenoptik sectors

the Jenoptik group targets the high-growth markets of the 

automotive / machine construction, aviation / traffic, security 

and defense technology, semiconductor and semiconductor 

equipment and medical technology industries. 

according to provisional calculations by spectaris, the german 

photonics industry increased sales to 28.3 billion euros in 2012, 

a rise of approximately 10 percent over the previous year. the 

growth markets continue to include the semiconductor, laser 

and led industries as well as life sciences. the spectaris global 

market index for optical technologies had fallen below the key 

reference mark of 200 points in the 1st quarter of 2012 but 

was above this figure in subsequent quarters. the index assesses 

the sales performance of 15 international companies in the sec-

tor. Jenoptik uses optical technologies in all three segments and 

is an established partner of the global photonics industry.   11

as expected, sales in the global laser market increased slightly 

in 2012 by 1.2 percent to 7.57 billion us dollars, as reported by 

market researchers from strategies unlimited in the magazine 

“laser focus World”. according to analyses by “industrial laser 

solutions” (ils), sales of industrial lasers in 2012 rose by 7 per-

cent compared to the previous year to 2.1 billion dollars. laser 

system sales worldwide were almost 7.5 billion us dollars, with 

laser cutting machines for metal processing accounting for 

about 60 percent of this figure. in addition, high-power fiber 

lasers for metal processing continued to gain ground; sales of 

fiber lasers increased in 2012 in both areas by 16 percent accord-

ing to ils. Jenoptik supplies the market with laser diodes, laser 

systems and complete laser machines. in 2012, Jenoptik added 

a kilowatt fiber laser, optimized for metals processing, to its 

fiber laser product portfolio.   12

according to the semiconductor industry association (sia), the 

semiconductor industry proved resistant despite macroeco-

nomic challenges, although it reported markedly lower sales 

than it anticipated in autumn of 2012. according to sia, global 

sales in 2012 fell by 2.7 percent compared with the previous 

year, to 291.6 billion us dollars; according to the it analyst 

gartner, the figure was 3 percent to 298 billion us dollars. the 

weak 4th quarter 2012 also had an impact on development  

in the semiconductor equipment industry, an important sector 

for the Jenoptik lasers & optical systems segment. based on 

provisional calculations from the association semi, global sales 

declined by 12.2 percent in 2012 compared with the previous 

year, to 38.2 billion us dollars. in the segment for wafer pro-

cessing equipment, sales reduced by almost 15 percent to  

29.3 billion us dollars. in 2012, Jenoptik generated 12.4 per-

cent of its sales with the semiconductor and semiconductor 

equipment industry.   13

market for the german photonics industry  
(in billion euros)

 11

source: sector association spectaris,  |  1) forecast: 10 percent increase over 2011
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medical technology manufacturers in germany continued their 

success in 2012. according to provisional calculations by the 

industry association spectaris, the sector increased sales by  

4 percent to 22.2 billion euros in 2012, primarily as a result of  

a marked rise in foreign sales. in its medical global medical 

technology market index, spectaris analyzes the development 

of sales of 13 international companies in the sector. in 2012, 

Jenoptik achieved 5.4 percent of group sales with the medical 

technology industry.

according to the german engineering federation (vdma), it was 

a better year for the sector than had been anticipated in spring 

2012. production in 2012 increased by 2 percent, industry sales 

came in at approximately 209 billion euros, about 1 billion euros 

above the previous record in 2008. according to vdma, exports 

to the united states accounted for approx. 20 percent, with the 

growth region of south-east asia making up about 21 percent. 

as a result of the high figures in the previous year, the industry 

posted an overall reduction of 3 percent in order intakes. the 

german machine tool industry reported high order backlogs and 

robust international business in 2012, especially with the usa. 

according to the association of german machine tool manu-

facturers (vdW), the industry recorded a net increase of 9 percent 

in production, to 14.1 billion euros.   14

according to the german association of the automotive indus-

try (vda), international markets were generally stable in 2012 

compared to the previous year. there was solid growth, espe-

cially in the us (up 13 percent) and Japan (up 30 percent). 

however, sales in Western europe decreased by 8 percent in 

2012, in germany by almost 3 percent. the consequences of 

the downturn in europe were over-capacities, production inter-

ruptions and announcements of factory closures. according to 

the vda, 4 percent more vehicles were sold worldwide, giving 

a total net figure in excess of 68 million vehicles. 

the mechanical engineering and automotive industry markets 

are important target industries, especially for the Jenoptik 

lasers & optical systems and metrology segments. in 2012, 

Jenoptik generated its highest proportion of sales in these seg-

ments at 27.5 percent.

the market for traffic safety was characterized by large orders 

in the emerging markets, particularly in the asian and arab 

regions; the business in germany remained stable. according to 

the united nations (un), 1.3 million people die each year on 

the roads, with 90 percent of these in the emerging countries. 

the use of traffic safety technology in these countries is helping 

to reduce the number of accidents and deaths. that is why the 

un launched the “decade of action for road safety” in 2011 

with the aim of preventing up to 5 million deaths and 50 mil-

lion injuries on the roads by 2020.

in 2012, iata, the sector association of the international avia-

tion industry, raised its profit forecast several times and antici-

pates net profits for the sector of 6.7 billion dollars (prev. year 

semiconductor equipment: global sales  
(n billion us dollars)

 13

source: semiconductor equipment and materials international (semi),   |  1) forecast
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8.8 billion us dollars). this corresponds to about 1 percent of 

sales. among the major aircraft manufacturers, boeing was 

ahead of airbus in terms of orders and deliveries for the first 

time in ten years.  

With long-term planning and projects a characteristic feature of 

this sector, development in the international market for security 

and defense technology was largely stable in 2012. given the 

targeted savings by the public sector in europe and the us, 

defense companies were increasingly reliant on growth in the 

emerging markets, particularly in southeast asia, india, south 

america and the middle east. the security and defense share of 

Jenoptik sales in 2012 was 19.9 percent. 

1.6 legal framework conditions
the legal framework conditions governing business operations 

essentially remained constant in the fiscal year 2012 and there-

fore had no significant impact on the business development of 

the Jenoptik group. 

1.7 general statement by the executive 
 board on the framework conditions

Jenoptik is very well placed both in terms of the company and 

the markets.

our three segments have an attractive range of products and 

services and are present in the key high-tech markets, which 

essentially reported positive development in 2012 as well as at 

the start of the current fiscal year. in 2012, we further 

expanded and strengthened our international presence in the 

key regions of north america and asia. We have successfully 

continued our strategy of opening up existing structures 

abroad to all segments of the group. Within the framework of 

the Jenoptik excellence program we worked intensively on 

internal process improvements. 

despite a weakening global economy which was marked by 

the euro crisis and high levels of sovereign debt, particularly in 

the industrial eu states of southern europe, a tight financial sit-

uation in the us as well as declining momentum in china, 

development in the markets relevant for Jenoptik has so far 

been stable to very good, some of these performing even bet-

ter than we had anticipated at the beginning of 2012. this 

includes in particular the automotive and automotive supplier 

industries as well as the semiconductor industry. as a result of 

the reductions in defense budgets there were some postpone-

ments and cancellations for projects in which we are involved, 

but this was essentially compensated through new products 

and the international business. 

the framework conditions under which our company operates 

are generally supporting our goal of generating profitable 

growth. We are one of the major providers in attractive growth 

markets, with a local presence for our customers worldwide.
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Economic situation

2.1 general statement as well as actual and  
 forecast development of business 

We have reported a better fiscal year 2012 than had been orig-

inally expected and once again achieved the best result in the 

company’s recent history. We exceeded our original target of 

achieving a slight increase in sales of between 2 and 6 percent 

in 2012. it became evident during the course of the year that 

we were able to achieve a higher increase in sales mainly due 

to high demand from the automotive industry, several large 

orders in the traffic safety sector and better than expected 

development in the semiconductor industry during the 1st 

quarter. this prompted the executive board to adjust the sales 

forecast for the first time in June 2012. at that time, it antici-

pated sales growth of 4 to 8 percent for the full year 2012.  

the Jenoptik group also set itself concrete objectives with 

regard to growth on the international level and aims to 

increase the joint share of sales in the focus regions of north 

america and asia over the medium to long term to roughly 40 

percent of group sales. the positive course of business contin-

ued in the 2nd quarter 2012, with the result that in July 2012 

the forecast for sales growth was raised to between 5 and 10 

percent. in this context, Jenoptik benefited in particular from 

the very good development in the metrology segment, particu-

larly the development of industrial metrology in the us, as well 

from the major traffic solutions projects. this enabled the 

group to meet this sales forecast as at the end of the fiscal year 

by achieving sales of 585.0 million euros and consequently 

organic growth of 7.7 percent over 2011. 

2 economic situation

actual and forecast course of business (in million euros / or as specified)

indicator status as at end 2011 forecast 2012 during the course of the year status as at end 2012 explanation on page

Group sales

543.3

february / march 2012: slight growth 
2 to 6 percent

June 2012:   4 to 8 percent growth
July 2012: 5 to 10 percent growth 585.0 59

  Lasers & 
  optical systems 217.1

reduction in the single  
figure percentage range 212.3 88

  metrology 140.1 25 to 30 percent increase 182.7 92

  defense &  
  civil systems 183.3

slight increase in the mid-single  
figure percentage range 186.4 95

Group eBit

49.2

march 2012: depending upon course  
of the semiconductor cycle between  

40 and 50 million euros
may 2012:  45 to 50 million euros
June 2012:  50 to 55 million euros 54.8 60

Group order intake 647.9 down slightly 587.2 63

Net debt 77.1 Up slightly 74.5 65

free cash flow 44.0 slight reduction 43.7 67

shareholders’ equity 
quota 46.5 % 1) constant to slight increase 49.3 % 69

Balance sheet total 643.5 1) constant 669.6 68

employees 3,117 increase 3,272 74

r + d expenses 32.0 proportional to sales 36.0 82

capex 2) 25.1 approx. 35 million euros 31.2 66

interest result – 10.7 marked improvement – 6.7 61

1) adjusted due to the first-time application of ias 19r (reviewed in 2011)
2) excluding company acquisitions

 15
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group earnings from operating activities (group ebit) showed a 

similar development during the course of 2012. in february 

2012, the Jenoptik group had a target group ebit of more 

than 40 million euros – between 40 and 50 million euros 

depending upon the course of the semiconductor cycle. as a 

result of high contributions to earnings from the lasers & opti-

cal systems as well as metrology segments, the executive board 

was able to give a more detailed earnings forecast range in 

June 2012 of between 45 and 50 million euros. since the posi-

tive course of business also continued in the 2nd half-year 

2012, the executive board subsequently raised the earnings 

forecast to the new figure of between 50 and 55 million euros 

in July 2012. thanks to the increased sales volume at the year-

end, the Jenoptik group ultimately posted a group ebit for 

2012 of 54.8 million euros. the ebit margin was 9.4 percent. 

the group continues to expect an average ebit margin of 

approx. 9 to 10 percent over the market cycles.

We met or even exceeded our forecasts for other key indicators 

that we had issued in march 2012 for the year as a whole. net 

debt was reduced slightly to 74.5 million euros, contrary to the 

original expectations and despite the payment of a dividend 

and payments to silent real estate investors. We were spot on 

with our forecasts for the interest result.

on the publication of our preliminary figures for 2012 at the 

end of January 2013, we also issued our first statements on the 

current fiscal year. among other things, Jenoptik strengthened 

its role as a leading global provider of traffic safety technology 

through the acquisition of the australian company dcd sys-

tems at the end of January 2013.

nevertheless, the extent to which we succeed in repeating or 

even exceeding the high level achieved with individual key indi-

cators in the 2012 fiscal year, the best in Jenoptik’s more recent 

corporate history, will be dependent upon numerous factors, 

including the development of the semiconductor industry and 

developments in the project business.

on the financing side, we have created a solid base for the 

planned organic growth through the debenture loans issued in 

2011 with terms of 5 resp. 7 years. thanks to positive cash 

flows, we have been able to finance both our organic growth 

as well as investments from our own resources. the sharehold-

ers’ equity quota, our balance sheet total and other financial 

and balance sheet key indicators reflect our size and business 

models.

further information on the planned development of business in 

2013 can be found from page 112 in the forecast report.
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2.2 earnings situation 

important note. the regional distribution of sales was changed 

with effect from January 1, 2012. since then, Jenoptik has 

been reporting on the basis of the regions of germany, europe 

(excluding germany), america (north, central and south amer-

ica), the middle east and africa and asia / pacific. the figures for 

the previous year were adjusted and can therefore be com-

pared. 

Jenoptik took advantage of the opportunity to apply ias 19r 

(modified in 2011) early, the application is made retrospectively, 

resulting in an adjustment to the 2011 consolidated financial 

statements. the resultant changes in the previous year affect 

pension provisions, the shareholders’ equity and the earnings 

for the fiscal year plus deferred taxes. 

in the tables of the annual report which provide a breakdown 

of the key indicators by segment, the item “others” includes 

the corporate center, the shared service center, real estate 

and consolidation effects. 

development of sales and earnings

sales. in fiscal year 2012, the Jenoptik group achieved sales  

of 585.0 million euros (prev. year 543.3 million euros). the 

increase in sales therefore equated to 7.7 percent and was 

achieved through purely organic growth without any acquisi-

tions. at 30.4 percent, the metrology segment posted the 

strongest growth in sales. information on the development of 

sales by the segments can be found from page 88 in the seg-

ment reporting. 3.6 million euros in sales from non-operating, 

other areas are primarily the result of rental sales with third par-

ties and consolidation effects.   16

at 376.9 million euros, Jenoptik generated 64.4 percent of its 

sales abroad (prev. year 321.5 million euros resp. 59.2 percent) 

and was therefore able to further increase the foreign share of 

sales. europe remained the key target region, accounting for 

sales by region

in million euros and in % of total sales 2012 2011

total 585.0 100.0 % 543.3 100.0 %

  Germany 208.1 35.6 % 221.8 40.8 %

  european Union 150.7 25.8 % 165.9 30.5 %

  america 110.0 18.8 % 78.1 14.4 %

  asia / pacific 69.2 11.8 % 56.4 10.4 %

  middle east / africa 47.1 8.0 % 21.1 3.9 %

 17

sales by segment 

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

Group  585.0 543.3 7.7

  Lasers & optical systems 212.3 217.1 – 2.2

  metrology 182.7 140.1 30.4

  defense & civil systems 186.4 183.3 1.7

  other 3.6 2.8 28.6

 16
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25.8 percent of group sales (prev. year 30.5 percent) followed 

by america with 18.8 percent (prev. year 14.4 percent) and 

asia/pacific with 11.8 percent (prev. year 10.4 percent). With a 

22.7 percent increase in sales in the growth region of asia / pacific, 

the group achieved a proportionally greater increase compared 

with the other regions. sales in america (calculated in euros) 

rose by 40.8 percent.   17

in terms of sales by target market, sales in the automotive/

machine construction market increased once again thanks to 

the high level of demand from the automotive industry, taking 

the top share of 27.5 percent (prev. year approx. 30 percent). 

the top three customers accounted for 13.5 percent of group 

sales in 2012 (prev. year 16.5 percent).   18

group operating result reached 54.8 million euros, a record in 

the company’s more recent history (prev. year 49.2 million 

euros). With an 11.4 percent rise, the ebit therefore increased 

at a stronger rate compared to sales. the ebit margin increased 

to 9.4 percent (prev. year 9.1 percent) and remains within the 

target corridor. the rise in the ebit was attributable to the 

metrology segment. more efficient cost structures and the 

increase in sales plus the resultant economies of scale contrib-

uted to the leap in earnings. information on the segment ebit 

can be found from page 88 in the segment reporting.   20

a provision for warranties existed as at december 31, 2011 in 

connection with the sale of Jena-optronik gmbh in 2010. in 

June 2012, these risks expired. the provision was consequently 

roce (return on capital employed)

figures (in million euros, roce in %) 2012 2011

eBit 54.8 49.2

long-term, average tied capital in non-current assets 228.9 209.6

short-term, average tied capital in current assets 284.0 276.4

less non-interest-bearing borrowings 161.7 170.5

average tied operating capital 351.2 315.5

roce  15.6 % 15.6 %

 19

sales by target market

markets (in million euros an in % of total sales) 2012 2011

automotive / machine construction 160.7 27.5 % 159.8 29.4 %

aviation and traffic 136.7 23.4 % 106.4 19.6 %

security and defense technology 116.3 19.9 % 104.9 19.3 %

semiconductor industry 72.5 12.4 % 71.3 13.1 %

medical technology 31.9 5.4 % 31.7 5.8 %

others  66.9 11.4 % 69.2 12.8 %

total 585.0 100 % 543.3 100 % 

18
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released and shown as income in the result from discontinued 

operations. in connection with the location optimization mea-

sures in germany and the usa provisions were established 

which impacted on the ebit in fiscal year 2012.

the roce (return on capital employed) of the Jenoptik group 

as at december 31, 2012 was 15.6 percent (prev. year 15.6 per-

cent). this indicator represents the ratio between the operating 

result and the tied operating capital. Jenoptik shows this indica-

tor including goodwill and before taxes. to calculate the figure, 

the operating ebit in the sum of 54.8 million euros is divided 

by the average tied operating capital. the total tied operating 

capital is calculated on the basis of the non-finance related 

capital in the non-current assets (such as intangible assets 

including goodwill, tangible assets and investment properties) 

plus the capital tied up in current assets (primarily inventories, 

trade accounts receivable and other current receivables). non-

interest-bearing borrowings (such as provisions – excluding 

pensions and taxes, trade accounts payable and other non-

interest-bearing liabilities) are subtracted from this figure. the 

calculation of the average takes into account four quarter-end 

balances and the opening balance at the start of the year, which 

corresponds to the closing balance of the previous year. in 

2012, the roce was therefore higher than the average total 

capital costs for the Jenoptik group (Wacc) which, according 

to a study, were between 6.6 and 8.8 percent.

group earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation & amorti-

zation (group-ebitda) totaled 77.7 million euros (prev. year 

76.8 million euros).   21

the financial result came in at minus 8.7 million euros (prev. 

year minus 13.0 million euros). the improvement over the pre-

vious year was mainly attributable to an improvement in the net 

interest result. interest income, at 1.3 million euros, was down 

slightly on the level for the previous year (prev. year 1.8 million 

euros). interest expenses were down by 35.5 percent to 8.0 mil-

lion euros (prev. year 12.4 million euros). the main reason for 

this is the significantly lower rate of interest charged on the 

debenture loans issued at the end of 2011 compared with the 

rates for loans as well as a better credit standing which resulted 

in a better assessment by banks. in addition, the figures for the 

previous year include one-off early redemption payments in 

connection with the repayment of loans (see page 174). at 

minus 2.0 million euros, the investment result was slightly down 

on the level for the previous year (prev. year 2.3 million euros) 

and was characterized by factors including depreciation on loan 

claims against affiliated companies and investments.

earnings before tax. the improvement in profitability was seen 

most dramatically in the earnings before tax (group ebt), which 

rose by 27.3 percent to 46.1 million euros (prev. year 36.2 mil-

lion euros). 

ebit 

in million euros 2012 2011
change 

in %

Group  54.8 49.2 11.4

  Lasers & optical systems 27.1 29.2 – 7.2

  metrology 25.6  12.0  113.3

  defense & civil systems 7.8 11.6 – 32.8

  other – 5.7  – 3.6  –

 20 ebitda 

in million euros 2012 2011
change

in %

Group  77.7  76.8 1.2

  Lasers & optical systems  36.4  40.5 – 10.1

  metrology  28.6  15.4 85.7

  defense & civil systems  13.3  16.6 – 19.9

  other – 0.6 4.3 – 114.0

 21
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income taxes totaled 5.5 million euros (prev. year 4.4 million 

euros), with 70 percent of this being levied in germany and  

30 percent abroad. in germany, Jenoptik ag’s loss carried for-

ward in the sum of approx. 400 million euros had the effect of 

reducing the tax burden within the framework of the minimum 

level of taxation. the non-cash deferred tax income increased 

to 9.6 million euros (prev. year earnings of 3.5 million euros). 

the increase was due mainly to assumptions in the medium-

term corporate planning, according to which the loss carried 

forward in germany can be utilized to a greater extend in the 

future. the Jenoptik group cash-effective tax quota was there-

fore 12.0 percent (prev. year 12.2 percent). more detailed in- 

formation on the taxes can be found in the notes, point 10. 

as a result of the increase in the operating result, the improved 

interest result and deferred tax income, earnings after tax totaled 

50.2 million euros (prev. year 35.3 million euros). With non-

controlling interests having a minus 19 keur share of profits, 

the result for shareholders was also 50.2 million euros (prev. 

year 35.3 million euros). earnings per share were therefore  

0.88 euros (prev. year 0.62 euros). 

eXplanation of key items in the statement of 

comprehensive income 

the items in the statement of comprehensive income essen-

tially developed in line with the expansion of business.

cost of sales rose by 6.2 percent to 381.6 million euros (prev.  

year 359.3 million euros) and therefore at a lower rate than the 

growth in sales. the main contributory factors here were the cost 

reduction measures as part of the Jenoptik excellence program, 

which entered its fourth year in 2012, as well as economies of 

scale. the cost of sales also includes expenses arising from devel-

opments directly on behalf of customers which totaled 13.3 mil-

lion euros (prev. year 14.2 million euros). 

in line with this development, the gross profit on sales 

increased to 203.4 million euros (prev. year 184.0 million 

euros); the gross margin increased further to 34.8 percent 

(prev. year 33.9 percent). 

as expected, research and development expenses increased at 

a slightly higher rate than sales, by 12.5 percent to 36.0 million 

euros (prev. year 32.0 million euros). more detailed information 

on research & development in the Jenoptik group can be found 

from page 80 of this report. 

selling expenses increased at a slightly lower rate than sales. 

Jenoptik continues to pursue the strategy of developing and 

key items in the income statement

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

cost of sales 381.6 359.3 6.2

r + d expenses 36.0 32.0 12.5

selling expenses 65.1 61.9 5.2

administrative expenses 42.6 38.9 9.5

other operating 
income 16.5 21.3 – 22.5

other operating 
expenses 26.0 25.3 2.8

 22

2011

2012

2010

2009

10

development of the gross margin  
( in %)

 23

33.9

34.8

31.4

27.2

20 30

2008 29.5
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the full statement of comprehensive income can be found in 

the consolidated financial statements (notes on page 124) of 

this report.   22    23

order situation

at 587.2 million euros the order intake in fiscal year 2012 was 

at the same level as sales but did not reach the same high level 

as in the previous year (prev. year 647.9 million euros). the 

record year 2011 was characterized by a number of large orders 

for the defense & civil systems and metrology segments. detailed 

information on the order intake of the segments can be found 

from page 88 in the segment reporting.   24

order backlog. as a result of an order intake at the same level 

as sales, Jenoptik posted a book-to-bill ratio of 1.00 (prev. year 

1.19). at 446.8 million euros, the order backlog was therefore 

at the same level as in 2011 (31.12.2011: 448.5 million euros). 

56 percent of this order backlog will lead to sales in the current 

2013 fiscal year (prev. year 55 percent); approx. 44 percent of 

this order backlog will be turned into sales beyond the year 

2013 (prev. year 45 percent).   25

expanding its own presence in key regions of the world and to 

this end invests primarily in its own distribution structures. in 

2012 selling expenses totaled at 65.1 million euros (prev. year 

61.9 million euros), an increase of 5.2 percent.

general administrative expenses totaled 42.6 million euros 

(prev. year 38.9 million euros). the increase is partly due to the 

development of the group’s own presence abroad, where  

Jenoptik is developing new or expanding existing infrastructures 

which are then made available to all areas of the group.

other operating income reduced by nearly 22.5 percent to 

16.5 million euros (prev. year 21.3 million euros). currency 

gains were the key item at 5.5 million euros (prev. year 8.4 mil-

lion euros). other operating expenses, at 26.0 million euros, 

almost remained at the level of the previous year (prev. year 

25.3 million euros). these were mainly characterized by cur-

rency losses in the sum of 5.1 million euros (prev. year. 8.4 mil-

lion euros) as well as project costs and costs for the optimiza-

tion of locations. detailed information on the composition of 

these items can be found on page 152 in the notes.

order intake

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

Group 587.2 647.9 – 9.4

  Lasers & optical systems 219.9 224.4 – 2.0

  metrology 198.7 166.7 19.2

  defense & civil systems 165.0 254.5 – 35.2

  other 3.6 2.3 56.5

 24

order backlog

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

Group 446.8 448.5 – 0.4

  Lasers & optical systems 105.2 101.3 3.8

  metrology 87.4 69.0 26.7

  defense & civil systems 255.8 279.9 – 8.6

  other – 1.6 – 1.7

 25
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the end of the fiscal year, there were no further liabilities arising 

from non-current finance lease (31.12.2011: 2.0 million euros). 

as at the end of 2012, non-current financial liabilities accounted 

for more than 96 percent of Jenoptik’s financial liabilities, the 

same as in the previous year. 

current financial liabilities, at 4.7 million euros, remained at the 

same level as in the previous year (31.12.2011: 4.1 million 

euros). 

in the year covered by the report, the debt to equity ratio, 

defined as the ratio between borrowings (339.3 million euros) 

and shareholders’ equity (330.3 million euros), was 1.03, and 

was thus slightly lower than in the previous year (31.12.2011: 

1.15). the shareholders’ equity has increased primarily as a 

result of the net income for the year in the sum of 50.2 million 

euros. borrowings fell by 4.7 million euros compared with the 

previous year. With a financing structure that shows virtual par-

ity between shareholders’ equity and borrowings, Jenoptik has 

a sound and stable financial basis. the group is therefore bene-

fiting from low borrowing costs and also has sufficient flexibil-

ity, e. g. for acquisitions.

the company’s current solvency, expressed by the net cash 

position, totaled 41.3 million euros as at the year-end 

(31.12.2011: 46.0 million euros). it is defined as the total cash 

and cash equivalents and securities in the sum of 46.0 million 

2.3 financial and asset situation 

financing analysis

the treasury department of Jenoptik ag centrally plans and 

controls the demand for and provision of liquid resources 

within the group. the group financing in the form of deben-

ture loans, issued in 2011, secures the operating business and 

creates potential for further organic growth. in 2012, the total 

debt was further reduced significantly as a result of payments 

made to silent real estate investors. there was also a further 

reduction in net debt. 

over recent years, Jenoptik has successfully continued to 

strengthen its financing through a sharp reduction in net debt 

and gradual expansion of the shareholders’ equity base. the 

debenture loans issued in 2011 in the sum of 90 million euros 

with terms of 5 resp. 7 years provide the solid foundation for 

the capital structure of the Jenoptik group. in addition to cash 

in hand, Jenoptik has available liquidity from free credit lines 

and yet unused loans in the sum of 60.6 million euros.

non-current financial liabilities of Jenoptik reduced slightly in 

2012 as a result of the repayment of bank loans and reclassifi-

cation as current financial liabilities, and as at the year-end 

totaled 115.8 million euros (31.12.2011: 123.1 million euros). 

these comprised exclusively financial liabilities to banks. as at 

net and gross debt

in million euros 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Non-current financial liabilities 115.8 123.1 125.9 158.2 92.4

current financial liabilities 4.7 4.1 19.5 13.6 113.7

Gross debt 120.5 127.2 145.4 171.8 206.1

  minus securities 0.6 1.3 0.8 1.1 2.0

  minus cash and cash equivalents 45.4 48.8 65.3 11.2 12.5

Net debt 74.5 77.1 79.3 159.5 191.6

 26
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as explained in the 2011 annual report, the silent investor in 

the Jenoptik pension trust real estate fund terminated its invest-

ment as at march 31, 2011. Jenoptik had an indirect obligation 

to refinance the payment to the silent shareholder and in the 

2nd quarter 2011 had made a provisional payment. the defini-

tive amount of the payment was the subject of legal proceed-

ings that were concluded in april 2012 through a settlement. 

the payment was financed in 2012 by a loan to the Jenoptik 

pension trust real estate fund. this loan receivable was capital-

ized in financial assets, increasing the assets. it also impacted 

on the cash flow from investing activities as a payment for 

investments in financial assets. Jenoptik expects the loan 

granted in 2012 to be fully redeemed over the coming years, 

giving rise to a cash inflow. an initial repayment was made in 

2012 and is shown under “receipts from disposal of financial 

assets”.

an exit agreement was also reached with the silent investor in 

the second fund. the contribution was shown in the balance 

sheet under other current liabilities and redeemed in full with 

the payment. this reduced the liabilities and the balance sheet 

total and consequently impacted on the cash flow from group 

financing.

the cash-effective one-time effect in 2012, resulting from the 

abovementioned payments, totaled approx. 18 million euros 

and had no significant impact on the results.

the silent investor in the remaining third Jenoptik real estate 

fund cannot exit from its investment until the end of 2014 at 

the earliest. it is therefore shown in the balance sheet as a  

non-current liability. there are no other silent investments in 

Jenoptik’s real estate.

euros (31.12.2011: 50.1 million euros) less current financial lia-

bilities in the sum of 4.7 million euros (31.12.2011: 4.1 million 

euros). 

following the strong reduction in the net debt in the fiscal years 

2009 to 2011, Jenoptik succeeded in further reducing this figure 

in the year covered by the report. this result was attributable to 

the generation of a high level of operating cash flows. as a result 

of the dividend payment and final payment to the two silent real 

estate shareholders in the 1st half-year 2012, net debt starting 

from a base of 77.1 million euros on december 31, 2011, initially 

increased during the course of the year also as part of the 

increase in the working capital requirements in conjunction with 

the expansion of the operating business. however, the figure 

was reduced then by december 31, 2012, to 74.5 million euros, 

putting it below the level for the previous year. net debt is calcu-

lated by deducting cash and cash equivalents and securities from 

the total non-current and current financial liabilities. 

gross debt, as the total of all group financial liabilities, showed 

a marked reduction in 2012 from 127.2 million euros 

(31.12.2011) to 120.5 million euros (31.12.2012).   26

silent investors. as a result of payments made to two silent real 

estate investors their claims reduced significantly in fiscal year 

2012.

Jenoptik’s real estate area includes three real estate funds 

which were established in 1998 and 2001. these were 

financed via Jenoptik, banks and contributions from three silent 

investors. two of the funds are shown in the consolidated bal-

ance sheet itself – the real estate as part of the tangible assets 

and the deposits from the silent investors as liability. the third 

fund is part of the Jenoptik pension trust and is therefore 

shown as part of the pension financing. each fund had or has 

an exit option (put option) for the respective silent shareholder, 

providing for the return of his contribution.
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analysis of capital eXpenditure 

at 31.2 million euros, Jenoptik invested significantly more in 

intangible and tangible assets than in 2011 (prev. year 25.1 mil-

lion euros). investments in tangible assets, at 24.5 million 

euros, accounted for the vast majority of the investments (prev. 

year 23.0 million euros). investments in intangible assets 

totaled 6.7 million euros (prev. year 2.1 million euros). as in the 

previous years, development expenses were only capitalized to 

a very minimal extent. While investments increased in 2012, 

scheduled depreciation reduced to 22.2 million euros (prev. 

year 23.3 million euros) and impairments to 0.6 million euros 

(prev. year 4.4 million euros).

investments in intangible assets increased sharply in 2012 to 

6.7 million euros (prev. year 2.1 million euros). this was mainly 

attributable to the increased investment in patents and soft-

ware in the sum of 3.6 million euros (prev. year 1.2 million 

euros) as well as to on-account payments made in the sum of 

1.9 million euros (prev. year 0.4 million euros) and development 

services in the sum of 1.2 million euros (prev. year 0.5 million 

euros).

amortization and depreciation on intangible assets amounted 

to 3.9 million euros (prev. year 5.0 million euros) and, as in the 

previous year, primarily included depreciation/amortization on 

patents, trademarks and software, capitalized development ser-

vices and regular customers. necessary impairments on intangi-

ble assets at 0.6 million euros, following impairment test, were 

insignificant.

the main purpose of the increased capital expenditure on tangi-

ble assets and investment properties was for expansion of the 

production areas and capacities. these primarily related to the 

expansion of production capacities for semiconductor materials 

for the manufacture of diode lasers at the berlin site in the 

lasers & optical systems segment and to the construction of a 

new building at the altenstadt location for the energy systems 

business in the defense & civil systems segment. at 24.5 million 

euros, total investments were significantly higher than in the pre-

vious year (prev. year 23.0 million euros). the largest increase is 

attributable to expenditure on factory and office equipment 

(2012: 7.9 million euros; prev. year 5.4 million euros), followed 

by on-account payments made and assets under construction 

(2012: 10.8 million euros; prev. year 9.8 million euros. 

depreciation on tangible assets and investment properties 

totaled 18.3 million euros (prev. year 18.4 million euros) and 

was therefore below the figure for capital expenditure on tan-

gible assets. no impairments were made (prev. year 4.3 million 

euros).   27    28

capital eXpenditure, disinvestments and depreciation 

(intangible and tangible assets)

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

investments 31.2 25.1 24.3

  intangible assets 6.7 2.1 219.0

  tangible assets 24.5 23.0 6.5

disinvestments 0.6 3.7 83.8

  intangible assets 0.4 0.2 100.0

  tangible assets 0.2 1.8 – 88.8

  investment properties 0 1.7 – 100.0

Net investments (investments less disinvestments) 30.6 21.4 43.0

depreciation /impairment 22.8 27.7 – 17.6

  intangible assets 4.5 5.0 – 10.4

  tangible assets 17.8 20.2 – 11.9

  investment properties 0.5 2.5 – 80.0

 27
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analysis of cash floWs

cash flow from operating activities, at 66.6 million euros, was 

slightly higher than in the previous year (prev. year 65.6 million 

euros). the increase in earnings before tax and a reduction in 

payments for the working capital as a result of an improved 

working capital management had a positive impact on the cash 

flow. increased payments for income taxes had a negative 

effect.

the cash flow from investing activities reflects the increased 

expenditure by the group on intangible and tangible assets 

(see analysis of capital expenditure, page 66). payments for 

investments in financial assets reduced as the previous year was 

characterized by the acquisition of a minority holding in a us 

american company in the metrology segment. in 2012, the 

issue of a loan to a silent real estate fund affected payments for 

financial assets. the cash flow totaled minus 33.8 million euros 

and was therefore slightly down on the level for the previous 

year (prev. year minus 29.3 million euros)

the free cash flow gives an insight into the company’s long-

term financial strength and is calculated on the basis of the 

cash flow from operating activities before interest and tax in 

the sum of 73.7 million euros, less expenditure for operating 

investment activities in the sum of 30.0 million euros. in the 

period covered by the report, the free cash flow was 43.7 mil-

lion euros, remaining almost at the same level as in the previ-

ous year (prev. year 44.0 million euros).

in the 2012 fiscal year, the cash flow from financing activities 

was characterized by the payment of a dividend for the first 

time in the company’s more recent history, while the character-

istic feature in the previous year was the successful issue of 

debenture loans in the sum of 90 million euros and the associ-

ated redemption of existing loans. changes in the group 

financing as the result of the payment to a silent investor in 

one of the real estate funds also affected the cash flow from 

financing activities which, after posting a figure of minus  

53.7 million euros in the previous year, improved to minus  

36.1 million euros.   29

investments by segment (intangible and tangible assets)

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

Group 31.2 25.1 24.3

  Lasers & optical systems 15.3 12.9 18.6

  metrology 3.3 2.2 50.0

  defense & civil systems 6.3 8.5 – 25.9

  other 6.3 1.5 320.0

 28

cash floW

in million euros 2012 2011

cash flow from operating activities 66.6 65.6

cash flow from investing activities – 33.8 – 29.3

cash flow from financing activities 36.1 – 53.7

 29
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analysis of the asset structure

the balance sheet items as at december 31, 2011 and decem-

ber 31, 2012 can be compared with each other. the effects of 

the initial consolidation of Jenoptik robot malaysia sdn. bhd. 

did not essentially affect the comparability.

the accounting and valuation methods are explained in the 

notes to the annual report from page 137. 

the balance sheet total of the Jenoptik group as at december 31, 

2012, increased compared with the year-end 2011 to 669.6 

million euros (31.12.2011: 643.5 million euros). the 26.1 mil-

lion euro rise is primarily attributable on the assets side to an 

increase in receivables and deferred tax assets, as well as to an 

increase in shareholders’ equity and rise in pension provisions 

on the liabilities side. 

non-current assets grew to 333.8 million euros (31.12.2011: 

312.4 million euros). nearly all items of non-current assets 

posted an increase, in particular tangible assets, financial assets 

and deferred taxes.

the largest item in intangible assets was goodwill at 55.8 mil-

lion euros (31.12.2011: 55.9 million euros).

tangible assets advanced to 143.2 million euros (31.12.2011: 

138.2 million euros). the main items showing an increase were 

buildings, including buildings on third party land, other plants, 

factory and office equipment as well as on-account payments 

made and work in progress, in part attributable to the expan-

sion of business and the capacities for semiconductor laser pro-

duction in berlin. financial assets increased to 27.2 million 

euros due to the issue of a loan (31.12.2011: 22.8 million 

euros).

sales of real estate not required for operating purposes led to a 

slight reduction in investment properties to 19.6 million euros 

(31.12.2011: 20.6 million euros).   30

current assets rose by 4.7 million euros to 335.8 million euros 

(31.12.2011: 331.1 million euros). this is due mainly to the 

increase in receivables and other assets to 120.7 million euros 

(31.12.2011: 111.9 million euros) which resulted from the posi-

tive development in the operating business in 2012. by con-

trast, there was a slight reduction in cash and cash equivalents 

to 45.4 million euros (31.12.2011: 48.8 million euros), primarily 

as a result of the payments to the silent shareholders in the two 

Jenoptik real estate funds and the payment of a dividend.

composition of non-current assets

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

intangible assets 70.6 21.2 % 68.9 22.1 % 2.5

tangible assets incl. investment properties 162.8 48.8 % 158.8 50.8 % 2.5

financial assets 27.2 8.1 % 22.8 7.3 % 19.3

other non-current assets 4.8 21.4 % 4.9 1.6 % – 2.0

deferred taxes 68.4 20.5 % 57.0 18.2 % 20.0

total 333.8 100.0 % 312.4 100.0 % 6.9

 30
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Economic situation

at 202.8 million euros, the working capital as at december 31, 

2012 exceeded the figure of the previous year (31.12.2011: 

190.4 million euros) as a result of the continuing pickup in busi-

ness. the working capital is defined as the trade accounts 

receivable and poc (percentage of completion) plus inventories 

less trade accounts payable and poc as well as on-account pay-

ments received. the working capital quota, the ratio between 

working capital and sales, improved slightly compared with the 

previous year to 34.7 percent (31.12.2011: 35.0 percent). 

as a result of the profit shown in the 2012 fiscal year, the 

shareholders’ equity including non-controlling interests rose by 

30.8 million euros to 330.3 million euros (31.12.2011: 299.5 

million euros). at 49.3 percent, the shareholders’ equity quota, 

the ratio between shareholders’ equity and the balance sheet 

total, improved as at december 31, 2012, compared with the 

figure for the previous year (31.12.2011: 46.5 percent). 

non-current liabilities as at end 2012 totaled 177.6 million 

euros (31.12.2011: 172.7 million euros). the 4.9 million euros 

increase is attributable to pension obligations which rose to 

31.2 million euros (31.12.2011: 17.4 million euros) due to the 

substantially reduced interest level. by contrast, non-current 

financial liabilities were lower due to the repayment of bank 

loans and reclassifications to current financial liabilities in the 

sum of 115.8 million euros (31.12.2011: 123.1 million euros).

the debenture loans are an important element of the non-cur-

rent liabilities. Jenoptik had successfully placed these loans in 

the total sum of 90 million euros and with terms of 5 resp.  

7 years on the market in october 2011, consequently placing 

the group’s financing on a long-term footing.

current liabilities fell by 9.6 million euros to 161.7 million euros 

(31.12.2011: 171.3 million euros). in addition to the liabilities 

from operating business activities, there was also a noticeable 

reduction in “other current liabilities”. this reduction is due 

mainly to the payment to a silent real estate shareholder whose 

contribution had previously been shown in the group as a cur-

rent liability.   31

financial liabilities by due date 

in million euros Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years over 5 years december 31, 2012

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Liabilities to banks 4.7 3.4 65.2 68.2 50.6 52.9 120.5 124.5

Liabilities from finance lease 0 0.7 0 1.4 0 0.6 0 2.7

total 4.7 4.1 65.2 69.6 50.6 53.5 120.5 127.2

 31

46.5

shareholder’s equity ratio (in percent)

2011

10 20 30 40

2012 49.3

1) adjusted due to first time application of ias 19r
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there are clauses which apply in the event of a change of con-

trol in the ownership structure of Jenoptik ag following a 

takeover bid in connection with a joint venture which has since 

been terminated, as well as for various other financing agree-

ments with a total utilized volume of approx. 97.5 million euros 

(prev. year 94.8 million euros). further details can be found in 

the annual report under executive board remuneration system 

from page 48 as well as under information on takeover law 

from page 42. 

analysis of added value

the costs of materials increased to 242.0 million euros in line 

with the expansion of sales (prev. year 230.5 million euros), 

representing 40.3 percent of the company performance (prev. 

year 41.0 percent). raw materials and supplies accounted for 

184.6 million euros (prev. year 180.1 million euros) and conse-

quently 30.8 percent (prev. year 32.0 percent). the remaining 

57.3 million euros reflect the value of the purchased services 

and advance services rendered which increased over the previ-

ous year (prev. year 50.4 million euros). after depreciation in 

the sum of 22.8 million euros (prev. year 27.7 million euros), 

the total net added value created for the Jenoptik group 

totaled 254.4 million euros (prev. year 231.0 million euros) and 

therefore markedly increased in net terms by 23.4 million 

euros, or 10.1 percent. 

personnel costs accounted for 79.1 percent on the distribution 

side of the added value. information on personnel costs can be 

seen on page 74 and page 180 of this report. 

eXplanation of purchases and sales  

of companies 

there were no purchases or sales of companies in the 2012 fis-

cal year.

assets and liabilities not included  

in the balance sheet

Jenoptik brand. the main assets not included in the balance 

sheet include the value of the Jenoptik brand. according to cal-

culations made by semion brand broker gmbh in november 

creation of the added value

2012 2011

in million euros in % in million euros in %

company performance (sales, earnings, investment result) 599.9 100.0 562.6 100.0

. / . prepayments (materials) 242.0 40.3 230.5 41.0

. / . prepayments (others) 80.7 13.4 73.4 13.0

. / . depreciation 22.8 3.8 27.7 4.9

Net added value 254.4 42.4 231.0 41.1

 32

distribution of the added value

2012 2011

in million euros in % in million euros in %

employees (personnel expenses) 201.2 79.1 183.8 79.6

public sector (taxes) – 4.1 – 1.6 0.9 0.4

Lenders (interest) 7.1 2.8 11.0 5.3

company, shareholders 50.2 19.7 35.3 14.7

Net added value 254.4 100.0 231.0 100.0

 33
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2012 the value of the Jenoptik brand increased slightly to 86 mil-

lion euros (prev. year 85 million euros). this places the Jenoptik 

brand, occupying the number 40 spot in the ranking (prev. year 

no. 39) among the 50 leading german brands in 2012. a brand 

positioning was drawn up in order to strengthen the brand 

image. on the basis of this positioning, Jenoptik commenced  

a brand image communication on a global and uniform basis  

in 2012.

non-capitalized tax losses carried forward. tax losses carried 

forward arise from losses incurred in the past which have not 

yet been offset against taxable profits. they represent potential 

future cash flow benefits, since actual tax payments can be 

reduced by these losses being offset against taxable profits.

regarding the remaining losses carried forward the amount of 

260.6 million euros (prev. year 303.1 million euros) for purposes 

of trade tax and 427.4 million euros (prev. year 470.0 million 

euros) for purposes of corporation tax no deferred tax asset has 

been accounted for as they will not be used within a deter-

mined planning timeframe. 

relevance of off-balance sheet financing instruments to the 

financial and asset situation. Jenoptik does not utilize any off-

balance sheet financing instruments such as sales of accounts 

receivable or asset-backed securities. for details on operating 

leases we refer to note 17 from page 160.

contingent assets and liabilities. information on contingent  

liabilities can be found in the group notes on page 145.

other intangible assets

customer relationships. Jenoptik predominantly manufactures 

capital goods and is both a supplier to and partner for indus-

trial companies. our technology-intensive products and systems 

are often created in close collaboration with the customer. this 

requires confidence on both sides as well as knowledge of the 

customer’s needs. We therefore see long-term collaboration 

with many of our key customers as an important intangible 

asset. the good relationships with our customers are reflected, 

for example, in a very high order backlog of approx. 446.8 mil-

lion euros, of which just under 200 million euros extends 

beyond the year 2013. 

supplier relationships / procurement. purchasing plays a key role 

in the Jenoptik’s group initiatives aimed at increasing opera-

tional excellence and continuing profitability. globalization, 

price fluctuations on the raw materials markets, technological 

advances and the trend toward the procurement of increasingly 

more complex modules and systems over recent years place 

ever new strategic demands on purchasing.

it was for this reason that work was commenced on the 

realignment of the divisions’ purchasing and the implementa-

tion of the strategic purchasing structures continued on a con-

sistent basis. the purchasing activities of the lasers & optical 

systems segment were reorganized into material groups and 

underpinned with corresponding buyer profiles. the strategic 

buyer profiles introduced in 2012 ensure an optimum interlink-

ing between the divisions’ purchasing, customer project and 

strategic purchasing.

the group’s increasing internationalization calls for global pur-

chasing activities and an integrated group presence on the pro-

curement market. in this context, particular importance is 

attached to a targeted global purchasing concept, the intelli-

gent bundling of demand and utilization of standardized pro-

cesses and instruments. another area of focus aimed at exploit-

ing purchase potential is on timely standard procurement and 

bundling of material groups. the group also optimized its sup-

plier qualification and assessment. 

there are plans in 2013 to expand strategic purchasing compe-

tence in asia and the us so that additional synergies can be 

achieved from the started of global sourcing activities. mea-

sures which have already been initiated are also to be contin-

ued on a consistent basis. this will be supported by the further 

implementation of the new purchasing structures and continu-

ation of the purchasing academy established in 2012.
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high-tech products require not least a high standard of quality 

on the part of the suppliers and their production factors. in 

order to ensure that this is the case, the Jenoptik group is 

guided in its supplier assessment and selection by the global 

compact of the united nations which stipulates compliance 

with fundamental principles with regard to human rights, 

working standards, environmental protection and combating 

corruption.

process capital (organizational and procedural advantages).  

Jenoptik has been investing in the improvement of structures 

and processes for a number of years. this includes the contin-

ual international expansion of the shared service structures  

on the one side and on the other the continuation of the  

Jenoptik excellence program in 2012 as planned. the program 

is aimed at generating cost savings primarily in production, 

development and logistical processes as well as in supply chain 

management. 

the go-lean program, approved and implemented in 2012, is 

also oriented toward integrated process improvements and 

increasing the operating performance. based on targets set by 

senior management, the aim is to develop a lean production 

system which is to be introduced within the segments and divi-

sions. the establishment of a lean-academy will provide train-

ing for employees and management so the program can essen-

tially be implemented on an independent basis. the concept 

for go lean was worked out in 2012; the program will start in 

2013.

the most extensive group-wide program designed to achieve 

organizational and process benefits is the Joe program. it has 

three objectives: to provide support for the international growth 

through the creation of scalable processes, data and it systems, 

to increase efficiency in the operating functions through the 

development of an integrated enterprise resource planning sys-

tem and to improve the group management through the further 

development of methods in the controlling and accounting 

areas. the program encompasses all the key management, core 

and support processes in every one of the group’s organiza-

tional units worldwide. the initiative was started in 2011 with 

the development of a process model. differentiation between 

these processes was extended in 2012 and the way they are 

depicted in the new it system defined. the Joe program will be 

continued as planned in 2013 and rolled out within the group 

by the end of 2016.

responsibility for the organizational and production process lies 

with the operating units, consequently it is not possible to pro-

vide any applicable group-wide statements regarding produc-

tion methods and processes which would have sufficient rele-

vance for the group management report. for information on 

changes to the organizational and production processes in the 

operating areas, see the segment reporting from page 88. 

human capital. We also see our employees’ expertise and years 

of experience as well as their high level of commitment and 

loyalty to the company as an intangible asset. a lower fluctua-

tion rate of 3.2 percent (prev. year 3.6 percent) is evidence of 

this. further information on the subject of personnel can be 

found in the management report from page 74.

research and development. the success of our product and 

technology developments is crucial to our technology-intensive 

business. as such, we believe that our years of expertise in 

research and development, as well as process and project 

knowledge are another important intangible asset. our numer-

ous partnerships and contacts with suppliers and business part-

ners worldwide as well as with universities, institutes of applied 

science and research institutes are of considerable practical 

benefit to us. further information on research & development 

can be found from page 80.
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reputation. the Jenoptik group benefits from the reputation of 

our headquarters in Jena which is highly renowned as an “opti-

cal valley” not only by scientists but also customers. Jenoptik is 

conscious of this reputation and undertakes various activities 

aimed at sustainably improving the location. the group’s com-

mitment is focused on encouraging and training young people, 

enhancing the attraction of the location by promoting a good 

work-life balance and a discerning cultural offering as well as 

on projects for children and young people from disadvantaged 

social backgrounds. in 2012, the sponsorship activities at the 

headquarters in Jena totaled approx. 0.3 million euros (prev. 

year 0.2 million euros). more information on this subject can  

be found in the chapter on sustainability from page 83.

environmental issues. information on this can be found in the 

chapter on sustainability from page 83.

once again, in the fiscal year 2012 other intangible assets were 

not subject to any overall valuation.
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3.1 employees 

the number of Jenoptik employees (incl. trainees) increased as at 

the year-end 2012 to 3,272 (31.12.2011: 3,117) and therefore 

by 5.0 percent. as in the previous year, the biggest increases 

were in the lasers & optical systems segment with 53 employees 

and the metrology segment with 95 employees. the number of 

Jenoptik employees abroad rose by 36 to 433 (31.12.2011: 397). 

the proportion of employees abroad consequently increased to 

13.2 percent (31.12.2011: 12.7 percent).   34    35

peak order situations were cushioned by temporary personnel. 

the total number of temporary personnel employed as at 

december 31, 2012 was 139 (31.12.2011: 143). short-time 

working only took place for a limited period in 2012 and in a 

very small section of the lasers & optical systems segment.

at 201.2 million euros, personnel expenses in 2012 (wages,  

salaries, social security deductions, pension costs) were up by 

9.5 percent compared with the figure of 183.8 million euros  

in the previous year. more detailed information on the break-

down of the personnel expenses can be found in the notes 

from page 180.

sales per employee slightly increased to 190.8 keur (prev. year 

187.7 keur).   36

the employee demographic structure is essentially balanced. in 

2012, 42 employees in germany took advantage of the age-

related working time models, 41.7 percent fewer compared 

with the previous year (prev. year 72). as at december 31, 2012, 

the proportion of women in the group (in germany and abroad) 

was 26.8 percent and so remained essentially unchanged (prev. 

year 26.6 percent). 

the absenteeism rate among Jenoptik employees in germany 

increased slightly from 4.0 percent in 2011 to 4.5 percent in 

2012. by contrast, there was a slight fall in the fluctuation rate 

from 3.6 percent to 3.2 percent in 2012. 

personnel controlling and processes. the focus of personnel 

controlling in 2012 was on the introduction of a new sap hcm 

system designed to standardize the personnel processes 

throughout the group. as a result, with effect from the 1st 

quarter 2013 the group will be introducing a centralized per-

sonnel management system which will contain all the person-

nel data relevant to the group. 

the detailed personnel planning introduced in 2011 was devel-

oped further in 2012. in the fiscal year just past, the group was 

therefore able to implement an international, strategic hr plan 

which will be controlled via the central hr department. this 

was backed by detailed job profiles for the purpose of optimi-

3 development of the key performance factors

employees as at december 31 by segment 
(incl. trainees) 

2012 2011
change 

in %

Group 3,272 3,117 5.0

  Lasers & optical systems 1,349 1,296 4.1

  metrology 814 719 13.2

  defense & civil systems 913 924 – 1.2

  other 196 178 10.1

 34 employees as at december 31 by region  
(incl. trainees) 

2012 2011
change 

in %

domestic 2,839 2,720 4.4

abroad 433 397 9.1

  europe (without Germany) 101 104 – 2.9

  Nafta 243 230 5.6

  south east asia / pacific 89 63 41.3

 35
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zation. a project aimed at introducing an international hr man-

ual was also initiated in 2012. the project is expected to be 

completed in July 2013 and includes implementation in ger-

many, the us and asia. as a result of the group’s increasing 

internationalization, there was a rise in the number of sec-

onded employees. this was reason behind the startup of a 

project in 2012 which is intended to define and implement a 

group guideline for secondments.

employee remuneration

collective wage agreement. the collective wage agreement 

applicable since april 1, 2011 for the employees and trainees at 

the Jena location was terminated with effect from september 

30, 2012 and replaced by a new collective wage agreement. 

on november 1, 2012, the employees were awarded a 3 per-

cent pay rise, with a pay rise of 1.75 percent to take effect 

from august 1, 2013. the collective wage agreement is for a 

term of 16 months and can first be terminated with two full 

months’ notice to January 31, 2014.

the new collective wage agreement gives trainees a twelve 

month employment contract following the successful comple-

tion of their training, unless this is not possible on person-

related reasons. an agreement was also concluded between 

the parties to the collective wage agreement for temporary 

personnel. if temporary personnel have been employed for  

24 months continuously then the possibility of offering these 

individuals a permanent contract of employment will be consid-

ered by the employer and the works council. if no contract is 

awarded, the contract with the temporary personnel will be 

terminated within the subsequent six months. an additional 

clause was agreed for the employees of Jenoptik polymer sys-

tems gmbh as part of the collective wage agreement negotia-

tions. 

general collective wage agreement. following a freeze for one 

month, an increase in the general collective wage agreement 

rates of 4.3 percent for a period of 13 months with effect from 

may 1, 2012 was negotiated with the ig metall trade union 

and correspondingly implemented for the group employees in 

the defense & civil systems and industrial metrology segments 

covered by the general collective wage agreement of the metal 

and electronics industry. the increase in the collective wage 

agreement between 2012 and 2011 is 3.3 percent on a year by 

year basis.

pension provision. for many years, Jenoptik has been helping 

its employees to financially secure their standard of living on 

retirement through an employee-funded retirement provision 

model. this is based on a three pillar concept with the relief 

fund, the retirement scheme of the metals industry as well as 

private pension contracts with allianz lebensversicherung ag. 

as a general rule, Jenoptik does not issue any pension commit-

190,8

187,7

sales per employee (in teur) 36

2012

2011

10050 150
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ments. the existing pension obligations of esW gmbh were 

combined and secured in a contractual trust arrangement 

(cta) in the previous years. further details can be found in the 

notes from page 166.

management remuneration 

the remuneration of the Jenoptik management is based on 

fixed remuneration and a variable salary component geared 

toward the earnings and free cash flow of the respective busi-

ness unit and, partly, of the group as a whole. individual strate-

gic and personal goals are also agreed. the target agreements 

for the management of Jenoptik ag (holding company) con-

tain a breakdown into personal and group-related objectives. in 

this context, the group-related targets are geared toward the 

group result. a long-term incentive component (lti) based on 

virtual shares is agreed as part of the variable compensation for 

individual members of top management. this sets long-term 

behavioral incentives and promotes sustainable corporate 

development. the system of allocating and paying of virtual 

shares essentially follows the system which applies to the exec-

utive board and is explained in the remuneration report from 

page 48 of this annual report. this applies in particular for the 

period between allocation and payment. since the correspond-

ing service agreements, unlike the service agreements for the 

executive board, are generally not temporary, there are special 

rules relating to the payment of the virtual shares in the event 

of termination of employment.

education and further training

against the background of demographic change and the resul-

tant shortage of skilled workers, securing the demand for 

skilled workers through in-house training is an important part 

of the hr strategy. the aim is to meet the future demand for 

skilled workers through high-quality and demand-oriented 

training. this goal is underpinned by a long-term hr planning.

trainees and students of the career academies. as of december 

31, 2012, the group had 130 trainees and career academy stu-

dents. 122 of these are receiving training at locations in ger-

many and eight abroad. in august 2012, 33 new trainees and 

five career academy students were welcomed at the german 

Jenoptik sites at the beginning of the training year. at the same 

time, 31 trainees and academy students completed their train-

ing this year and took up corresponding posts within the group. 

the vast number of trainees and academy students receive 

training in technical careers such as electronics, mechatronics 

and industrial mechanics. the group also provides training for 

commercial trainees such as industry clerks or manage-

ment / industry bachelor degree students, as well as career 

academy students in the field of it.

training at Jenoptik is geared toward market standards as well 

as technology trends and current impetuses in the markets. 

young people are stretched from the outset through activities 

designed to challenge them and they are encouraged by highly 

qualified and committed trainers. over and beyond the stan-

dard training content, the trainees and career academy stu-

dents also receive external supplementary training courses and 

language teaching. in thuringia, the next generation of leaders 

will receive their training in optical, precision mechanics, elec-

tronic and commercial professions at the Jena-based training 

center ggmbh-schott, zeiss, Jenoptik. 

academic trainees. in addition to providing training for skilled 

workers, equal importance is attached to providing support for 

academic trainees. the targeted recruitment, support for and 

retention of highly promising students and graduates is an 

important element in the group’s strategy for skilled workers.

Jenoptik provides support for exceptional and socially commit-

ted students attending relevant study courses. in 2012, a total 

of three masters students received financial support under the 

german national scholarship program. Jenoptik also awarded 

three grants to post-doctoral students specializing in 

lasers & material processing.
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as a special opportunity for graduates to join the company, 

Jenoptik began offering a trainee program in 2011. the pro-

gram, which was initially started as a pilot with three trainees, 

will enter the second generation stage in april 2013. as part of 

this program, the company will be offering positions in areas 

such as finance, project management (with further training 

internationally) and sales. 

personnel development. in 2012, Jenoptik invested a total of 

1.5 million euros (prev. year 1.3 million euros) in employee edu-

cation and further training from which 1,744 employees bene-

fited (prev. year 1,471). the personnel development demand 

within the company is primarily ascertained once a year as part 

of an analysis of training needs. based on this analysis, further 

training measures are put together in a portfolio. the focus of 

the further training measures in 2012 was on the areas of 

methodology and personal skills, project management, pur-

chasing and it.

academies. a purchasing academy was founded in 2012 to 

provide further development training in the various job profiles 

for the employees of the purchasing departments. in 2012, this 

focused on strategic procurement and the lasers & optical sys-

tems segment. 

Jenoptik Junior leadership program and leadership develop-

ment. the Jenoptik Junior leadership program (J²lp) is an 

important building block in personnel development, its purpose 

being to provide targeted development and promotion of 

potential leaders from within the company. the 6th generation 

successfully completed the program in 2012, with around 20 

participants currently involved in the 7th and 8th generation of 

the J²lp. the program will be continued in 2013. the aims of 

the program are to provide uniform preparation for the man-

agement trainees on their further career path, to develop a 

leadership culture within the company and to create network-

ing between the participants. there are plans to hold a net-

working meeting of all J²lp generations in 2013 as further sup-

port for this program. 

leadership program. the leadership program for experienced 

managers was implemented as a pilot scheme in 2012 on the 

head of division and assistant head of division level. Within 

the framework of the program, the participants receive training 

in the same areas as the J²lp. this ensures networking, both 

from the content and cultural aspects, as well as driving for-

ward the use of standardized management instruments within 

the company.

technical and project careers. the introduction of the pilot  

project for project and technical careers created another target 

group-oriented development opportunity for Jenoptik’s 

employees in 2012. the focus of the one-year measure is on 

the development of both the personal as well as the technical 

skills of the participants. 

attracting qualified employees

recruitment. attracting skilled workers and managers is 

increasingly being carried out within the international context. 

Jenoptik is countering the problem of an anticipated shortage 

of skilled workers as a result of the demographic change 

through a range of measures including a profile-based person-

nel planning which is intended to speed up recruitment pro-

cesses. thanks to more intensive and improved cooperation 

between the technical areas and the hr department, the 

recruitment performance was improved and positions could  

be filled more quickly. 

human resources marketing. hr marketing at Jenoptik is an 

essential element of the strategic hr work, designed to pre-

serve and enhance the employer’s brand. this is aimed at 

securing the long term recruitment of qualified employees 

against the background of increasingly more difficult demo-

graphic conditions. the group’s target groups are specialists 

and skilled workers in the field of natural and engineering  

sciences as well as experts with business management and 

legal backgrounds. 
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Jenoptik also finds itself operating in an ever more rapidly 

changing economic and socio-cultural environment in which 

competition for qualified skilled workers and managers is 

increasing. an additional factor in this equation is the compa-

ny’s continuing process of internationalization which is also 

leading to increasing demand for recruitment, particularly in 

asia and the us. this is the reason behind the initiation of an 

international hr marketing project in 2012 aimed at identifying 

the various requirements of the target groups and regions and 

implementing these as part of the employer’s brand position-

ing. the project is geared toward the “sharing excellence” cor-

porate campaign and is expected to be implemented by the 

end of 2013. it will also be underpinned by corresponding 

international recruitment platforms and career portals.  

in order to strengthen the employer’s brand, the group attends 

numerous national and international trade fairs and events. in 

this context, it was able in particular to implement new activities 

in asia for the graduates and young professionals target group. 

the target group activities are underpinned by the career web-

site, the company’s own job portal and the placement of image 

adverts and editorial articles in regional and supra-regional 

media, as well as in trade magazines. this enabled Jenoptik to 

achieve the number 17 spot in the “applying online and loving 

it” study which assesses over 100 career portals every year.

Jenoptik was also placed in the external employer rankings in 

2012. in the annual top ranking survey of the 100 most popu-

lar employers for students preparing for their exams as well as 

graduates (engineering edition) conducted by the trendence 

institute, Jenoptik occupies 80th place in the top 100, improv-

ing its positioning by 36 places over the previous year.

support for new trainees. the recruitment of suitable trainees 

and academy students is also becoming increasingly more chal-

lenging for Jenoptik. While the number of graduates is declin-

ing, industry’s demand for trainees, particularly for those in the 

skilled professions, is growing. in addition to other measures 

designed to counter this trend, the group offered numerous 

student internships within the company in 2012 and held a 

number of job application training sessions and career choice 

preparation workshops at schools. in addition, in conjunction 

with the Jena-based training center ggmbh-schott, zeiss, Jen-

optik various career guidance and career preparation projects 

were conducted in which students received information on 

promising future career paths at Jenoptik. for a high technol-

ogy group like Jenoptik, employees with a background in the 

natural sciences are of particular importance. that is why  

Jenoptik is a sponsor supporting the regional “Jugend forscht“ 

(young researchers) competition which encourages young  

people to enter these fields. as a sponsor of “Jugend forscht”, 

Jenoptik has been supporting the thuringia regional final since 

1991. in 2012, it also began sponsoring the newly-integrated 

regional “schüler experimentieren” (experimenting by students) 

competition for students from the 4th grade.

university graduates are another key target group for attracting 

young talents. early contact during their study courses is made 

in the form of numerous recruitment events, trade fairs and 

other university events. the company also offers this target 

group numerous guided tours of the production sites and pre-

sentations.

the group is also engaged in providing support for a number 

of student organizations, e. g. the international student organi-

zation aiesec and the sdW (stiftung der deutschen Wirtschaft). 

supplementary to this, group-wide internships are also awarded 

to students and support given to graduates with bachelor’s and 

masters’ theses, with the activities within this framework being 

rigorously expanded on the international level. for working stu-

dents, the group also offers activities in the same technical field 

as the respective study course. in 2012, around 120 students 

were employed within the group. the planned introduction of 

a student loyalty program in 2013 is aimed at creating a greater 

sense of loyalty to the company among the best students.
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the (young) professionals are another increasingly important 

target group on the labor market, one which is becoming ever 

more problematic from the demographic viewpoint. Jenoptik is 

positioning itself in this area as an attractive employer offering 

social and cultural facilities, such as for example the works chil-

dren’s kindergarten, flexible working hours and other cultural 

and financial themes. Jenoptik also attends corresponding cor-

porate contact fairs and events for this target group, where it 

presents itself as a potential employer.

satisfaction at Work and family policy

employee survey. at the beginning of 2012, a germany-wide 

employee survey was conducted on the group level. topics 

such as “activity and work organization”, “working conditions”, 

“immediate line manager” and the overall impression of Jenop-

tik as an employer were included as part of the survey, the first 

of which involved participation by 65 percent of the employees 

in germany. based on the findings, the group worked with the 

various areas of the company on specific measures such as 

structured employee appraisals for 2012 and 2013. these are 

to be implemented together with the management of the 

respective areas. a second employee survey is planned for 2014.

kindergarten. a children’s nursery was set up in 2007 in the 

Jena-göschwitz industrial zone by Jenoptik ag and the 

zentrum für familien und alleinerziehende e. v. and represents 

a continuing contribution from Jenoptik toward the creation of 

an attractive and family-friendly working environment at the 

Jena site. in addition, thanks to Jenoptik’s support, the flexible 

childcare support facility “Juni-kinder” of the thuringia stu-

dent’s union was opened in may 2011. in the defense & civil 

systems segment, a cooperation agreement was also con-

cluded with frÖbel hamburg ggmbh and the frÖbel kinder-

garten “Wasserstrolche” in Wedel. this cooperation arrange-

ment provides childcare support for the employees close to 

their workplace at the location.

family-friendly hr policy. Jenoptik also feels it is important to 

implement a sustainable family-oriented hr policy. it is impor-

tant both for the recruitment of new employees as well as for 

the general employee satisfaction to integrate family-friendly 

measures within the company. the aim is for additional mea-

sures to underpin these themes, which will also be on the 

group’s agenda for 2013, e. g. with the further expansion of 

the childcare concepts as well as international social initiatives. 

additional themes to be included and implemented by the 

group within this context include the promotion of family-

friendly initiatives such as the zentrum für familien und allein-

erziehende e. v. (center for families and single parents) in Jena 

and the provision of financial support for family-oriented mea-

sures and events. Jenoptik will also be further expanding its 

healthcare days within the group at which the employees are 

encouraged to nurture their own healthcare in their day-to-day 

lives. 
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3.2 research and development 

as a technology group, research and development (r + d) is an 

important integral part of Jenoptik’s corporate activities. inno-

vations and all activities involving r + d are crucial to the com-

pany’s future performance. the aim is to secure its position as a 

leader in innovation, to extend this leadership in selected areas 

as well as to develop products with key unique selling points. 

for its positioning in the b2b business, this means making our 

industry customers more efficient and consequently increasing 

their own earnings capacity. therefore, we are often develop-

ment partners of our customers.

strategy process research and development. growth options 

are developed, partnerships entered into and corresponding 

development projects identified on the basis of a strategic  

analysis of the global megatrends (digital world, health, mobil-

ity / efficiency, infrastructure).

creation of innovation at Jenoptik. Jenoptik achieves innova-

tion both using its own resources as well as in close collabora-

tion with partners and scientific institutions, as well as to a 

lesser extent through buying in expertise.

the Jenoptik group innovation process is multi-stage and fol-

lows the guidelines set by the central innovation management. 

development projects are evaluated on the basis of r + d road-

maps with the help of corresponding milestones. these involve 

both product, process and service innovations as well as inno-

vations in business models.

Within the innovation process, Jenoptik works together with 

both universities and outside institutions and key customers. 

the objectives of research cooperation arrangements range 

from market-oriented developments to joint projects with cus-

tomers, research institutions and service providers, to the 

reduction in development timeframes, through to access to 

specialist expertise. the key r + d partners within the scientific 

institution environment include, among others

• the fraunhofer institute for applied optics and precision 

mechanics (iof), Jena,

• the fraunhofer institute for laser technology (ilt), aachen,

• the friedrich schiller university (fsu) Jena,

• the ernst-abbe-fachhochschule Jena - university of applied 

sciences,

• the ferdinand braun institute, leibniz institute for ultra high 

frequency technology (fbh), berlin,

• the fraunhofer institute for applied polymer research (iap), 

berlin,

• the institute for photonic technologies (ipht), Jena,

• the technical university ilmenau,

• the technical university kaiserslautern,

• the fraunhofer institute of production technology (ipt), 

aachen, including the machine tool laboratory of the rWth 

aachen (Wzl) and

• the christian albrechts university (cau) in kiel.

employees in research and development. the employees who 

work in research and development are a key factor in the com-

pany’s success. as at the end of 2012, r + d areas employed a 

total of 445 personnel, 13.3 percent of the total number of 

employees (prev. year 405 employees; 13.0 percent of all 

employees). 

these highly qualified employees provide the basis for the suc-

cessful implementation of the high requirements on innovation.

in addition to a linear career path, the company has provided a 

special technical career path for the employees in r + d since 

2012. this enables Jenoptik to retain employees with specialist 

technical expertise which is applied throughout the group in 

corresponding development projects.

employees are able to put forward ideas for innovation as part 

of the ideas management processes. in 2012, new ideas were 

added to the innovation pipeline. the best ideas are nominated 

for the Jenoptik innovation award which is presented in the 

autumn of the respective year during the Jenoptik innovation 
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days. the 2012 Jenoptik innovation award was won by the 

nyXus bird observation device from the defense & civil sys-

tems segment. this “multi-talent” is equipped with a thermal 

imaging device, powerful daylight optics, a digital magnetic 

compass and gps as well as one of the smallest laser rangefind-

ers of the world. Weighing just 1.5 kilogram, it is a genuine 

lightweight design and provides excellent optronic reconnais-

sance for infantrymen or specialists. nyXus bird also offers 

significant potential for the defense & civil systems segment to 

generate further commercial success, probably also internation-

ally. in addition, the segment received a development order for 

an observation system to be used in the us marine corps. 

patents. in 2012, a total of 34 patents were registered in the 

Jenoptik group (prev. year 46 patents). in this context, how-

ever, the reduction in the number of patent registrations should 

not be interpreted as a lessening of the inventiveness on the 

part of the r + d departments. it is rather attributable to a 

change in the registration strategy, with an evaluation process 

which is more cost and benefit oriented.

one example of this is the ongoing expansion of the patent 

portfolio in the area of module integration, which was consis-

tently continued in 2012. various complexes of intellectual 

property rights were registered, particularly in the areas of the 

“alignment of optical components” and “lenses for imaging sys-

tems”. Jenoptik expects these patents to sustainably improve 

the competitive situation within the lasers & optical systems 

segment.

the number of patents does not include registered designs  

and patterns or brand registrations. for competition reasons  

Jenoptik does not publish information on the receipt and  

issue of licenses.

cooperation and membership in committees and associations. 

the group procures external expertise with the help of cooper-

ation arrangements, providing a meaningful addition to and 

enhancement of its own r + d activities. 

the so-called scientific advisory council is a committee of high 

quality scientists available to Jenoptik for monitoring and evalu-

ating long-term technology trends. more detailed information 

on the members of the scientific advisory council can be found 

on page 189 in the annual report.

Jenoptik is a strong advocate for an environment that encour-

ages innovation and promotes the image of photonic technolo-

gies, and plays an active role in numerous sector and technol-

ogy-oriented associations.   39

r + d output

in million euros 2012 2011
changes 

in %

r + d expenses 36.0 32.0 12.5

capitalized development costs 1.2 0.5 140.0

Less depreciation and impaiment 
on capitalized development costs – 1.4 – 1.3 7.7

developments on behalf  
of customers 13.3 14.2 – 6.3

r + d output 49.1 45.4 8.1

 37 r + d output by segment 

in million euros 2012 2011
changes 

in %

Group  49.1 45.4 8.1

  Lasers & optical systems 19.0 16.8 13.1

  metrology 16.9 13.9 21.6

  defense & civil systems 13.1 14.9 – 10.3

  other 0.1 0.1 –

 38
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development costs. the r+d output of the Jenoptik group, 

including developments on behalf of customers, totaled 49.1 

million euros in 2012 (prev. year 45.4 million euros), a rise of 

8.1 percent. the share of development services as a proportion 

of sales was therefore 8.4 percent. the r+d output includes 

capitalized development costs in the sum of 1.2 million euros 

(prev. year 0.5 million euros), development costs directly appor-

tionable to customers in the sum of 13.3 million euros (prev. 

year 14.2 million euros) as well as the r + d expenses. in this 

context, depreciatison on capitalized development costs in the 

sum of 1.4 million euros (prev. year 1.3 million euros) is 

deducted from the r + d expenses as it represents an innova-

tion output for the previous periods but not the current period.

the r + d output is generated by all segments, with the lasers &  

optical systems segment, followed by the metrology segment, 

accounting for the largest share. as a result of its business 

model, the defense & civil systems segment accounts for the 

largest share of the development costs directly apportionable 

to customers. the segment is a long-term partner for large sys-

tems companies and develops platform technologies in con-

junction with the customers.   37

r+d expenses primarily comprise personnel expenses, material 

costs as well as third party services and depreciation. the pro-

portion of third party services by development service providers 

as a proportion of the development costs has increased, 

enabling us to create flexibility in capacities and leverage our 

own activities. investments in laboratories and appropriate 

equipment for the r + d workplaces increased as a result e. g. 

of the further expansion in systems expertise, including the 

necessary measuring technology in the lasers & optical systems 

segment.   39

for specific innovation in the form of new patents, products 

and licenses for the year 2012, see the segment reporting 

from page 88.

research and development pipeline. new development projects 

are planned also for 2013. the aim of these is to essentially 

provide support to the divisions, from 2014, in their strategic 

development of foreign markets and new customers, e. g. in 

the area of security and mobility. the business plans which 

form the basis for these development projects, if successful, 

show potential earnings and consequently highlight their 

important contribution to Jenoptik’s sustainable growth.

there have been significant changes in the r + d activities com-

pared with the previous year, particularly with regard to the 

unique selling points of our products. based on a strategic 

product analysis, long-term growth potential has been identi-

fied and its implementation integrated within the planning pro-

cess from the internationalization and customer aspects.

•  bundesverband der deutschen luft- und raumfahrtindustrie e. v. (bdli)

•  deutsche gesellschaft für angewandte optik e. v.

•  deutscher industrieverband für optische, medizinische und mecha-

tronische technologien e. v. (spectaris)

•  deutsches institut für normung e. v.

•  european optical society

•  european technology platform photonics21

•  international society for optical engineering (spie)

•  max-planck-gesellschaft zur förderung der Wissenschaften e. v.

•  optonet e. v. / cooptics

•  semiconductor equipment and materials international (semi)

•  solar valley mitteldeutschland e. v.

•  verband deutscher maschinen- und anlagenbau e. v. (vdma)

•  verein deutscher ingenieure (vdi)

•  Wirtschaftsrat der cdu e. v.

•  zentralverband elektrotechnik- und elektronikindustrie (zvei)

 Jenoptik membership of committees and associations (selection) 39
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3.3 quality management and sustainability 

Jenoptik sees entrepreneurial activity not purely as the pursuit 

and realization of commercial objectives but something that 

also brings with it an obligation to the environment and soci-

ety. corporate social responsibility (csr) encompasses the sus-

tainable direction of our business activity, taking into account 

the economic, ecological and social framework conditions and 

consequences of economic activities. Jenoptik meets this 

responsibility in a variety of different ways. in order to commu-

nicate the group’s various actions and successes in terms of a 

sustainable orientation of the business activities, as well as to 

seek further potential for improvement in a targeted way, a 

separate report on the sustainability performance of the Jenoptik 

group was published for the first time in mid-2012. this report 

provides an overview of the group’s initiatives along the value 

added chain, of the Jenoptik product range which makes a 

contribution towards sustainable economic activity, environ-

ment and quality management within the group, as well as its 

commitment to employees and society. the key aspects are 

summarized in the sections below.

quality management: in the fiscal year just past, there were no 

significant changes in Jenoptik’s quality management. the high 

standard and comprehensive certification of the various group 

companies was maintained and continued. all certifications  

are subject to annual review audits which were successfully con-

ducted in all areas in 2012. nearly all the companies in the  

Jenoptik segments met the requirements of the iso 9001 quality 

management standard.

in the lasers & optical systems segment, Jenoptik optical sys-

tems gmbh and Jenoptik polymer systems gmbh were certi-

fied in accordance with the environmental management stan-

dard iso 14001. in addition, Jenoptik polymer systems gmbh 

met the stringent medical technology standards under iso 

13485 as well as those for the automotive industry under iso /  

ts 16949. 

in the metrology segment, Jenoptik robot gmbh at the mon-

heim location successfully passed a recertification audit for data 

protection and data security for order data processing. a sur-

veillance audit in accordance with din en 9001 which was 

made by dekra and is valid for all locations was passed. hom-

mel-etamic gmbh was one of the first providers to be awarded 

a license by the german accreditation agency dakks. the cali-

bration lab of industrial metrology has been allowed to use the 

mark of the international laboratory accreditation (ilac) since 

2012. products and services thus gain a higher acceptance on 

an international level.

in the defense & civil systems segment, all of the esW gmbh 

locations are certified in accordance with en 9100, a quality 

management system especially for the high requirements of the 

aviation and defense industry. the same applies for the envi-

ronmental management standard iso 14001. at the Wedel 

site, the segment is also certified as a manufacturer for the 

european agency for flight safety easa and as a maintenance 

company under the respective regulations of the european, us 

american, canadian and chinese aviation authorities. at the 

altenstadt location, the subsidiary lechmotoren gmbh is certi-

fied in accordance with the international railway industry stan-

dard (iris).   40

environmental management: Jenoptik has implemented the 

stringent statutory requirements for nature conservation and 

environmental protection for new buildings as well as the 

expansion and modernization of its production facilities. for 

example, state-of-the-art technologies for saving resources and 

protecting the environment were applied when fitting out pro-

duction facilities. as part of the ecoprofit regional project, the 

traffic solutions division laid a foundation for the establishment 

of a comprehensive environmental management system. the 

following measures were implemented during the course of the 

project in 2012: conversion of the heating system to condens-

ing technology, control of the underfloor heating system 

through thermostats as well as central timers for night deacti-

vation of the air conditioning. this enabled the division to 
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achieve savings of 246,900 kWh, i.e. 15,600 euros, over a  

12 month period. another part of the group has been using 

renewable energy sources with an environmentally friendly 

heating plant at the villingen-schwenningen location since 

2012. 

on the basis of the energy certificates that have been issued 

over recent years, a costs-benefit analysis was carried out in 

2011 for all buildings in germany and was continued in 2012 

for new buildings. based on this, measures aimed at increasing 

energy efficiency have been embodied within the medium term 

planning up to 2017. in this context, in addition to long-term 

measures, Jenoptik is also committed to a whole range of 

smaller activities. in all construction activities in 2012, increased 

attention was paid to the opportunities for a further improve-

ment in energy efficiency; this led to a sustainable increase in 

the sparing use of resources in the buildings. one example of 

this is the new construction of a production hall for the manu-

facture of energy systems in altenstadt, another is the expan-

sion of the high-power diode laser manufacturing facility in 

berlin. measures for thermal insulation on existing buildings 

contributed to reduce heating costs at the Wedel location.

the creation of a co2 balance for environmental management 

was continued for the german locations in 2012. this provides 

comparison values which allow for an assessment of the energy 

consumption levels as a ratio of sales and consequently in rela-

tion to the development of the energy efficiency in production. 

the proviso should be added that up to now the report has 

only covered the consumption levels at the german locations. 

nevertheless, this highlights a very positive trend from the fig-

ures that have been collated: despite the significant increase in 

business, the consumption of resources was essentially main-

tained at a lower level in proportion to the growth in sales. the 

consumption of the various media (electricity, district heating, 

gas, heating oil, wood pellets) by all Jenoptik’s locations in ger-

many was included for the purpose of calculation, giving co2 

emissions for the year 2012 of 19,976 tons (prev. year 19,337 

tons). based on the group’s sales in germany, domestic co2 

emission levels reduced from 11.5 tons for each million euros 

of sales in 2011, to 10.4 tons in 2012.

the types of waste were systematically recorded in all divisions 

and the quantities calculated. the volume of hazardous waste 

for the year 2012 covered by the report totaled 225 tons; this 

was disposed of in waste preparation/disposal plants through the 

transportation of hazardous goods (prev. year 266 tons). the vol-

ume of non-hazardous waste was predominant, accounting for 

960 tons (prev. year 642 tons). in the defense & civil systems 

division, for example, disposal transports were reduced through 

changeover in the disposal of plastics which led to a cost reduc-

tion.   41

certification Within the group (selection)

iso 9001 certification of Quality management processes

eN 9100 certification of Quality management processes especially for the aerospace and defense industry

iso 13485 certification of management systems across the board for the design and manufacture of medical products

iso 14001 certification of the environmental management system

iso / ts 16949 certification for the automotive industry

eG 1702 / 2003 certification as a manufacturer for the civil aviation industry

eG 2042 / 2003 certification as a maintenance company for the civil aviation industry

iris international railway industry standard

iLo – oHs – 2010 certification of occupational safety management 

 40
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resource management. as a high technology company, Jenop-

tik strives to achieve greater efficiency in its range of services 

and innovative products and in this way to make a contribution 

towards a more responsible use of resources. as a b2b pro-

vider, we are normally involved where production processes 

and products of our customers can be made more efficient. 

the examples below from our three segments illustrate this: 

• energy efficiency. in the area of lasers & material processing, 

Jenoptik is one of the leading manufacturers of diode lasers, 

one of the most efficient light sources available, with an 

effectiveness level of up to 70 percent. as a provider of laser 

systems for a wide range of applications, Jenoptik offers its 

customers a durable and resource-saving alternative to con-

ventional machining processes. laser materials processing is 

also a key technology in the manufacture of so-called smart 

windows, whose level of light permeability can be variably 

controlled.

• key technology. With the continuing advances in develop-

ment, optical technologies are increasingly opening up 

potential new areas of application, allowing for simpler pro-

cess design and to saving resources. for example, Jenoptik 

supplies optical systems for new optical analysis processes, 

e.g. for endoscopies and gentle treatment methods in the 

medical area. in addition, components, modules, systems and 

complete devices are manufactured so that efficiency in these 

areas can be increased on a sustainable basis. led technology 

with special optics, e. g. the new “lucid power high bay” 

lighting system for high bay shelving warehouses, has seen 

particular demand from the logistics sector in order to 

achieve energy savings and increase the lighting perfor-

mance.

• fuel and co2
 savings plus hybridization. the high-precision 

systems and equipment used in industrial metrology support 

the automotive industry in the development and production 

of combustion engines with extremely low production toler-

ance levels and so contribute towards reducing co2 emission 

levels in road traffic. in addition, the further widespread use 

of hybrid drive units is leading to the use of increasingly more 

complex drives containing a large number of new compo-

nents. the development and coordination of these drives 

necessitates the increased use of metrology.

• traffic safety. traffic monitoring systems from Jenoptik help to 

monitor adherence to the applicable traffic rules and in this 

way are making a contribution towards greater road safety, 

reducing the likelihood of accidents and injuries and lowering 

harmful emissions and noise levels.

• energy systems. the supply of electrical power is playing an 

increasingly important role in modern vehicles. the defense &  

civil systems segment is a specialist in medium and high per-

formance category energy systems and also develops and 

energy consumption by the Jenoptik locations in germany

2012 2011 2010

electricity 31,857 mWh 30,735 mWh 31,077 mWh

Gas 11,179 mWh 11,849 mWh 8,043 mWh

Wood pellets   1,058 mWh 588 mWh 679 mWh

district heating   7,195 mWh 9,436 mWh 7,236 mWh

Heating oil      611 mWh 1,060 mWh 1,434 mWh

Water 55,216 cbm 56,794 cbm 49,147 cbm

 41
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manufactures electrical motors, generators, power electronics 

and entire power units which possess high and highest effi-

ciency and a very good power to weight ratio, i. e. they have 

an improved ratio between the level of electrical or mechani-

cal energy generated and the weight of the systems. 

social commitment. in addition to economic and ecological 

aspects, the group’s promotion of sustainability also focuses 

on social issues. Jenoptik lent support to a whole range of not-

for-profit projects, organizations and initiatives and was actively 

involved in science, education and culture as well as in the area 

of social welfare and charity. 

in the past, the promotion has been concentrated on projects 

with a regional connection to the german locations. as part of 

the ongoing process of internationalization and the continuing 

development of foreign markets, Jenoptik will also be promot-

ing and supporting social involvement at the foreign locations 

and to this end has invited proposals for various internal proj-

ects.

support for the work-life balance is provided within the com-

pany, particularly e. g. in the form of flexible working hour 

models and a range of childcare places in immediate vicinity to 

the workplace for children of Jenoptik employees at two loca-

tions. the childcare facilities on offer are geared toward open-

ing hours coordinated with working hours as well as inte-

grated, bilingual teaching concepts.  

Jenoptik also offered healthcare days in order to raise aware-

ness for healthcare among its employees. in its social commit-

ment, Jenoptik has endeavored to establish a close and, if pos-

sible, long-term partnership aimed at providing both financial 

as well as personnel support. the group has long been pursu-

ing this approach, e. g. since 1996 through its patronage for 

the adult initiative for children with cancer Jena e. v. which 

was taken over by cfo rüdiger andreas günther in June 2012. 

With the help of support through donations by the company 

itself, attracting donations from partners as well as organizing 

various events for the children, the group has been able to pro-

vide the children with cancer and their parents. the easter 

charity concert of the youth orchestra academy represents a 

specially important event, the proceeds benefit the initiative. 

Jenoptik has been sponsoring the guest performance of the 

charity event since 2009.

together with numerous partners, the group also provided 

support as a member of the förderkreis “familienfreundliches 

Jena e. v.”, for projects of the alliance “Jenaer bündnis für fami-

lie (Jena family alliance)”, for improving the general underlying 

conditions, the work-life balance as well as for equal opportu-

nity in education.

Jenoptik is also committed to the promotion of science and 

education as well as art and culture. examples of this include 

the long-term sponsoring of the thuringian “Jugend forscht” 

(young researchers) state competition as well as cooperation 

arrangements with universities and research institutes. in addi-

tion, Jenoptik supports the staging of exhibitions by leading,  

in particular local artists in its gallery, in 2012 for example anke 

neumann from Jena with her light papers and light sculptures. 

special olympics e. v. has been receiving financial support from 

Jenoptik ag and volunteer help from committed individuals 

since 2004. this commitment will be continued in 2013, 

enabling regional and national competitions to be staged in 

football, handball, swimming and other sporting disciplines.
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3.4. general statement by the executive  
 board on key performance indicators

the main developments regarding employees in the past fiscal 

year are in line with our strategic orientation. We have contin-

ued to develop the organization and established as well as 

expanded new locations abroad. the number of employees 

grew at a lower rate compared with sales, which corresponds 

to our targets. the focus of the expansion of staff was outside 

germany, also in 2012. We have intensified our work in the 

areas of further training and personnel marketing, with the key 

target being to retain skilled workers in the company. as a 

group which is driven by innovation we pursue development 

projects within defined structures, often together with partners 

and customers.

as at the closing editorial date of this report the development 

of the key measures in the areas of employees, research &  

development as well as quality and environmental manage-

ment, corresponds to our strategic orientation and our key tar-

gets for the future development. We will continue to consis-

tently pursue this also in fiscal year 2013. 
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4.1 lasers & optical systems segment

business activity and environment 

products and services. all activities relating to lasers and optics 

are combined within this segment. Jenoptik is one of the lead-

ing providers of laser technology, offering products and services 

along the entire value added chain of laser materials processing 

– from the semiconductor material and components through to 

the complete laser system. in the laser area, the company has 

specialized in high-quality semiconductor lasers, reliable diode 

lasers as modules and systems as well as innovative, solid-state 

lasers such as disk and fiber lasers and is an acknowledged 

global leader in quality for high-power diode lasers. these laser 

beam sources are used, for example, in materials processing 

(automotive and machine construction), medical technology 

and the show & entertainment area. the laser processing sys-

tems unit offers laser machines which are integrated into pro-

duction lines as part of process optimization and automation. 

they are used for processing plastics, metals and glass in con-

nection with the processing of thin layers with highest effi-

ciency, precision and security.

through its optical systems division, Jenoptik is one of the 

leading global manufacturers producing precision optics and 

integrated optical systems designed to meet the most stringent 

quality requirements. the group is a development and produc-

tion partner for optoelectronic and optomechanic modules, 

systems and assemblies based on optic, micro-optic and lay-

ered optic components made from glass, infrared materials and 

plastics. it possesses superb expertise in the development and 

manufacture of micro-optics for beam shaping used in the 

semiconductor industry and for laser materials processing. the 

portfolio also includes systems and components for the areas 

of defense & security, healthcare & life sciences, lighting, system 

solutions and modules for digital imaging and analysis, as well 

as cameras used for digital microscopy.

areas of business and market position. in the lasers & optical 

systems segment, Jenoptik is one of the world’s major provid-

ers of lasers and laser processing systems as well as optics, 

micro-optics and optoelectronic systems. the segment com-

petes with numerous companies which specialize in one or a 

few of the abovementioned products. since the companies 

have differing service offerings and regularly only provide for 

limited comparison, it is very difficult to give specific positions 

in terms of market share. Jenoptik is a leader in the laser mar-

ket for high-power diode and disk lasers. the segment is an 

established partner for the automotive industry in the area of 

plastics processing for airbag systems and last year opened up 

access to a new fast growing market with the market launch of 

3d metal processing systems. Jenoptik has a prominent posi-

tion in the market for optical systems, for example in the area 

of micro-optics, which it has succeeded in further strengthen-

ing, and has also further enhanced its established role as a 

development and production partner for leading companies. in 

the area of optical systems, the company has intensified its 

offering of integrated solutions and in this way increased its 

share of added value. the segment’s regional areas of focus are 

in europe and north america and increasingly in asia. our core 

markets in this segment are semiconductor equipment, medical 

technology, defense and security technology as well as the 

automotive and machine construction industries. 

information on the segment’s markets can be found in the 

market report on page 54 and on future development in the 

forecast report from page 115 of this report. information on 

the segment’s strategy can also be found in the forecast report 

on page 113.

development of sales, earnings and orders 

the sales of the lasers & optical systems segment remained vir-

tually unchanged in 2012 despite the semiconductor crisis, at 

212.3 million euros (prev. year 217.1 million euros). the seg-

ment was able to compensate for the decline in the sales with 

the semiconductor industry resulting from the economic dip to 

better effect than in previous years through business in other 

4 segment reporting
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areas, although the 4th quarter 2012 showed a slight fall. sales 

growth came from the areas of optoelectronic systems and 

optics for other industries, such as flat-panel, automotive, and 

life sciences. the systems business was successfully further 

expanded. in the field of lasers & material processing, sales 

were down slightly on the previous year’s level. equipment for 

new areas of application, including 3d metals processing, also 

contributed to sales.

overall, the segment once again generated almost 70 percent of 

sales from abroad in 2012, with europe and america accounting 

for the majority of this (prev. year almost 70 percent).

the segment ebit, at 27.1 million euros, was also slightly below 

the figure for the previous year (prev. year 29.2 million euros). 

this is attributable in particular to the one-time effects in con-

nection with the site optimization in america. both the opto-

electronic systems business unit as well as lasers & material 

processing reported an increase. the segment’s ebit margin fell 

to 12.8 percent (prev. year 13.5 percent). 

at 219.9 million euros, the order intake was only slightly down 

on the high level achieved in the previous year (prev. year  

224.4 million euros) and just up on sales. the book-to-bill ratio 

was 1.04 (prev. year 1.03). as expected, demand from the 

semiconductor industry did not reach the same level as in the 

previous year. in the area of lasers & material processing, lasers 

for medical technology were in heavier demand. 

in addition to its position as a supplier to the semiconductor 

equipment industry, the segment is also increasingly attracting 

major customers from the flat-panel, automotive and life-sci-

ences industries. in 2012, for example, it won a large order 

worth several million euros for the manufacture of complex 

optical systems used in the area of flat panel display equipment 

in asia, as well as a larger order in the optoelectronic systems 

business from dräger safety ag. in the field of lasers & material 

processing, first key customers in the automotive supplier 

industry were won over with the market launch of the 3d met-

als processing systems. first systems were delivered both in 

germany and in the growth market usa and successfully com-

missioned into operation. in the third quarter 2012, Jenoptik 

received another large order from the us worth 13 million us 

dollars for green disk lasers which are specifically used for med-

ical applications. the segment's order backlog rose slightly to 

105.2 million euros (31.12.2011: 101.3 million euros).   42

other indicators and non-financial  

performance indicators

employees. the lasers & optical systems segment employed a 

total of 1,349 personnel as at december 31, 2012, an increase 

of 53 or 4.1 percent compared with the previous year 

(31.12.2011: 1,296). as at the year-end 2012, the segment 

had 44 young people in trainee positions.

in million euros 2012 2011 changes in %

sales 212.3 217.1 – 2.2

eBit 27.1 29.2 – 7.5

eBit margin (in percent) 12.8 13.5

order intake 219.9 224.4 – 2.0

order backlog 105.2 101.3 3.8

employees 1,349 1,296 4.1

key indicators for the lasers & optical systems segment 42
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the internationalization of the segment was underpinned by 

the recruitment of personnel to key positions in america. fur-

ther expansion in america and asia is planned for 2013. as 

part of the group project entitled “technical and project 

careers”, the optics area is implementing corresponding career 

options for the employees from research and development as 

well as from project management. 

research and development. the r + d output of the segment 

totaled 19.0 million euros and therefore rose slightly over the 

previous year’s period (prev. year 16.8 million euros). develop-

ments on behalf of customers which can be apportioned to the 

cost of sales totaled 4.7 million euros (prev. year 3.2 million 

euros). r + d expenses in 2012 totaled 14.7 million euros (prev. 

year 14.1 million euros). key development projects are often 

pursued on a joint basis with the customers. 

the high power series of f-theta-Jenar® lenses was launched 

on the market in 2012. Jenoptik premiered the new silverline 

f-theta range of lenses at photonics West in January 2013, 

completing the full quartz lens range for micro material pro-

cessing with high-power and picosecond lasers. at the begin-

ning of 2012, Jenoptik received an order from dräger safety ag 

to develop and manufacture integrated optoelectronic mod-

ules, systems and equipment. 

in the laser area, Jenoptik showcased the new kilowatt fiber 

lasers for the first time at the beginning of 2012. this is an area 

in which Jenoptik has benefited from its in-house expertise. 

this allows for the flexible integration of the lasers, particularly 

in the area of materials processing such as metal cutting and 

welding. the first deliveries of the new Jenlas® fiber cw 1000 

have already been dispatched to asian customers. at photonics 

West, Jenoptik also presented the femtosecond laser Jenlas® 

d2.fs with improved parameters that allow for faster materials 

processing in industry and medical technology. laser processing 

systems for the 3d metals processing have been further devel-

oped and brought to the market. the focus here is on the cut-

ting of tubes and press hardened steels. 

capital expenditure on the segment’s tangible and intangible 

assets amounted to 15.3 million euros (prev. year 12.9 million 

euros) and were offset by depreciation in the sum of 9.3 million 

euros (prev. year 11.3 million euros). the increase in capital 

expenditure is primarily attributable to the expansion of the 

manufacturing facility for semiconductor lasers in berlin involv-

ing a total of around 10 million euros spread over the years 

2011 to 2013.

despite a significant increase in capital expenditure, the free 

cash flow (before interest and income taxes) was consequently 

below last year’s level at 17.6 million euros (prev. year 28.7 mil-

lion euros).  

production & organization. at the end of august 2012, Jenoptik 

opened its berlin manufacturing facility for high-quality semi-

conductor lasers which provide the base material for high-

power diode lasers. the expanded manufacturing facility will 

be equipped with the latest production technology and be 

commissioned into operation at the beginning of 2013. the 

expansion of this site will enable Jenoptik to meet the sharp 

rise in demand, especially from asia, and strengthens the tech-

nological position for new areas of application, also in volume 

segments. 

as announced in december 2012, the optics manufacturing 

activities at the Jupiter site in florida, us will be intensified dur-

ing the course of the current fiscal year. the production capaci-

ties there will be significantly expanded and extended to cover 

the production of optical precision components. the optics site 

at easthampton will therefore be transferred to Jupiter. this 

capacity expansion is mainly targeted at the semiconductor 

equipment, defense & security, health care & life sciences and 

entertainment industries. as a result, the optical systems divi-

sion will in the future manufacture at the two us locations in 

Jupiter and huntsville. 
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January spie photonics West (Usa)

march Laser World of photonics china (china)

april defense, security and sensing (Usa)

may optatec (d)

June acHema (d)

september imts (Usa) 
Laser World of photonics india (india)

october euroBLecH (d)

selected trade fairs 2012 43

the presence at the Jupiter site was expanded for the lasers 

business. it is initially planned for the organization to serve as a 

sales and service unit. a sales and service presence was also 

opened on the West coast of the us in 2012, mainly to ensure 

the service for local laser systems.

the digital imaging and optoelectronic systems business units 

had already been amalgamated in 2011 in order to strengthen 

the offering of complete optoelectronic system solutions. the 

optimization of the organization in this area was continued in 

2012.

the go-lean program was also started up in the lasers & opti-

cal systems segment in the fiscal year just past and various 

themes for improvement of the operational excellence were 

implemented as part of the group-wide Jenoptik excellence 

program (Jep).

4.2 metrology segment 

business activity and environment

products and services. in the metrology segment, Jenoptik pos-

sesses expertise in technologies for measuring forms, dimen-

sions, surfaces, speeds and distances. in the area of industrial 

metrology, Jenoptik is one of the world’s leading manufacturers 

of high-precision, contact and non-contact production metrol-

ogy used mainly in the automotive industry. the range of ser-

vices covers total solutions for a wide variety of measurement 

tasks, such as the optical, tactile or pneumatic testing of rough-

ness, contours and shape and the measurement of dimensions 

during every phase of the production process as well as in the 

metrology room. the segment also offers comprehensive 

advice, training and services, including long-term maintenance 

agreements. in the area of traffic solutions Jenoptik develops 

and sells components and systems which are making the 

world’s roads safer. the product portfolio, based on the proven 

robot technology, includes comprehensive systems covering all 

aspects of road traffic, such as speed and red light monitoring 

systems plus oem products (original equipment manufacturer) 

and special solutions for identifying other traffic violations.  

Jenoptik is the only provider in the world able to offer its cus-

tomers solutions based on all established technologies.

in the services area, traffic service provision, the group covers 

the entire, supporting process chain – from system develop-

ment, construction and installation of the monitoring infra-

structure, to capturing images of the traffic violations and the 

automatic further processing, through to sending out the pen-

alty notices and collection of the fines as the system operator.

areas of business and market position. Jenoptik is one of the 

leading companies worldwide in the field of two dimensional 

metrology and is a market leader in optical metrology. in the 

traffic safety area, Jenoptik is a leading provider of photo-

graphic monitoring, with more than 20,000 devices in use 

worldwide. the metrology segment has a greater international 

focus than any other within the Jenoptik group. the segment’s 

regional areas of focus are determined by the customers. in the 
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was also a marked rise in sales of traffic solutions, with the seg-

ment generating more than 70 percent of its sales abroad 

(prev. year approx. 68 percent). 

at 25.7 million euros, the segment ebit increased at a much 

stronger rate than sales, more than doubling compared with 

the previous year (prev. year 12.0 million euros). this increase 

was once again driven by industrial metrology which posted a 

leap in earnings as a result of the high level of sales and more 

efficient structures, as well as the first deliveries for the major 

road traffic safety projects in malaysia, saudi arabia and oman. 

the segment posted a 19.2 percent increase in its order intake 

to 198.7 million euros (prev. year 166.7 million euros). this fig-

ure includes two major orders for traffic safety solutions from 

malaysia and oman. Jenoptik is equipping northern and east-

ern malaysia with around 550 traffic monitoring systems worth 

more than 40 million euros. the contract also includes compre-

hensive servicing for a period of 5 years. over and above the 

supply and installation of the systems, Jenoptik will also set up 

the complete infrastructure of the enforcement system and 

give technical support for the entire duration of the program. 

the group is also fitting more than 600 sites in oman with 

state-of-the-art traffic safety systems, supplying and installing 

efficient software for processing the traffic violations. in addi-

tion, assistance is given in the commissioning. the order value 

is in the lower double-figure million euro range. orders for 

area of industrial metrology, these are thus the centers of the 

global automotive and automotive supplier industry in europe, 

north america and asia. the market for traffic safety solutions 

is being increasingly characterized by major projects which  

consequently determine the order-related areas of focus for 

Jenoptik’s international presence over a defined period. in the 

german market, traffic safety systems are subject to licensing 

by the physikalisch technische bundesanstalt (ptb), brunswick. 

foreign deliveries are subject to controls by the corresponding 

national institute, while various countries also recognize in  

part or completely the german ptb license or licenses from 

other leading european licensing authorities.

information on the segment’s markets can be found in the 

market report on page 55 and on the future development in 

the forecast report on page 116 of this report. information on 

the strategy of the segment can also be found in the forecast 

report on page 114.

development of sales, earnings and orders 

sales of the metrology segment increased by more than 30 per-

cent to 182.7 million euros in 2012 (prev. year 140.1 million 

euros). the growth in sales came both from industrial metrol-

ogy and traffic solutions. the demand from the automotive 

industry, the key customer sector for industrial metrology, 

remained at a very high level in 2012. as a result of the deliver-

ies of traffic safety systems to malaysia and saudi arabia, there 

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

sales 182.7 140.1 30.4

eBit 25.7 12.0 114.2

eBit margin (in percent) 14.1 8.5

order intake 198.7 166.7 19.2

order backlog 87.4 69.0 26.7

employees 814 719 13.2

key indicators for the metrology segment 44
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industrial metrology worth several million us dollars for three 

north american engine plants have also been awarded. the 

segment will be supplying fully automated roughness testing 

systems and measuring machines for the measurement of form 

and dimension. the order also covered their integration into 

the production lines plus comprehensive servicing. delivery of 

the systems began in 2011 and will be concluded at the end of 

2013. 

the order intake of the segment exceeded sales and so the 

book-to-bill ratio was 1.09 (prev. year 1.19). the order backlog 

increased accordingly by 26.7 percent to 87.4 million euros 

(31.12.2011: 69.0 million euros).   44

other indicators and non-financial  

performance indicators

employees. the number of employees in the segment rose by 

13.2 percent or 95 personnel net, to 814 (31.12.2011: 719). 

the segment therefore recorded the largest rise in new employ-

ees. this figure includes a significant increase in the number of 

employees in the foreign companies. as at december 31, 

2012, the segment employed 24 trainees, 6 more than in the 

previous year.

human resources projects. the metrology segment has already 

been consistently implementing the process of internationaliza-

tion for a number of years, it is now working intensively on the 

secondment project and secondment guideline drawn up by 

the group. Within the framework of the major international 

projects, the segment relies on both the recruitment and sec-

ondment of its own employees. 

foreign companies. a foreign company was formed in kuala 

lumpur in conjunction with the acquisition of the major project 

in malaysia. this location will employ both locally recruited per-

sonnel as well as personnel seconded from germany. 

research and development. the r + d output of the segment 

totaled 16.9 million euros (prev. year 13.9 million euros). this 

figure includes developments on behalf of customers in the 

sum of 2.8 million euros (prev. year 4.3 million euros) which are 

shown under cost of sales. the segment’s r + d expenses 

totaled 14.2 million euros (prev. year 9.6 million euros). 

in 2012, the work of the segment was mainly focused on addi-

tions to the industrial metrology product portfolio. there is 

global demand for new metrology solutions for more environ-

mental friendly engines in the automotive industry. the seg-

ment also launched the optical shaft measurement system 

hommel-etamic opticline ca618, which is used for the auto-

mated, quick measurement of wave-like workpieces in the 

automotive industry and the hommel-etamic f435 / f455 

range of tactile shape measurement devices which combine 

shape measurement with additional roughness testing func-

tions. a calibrated cam standard was premiered as a world 

innovation which, together with the certified analysis software 

turbo shaft, enables cam-shaped measurements to be car-

ried out for the first time to a national standard.

two important development projects were completed for traf-

fic solutions in 2012. these will strengthen our positioning by 

providing the latest generation of contactless measuring tech-

nology in the form of radars and laser scanners. the new sta-

tionary laser scanner system had already been submitted for 

licensing in selected countries starting in autumn and is cur-

rently at the market launch stage. With the introduction of the 

traffistar s350 laser scanner system, Jenoptik has rounded off 

its technology portfolio and is the only provider in the world 

able to offer its customers all the technologies under one roof. 

development of the back office suite traffidesk®, launched in 

2011, was also continued in 2012 and successfully imple-

mented in a number of major international projects.
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capital expenditure by the segment in tangible and intangible 

assets totaled 3.3 million euros in 2012 (prev. year 2.2 million 

euros). this was offset by depreciation and impairments in the 

sum of 3.0 million euros (prev. year 3.4 million euros).  

the free cash flow (before interest and taxes) of the segment 

totaled 24.3 million euros (prev. year 4.9 million euros).

production and organization. the metrology segment contin-

ued to optimize its structures in 2012. the framework for this is 

being provided by the continuing process of internationaliza-

tion, with the segment’s own presence in the key sales mar-

kets, rapid expansion of business in industrial metrology and 

the fluctuations in capacity utilization as a result of the major 

orders in the traffic solutions business. the aim of the optimiza-

tion was therefore to create an efficient order throughput as 

well as to ensure flexibility in production. competence centers 

were established in germany, france, switzerland, the usa and 

china. the industrial metrology area has a presence in brazil, 

india, singapore, south korea, spain and the czech republic 

through application centers. Work on the standardization of 

the product portfolio was continued in the traffic solutions 

area. the progress achieved in 2012 enabled the segment to 

start on the introduction of lean manufacturing which will 

make production more efficient and operationalize the process 

of continual improvement.   45

march intertraffic, amsterdam (NL)

march iNdUstrie paris 2012, paris (f)

may control, stuttgart (d)

september Gpec, Leipzig (d)

september imts, chicago (Usa)

November prodex, Basel (cH)
Gulf traffic, abu dhabi
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4.3 defense & civil systems segment  

business activity and environment

products and services. the defense & civil systems segment 

focuses on the areas of military and civil vehicle, rail and aircraft 

equipment, drive and stabilization technology as well as energy 

systems. the product range also includes optoelectronic sys-

tems for the security industry, as well as software, measure-

ment and control technology. the focus in the area of lasers 

and infrared sensors is on the development, manufacture and 

sale of laser rangefinders and infrared camera systems which 

are used in automation, environmental measurement and secu-

rity technology as well as for military reconnaissance. an effi-

cient customer service ensures that customers receive support 

for the service life of the products, which in most cases is a very 

long time.

areas of business and market position. the segment supplies 

equipment to major systems companies or is a direct supplier 

to procurement bodies in the public sector. the business is pre-

dominantly geared toward the long-term and is often based on 

so-called platforms. many of the components and subsystems 

are developed specially on behalf of customers. in the area of 

defense and security technology as well as aviation and rail 

equipment, Jenoptik is a business partner primarily for german 

or european customers, with end products being dispatched all 

over the world by the systems companies. the business is sub-

ject to strict security, certification and export requirements to 

which Jenoptik stringently adheres. in addition to export audits, 

these requirements mainly include the security clearance act of 

the federal german department of trade and industry.

information on the segment’s markets can be found in the 

market report on page 55 and, on the future development, in 

the forecast report on page 116. information on the segment’s 

strategy can also be found in the forecast report on page 114.
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development of sales, earnings and orders 

sales. in 2012 the defense & civil systems segment posted a 

1.7 percent rise in sales to 186.4 million euros (prev. year 183.3 

million euros). over the last 12 months, the energy systems 

business unit again recorded a positive performance which was 

characterized by the deliveries of power units for the us ameri-

can patriot missile defense systems. at nearly 52 percent (prev. 

year approx. 41 percent), the segment’s foreign share of sales 

is markedly lower than in the other two segments since a sig-

nificant proportion of the products is supplied to german sys-

tems companies. the segment’s strategic objective is to con-

tinue increasing the share of sales with civil products as well as 

the foreign share of sales. however, the sales mix is also depen-

dent upon call orders from customers within the framework of 

long-term projects.

the segment ebit totaled 7.8 million euros (prev. year 11.6 mil-

lion euros). the reasons for this reduction of more than 30 per-

cent, primarily in the 4th quarter 2012, were the measures 

taken for the relocation of the site from essen to Wedel in the 

energy systems business area, as well as lead costs for new 

projects. the main positive contributions to the results in 2012 

came from the energy systems business unit as well as the  

50 percent share of hillos gmbh which was included in the 

result. in this joint venture with hilti, Jenoptik manufactures 

laser measurement equipment for applications in the construc-

tion industry at the Jena site. the segment posted an ebit  

margin of 4.2 percent (prev. year 6.3 percent).

in million euros 2012 2011 change in %

sales 186.4 183.3 1,7

eBit 7.8 11.6 – 32.8

eBit margin (in percent) 4.2 6.3

order intake 165.0 254.5 – 35.2

order backlog 255.8 279.9 – 8.6

employees 913 924 – 1.2

key indicators of the defense & civil systems segment 46

as expected, the order intake of the segment in 2012 did not 

match the same high level as in the previous year, coming in at 

165.0 million euros (prev. year 254.5 million euros), a decline of 

35.2 percent. 2011 was primarily characterized by two major 

individual orders for the puma armored fighting vehicle which 

together totaled more than 70 million euros. the segment did 

not receive any comparable major order in 2012, so the book-

to-bill ratio was 0.89 (prev. year 1.39). at 8.6 percent, the fall 

in the order backlog was much lower than that in the order 

intake and totaled 255.8 million euros (prev. year 279.9 million 

euros).   46

other indicators and non-financial  

performance indicators

employees. as at the end of 2012, the defense & civil systems 

segment employed a total of 913 personnel (31.12.2011: 924 

employees), 1.2 percent fewer than in the previous year. this is 

attributable to the consistent hr policy which has reduced per-

sonnel expenses through socially responsible measures. as at 

the year end, the segment had a total of 57 personnel in 

trainee positions.

human resources projects. the defense & civil systems segment 

is participating in the pilot scheme to introduce technical and 

project careers and is also involved in the implementation of a 

technical career in the r + d area.  
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information on new sites / site closures. the relocation of the 

essen site to Wedel which was decided in december 2012 and 

the amalgamation of the operations in essen and Wedel are 

planned for 2014. the negotiations on the implementation of 

this measure which will affect a change in operations were 

commenced in february 2013.

research and development. the r + d output of the segment in 

2012 totaled 13.1 million euros (prev. year 14.6 million euros). 

developments directly on behalf of customers which are appor-

tioned to cost of sales totaled 5.8 million euros (prev. year  

6.7 million euros). this is normally a higher proportion than in 

the other two segments as a result of the joint developments 

with systems companies. the segment’s r + d expenses totaled 

7.1 million euros (prev. year 8.2 million euros). 

the new thermographic camera from the sensor systems busi-

ness unit was launched in the spring of 2012. the variocam® 

hd is the world's first hand-held, non-cooled thermographic 

camera with 3.1 megapixels, infrared image resolution and an 

integrated laser rangefinder. typical areas of use for vario-

cam® hd cameras include industrial and scientific research 

and development, preventive maintenance and building ther-

mography.

in June of last year, Jenoptik premiered the new nyXus bird 

thermal imaging device for military reconnaissance. nyXus 

bird combines a high-resolution thermal imaging device with 

february international armoured vehicles, farnborough (GB)

march aircraft interiors expo, Hamburg (d)

april spie defense, security & sensing, Baltimore (Usa)

June eurosatory, paris (f)

september innotrans, Berlin (d)

october aUsa annual meeting & exposition, Washington 
dc (Usa)

November sps/ipc/drives, Nuremberg (d)
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binoculars, laser rangefinder, magnetic compass and gps – all 

in a single, lightweight, handy and robust device. thanks to its 

outstanding characteristics, the system will form part of the 

future reconnaissance equipment for the german army. Jenop-

tik is also currently developing an observation system for the us 

marine corps which is being assembled to provide us forces 

with a modern system, the “common laser range finder inte-

grated capability (clrf ic)”. 

Jenoptik has developed the new laser sensor lumos for mea-

surements to hot surfaces and in bright conditions. this enables 

distances up to 500 meters to be measured to the nearest milli-

meter precisely. the compact devices operate with visible red 

laser light at a wavelength of 635 nm.   

the introduction of the new generation of ucf cameras for the 

fire fighter service of dräger safety is proceeding positively. the 

sensor systems business unit is the key supplier and was pre-

sented with the customer’s innovation award.    

capital expenditure. the segment invested 6.4 million euros in 

tangible and intangible assets (prev. year 8.5 million euros). the 

level of investment was therefore 25.9 percent lower than in 

the year 2011 which had been characterized by the expansion 

in capacity at the altenstadt site. investments were offset by 

depreciation and impaiments totaling 5.4 million euros (prev. 

year 5.0 million euros).   

the free cash flow (before interest and taxes on income) 

amounted to 5.5 million euros (prev. year 2.1 million euros) and 

therefore exceeded the previous year's level.

production & organization.

With effect from June 1, 2012, dr. stefan stenzel took over as 

head of the defense & civil systems segment, since then he has 

been responsible for all operational matters. dr. stefan stenzel 

has held various management positions in the Jenoptik group 

since 2003 and most recently was deputy head of the optical 

systems division.  
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report on post-balance sheet events

as announced in december 2012, the defense & civil system 

segment is reducing the number of locations in germany from 

four to three. components of the energy systems for military 

vehicles and locomotives are currently manufactured at the 

three locations Wedel, altenstadt and essen. in order to 

strengthen the earnings power and flexibility in the future, pro-

duction and development at the essen site is to be relocated to 

Wedel from 2013.   47

4.4 general statement by the executive  
 board on the development of the  
 segments

We report on a segment basis in accordance with ifrs 8 “busi-

ness segments”. the reporting is carried out according to the 

organizational, management and internal reporting structure. 

the executive board analyzes the financial information of the 

segments and the subordinated levels, with this information 

providing a basis for decision-making. the accounting princi-

ples for the segments are the same as those as described for 

the group as a whole under basic accounting principles in the 

notes from page 129.

the segments delivered varying levels of performance in 2012. 

the metrology segment achieved record sales and operating 

results. sales of the lasers & optical systems and defense & civil 

systems segments remained virtually unchanged. in addition to 

predominantly good economic conditions, the positive perfor-

mance was also helped by the internal improvements and suc-

cesses in the implementation of the internationalization strat-

egy. We thus improved our margins with an increased share of 

the systems business, successfully opened up new markets 

based on the existing technology expertise and brought major 

projects to a successful conclusion, testifying to our customers’ 

confidence in our performance capability. 

the executive board proposes to the supervisory board to 

transfer an amount of 25,000,000.00 euros of the net profit 

2012 of Jenoptik ag to other revenue reserves.

the exective board recommends to the supervisory board to 

propose to the annual general meeting that a dividend of  

0.18 euros per qualifying no-par value share be paid. thus, an 

amount of 10,302,860.70 euros of the balance sheet profit  

of 22,661,857.90 euros shall be distributed and an amount of 

12,358,997.20 euros be carried forward.

there were no other events of significant importance occurring 

after december 31, 2012.

in January 2013 Jenoptik acquired 100 percent of the shares in 

dcd systems pty. ltd., a supplier of traffic safety equipment.

5 report on post- 
 balance sheet events 
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6.1 risk management system

Jenoptik sees the basic principles of responsible company man-

agement as including the continuous, responsible evaluation of 

opportunities and risks derived from entrepreneurial activity. 

this enables opportunities to be identified and exploited at an 

early stage and the associated risks to be simultaneously ana-

lyzed, evaluated and controlled. at Jenoptik, there is a close 

inter-relationship between opportunity and risk management 

which is linked with the strategy of the Jenoptik group as well 

as the strategies and objectives of the individual market seg-

ments. this enables the executive board to formulate a strategy 

and define objectives for creating an optimum balance between 

growth and return targets on the one side and the associated 

risks on the other and to ensure that resources are used effec-

tively and efficiently. this allows the value of the Jenoptik group 

for its stakeholders to be systematically increased on a sustain-

able basis. in addition, the consistent application of the basic 

principles of risk policy and instructions in the form of group 

guidelines means that a majority of the risks can be avoided or 

their consequences at least reduced. 

organization and instruments of the risk 

management system 

risk management at Jenoptik covers all risk-related activities 

and measures designed to achieve the corporate objectives. 

the aim of this is to deal with opportunities and risks on a con-

trolled basis within the group. they are managed by the oper-

ating units, mainly in cooperation with the central areas of 

finance, internal auditing and legal and forms an integral part 

of the group-wide planning and control systems. in december 

2012, the group also established the central area of “risk &  

compliance management” which is intended in future to make 

a key contribution towards the monitoring and control of risks 

and opportunities at Jenoptik. based on intensive market and 

competitor analyses, potential specific to the business units, as 

well as the associated risks, will be the subject of regular, 

detailed discussion. all domestic and foreign companies in 

which Jenoptik ag has a more than 50 percent stake are sub-

ject to the group-wide risk management system. these compa-

nies are essentially those included in consolidation.   48

the executive board has defined group-wide guidelines with 

the help of a risk manual, providing for effective and systematic 

risk management. the risk management system is based on the 

following three pillars:

• tasks and responsibility (structural organization)

• early warning and control (procedural organization)

• monitoring and continual further development

in line with the organizational structure of the Jenoptik group, 

there is a clear separation of the tasks and responsibilities in  

risk management between Jenoptik ag as the group holding  

company and the operational units. the risk units are mainly 

Jenoptik ag and the operational business units. the respective 

risk unit is initially responsible for the proper implementation of 

the risk management, with the next higher risk unit monitoring 

the implementation and ensuring that reporting is carried out 

in accordance with the guideline. Jenoptik ag has established 

a system of reporting as part of investment control, providing 

for the early identification of developments which could jeopar-

dize the existence of the group.

the areas in which key risks for the group arise are recorded in 

a risk inventory which must be carried out annually. since there 

are various operational areas of business within the Jenoptik 

group, a general risk matrix (see individual risks on page 102) 

and checklists serve as an aid for identifying potential risks and 

setting these out in a structured form. then, as at the forecast 

dates and as part of a risk analysis, the risk officers of the 

respective risk units analyze all the identified risks in terms of 

their probability of occurrence and impact on the results. 

depending upon the risk unit, if these risks exceed a threshold 

of between 0.5 and 1.0 million euros, the results of the risk 

identification and analysis are incorporated into the risk report 

which is submitted several times a year to the group’s risk offi-

cers. the individual reports are summarized in a group risk 

report for the attention of the executive board and the audit 

committee of the supervisory board, giving consideration to 

6 risk report
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the potential aggregation of risks. named individuals responsi-

ble implement the highlighted measures, specifying a deadline. 

if a new risk with a specific minimum impact on the results and 

minimum probability of occurrence arises between the report-

ing dates, or if a known risk changes to the same extent, the 

group risk officers and the executive board must be informed 

immediately and an ad-hoc risk report be produced.

the process illustrated for defining risk areas, identifying risks 

and the subsequent analysis, evaluation and limitation through 

planning, control and monitoring systems, is continually 

reviewed and updated in the risk matrix. the recording of the 

risk matrix starts at risk unit level and is aggregated upward to 

the group level. 

monthly executive board meetings, meetings of the executive 

management board as the extended management committee 

of the group and strategy and results meetings are group-wide 

committees for identifying, analyzing and dealing with oppor-

tunities and risks. executive board and management levels hold 

joint discussions on relevant risks and their impact on the com-

pany at these meetings with the heads of the areas of finance, 

as well as strategy, business development & innovation man-

agement. a group-wide, uniform structured system of innova-

tion and investment control also ensures that, through critical 

evaluation of new development projects and the associated 

risks, only those ideas with the most promising economic pros-

pects are systematically pursued further.

the abovementioned reporting instruments form the basis for 

the risk early warning system. this is also reviewed within the 

framework of the audit of the financial statements by the com-

mercial auditor in order to ensure that the system is appropri-

ate for promptly recording, evaluating and communicating all 

risks that could potentially jeopardize the group’s existence.

monitoring and further development of the 

risk management system

the executive board of Jenoptik ag is responsible for the pro-

vision of an effective opportunity and risk management system. 

it has taken appropriate measures in order to early identify and 

tackle developments which could jeopardize the group’s exis-

tence as well as opportunities for its further development. the 

group risk committee conducts a regular review of the effi-

ciency of the monitoring system. the committee comprises the 

executive board, the group risk officer and the heads of legal, 

internal auditing as well as the commercial manager. the 

group risk officer is in continual discussion with the risk offi-

cers of the operating units and is the central risk monitoring 

and control authority within the company. the supervisory 

risk management system 48

analysis / evaluation of risks

• risk report
• group-wide committees (executive board meetings, 

strategy and earnings meetings, conference calls)

management / monitoring /  
control of risks

• risk manual
• risk committee
• internal auditing
• internal control system determination / identification of risks

• risk matrix (support for determining risk areas)
• risk inventory (determination of risk profiles)

risk committee
risk officer



100 JENOPTIK 2012

group management report Risk report

board and the audit committee monitor the effectiveness of 

the opportunity and risk management system. in the year just 

past, the audit committee regularly discussed the issue of risk 

management at its meetings (see report of the supervisory 

board from page 6).

the Jenoptik system of controls therefore comprises both inter-

nal processes as well as external regulations. targeted controls 

are intended to identify potential shortfalls in the monitoring 

and to counter these by taking corresponding action. the meth-

ods are subject to regular review, ensuring and improving the 

effectiveness of the risk identification and analysis. the internal 

control system (ics) is an integral part of the risk management 

system and covers the entirety of all measures, basic principles 

and procedures for achieving the corporate objectives. it is in 

accordance with the law and guidelines and is intended in par-

ticular to ensure the security and efficiency of the development 

of business as well as the reliability of the financial reporting. it 

is regularly reviewed by the internal auditing.

the purpose of the group guideline entitled “business transac-

tions with special characteristics” is to also prevent or reduce 

risks. if a contract which is to be concluded or an obligation to 

be entered into meets one of the defined criteria of this guide-

line which identifies the transaction as deviating from the stan-

dard (e. g. a particularly high order value, deviating financing 

conditions, regulations on expertise transfer or strategic 

aspects), a special control process is started. all the technical 

departments of the group concerned are involved in this pro-

cess, with approval being issued by the executive board if nec-

essary. 

since this guideline was introduced in 2009, this process has 

led to greater risk transparency and increased risk prevention 

and has become a key element of both the ics as well as the 

compliance management system. similar processes are in force 

for innovation projects and investments.

internal auditing is permanently incorporated into the ongoing 

further development of the internal monitoring and risk man-

agement system through process-independent audits. the 

department reports directly to the chairman of the executive 

board. internal auditing conducts audits in the form of what 

are known as Jenaudits. these normally analyze entire compa-

nies or a detailed audit is conducted on a specific theme set 

out in the risk based audit plan. the compliance with and 

proper implementation of the applicable guidelines form an 

integral part of the audit. this not only identifies errors or pro-

cess weaknesses but also potential process improvements in 

the sense of a “best practice approach”. the recommendations 

for improvement are prioritized and categorized and reported 

directly to the persons responsible for the audited units as well 

as to the executive board. breaches or errors are analyzed and 

work on their elimination initiated as quickly as possible. the 

audited unit then submits an implementation report as to 

which of the stated recommendations have been implemented 

by a predefined date. this is followed by follow-up audits 

which review the implementation of the recommendations, 

with information on the results being sent to the respective 

management level and the Jenoptik executive board. internal 

auditing submits a report to the audit committee of the super-

visory board at least once a year on its key findings since the 

last report, as well as on its audit plan for the following year. 

five Jenaudits and five follow-up reviews as well as one special 

Jenaudit were conducted in 2012.

in order to minimize potential compliance risks arising from the 

non-compliance with applicable law and to ensure that regula-

tory standards recognized by the company are complied with, 

the further development and updating of various group-wide 

guidelines was supplemented by an anticorruption guideline in 

2012 as well as a guideline on the issue, conclusion and imple-

mentation of contracts and published on the Jenoptik group 

intranet. other areas of focus of the compliance activities for 

2012 included training in various risk areas, with particularly 

intensive training in the areas of combatting corruption and 

antitrust law. however, breaches by individual employees with 
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an impact on the earnings, financial and asset situation cannot 

be fully excluded. the compliance board met three times in the 

fiscal year just past. detailed information on the subject of 

compliance can be found in the corporate governance state-

ment from page 13.

key features of the internal control and  

risk management system With regard to the 

consolidated accounting process (§ 315 para. 2 

no. 5 hgb (german commercial code))

the accounting-related internal control system is part of the 

overall internal control system (ics) of the Jenoptik group. it is 

intended to ensure compliance with statutory regulations, 

accounting rules and internal guidelines for uniform accounting 

and valuation principles in accordance with ifrs, which are 

binding for all companies included in the consolidated financial 

statements. the aim of the ics is to ensure a proper process for 

the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. new 

regulations and changes to existing rules are analyzed promptly 

and, if necessary, implemented in the guidelines and account-

ing processes through the finance department. the guidelines 

are available via the group-wide intranet or explicitly sent to the 

employees concerned. all employees involved in the accounting 

process receive regular training. 

access restrictions in the respective it systems protect the 

financial systems against abuse. centralized control and regular 

backup of the it systems reduce the risk of data loss.  

from the technical aspect, the finance department is responsible 

for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. in 

this context, clear responsibilities and function separation, in 

adherence to the cross-check principle, are characteristic features 

of the financial reporting process in the Jenoptik group. 

in order to prepare the consolidated financial statements, the 

ifrs data of the companies is recorded directly by them in the 

consolidation tool sap business objects financial consolida-

tion. the transferred data for the statements and financial 

statements of consolidated companies are verified by technical 

system controls. all the consolidation processes required for the 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements are docu-

mented. these processes, systems and controls enable Jenoptik 

to ensure with sufficient certainty a consolidated accounting 

process which is both reliable as well as compliant with ifrs 

and the statutory requirements. independent auditors audit the 

financial statements of the companies in accordance with ifrs, 

as adopted by the eu, or the data relevant to the group 

accounting. 

risk management in relation to financial 

instruments

Jenoptik has a centralized financial management system. the 

central treasury department coordinates the financing needs 

of the group, ensuring liquidity and monitoring currency, inter-

est rate and liquidity risks on the basis of group-wide policies.

the purpose of the financial risk management is to limit finan-

cial risks arising from changes in market prices, exchange rates 

and interest rates through operational and financial activities. 

derivative financial instruments are used exclusively for the pur-

pose of securing underlying transactions and only concluded 

with first class banks. in this context, the most important task is 

to ensure that the necessary cash resources are available at all 

times. 

currency-related risks arise from the group’s international activ-

ities. group treasury department identifies these risks and con-

trols them by taking appropriate measures, e. g. hedging. as a 

basic principle, all group companies must hedge foreign cur-

rency positions on the date they are created. a foreign currency 

guideline regulates the permitted hedging instruments and per-

missible deviations. 
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the purpose of the liquidity planning is to identify liquidity risks 

at any early stage and to systematically minimize them on a 

group-wide basis. a monthly rolling liquidity forecast and a 

weekly treasury report first introduced in 2012 are used for the 

purpose of liquidity control and monitoring.

as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates, the Jenoptik 

group is essentially exposed to risks of changes in interest rates 

in medium and long-term, interest-bearing financial assets and 

liabilities. all group assets and liabilities which are sensitive to 

interest rates are recorded and analyzed in the interest risk 

management system. details on how risks of changes in inter-

est rates are dealt with are summarized in the group guideline 

entitled “treasury management”.

more detailed explanations on the financial management risk 

can be found from page 107 and from page 173 in the notes.

6.2 individual risks

the main corporate risks ascertained using the risk manage-

ment system are listed below. other risks which have not yet 

been identified or are currently deemed not significant could 

also have a detrimental effect on the group’s business develop-

ment. there are, however, also opportunities for the group and 

its further development. 

the individual risks are recorded in the following five areas:

• general external risks and opportunities

• economic performance risks 

• financial management risks

• balance sheet risks

• risks arising from corporate governance and legal disputes

general eXternal risks and opportunities

change in market demand and position. Jenoptik operates 

within a fast-moving technological environment, the character-

istic features of which are strong competition in terms of pres-

sure on prices and margins, consolidation as well as product 

and service quality. in each of our core markets, we compete 

with a just a few companies worldwide.

the current global economic situation and economic outlook 

for markets such as europe, north america and asia have led 

to a significant transformation of the competitive environment. 

some sectors in which Jenoptik operates are going through a 

period of consolidation.

as a result of technological changes or advances, the develop-

ment of a “second source” by a key customer or massive pene-

tration of the Jenoptik markets by competitors could lead to a 

weakening of the market position for individual Jenoptik areas 

of business. at the same time, Jenoptik is seeking to develop 

new markets and market segments or to strengthen its market 

position in its existing market segments. Jenoptik is countering 

the trend among key customers toward “second sourcing” 

through customer loyalty programs and strengthening its pres-

ence as a systems integrator, delivering a higher share of added 
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value, and conversely also sees opportunities for new customer 

relationships as a “first or second source”. 

further information on the market position of the segments 

can be found in the segment reporting from page 88.

the probability of a change in Jenoptik’s market position in one 

of its markets is relatively high due to the large number of mar-

kets and the intense project business which the company pur-

sues. however, the likelihood of the market position changing 

significantly and in the same direction in the majority of the tar-

get markets is relatively minimal. the impact of a shift in mar-

ket shares can be significant for the individual Jenoptik unit 

affected. however, as a result of the diversification, the impact 

on the group level is mainly balanced.

export controls. as a result of trade restrictions, Jenoptik is 

exposed to export control risks as a supplier of defense tech-

nology goods and high technology. the group counters these 

risks by conducting comprehensive audits of customers and 

suppliers. an export control guideline regulates the group-wide 

coordination and monitoring of the adherence to these con-

trols. the creation of a central export and customs body in the 

shared service center in 2012 will enable the group to improve 

the way it counters these risks in the future. the employees 

also receive regular training. all existing purchasing, sales and 

financial activities are recorded and permanently monitored in 

the sap module sap global trade services, systematically 

reducing the probability of this risk arising, which is thus 

deemed minimal. however, in the event of a mistake the con-

sequence can be comparatively significant e. g. an exclusion 

from corresponding public invitations to tender. 

ecological risks / natural disasters. natural disasters can lead to 

supply bottlenecks, shortages of parts, or the loss of expected 

orders. the likelihood of loss of production as a result of natu-

ral disasters is seen as rather low for the Jenoptik group whose 

manufacturing facilities are located predominantly in central 

europe and the eastern united states, even if these can never 

be ruled out entirely at the various locations. the impact is 

heavily dependent on the location affected, as well as on the 

nature and scope of the disaster.

political and global economic developments. Jenoptik maintains 

business relationships in more than 70 countries and generates 

64 percent of its sales abroad. the risk associated with the 

political uncertainties in the north african region, the middle 

east and parts of asia mainly entails the delay in or loss of 

orders, cancellation of part orders as well as the difficulty in 

obtaining export licenses. 

the development of the global economy and the european 

economy in particular has a decisive influence on the growth of 

the group. the ongoing sovereign debt crisis in europe and 

north america, the uncertainty surrounding the financial policy 

situation in the euro region and the associated cuts in public 

spending but also economic concerns may potentially impact 

on the continued overall economic development and conse-

quently lead to a marked decline in orders for Jenoptik. With its 

product line Jenoptik is benefiting from global megatrends such 

as the increase in mobility and efficiency, which may also be 

affected by legal requirement. this includes, e.g. the reduction 

in fuel consumption of engines or the reduction in co2 emis-

sion of vehicles.

economic performance risks 

success of key development projects. Jenoptik operates in mar-

kets which are subject to rapid technological change. the risk 

of developing products which are not taken up by the market is 

offset by significant opportunities arising from products with a 

technological edge and unique selling points. alternative tech-

nologies from competitors could pose a risk of substitution for 

Jenoptik’s products, which may lead to a change in the market 

position.
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While the instruments described in the chapter risk manage-

ment system shown on page 98 reduce the risk of miscalcula-

tions in respect of new developments, stringent technological 

requirements and the fact that the company operates in con-

stantly changing markets means that they can neither totally 

eliminate nor place a precise figure on them. a group-wide tar-

geted innovation management and continual market analyses 

further limit the risk of bad investment and technology deci-

sions. at the same time innovative products also offer the 

opportunity for attracting new customers, developing new 

markets and consequently securing competitive advantages. 

linking strategy processes with multistage innovation processes 

and r + d roadmapping ensures that the risks of discontinuation 

are minimized. in addition to the earnings and market poten-

tial, the crucial factors for development projects are the tech-

nological feasibility and a risk assessment. in order to avoid 

undesirable developments and to simultaneously fully exploit 

the opportunities offered by new products, developments are 

also carried out in defined product creation processes with pre-

defined milestones and where possible in close coordination 

with the customer (see also chapter “research & development” 

from page 80). 

cyclical nature of key individual markets: as a result of its 

broadly-based positioning, Jenoptik continues to be essentially 

independent of any one individual sector. approx. 70 percent 

of Jenoptik’s total sales in 2012 were attributable to the three 

largest and essentially independent target markets of machine 

construction / automotive (27.5 percent), aviation / traffic 

(23.4 percent) as well as security and defense technology 

(19.9 percent). approx. 13 percent of total group sales in 2012 

were generated by Jenoptik with companies in the cyclical 

semiconductor industry. 

by having a presence in various markets, Jenoptik is better able 

to compensate for sector risks and cyclical fluctuations in the 

individual markets than less diversified companies. in addition, 

products and services are primarily oriented toward industry 

and customers in the public sector where there is normally a 

time lag before economic fluctuations have an effect. 

Jenoptik’s targeted markets are subject to cyclical fluctuations 

and trends to very differing degrees:

• security and defense technology: tends to be less cyclical, 

long-term orders, limits of public debt increase the risk of 

public budget cutbacks as well as delays in projects and con-

sequently sales.

• transport: increasing proportion of larger projects increase 

sales volatility, it is currently not yet possible to assess the 

potential consequences of the debt crisis, increasing traffic 

volumes and demand for traffic safety, particularly in the 

emerging countries.

• automotive / machine construction: increasing consolidation 

of the production locations for engines is reducing growth 

potential, increasing demands for precision, general continu-

ation of the dynamic approach to investment on the part of 

the automotive industry in 2012, growing markets in emerg-

ing countries, with german manufacturers in the premium 

segment well placed, trend toward more efficient engines 

and hybridization of the drive technology is increasing the 

demand for metrology.

• medical technology: continuation of growth and increasingly 

more technology-oriented market, minimal volatility but at 

the same time a slight slowdown in dynamic, ageing popula-

tion. 

• semiconductor industry: highly cyclical sector, outlook for 

2013 toward weakening and shift in demand which had orig-

inally actually been anticipated for 2012, possible recovery 

from the 2nd half 2013.

the risk of all the group’s targeted markets simultaneously col-

lapsing as a result of events outside the control of Jenoptik, for 

example a dramatic collapse in the global economy, wars, natu-

ral disasters or pandemics, is considered low. a downturn in a 

single sector based on normal cyclicity is anticipated for the 

semiconductor market in 2013 but does not pose a threat to 

the group as a whole. however, this may lead to falls in sales 

and earnings at the respective business units which might sig-

nificantly reduce the results of the group as a whole. over 

recent years, however, the Jenoptik group has created a signifi-
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cant amount of flexibility in its added value, for example with 

the help of the Jenoptik excellence program, so that limited 

declines in individual markets can be better cushioned. the key 

measures include making production more flexible through 

lean concepts and working-time accounts, as well as conscious 

and strategically justified make-or-buy decisions. at the same 

time, there are also opportunities to gain market shares, and to 

this end Jenoptik is well positioned overall in numerous mar-

kets.

dependency upon individual customers. Jenoptik has a broad 

customer base and on the group level does not depend upon 

any individual customer for its survival. the top 3 customers 

accounted for approximately 14 percent of group sales in 2012 

and came from different, unrelated sectors. the figure for the 

order intake was also about 13 percent. consequently, there is 

no concentration of default risks on large individual customers 

on the group level. for individual business areas, however, cer-

tain customers are extremely important and under certain cir-

cumstances it might not be possible to fully compensate for 

any loss. Jenoptik reduces this risk by launching new, innovative 

products and attracting new customers. Jenoptik counters the 

potential customer credit risks through consistent receivables 

management and key customer management. because many 

customer orders are founded on long-term supply agreements, 

some of which are based on exclusive developments, the risk of 

a business relationship being discontinued is further reduced. 

risks arising from long-term orders. long-term orders with 

terms of up to five years or more are in place, primarily in the 

defense & civil systems segment and to a lesser extent in the 

service providing business of the traffic solutions division. 

these orders offer the group a stable costing base, secure the 

future capacity utilization and provide reliability for forecasting. 

these are, however, offset by risks, for example arising from 

investments in preliminary services and interim financing, 

changes in market prices, price audits conducted by the federal 

government for certain public sector contracts, changes in 

technologies and, potentially, inflation and currency risks.  

Jenoptik reduces these risks with the help of price escalator 

clauses, on-account payments, currency hedging (see financial 

management risks) and rolling forecasts. although the likeli-

hood of the risks arising tends to be lower, hedging instru-

ments cannot totally rule out the possibility of these risks being 

incurred, particularly for framework agreements that do not 

specify any binding call order on the part of the customer at 

the end of the term but which conversely do necessitate fixed 

costings and require resources to be held aside. the impact of 

the risk can therefore be significant as a result of the high vol-

ume for each individual order. in conjunction with anticipated 

budget cutbacks by public sector customers but also in connec-

tion with political changes, Jenoptik is faced with the risk of 

orders being delayed, subsequently reduced or extending over 

a longer timeframe.

dependency upon individual suppliers. as a result of the prod-

uct mix, the Jenoptik group overall is not dependent upon indi-

vidual suppliers. there is dependency, however, in some individ-

ual areas in procuring special components, such as electronic 

components, crystal optics or quartz glass. the loss of a key 

supplier could lead to increased procurement prices, lost sales, 

loss of reputation, contractual penalties, obligations to pay 

damages or a loss of follow-up orders and, in the extreme case, 

to a shutdown in production. in order to reduce the depen-

dency upon individual suppliers, proven measures include, in 

addition to active interface management for outside develop-

ments, the in-sourcing of strategic key components as well as 

the development of second sources. the risk of the loss of an 

individual supplier is therefore moderate but in view of Jenop-

tik’s diversification, the consequences in the individual case are 

manageable and therefore rather minimal from the group view-

point. as a result of the continual improvement in the sourcing, 

throughput and sales processes, warehousing risks are mini-

mized and the capital tie-up reduced. in addition, thanks to 

purchasing processes being increasingly centralized on a group-

wide basis, in future Jenoptik will also benefit to a greater 

extent from economies of scale.
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procurement risks. the economy is expected to slightly falter in 

2013 and so could have a positive impact on the tight delivery 

times and price increases. as in the previous year, price 

increases are mainly expected in connection with the rise in 

raw material and energy prices.

a further risk may arise in 2013 in respect of procurements in 

the non-euro region as a result of changing exchange rates.

it risks. the operation of computer-aided business processes as 

well as the use of systems for the general exchange of informa-

tion, controlling and financial accounting as well as other it 

applications in the group can give rise to fundamental it risks if 

the ability of these systems to function is not guaranteed. 

guidelines and processes relating to it governance and it com-

pliance were agreed in 2012 for it-aided business processes to 

be handled as securely as possible. building on the basis of 

these guidelines, the central it department continually reviews 

the group’s it technologies and updates the systems in line 

with demand. the switch to a central it infrastructure was con-

tinued in 2012, reflecting state-of-the-art technology in terms 

of security, availability and scalability. the centralization of the 

small local data centers was continued in 2012 and further 

continued in 2013, particularly on the international level, with 

top priority being given to data security. an archiving system 

for e-mails, which meets the legal requirements, erp systems 

and technical drawings, a centralized and synchronized, dupli-

cated computer center, as well as hierarchical data backup 

strategies and data storage are already fully operational. this 

has reduced the risk of data loss to a very low level. an ever 

increasing number of applications and data volumes will be 

gradually transferred to this central infrastructure in order to 

ensure the required security. all critical applications are 

designed and secured on a redundant basis. in 2010, the 

group introduced a redundant corporate network which was 

continually expanded during 2012. over the coming years, the 

critical applications will be gradually consolidated within one 

central computer center. at present, however, there still 

remains a small risk of a central computer center shutdown in 

the event of a natural disaster, an attack or similar event which 

could delay any disaster recovery (i.e. restoration of normal 

operations). the local site-related computer centers will also 

continue being updated and centralized. Jenoptik uses modern 

and secure technologies to systematically and continually pro-

tect itself against loss or damage caused by viruses and hack-

ers. tighter security provisions such as encryption, token 

authentication and network separation ensure that, for exam-

ple, classified military data is secure. a group security manager 

also ensures that confidential data remains protected at all 

times. together with the Jenoptik group data protection offi-

cer, he / she ensures that personal data is processed by it in 

accordance with the regulations of the federal data protection 

act. awareness among the employee of the need for informa-

tion security was raised further through training sessions and 

information events.

in conjunction with the confidential information on future 

strategies, technologies or product developments, there is also 

the risk of this information inadvertently reaching the public 

domain and as a result reducing future sales and seriously jeop-

ardizing our market position. the group therefore has protec-

tion mechanisms in place, for example e-mail and file encryp-

tion, network separation as well as military security standards 

and guidelines for the internal handling of sensitive data. even 

though the risk is likely to be minimal, the possibility of hackers 

gaining access to internal data networks, the theft of important 

expertise or the loss of significant data stocks cannot be ruled 

out entirely. the consequences in this case would be signifi-

cant. on the other side, Jenoptik is not dependent upon it-

aided platforms, so any potential loss / damage would never-

theless remain limited.
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financial management risks  

acquisition risks and opportunities. the group’s further growth 

is intended to be achieved both organically, as well as through 

acquisitions, cooperation arrangements and a continued pro-

cess of internationalization. Jenoptik places stringent group-

wide requirements for return on capital in respect of every 

acquisition and investment decision. Jenoptik counters the risk 

of paying too much for corporate acquisitions or investments 

by conducting a detailed due diligence. in a staged examina-

tion process, the assessment is made by the specialists of the 

group company wishing to acquire a company, as well as the 

strategy & business development, innovation management, 

finance and legal and sometimes internal auditing depart-

ments. the consent of the executive board of Jenoptik ag is 

required for every acquisition, larger acquisitions additionally 

require the consent of the supervisory board. once the acquisi-

tion has been made a process review is conducted. the pur-

pose of an acquisition and consequently the opportunity it 

offers Jenoptik is to fundamentally develop new markets and 

customers.

since 2007, in conjunction with its realignment, the group has 

also divested itself of fringe activities, normally by way of a sale. 

potential as well as identified risks that remain with Jenoptik 

have been assessed and corresponding provisions set aside.

liquidity supply. the financial flexibility and financial solvency of 

the group at all times is secured on the basis of a multi-year 

financial planning and monthly rolling liquidity planning. some 

of the loans are linked to financial indicators under what are 

called financial covenants. there is currently no risk of the 

banks calling in the underlying loans immediately and prior to 

maturity due to these indicators being exceeded. the deben-

ture loans issued in 2011 and associated financial covenants 

only provide for an increase in the interest rate in the event of 

a breach of these covenants. none of Jenoptik’s other loans 

include financial covenants as at december 31, 2012.

from today’s perspective, the group‘s liquidity for the coming 

years has been secured. our cash pooling also improves the 

liquidity supply to the individual companies and limits their 

liquidity risk. there are also plans to gradually include the for-

eign companies in the cash pool. the lines of credit are spread 

between several banks, 17.3 percent of these have been uti-

lized. the quantitative effects of the liquidity risk are explained 

in the group notes on page 174.

Jenoptik counters the risk of claim and loan defaults with com-

prehensive credit checks, a consistent accounts receivable man-

agement and pre-agreed on-account payment agreements for 

larger projects. credit risks then usually only exist in any resid-

ual claim, consequently reducing any impact on the balance 

sheet. the quantitative impact of credit risk is described in the 

group notes from page 173.

the counterparty risk arising from a potential default of banks 

within the framework of the investment of Jenoptik’s cash bal-

ances is limited by maximum limits being specified for deposits 

held with individual banks. 

changes in exchange rates. the euro is Jenoptik’s presentation 

and group currency in which a large proportion of the sales  

are accounted for. in the 2012 fiscal year, approx. 13 percent 

of group sales were handled in us dollars, with only a minimal 

portion in other national currencies. since there has been an 

increase in the exchange rate volatilities, the risk as well as the 

opportunity of changing exchange rates is high. however, as a 

result of the level of sales in us dollars it is only the euro-dollar 

exchange rate which is relevant for Jenoptik at present. the 

consequences are significantly reduced by way of currency man-

a gement which is centrally managed by the treasury depart-

ment.

Jenoptik hedges virtually all orders in foreign currencies using 

exchange rate hedging instruments, primarily currency forward 

transactions and currency options, and in this way reduces the 

consequences of exchange rate fluctuations on results and cash 



108 JENOPTIK 2012

group management report Risk report

flow. derivative financial instruments are used exclusively to 

hedge the underlying operational business as well as financial 

transactions required for operational purposes. in this context, 

all cash flows in foreign currencies are recorded as a risk item. 

the anticipated development of the currency, the risk potential 

as well as a shock scenario are then analyzed for the purpose 

of hedging the foreign currency transactions and defining the 

annual currency hedging strategy in order to calculate the max-

imum permitted loss risk. further information can be found in 

the notes on page 176.

risk of changes in interest rates. a risk of changing interest 

rates exists for both short-term as well as long-term loans with 

short fixed interest rates, if rising interest rates affect the inter-

est rate on these loans and give rise to increased interest costs. 

the volatility and consequently the probability of changes in 

interest rates is currently not high. the impact of the potential 

change in interest rates is dependent upon the term in question 

and the volume of the interest-bearing item. based on a strategic 

interest rate management, interest hedging instruments such as 

interest caps and interest swaps are used to a partial extent in 

order to reduce the risk in changing interest rates and conse-

quently the impact on the income statement and cash flows. 

however, despite some interest rate hedging and fixed interest 

rates, rising interest rates would slightly increase Jenoptik’s inter-

est expenses. the risk of early redemption charges arises with 

long-term loans with fixed interest rates if these are prematurely 

terminated. this situation can arise in particular if mortgaged real 

estate is sold or the low interest earning cash balance is used to 

reduce the gross debt and lower the future interest burden. the 

quantitative effects of the interest risk are set out in the notes 

from page 175. 

company rating. the Jenoptik group is not subject to any offi-

cial external rating.

put options in the Jenoptik real estate portfolio. after making 

the payments to the silent investors of two real estate funds in 

2012, there is just one put option in place against Jenoptik. the 

silent investor of a real estate fund, established in 1998, has a 

put option which cannot be exercised until 2014 at the earliest. 

the potential claims of the silent investor are fully included in 

other liabilities.

risks arising from guarantees. on the basis of empirical values 

and existing counter guarantees, Jenoptik tends to see the risks 

arising from guarantees as minimal both in terms of their prob-

ability of occurrence as well as their impact.

guarantees provided for affiliated non-consolidated investment 

holdings and other third parties rose slightly from 8.7 million 

euros at the end of 2011 to 10.7 million euros at the end of 

2012 due to the a rental guarantee which was given in con-

nection with the sale of a property. the primary debtors have 

an obligation to reimburse Jenoptik for guarantees utilized. 

approx. 34 percent of the risk arising from these guarantees is 

also secured and covered by counter guarantees from other 

well-known companies. the utilization of these guarantees by 

Jenoptik over the five years has on average been less than  

0.2 percent, with the primary debtors also having been called 

on here for the purpose of reimbursement. 

balance sheet risks 

impairment of investments and goodwill. all assets in the bal-

ance sheet are subject to an impairment test if there is an indi-

cation that this might apply. a risk of impairments affecting the 

results exists in the event of a permanent impairment of minor-

ity shareholdings and shares in non-consolidated affiliated com-

panies and loans to these which are included in its financial 

assets, as well as for capitalized goodwill of consolidated com-

panies. further information can be found in the notes on page 

137 (accounting methods) and from page 137 (intangible 

assets). 

impairment of real estate. Jenoptik’s real estate assets are also 

subject to an impairment test. the risk of extraordinary impair-

ments affecting the ebit arises in this case from fluctuations in 

the rental market, as well as from other valuation-related 

effects such as interest level, market trends, development in 

vacancy rates and maintenance levels. some of the real estate 
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assets are leased to external companies, in some cases on a 

long term basis. as a result of the expansion in the operational 

business, there is a tendency toward an increase in the demand 

for premises. further information can be found in the notes 

under point 16 on page 159.

capitalized development costs and inventories. customer 

development services which are rendered in connection with 

new developments and which are expected to be amortized 

through anticipated volume deliveries or on the basis of defi-

nite orders are capitalized. in this context, the potential need 

for compulsory capitalization is examined in detail. 

repayment of grants and funding. this risk arises from possible 

repayments as a result of changes in regulations, discontinued 

projects, failure to reach targets or costs not being recognized 

as allowable expenses. Jenoptik reduces this risk by way of 

group-wide, targeted innovation management and r + d road-

mapping. nevertheless, the possibility of repayments having to 

be made cannot be excluded. if a repayment becomes a proba-

bility, Jenoptik takes this into account through value adjust-

ments or provisions. the consequences are therefore minimal. 

deferred tax assets. Jenoptik ag had tax losses carried forward 

as at december 31, 2012 (see also notes on page 153 income 

taxes). a change in the company’s economic situation or in the 

options available for utilizing losses carried forward as a result 

of changes in legislation, for example regarding a limit on the 

ability to carry forward losses or tax reductions, cannot com-

pletely be excluded and would affect the group’s future earn-

ings situation. a purchase of more than 25 or 50 percent of  

the company’s shares by a buyer or group of buyers might also 

result in a partial or complete loss of the ability to carry forward 

tax losses. thanks to Jenoptik’s good economic situation and 

continued expectations of positive earnings, the risk of a change 

in the economic situation is considered medium to low. the 

probability of changes in the law or a change in the shareholder 

structure cannot be estimated since these situations are outside 

Jenoptik’s control. the effect on earnings and equity can be 

high due to the level of the capitalized amount. in the short term, 

however, this will not affect liquidity.

risks arising from corporate governance and 

litigation 

personnel risks. for Jenoptik, qualified and motivated employ-

ees are a key factor for success in an internationally dynamic 

technology environment. attracting employees and gaining 

their long-term loyalty to the company is therefore an integral 

part of strategic personnel management. the key personnel 

risks therefore include a lack of qualified personnel as well as a 

low motivation on the part of employees. for this reason, vari-

ous target group-related personnel development measures 

have been implemented to make Jenoptik more attractive as a 

long-term employer. these include the uniform group leader-

ship and management trainee program, the technical career 

model or the purchasing academy. 

the effects of demographic change and the resultant potential 

shortage of management trainees give rise to medium to long-

term personnel risks. Jenoptik counters this problem with tar-

geted personnel marketing and group-wide programs designed 

not only to make the company an attractive employer but also 

promote the career areas. 

hr controlling has been implemented within the group to 

avoid personal risks. the regular recording of key indicators as 

well as a structured and detailed human resource planning is 

aimed at identifying personnel risks quickly so that appropriate 

measures can be initiated. the human resource planning on the 

job profile level was discussed and approved within the frame-

work of the strategy meetings for the first time in 2012. the 

fluctuation rate in 2012 was 3.2 percent (prev. year 3.6 per-

cent).

further information on the subject of personnel can be found 

in the management report from page 74.
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takeover risk. a takeover risk exists if the price to be paid for a 

takeover is significantly lower than the group’s market value or 

the acquiring entity is able to acquire a larger block of shares at 

no premium. however, as a result of the 58.4 percent rise in 

the share price and resultant significant increase in market capi-

talization in 2012, this risk has been reduced by comparison 

with the previous year. 74.99 percent of Jenoptik’s shares are  

in free float. at the beginning of July 2011, thüringer industrie-

beteiligungs gmbh & co. kg acquired an 11.00 percent stake  

in Jenoptik ag from ece industrial exhibitions gmbh, which 

remains the largest single shareholder with a 14.01 percent 

holding and which, according to its own statements, has invest - 

ed for the medium to long term. Jenoptik uses active investor 

relations management to target a broad range of investors, 

endeavors to attract long-term investors and ensures that the 

entire capital market is provided with transparent information.

environmental risks. environmental risks arise for Jenoptik to a 

limited extent from the handling and use of materials and sub-

stances which are harmful to health and the environment and 

are used for existing production processes in the manufacture 

of optics and semiconductor. the group pays general attention 

to conformity with the rohs directive and compliance with the 

european chemicals ordinance reach. environmental manage-

ment systems which have been introduced provide additional 

safety at the Jena, triptis, berlin and Wedel sites. in addition, 

regular environmental audits are conducted in accordance with 

iso 14001. an environmental liability and environmental dam-

age insurance concluded for the group also includes environ-

mental risks. the cover ranges from warehousing through pro-

duction to disposal. 

legal disputes and follow-up topics. both risks and opportuni-

ties arise from the sale of m + W group gmbh in 2005 / 2006. 

these result from several issues and projects which remained 

with Jenoptik, guarantees given in connection with the sales (in 

particular taxes), a delayed payment of the purchase price and 

interest claims. agreements on the provision of guarantees and 

secondary liabilities from old guarantees do not exist any more. 

the biggest individual risk are arbitration proceedings against 

m+W group gmbh. however, we see the risk of losing the 

case as low. if m + W group gmbh is successful in asserting its 

counterclaims, there is the possibility of Jenoptik being able to 

file a corresponding claim for payment. 

over and above those dealt with in this report, there are no 

other known risks arising from legal disputes which could have 

a significant impact on the asset and earnings situation of the 

group, or these are very unlikely. 

product liability. in order to avoid product liability cases, the 

group pursues stringent quality assurance measures and corre-

spondingly applies the pertinent national and international reg-

ulations and laws. the maximum damages per product liability 

case can be very significant in the individual case. however, a 

business and product liability insurance is intended to provide 

extensive cover against any damage to property or personal 

injury which arises and extends to virtually all group companies 

as part of a concept of worldwide insurance cover. the Jenoptik 

group’s foreign subsidiaries have also concluded local insur-

ance which takes account of special requirements in individual 

countries.
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6.3 general statement by the executive   
 board on the risk situation

the risk management system, in conjunction with the plan-

ning, control and monitoring systems which are used, enables 

the executive board to properly assess and control the overall 

group risk. the creation of the role of chief risk & compliance 

officer takes account of the increased international require-

ments and their consequences for the strategic and operational 

business. the executive board considers the opportunity and 

risk profile of the Jenoptik group and the resultant measures as 

appropriate for the company and the current framework condi-

tions. as at december 31, 2012, resp. up to the editorial clos-

ing date of this report, there were no identifiable risks that 

could jeopardize the continued existence of the company or, in 

combination with other risks, could lead to a permanent, nega-

tive impact on Jenoptik’s asset, financial and earnings situation.

as a result of our broadly-based market presence, we see our-

selves as generally being exposed to a lower risk arising from 

economic developments compared with highly focused compa-

nies which operate in one or just a few markets.

Jenoptik generally operates within a risk profile which is typical 

for our company and is inextricably linked with entrepreneurial 

activities. the executive board sees the group as being well 

placed in strategic and financial terms to exploit opportunities 

arising for the group’s continued development. the group 

does not currently anticipate any negative deviations in the 

development set out in the forecast report.
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7.1 future development of the  
 Jenoptik group

strategic orientation of the group

Jenoptik is an integrated optoelectronics group. the aspiration 

statement continues to form its strategic starting basis. our 

strategic group orientation remains valid and will be main-

tained over the medium term.

“as an attractive, global high-tech partner who creates added 

value for our customers thanks to rapid and consistent action, 

our Jenoptik enjoys sustained financial success.”

the focus of the strategic further development will continue to 

be placed on organic, profitable growth, focusing on rapidly 

expanding areas of business and the continuing process of inter-

nationalization. the group’s activities in this context are primarily 

concentrated on asia and north america. the aim for the two 

regions over the medium term is to account for a 40 percent 

share of sales (2012: 30.4 percent). 

internal programs such as the Jenoptik one erp (Joe), go-lean 

or the group-wide Jenoptik excellence program (Jep) have been 

implemented in order to further optimize the processes. in 

addition, further cost and quality benefits are expected to be 

achieved through the exploitation of economies of scale and 

shared services. the optimization of the locations announced  

at the end of 2012 should also help to further strengthen the 

group´s earnings capacity and its ability to exploit synergy 

potential. for example, the defense & civil systems segment is 

currently reducing the number of locations in germany from 

four to three, while the lasers & optical systems segment will in 

future only be manufacturing at two instead of the previous 

three locations in the us.

the strategic portfolio management will also be continued in 

the future. acquisitions will only be made if these complement 

the technology portfolio or existing activities on the market or 

7 forecast report 

customer side. any acquisition must satisfy the criteria of 

increasing the value of the company and the ability of the 

acquisition to be integrated. in future, Jenoptik will also con-

tinue to closely scrutinize its own businesses.

We see the strategic orientation as a global, integrated opto-

electronics group as offering advantages over our competitors, 

most of whom only operate in one market or have a local or 

regional presence.

optoelectronics group. optoelectronics is a cross-section tech-

nology that targets a whole range of markets. optoelectronic 

technologies serve various future megatrends, such as the 

increasing digitalization of the world, the growing demand for 

healthcare, mobility, security and efficiency as well as the  

global expansion of infrastructure. as a global group, Jenoptik 

aims to exploit the resultant opportunities in the following ways:

• innovations help to shape the respective markets;

• Jenoptik covers the entire value added chain and is able to 

effectively target heterogeneous markets;

• the expertise is available to all areas of the group.

by targeting various markets, Jenoptik is not so heavily depen-

dent upon the trends and cycles in individual markets and is 

able to compensate for these better. that means greater stabil-

ity, particularly in crisis situations. 

integrated group. the three segments of Jenoptik are already 

interlinked in diverse ways today. the lasers & optical systems 

segment in particular provides technologies and expertise for 

the other two segments. the Jenoptik segments also use joint 

infrastructures and cross-section functions where possible, for 

example for procurement or in the expansion of the interna-

tional network. this gives rise to cost benefits. processes which 

are harmonized throughout the group lead to greater effi-

ciency. the joint umbrella brand strengthens the perception 

and acceptance of the group. major customers can be 

addressed on equal terms.
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global group. the segments’ joint locations enable Jenoptik to 

quickly achieve critical mass worldwide in regions which are 

important to the company. the joint utilization of the infra-

structure simplifies entry into the market and saves costs. cost 

benefits are realized and currency risks minimized through 

global sourcing and production.

strategic orientation of the  

operating business

focusing on optoelectronics makes Jenoptik a so-called 

“enabler” for numerous growth sectors. our range of services 

makes an intrinsic contribution to greater efficiency and there-

fore to protecting resources. We are establishing ourselves as a 

strategic partner for international customers and together with 

them helping to shape forward-looking megatrends.

selected products used by Jenoptik to address megatrends:

• digital world: intelligent environment – an ever increasing 

number of electronic devices are shaping our lives, the manu-

facture of which requires increasingly more efficient litho-

graphic systems that contain a large number of high-quality 

optical components.

• healthcare / life sciences: Jenoptik lasers provide for gentle 

treatment, e.g. in the area of ophthalmology.

• efficiency and mobility: diode lasers from Jenoptik achieve an 

efficiency level of up to 70 percent, making them one of the 

most efficient artificial light sources in the world. they help 

Jenoptik’s customers to save resources and consequently be 

more sustainable in their manufacturing. fiber lasers are more 

energy and cost efficient by a factor of three compared with 

other beam sources such as the co2 laser. for safeguarding 

the environment (co2 emissions) and in order to reduce the 

global consumption of resources (fuel consumption), Jenoptik 

supplies metrology which makes a contribution to the manu-

facture of more efficient engines.

• infrastructure (traffic): With more than 20,000 devices for 

speed and traffic light violation monitoring, Jenoptik is help-

ing to reduce the numbers of accidents in more than 80 

countries throughout the world. as such, it is directly contrib-

uting toward preventing the high social consequential costs 

of accidents.

• security: observation systems provide for security in industrial 

processes as well as at state borders and help to save human 

lives.

strategic orientation of the segments

lasers & optical systems segment. there is a close interrelation-

ship between laser and optical technologies. Jenoptik is aiming 

to be a leader among the global providers of lasers & material 

processing systems. Jenoptik is one of the few companies in 

the market to offer the complete lasers & material processing 

value added chain, based on strong expertise in diode lasers. 

With its products, Jenoptik offers customers energy efficiency 

products and solutions. the group is targeting the rapidly 

expanding markets of the automotive / machine construction, 

security and defense technology, semiconductor and medical 

technology industries. on the technological side, Jenoptik’s 

activities are concentrated on new applications for diode lasers, 

the fiber laser product range and laser processing systems for 

plastics and metal machining. the focus over the medium term 

is on the process of internationalization, particularly in asia and 

america.

in the optical systems business, Jenoptik has established a posi-

tion for itself as a global leader and independent provider of 

optical oem systems. the group is able to combine compre-

hensive areas of expertise in optics, micro-optics and optoelec-

tronics, offering an individual range of services, primarily for 

key customers. With its optical systems, Jenoptik is supporting 

megatrends such as the increasing global digitalization, health-

care and security. the semiconductor equipment and flat-panel 

industries as well as applications for health care / life sciences 

and for defense and security technology remain key to the 

development of business. the continuing process of interna-

tionalization, focus on the systems business and key customers 

as well as the exploitation of economies of scale and synergies 

on the customer and technology sides form the basis for the 

continued profitable growth.
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metrology segment. the use of the segment’s metrology is 

geared toward applications and end users. industrial metrology 

sees itself as a leading provider of geometric production 

metrology and with its products and solutions is making a sus-

tainable contribution toward environmental protection and 

reducing global consumption of resources. in this context, cus-

tomers benefit from the full portfolio of measurement technol-

ogies (tactile, optical, pneumatic), with the focus on the auto-

motive market where Jenoptik provides support for trends 

aimed at reducing fuel consumption and co2 emissions, as well 

as for the purpose of hybridization with the development of 

measurement systems for engines and gears. in this context, 

the aim is to maintain and expand its position as a global mar-

ket leader in the area of optical 2d measurement technologies 

for engine and gear parts. growth is expected to come primar-

ily from asia and north america.

in the area of traffic solutions, the trend is continuing toward 

major projects combining equipment business and services, 

known as service providing. Jenoptik counters the associated 

longer lead times and more significant fluctuations in capacity 

utilization through flexible production facilities and standardiza-

tion of the product portfolio. With the global trend toward 

increasing mobility, particularly in the emerging countries, Jen-

optik is tapping into new regions. the expansion of its presence 

in the international markets, cooperation arrangements as well 

as new technologies (e.g. laser scanners), measurement con-

cepts and service offerings (traffic service providing) are aimed 

at securing the future growth which will be primarily achieved 

in the bric countries.

defense & civil systems segment. long-term orders that extend 

beyond the pure supply of products and which in the lead-in 

period include development and subsequently maintenance, 

are a characteristic feature of the segment’s business. it is posi-

tioning itself as a partner for systems companies and customers 

who have a need for individual solutions that meet the strin-

gent requirements of the defense and aviation market. With its 

energy and security systems, the segment is servicing the trend 

for increased security and the growing demand for more energy 

in modern vehicles. falling defense budgets of the industrialized 

nations, primarily within the european union, pose a long-term 

challenge. this is the reason why the segment is seeking to 

expand its international sales and service structures primarily in 

north america, within the bounds of its possibilities, concentrat-

ing on the rapidly expanding energy and sensor systems business 

areas as well as on increasing the civil systems’ share. concen-

trating the manufacture of energy systems at two german loca-

tions should help to boost the segment’s earnings capacity and 

make better use of synergy potential.

future frameWork conditions

future development of the economy as a whole. there has 

been no significant improvement in the prospects for the global 

economy even though the acute risks have reduced according 

to the international monetary fund (imf). the imf lowered its 

forecast for global economic growth in 2013 marginally from 

3.6 to 3.5 percent compared with 2012. the main risks were 

said to lie in potential setbacks in combating the euro crisis as 

well as in the current arguments on debt levels and the fiscal 

cliff in the us. economic output could increase by 4.1 percent 

in 2014. this recovery will be sustained by the growth in the 

emerging countries and increasing stabilization on the financial 

markets.

the us economy could grow by 2 percent in 2013, according 

to the imf, and by 3 percent next year. however, the decisions 

which are still to be made on the fiscal cliff and raising the debt 

level are holding back expectations. the us and the eu plan to 

reduce customs duties, harmonize technical standards and 

open up their markets more for each other in order to jointly 

create the world’s largest free trade zone by 2015. the free 

trade and investment treaty could provide a boost to us and 

european exports.
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according to the imf, the euro zone will remain in recession in 

2013. economic output will fall by 0.2 percent compared with 

2012. the imf had previously forecast a small rise of 0.2 per-

cent for 2013 but now does not expect a return to growth 

until 2014. the euro crisis remaines a major risk to the global 

economy. the eu commission is warning of an economic and 

social drift between the northern and mediterranean countries.

the weak performance of the german economy as at the end 

of 2012 will not continue over the long-term, according to the 

german federal government. early indicators such as the ifo 

business climate index suggested that the period of weakness 

will come to an end in the foreseeable future. nevertheless,  

the german government reduced its forecast for economic 

growth for 2013 from 1.0 to 0.4 percent. the imf also now 

only expects growth of 0.6 percent compared with 2012 (previ-

ously: 0.9 percent) as well as a rise of 1.4 percent in 2014. 

exports could grow by up to 5 percent according to calcula-

tions by the bga, the federation of german Wholesale, foreign 

trade and services.

following the relatively weak previous year, china’s economy is 

expected to gain momentum in 2013: the imf expects to see 

an 8.2 percent rise in gdp in 2013 and 8.5 percent in 2014; 

the chinese government is keeping to its forecast of moderate 

growth of 7.5 percent for 2013. according to the imf, india’s 

economy could expand by 5.9 percent in 2013, with growth in 

gdp for 2014 being 6.4 percent. economists believe there is a 

need for further liberalization of the markets and for them to 

be opened up to foreign companies in order to generate 

growth; the ministry of finance is already planning reforms. 

economic integration in south-east asia is increasing: the asso-

ciation of south-east asian nations (asean) is expected to lead 

to the creation of a single market covering 600 million people 

from 2015.

future development of the individual Jenoptik sectors.

as a key technology, photonics has a significant influence on 

the development of other sectors and has become an impor-

tant driver of economic growth, particularly for the electronics, 

medical technology, automotive and defense sectors. accord-

ing to a study by the sector platform “photonics21”, 20 to 30 

percent of the european economy and 10 percent of the euro-

pean labor force is dependent upon the photonics sector. how-

ever, the positive development of this sector in europe does 

entail risks which the eu sector study primarily sees as being 

the shortage of skilled workers and regulatory restrictions in the 

area of environmental legislation. Jenoptik uses optical technol-

ogies in all three segments, e. g. for optoelectronic systems, 

laser technology and imaging. the Jenoptik executive board 

chairman dr. michael mertin was elected president of the euro-

pean photonics association “photonics21”.

the analysts of industrial laser solutions (ils) have been cau-

tious in their forecasts for the laser market. following a weak 

1st half-year 2013, the sector would recover in the 2nd half-

year, particularly during the 4th quarter. a small 3 percent rise 

in sales could therefore be achieved in the full year 2013. the 

moderate growth would be in line with the development in 

other markets for capital goods. according to the ils, there is 

the potential for double figure growth rates from 2014. fiber 

lasers will continue their successful course and produce a 7 per-

cent increase in sales in 2013. china is expected to be the larg-

est market for laser cutting systems used in metal processing 

and east asia for micro materials processing and systems for 

semiconductor processing. in the lasers & material processing 

area, Jenoptik covers the entire added-value chain from laser 

source to laser processing system.

for 2013, the semiconductor industry association (sia) expects 

the semiconductor industry to post a small increase of 4.5 per-

cent in global sales. it analyst gartner reduced its previous 

forecast for 2013 from 330 to 311 billion us dollars, stating as 

the reasons the continuing sovereign debt crises in the us and 

europe, weak pc sales and high warehouse inventory levels 

held by the chip manufacturers. according to gartner, impetus 

for growth will come from areas such as smart phones/tablets, 

medical technology and automotive electronics. according  

to the forecasts, semiconductor sales in 2014 could grow by 

approx. 5 percent to 319 billion us dollars.
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in the global semiconductor equipment industry – a key cus-

tomer for the optical systems business – the sector association 

semiconductor equipment and materials international (semi) 

forecasts a slight fall in sales in 2013 to 37.4 billion us dollars 

before seeing a possible return to double figure growth rates 

from 2014. following a seasonally weak 1st quarter 2013, sec-

tor experts anticipate a recovery in the 2nd half-year prompted 

by new orders from the semiconductor sector for updating 

new production technologies. the sector, including the Jenoptik 

partner asml, is in part pinning its hopes on the manufacture 

of larger wafers as well as on extreme ultraviolet lithography 

(euv) which will enable smaller, more powerful chips to be pro-

duced for smart phones and tablets. semi puts the estimated 

spending on r + d over the next few years at up to 40 billion us 

dollars to get the 450 millimeter wafer ready for use.

the german engineering federation (vdma) is keeping to its 

forecast of a 2 percent rise in production for 2013 compared 

with the previous year. the federation is assuming that growth 

in the us will continue and that the previous pent-up demand 

in key markets such as china will be cleared. that could give a 

boost to the catch-up process in emerging countries. according 

to the sector association vdW, german machine tool manufac-

turers expect a moderate rise in production of 1 percent for 

2013 following two years of strong growth; this could see a 

return to the record level of 2008.

the sector association of the automotive industry (vda) antici-

pates a 3 percent decline in european sales for 2013. outside 

Western europe the positive trend is expected to continue, 

driven by the dynamic in china, the us and south america. 

according to the vda, german manufacturers, who are expected 

to see a small rise in exports over the previous year to approx. 

4.1 million units in 2013, will benefit from the growth potential 

in these markets. the situation with automotive suppliers is 

similar to that of the manufacturers: those who have a global 

position or whose customers include automobile manufactur- 

ers with significant export levels will cope better with crises, 

according to the german center for automotive research (car 

institute). sector experts expect continuing downward pressure 

on prices from the manufacturers and further consolidation in 

the supplier sector. Jenoptik is already globally positioned in its 

metrology segment with customers in the automotive and 

automotive supplier industry and is benefiting in particular from 

the capital expenditure on more efficient engines and drive sys-

tems.

traffic safety will remain one of the focal areas for the united 

nations (un) over the coming years. the “decade of traffic 

safety” initiative which was started up in 2011 is aimed at 

achieving significant reductions in the numbers of road traffic 

accidents and fatalities worldwide by 2020. according to the 

un, this could produce cost savings of up to around 5 billion 

us dollars. as a result of new growth markets in the near and 

middle east, eastern europe and asia, in conjunction with the 

increasing trend toward large projects, Jenoptik intends to 

expand its market presence as an international leader in this 

field. reflecting the group’s experience in this area, traffic ser-

vice providing, a business model entailing a comprehensive 

range of services relating to traffic monitoring, will enjoy 

increasing demand in established markets.

iata, the sector association of the international aviation indus-

try, forecasts profits of 8.4 billion us dollars for the sector. 

however, that would only be approx. 1.3 percent of the fore-

cast sales for the sector of 650 billion us dollars. orders for the 

a380 aircraft, for which Jenoptik supplies equipment, are in the 

mid three-digit figure range (pieces). in their long-term fore-

casts, the aircraft manufacturers put the anticipated demand 

for new aircraft over the next twenty years at 28,200 aircraft 

with a volume of 4 billion us dollars (airbus), respectively at 

34,000 aircraft with a total value of 4.5 billion us dollars (boeing). 
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budget cutbacks and reductions in unit volumes are character-

izing the security and defense technology area. the sector is 

endeavoring to compensate for falling sales in established mar-

kets through exports to countries outside nato. in this context, 

according to sector experts, there will be continuing increasing 

pressure on exports and predatory competition. in germany, 

the 2013 defense budget will be increased by 1.4 billion euros 

to approx. 33.3 billion euros as a result of rising personnel 

costs. spending is then expected to fall: in 2014 to 33.0 billion 

euros, in 2015 and 2016 to approx. 32.5 billion euros. the us 

defense budget is expected to be reduced over the next ten 

years by around 8 percent and consequently by 487 billion us 

dollars in net terms. however, expenditure on armament in the 

regions asia, africa and middle east are rising further according 

to statement of the stockholm international peace research 

institute (sipri).

medium and long-term development

aims of the Jenoptik group. Jenoptik reaffirms its medium and 

long-term goals. the group expects to continue generating 

profitable growth also over the years ahead and achieve an 

average ebit margin of between approx. 9 and 10 percent as 

well as growth in sales of around 10 percent over the market 

cycles. sales are expected to increase to approx. 800 million 

euros over the medium term until 2017. in order to achieve 

this, Jenoptik anticipates a proportionally stronger rise in 

growth abroad. the aim is for north america and asia to 

achieve 40 percent of total sales by then.

Jenoptik’s further development. five value levers defined in 

2007 remain crucial to the further development of Jenoptik. 

the focus is primarily on product quality, the international 

nature of the business, a customer-driven approach and sus-

tainability. the group’s strategic objective is to generate long-

term, profitable growth. as an innovative high technology 

company, it is imperative for Jenoptik to identify future needs 

and trends at an early stage. sustainable, profitable growth is 

to be achieved internally through efficiency measures and 

increasingly through increased sales with the help of econo-

mies of scale. overheads resp. fixed costs are expected to 

develop at a markedly lower rate in proportion to sales. all the 

core measures are geared toward achieving this objective.

the value levers and specific associated measures:

organic growth. the Jenoptik group intends to continue its 

organic growth on a profitable basis. in this context, the focus 

is on rapidly expanding areas of business enabling economies 

of scale to be realized, with market development, market pene-

tration and product innovation being the central themes. 

investments will secure the organic growth. the strategic port-

folio management will be continued and optimized on the level 

of the individual market and competitor segments. 

market and customer orientation. Jenoptik will continue to 

invest in the development of new and the expansion of existing 

sales and service structures, primarily abroad. internal processes 

will be geared toward customer and market needs. from 2013 

the focus will be on the expansion of customer relationship 

management. Where possible, customers will actually be inte-

grated into development processes during the early stages. the 

proportion of the systems business is to be increased. since 

2012, a clear and unmistakable uniform brand profile has been 

communicated throughout the group.

internationalization. Jenoptik sees major growth potential in 

north america and asia and for this reason is concentrating the 

expansion of its internationalization on these markets. new 

locations in brazil, singapore and malaysia were added in the 

2012 fiscal year. preference is given to the group’s own distri-

bution channels over dealership structures. however, Jenoptik 

also works together with local partners within the framework 

of majority shareholdings. overarching, cross-section functions 

and the group’s own value creation will be expanded.

employees & management. attracting new employees and win-

ning their loyalty to the company remain the central themes of 

the strategic hr work. to enable the group to attract the nec-

essary personnel in an environment which is becoming increas-

ingly difficult from the demographic aspect, there is a need for 
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structured hr planning. Jenoptik intends to utilize hr market-

ing activities to continue positioning itself as an attractive 

employer. corresponding personnel development measures 

and improved framework conditions are aimed at helping to 

strengthen the employees’ loyalty to the company. in addition, 

employees and management are to be encouraged and pro-

moted through integrated performance management. 

operational excellence. all processes in the group are subject 

to continuous scrutiny in order to improve them and save costs. 

the initiatives for creating harmonized and excellent processes - 

both in the operating business as well as with systems and the 

commercial processes – will be consistently continued. these 

mainly include the Jep, Joe and go-lean programs that have 

already been set out on page 72. 

7.2 development of the business situation 
 in 2013 and 2014 

planning assumptions

group. the forecast for the future business figures is drawn up 

on the basis of the group planning in autumn 2012. the plan-

ning was carried out using the so-called “counter flow method” 

(bottom up – top down). the starting point for this planning is 

formed by the strategic plans of the segments and operating 

business units which are geared towards market requirements, 

coordinated together and integrated.

the projects designed to create process harmonization and 

excellence, amongst others the so-called Joe program, will be 

continued as planned throughout the group in 2013. the costs 

for these projects as well as for the site optimization announced 

at the end of 2012 in the middle single-digit million euro range 

were included in the planning as one-time costs. the Jenoptik 

excellence program will be continued in 2013 in its fifth con-

secutive year and enhanced through the lean management 

principles being consistently embedded within all operating 

areas. this is expected to produce savings in the low double-

digit million euro range per year and will be attributable to the 

continual optimization both of the expertise in procurement as 

well as of the production processes which are increasingly hav-

ing an ongoing effect in many areas and have therefore been 

included in the current planning. 

segments. in the lasers & optical systems segment Jenoptik 

expects to see a continuation of the economic dip in the semi-

conductor equipment market, particularly during the first half-

year of 2013. this will impact on the segment’s sales and ebit 

but is expected to be partially offset by increased sales in other 

areas and with other sectors, such as e.g. the health care / life 

sciences and flat panel industries. in 2013 the segment will 

continue to focus on the targeting of key customers. by offer-

ing integrated system solutions the optical systems area is 

increasing the shares of added value. the startup of the pro-

duction of semiconductor lasers at the berlin site is anticipated 
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for the beginning of 2013. Jenoptik is continuing to invest in 

the expansion of its semiconductor equipment business, pri-

marily by continuing the high level of r + d activities as well as 

through intensive contact with customers aimed at the joint 

preparations for future production methods.

the metrology segment has started in 2013 with a high order 

backlog. We anticipate a continuation of the good level of 

demand in the automotive supplier area and currently see no 

signs of a fall in demand. the market growth in the automotive 

industry in the bric countries should provide an additional 

impetus. following the establishment of Jenoptik do brazil in 

spring 2012 the segment will be intensifying its development of 

the south american market, particularly in brazil. major orders 

are expected to contribute to sales and results in the traffic 

solutions business. the traffic service providing will also be fur-

ther expanded. this is a business which is in increasing demand 

in established markets for the equipment business, including in 

germany.

the defense & civil systems segment expects the development 

of business to remain stable, with the focus in 2013 once again 

on the process of internationalization. the development of the 

segment’s own structures is expected to produce an expansion 

of its business abroad, particularly in north america. the cut-

backs in defense budgets, mainly in the usa and the european 

states, are not expected to have any major impact over the 

short and medium term. in parallel with this the segment has 

already been seeking to expand its civil offerings over recent 

years.

forecast for the sales and earnings situation 

in 2013 and 2014

important note. the actual results may differ significantly from 

the following expectations of the anticipated development. 

this could arise in particular if one of the uncertainties men-

tioned in this report were to materialize or if the assumptions 

upon which the statements are based prove to be inaccurate.

forecast group sales. the Jenoptik group anticipates slight 

organic growth in sales of up to 5 percent for 2013 compared 

with 2012. all three of the group’s segments should contribute 

towards the increase in sales in the current year. there are no 

current plans for larger acquisitions. the level of sales growth 

for 2014 is then expected to return to the average rates of 

increase anticipated over the coming years of approx. 10 per-

cent. regional growth is primarily expected to come from 

america and asia/pacific.

forecast for the group income statement items. the gross mar-

gin is expected to remain almost constant in 2013 and 2014;  

it may even show a slight increase if the market performs well, 

particularly the semiconductor industry from the 2nd half-year 

2013.

regarding functional costs, for 2013 and 2014 the Jenoptik 

group expects research and development as well as selling 

costs to increase at a slightly higher rate in proportion to the 

growth in sales. the rise in selling costs will primarily be attrib-

utable to the continued development and expansion of the 

group’s own structures in north america and asia. by contrast, 

general administrative expenses as a proportion of future sales 

should remain almost constant in both years.  

forecast group earnings. against the background of a difficult 

economic environment Jenoptik currently expects the operating 

business to generate an ebit of between 50 and 55 million 

euros in the fiscal year 2013, depending upon the progress of 

the semiconductor cycle particularly in the 2nd half-year 2013. 

the costs for the projects designed to create harmonized and 

excellent processes as well to optimize the locations, are 

expected to come in around the middle single digit million euro 

range and to impact on ebit. the ebit should show another 

increase in 2014. following the marked improvement in the 

financial result in 2012 Jenoptik expects the financial result over 

the next two years to essentially remain stable. the develop-

ment of the ebit will therefore also be directly reflected in the 

development of earnings before tax.
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the lasers & optical systems segment anticipates slight growth 

in sales within the middle single digit percentage range in 

2013. in this context the reduction in sales in the semiconduc-

tors equipment market is expected to be partially offset by 

growth in other areas and other sectors, such as e.g. the life 

sciences and flat panel industries. depending upon the devel-

opment of the semiconductor industry particularly in the 2nd 

half-year 2013, earnings should show a slight increase as a 

result of the change in the sales mix. the contributions to sales 

and earnings by this segment are expected to show another 

marked increase in 2014. in addition to a subsequent contin-

ued stronger rise in demand from the semiconductor supplier 

industry we also anticipate other sectors to make a continuing 

and increasing contribution to sales and earnings.

following the leap in sales and earnings in the fiscal year 2012, 

the metrology segment expects sales and ebit to be stable or 

show a slight increase in 2013. this rise in sales is attributable 

to a high order backlog at the end of 2012 as well as to our 

expectations of a positive development by the sector. the tim-

ing of project settlements in the traffic solutions business plays 

an important role in this segment. in the 2014 fiscal year we 

also anticipate a stable development of or slight increase in the 

segment’s sales and ebit.

for the defense & civil systems segment we expect a slight rise 

in sales in the middle single digit percentage range mainly as a 

result of the expansion of business in the sensor systems busi-

ness area for 2013 and 2014. this rise should also be reflected 

in the segment ebit which is expected to show a more signifi-

cant increase compared with sales in 2013. the segment 

expects to benefit from the continual expansion of the interna-

tional business and from the cost reduction initiatives which 

have already been introduced. civil products should account 

for a larger share of business in 2013.

forecast of the group order situation. the forecast of the order 

intake is affected by the increasing importance of major orders, 

particularly in the defense & civil systems and traffic solutions 

areas. Jenoptik assumes overall that the order intake in 2013 

will be slightly up on the level for 2012. growth is expected in 

particular from the optical systems and defense & civil systems 

areas. about 56 percent of the order backlog as at the end of 

december 2012 will impact on sales in 2013.

employee development & group hr work. Jenoptik plans to 

essentially increase the size of the workforce at a lower rate in 

proportion to the expansion of business, with the aim to con-

tinually increase sales per employee over the medium term. the 

number of employees should increase slightly in 2013 and 

2014. the strategic targets will provide the focal areas for the 

hr work in 2013 and 2014 (from page 112): 

in 2013 one of the central themes of the education and further 

training will be the development of a lean campus in support 

of the group-wide go-lean program. in this context the 

emphasis will be placed on teaching comprehensive lean 

method expertise and the associated tools. 

the academy concept will be further expanded in 2013. the 

areas of emphasis here will be on the group-wide rollout of the 

purchasing academy established in 2012, as well as the forma-

tion of the it academy which is expected to ensure the long-

term development and qualification for the employees from the 

it area.

another area of focus will be the implementation of the inter-

national hr processes from the hr handbook projects and the 

sap project which are aimed at ensuring a standardized process 

landscape at all locations. in addition, the new employer brand-

ing campaign will be implemented in europe, asia and the usa 

up to the end of 2013 and underpinned by the corresponding 

applicant management platforms and Jenoptik career pages. 

forecast of the group asset and  

financial situation

the balance sheet total is expected to increase slightly in 2013 

and 2014. this is due to planned capital expenditure invest-

ment above the level of depreciation, an increase in working 

capital as part of the expansion of business, as well as an 

increase in shareholders’ equity.
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there is expected to be a moderate increase in shareholders’ 

equity in line with the anticipated income in the periods and 

despite any possible dividends to be paid in 2013 and 2014. as 

a result, the shareholders’ equity quota is likely to show a fur-

ther slight increase over the next two years, with small rises in 

the balance sheet total.

forecast for the financing. the operational financing of the  

Jenoptik group has been secured through the debenture loans 

with terms of 5 resp. 7 years from october 2011 and a multi-

year mortgage loan for real estate. 

therefore, only a few current credits have maturity dates in the 

years 2013 and 2014. as at december 31, 2012 short-term 

overdraft facilities had not been utilized.

as at the end of december 2012 Jenoptik had unused credit 

facilities available in the sum of 60.6 million euros, cash in hand 

and bank credit balances totaled 45.3 million euros.

summary of targets for 2013 and 2014 49

in million euros actual 2012 outlook 2013 trend 2014 comp. 2013

sales 585.0 Up to 5 percent rise increase of approx. 10 percent

  of which  Lasers & optical systems
212.3

slight rise in the middle 
single digit percentage range marked rise

    metrology
182.7

stable to slightly positive 
development

stable development to slight 
rise, dependent upon projects

    defense & civil systems
186.4

slight rise in the middle 
single digit percentage range

slight rise in middle single 
digit percentage range

order intake 587.2 slightly higher n.a.

Group eBit

54.8

50 to 55 million euros op-
erationally, costs for projects 

and location optimization 
having negative effect rise

  of which  Lasers & optical systems 27.1 slight rise rise

    metrology
25.7 consolidation at high level

stable development to slight 
rise, dependent upon projects

    defense & civil systems
7.8 stronger rise than sales increasing slightly

investment result – 2.0 stable n.a.

interest result – 6.7 stable to slight improvement n.a.

free cash flow

43.7

Lower due to increased  
capital expenditure, but no 
payment to silent investors n.a.

Net debt 74.5 Gradual reduction Gradual reduction

shareholders’ equity & shareholders’  
equity ratio

330.3 million /
49.3 % moderate rise / slight increase moderate rise / slight increase

Balance sheet total 669.6 slight increase slight increase

employees 3,272 slight rise slight rise

r + d costs
36.0

slight rise in proportion to 
sales

slight rise in proportion to 
sales

capital expenditure1) 31.2 35 to 40 million euros slight reduction

1) excl. investments in financial assets
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forecast for cash flows. the cash flow from operating activities 

(before interest and taxes) in 2013 is likely to be down slightly 

on the figure for the previous year. Jenoptik expects to gener-

ate a clearly positive free cash flow (before interest and taxes). 

due to the planned higher investments it should be lower than 

in 2012, however, no payments to silent real estate investors 

have to be made.

forecast for capital expenditure. With the level of capital expen-

diture in 2012 down on the originally planned total of 35 million 

euros, Jenoptik now anticipates a moderate rise to between  

35 and 40 million euros for the current fiscal year. capital expen-

diture on tangible assets will focus on the growth areas of the 

segments. component manufacture in the lasers & optical sys-

tems division will be expanded and the clean room capacities 

extended. capital expenditure on the group level will focus on 

the project designed to harmonize processes and systems (Joe). 

total capital expenditure in 2014 is expected to show a slight 

reduction.

future dividend policy. in 2012 Jenoptik began paying a share-

holder dividend of 0.15 euros per share for the first time in ten 

years. the management will endeavor in future to not only 

finance the continued growth but fundamentally also maintain 

a continuity in its dividend policy. in the view of the manage-

ment a stable provision of shareholders’ equity for sustainable 

organic growth as well as the exploitation of opportunities for 

acquisitions are also of crucial importance, also in the interests 

of the shareholders.

net debt continues to be dependent upon the financial indica-

tors mentioned above. for the operating business Jenoptik 

expects to meet all interest and tax payments out of the free 

cash flow despite increasing capital expenditure and the possi-

bility of a small rise in working capital as a result of growth. 

Jenoptik plans a further step-by-step reduction in net debt for 

2013 and 2014.

7.3 general statement by the executive  
 board on the future development 

Jenoptik will continue to pursue the strategic agenda intro-

duced in 2007 on a consistent and sustainable basis. the exec-

utive board’s main focus of attention is now on profitable 

organic growth being achieved by all segments. from the 

regional aspect we see the greatest potential for growth in 

america and asia where the share of sales is expected to 

increase to a total of 40 percent by 2016. the growth in sales, 

economies of scale, cost discipline and higher margins from the 

increasing systems business are expected to boost profits. in 

2013 we anticipate a slight increase in sales of up to 5 percent 

compared with the fiscal year just past. 41 percent of our fore-

cast sales for 2013 are included in the order backlog as at the 

end of december 2012. We then expect to see further growth 

in sales to approx. 800 million euros by 2017. in a more diffi-

cult economic climate and depending upon the course of the 

semiconductor cycle, particularly in the 2nd half of 2013, the 

executive board expects the ebit generated in the operating 

business in fiscal year 2013 to come in at between 50 and 55 

million euros. the costs for the projects for harmonized and 

excellent processes and site optimizations are forecast to be in 

the middle single-digit million euro range and to have impact 

on ebit. as at the closing editorial date for this report we do 

not see any major new risks to the development of our key sec-

tors. economic development remains the greatest risk factor. 

the key factor here will be the course of the euro and debt cri-

sis. however, in the opinion of the executive board, Jenoptik 

will be able to successfully cushion even significant fluctuations 

in economic activity. 

Jena, march 11, 2013

michael mertin

chairman  

of the executive board

rüdiger andreas günther 

member  

of the executive board
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in KEUR Note No. 1.1. – 31.12.2012 1.1. – 31.12.2011 1)

Sales 1 585,025 543,298

Cost of sales 2 381,638 359,287

Gross profit 203,387 184,011

Research and development expenses 3 36,035 31,982

Selling expenses 4 65,077 61,908

General administrative expenses 5 42,585 38,893

Other operating income 6 16,476 21,307

Other operating expenses 7 26,004 25,253

eBit – continuing operations 50,162 47,282

EBIT – discontinued operations 4,678 1,879

eBit – Group 54,840 49,161

Result from investments in associates
and joint ventures 8 0 – 995

Result from other investments 8 – 2,042 – 1,339

Interest income 9 1,324 1,783

Interest expenses 9 8,009 12,435

financial result – 8,727 – 12,986

earnings before tax – continuing operations 41,435 34,296

Earnings before tax – discontinued operations 4,678 1,879

earnings before tax – Group 46,113 36,175

Income taxes 10 5,540 4,404

Deferred taxes 10 – 9,644 – 3,530

earnings after tax – continuing operations 45,539 33,422

Earnings after tax – discontinued operations 4,678 1,879

earnings after tax – Group 50,217 35,301

Non-controlling interest in profit / loss 11 – 19 – 25

Net profit of shareholers 50,236 35,326

Earnings per share – continuing operations in euros 13 0.80 0.58

Earnings per share (diluted = undiluted) in euros 0.88 0.62

1) adjusted due to first-time application of IAS 19R

consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated Statement of Income

Other comprehensive income

earnings after tax 50,217 35,300

Financial assets available for sale – 89 – 208

Cash flow hedge 2,254 – 2,662

Difference arising on foreign currency translation – 754 1,465

Revaluation – 12,112 – 3,571

Deferred taxes 2,660 1,496

total income and expense recognized in shareholders’ equity – 8,041 – 3,480

total comprehensive income 42,176 31,820

of which attributable to:

 Non-controlling interest – 19 – 25

 Shareholders 42,195 31,845
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Balance sheet

Assets KEUR Note No. 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1) Change 1.1.2011 1)

non-current assets 333,778 312,381 21,397 307,648

 Intangible assets 14 70,622 68,884 1,738 72,380

 Tangible assets 15 143,240 138,190 5,050 139,405

 Investment properties 16 19,580 20,601 – 1,021 22,080

 Shares in associates 0 0 0 246

 Financial assets 18 27,205 22,793 4,412 16,579

 Other non-current assets 19 4,780 4,931 – 151 5,210

 Deferred tax assets 20 68,351 56,982 11,369 51,748

Current assets 335,846 331,105 4,741 318,190

 Inventories 21 169,270 169,116 154 148,797

 Current accounts receivable and other assets 22 120,660 111,873 8,787 103,308

 Securities held as current investments 23 561 1,288 – 727 750

 Cash and cash equivalents 24 45,355 48,828 – 3,473 65,335

total assets 669,624 643,486 26,138 625,838

Shareholders‘ equity and liabilities in KEUR Note No. 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 1) Change 1.1.2011 1)

shareholders’ equity 25 330,325 298,443 31,882 271,799

 Subscribed capital 148,819 148,819 0 148,819

 Capital reserve 194,286 194,286 0 194,286

 Other reserves – 13,053 – 44,952 31,901 – 71,624

 Non-controlling interest 26 273 292 – 19 318

non-current liabilities 177,567 173,731 3,836 172,986

 Pension provisions 27 31,238 18,434 12,804 14,114

 Other non-current provisions 29 12,064 12,423 – 359 17,631

 Non-current financial liabilities 31 115,776 123,106 – 7,330 125,856

 Other non-current liabilities 32 15,417 15,809 – 392 11,681

 Deferred tax liabilities 20 3,072 3,959 -887 3,704

Current liabilities 161,732 171,312 – 9,580 181,053

 Tax provisions 28 6,059 6,825 – 766 2,361

 Other current provisions 29 52,053 49,715 2,338 61,895

 Current financial liabilities 31 4,692 4,109 583 19,486

 Other current liabilities 33 98,928 110,663 – 11,735 97,311

total shareholders‘ equity and liabilities 669,624 643,486 26,138 625,838

1) adjusted due to first-time application of IAS 19R

consolidated Balance sheet
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Statement of movements in shareholders´ equity

consolidated statement of movements in shareholders‘ equity

in KEUR
Subscribed

capital
Capital
reserve

Cumulated
profit

Financial assets
available for sale

Cash flow 
hedge

Cumulative
currency

differences Revaluation
Non-controlling

interest Total

Balance as at 1.1.2011 148,819 194,286 – 61,845 416 271 222 0 318 282,487

Adjustment due to first-time application of IAS 19R 2,979 – 13,667 – 10,688

Balance as at 1.1.2011 1) 148,819 194,286 – 58,866 416 271 222 – 13,667 318 271,799

 

Valuation of financial instruments – 208 – 1,874 – 2,082

Revaluation loss – 2,863 – 2,863

Currency differences 917 548 1,465

Net profit for the period 35,326 – 26 35,300

Other changes – 5,176 – 5,176

Balance as at 31.12.2011 1) 148,819 194,286 – 27,799 208 – 1,603 770 – 16,530 292 298,443

Balance as at 1.1.2012 1) 148,819 194,286 – 27,799 208 – 1,603 770 – 16,530 292 298,443

Transactions with shareholders (dividend) – 8,585 – 8,585

Valuation of financial instruments – 89 1,581 1,492

Revaluation loss – 8,918 – 8,918

Currency differences – 509 – 107 – 616

Net profit for the period 50,236 – 19 50,217

Other changes – 1,708 – 1,708

Balance as at 31.12.2012 148,819 194,286 11,635 119 – 22 663 – 25,448 273 330,325

1) adjusted due to first-time application of IAS 19R
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statement of movements in shareholders´ equity

in KEUR
Subscribed

capital
Capital
reserve

Cumulated
profit

Financial assets
available for sale

Cash flow 
hedge

Cumulative
currency

differences Revaluation
Non-controlling

interest Total

Balance as at 1.1.2011 148,819 194,286 – 61,845 416 271 222 0 318 282,487

Adjustment due to first-time application of IAS 19R 2,979 – 13,667 – 10,688

Balance as at 1.1.2011 1) 148,819 194,286 – 58,866 416 271 222 – 13,667 318 271,799

 

Valuation of financial instruments – 208 – 1,874 – 2,082

Revaluation loss – 2,863 – 2,863

Currency differences 917 548 1,465

Net profit for the period 35,326 – 26 35,300

Other changes – 5,176 – 5,176

Balance as at 31.12.2011 1) 148,819 194,286 – 27,799 208 – 1,603 770 – 16,530 292 298,443

Balance as at 1.1.2012 1) 148,819 194,286 – 27,799 208 – 1,603 770 – 16,530 292 298,443

Transactions with shareholders (dividend) – 8,585 – 8,585

Valuation of financial instruments – 89 1,581 1,492

Revaluation loss – 8,918 – 8,918

Currency differences – 509 – 107 – 616

Net profit for the period 50,236 – 19 50,217

Other changes – 1,708 – 1,708

Balance as at 31.12.2012 148,819 194,286 11,635 119 – 22 663 – 25,448 273 330,325

1) adjusted due to first-time application of IAS 19R
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Statements of cash flows

in KEUR 1.1. – 31.12. 2012 1.1. – 31.12. 2011

Earnings before tax 46,113 34,948

Interest 6,684 11,879

Depreciation / write-up 22,254 23,242

Impairment 3,920 6,032

Loss / profit on disposal of fixed assets – 421 2,546

Other non-cash expenses / income 647 1,655

Operating profit / loss before working capital changes 79,197 80,302

Increase / decrease in provisions 3,948 – 3,849

Increase / decrease in working capital – 12,334 – 23,523

Increase / decrease in other assets and liabilities 2,857 14,353

Cash flow from / used in operating activities before income taxes 73,668 67,283

Income taxes paid – 7,090 – 1,703

Cash flow from / used in operating activities 66,578 65,580

Receipts from disposal of intangible assets 421 193

Payments for investments in intangible assets – 6,716 – 2,105

Receipts from disposal of tangible assets 839 1,556

Payments for investments in tangible assets – 24,511 – 22,922

Receipts from disposal of investment properties 1,188 2,174

Receipts from disposal of financial assets 2,706 1,432

Payments for investments in financial assets – 9,079 – 11,329

Receipts from acquisition of consolidated companies 0 100

Payments for disposal of consolidated companies 0 – 209

Interest received 1,335 1,771

Cash flow from / used in investing activities – 33,817 – 29,339

Dividend paid – 8,585 0

Receipts from issue of bonds and loans 407 90,351

Repayments of bonds and loans – 4,581 – 107,014

Repayments for finance leases – 2,181 – 971

Change in group financing – 13,953 – 24,634

Interest paid – 7,248 – 11,392

Cash flow from / used in financing activities – 36,141 – 53,660

Change in cash and cash equivalents – 3,380 – 17,419

Foreign currency translation changes in cash and cash equivalents – 93 230

Changes in cash and cash equivalents due to initial consolidation 0 682

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 48,828 65,335

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 45,355 48,828

consolidated statement of cash flows
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Group structure

PARENT COmPANy

the parent company is jenoptik aG, jena entered in the jena 

commercial register in department B under number 200146. 

jenoptik aG is quoted on the German stock exchange 

(deutsche Börse) in frankfurt and is listed in the tecdax.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

the consolidated financial statements of jenoptik aG for 2012 

were prepared in accordance with international financial report-

ing standards (ifrs) and the interpretations of the international 

financial reporting interpretations committee (ifric) valid at the 

balance sheet date as they have to be applied in the european 

union. 

the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 

euro. unless noted elsewhere all amounts are in thousands of 

euro (keur). the statement of comprehensive income is prepared 

on the cost of sales basis.

the fiscal year of jenoptik aG and its consolidated subsidiaries 

corresponds to the calendar year. 

in order to improve clarity of presentation individual items are 

summarized in the statement of comprehensive income and bal-

ance sheet. the analysis of these items is disclosed in the notes 

to the financial statements.

the following ifrs are applied for the first time in the consoli-

dated financial statements:

notes to the consolidated financial statements 
for the fiscal year 2012

IAS 19 „Employee Benefits“. in june 2011 the iasB published 

ias 19 „employee Benefits“ (referred to below as ias 19r).  

ias 19r abolishes the so-called corridor method and prescribes 

accounting directly for actuarial gains and losses in other  

comprehensive income. furthermore, under ias 19r expected 

income from plan assets and the interest expense from the 

pension provision are replaced by a uniform net interest com-

ponent. the service cost granted in future will be recorded   

fully in the period of the related change in the plan. the revi-

sion of ias 19 also changes the requirements for benefits from 

termination of the employment relationship and enhanced 

presentation and disclosure obligations. the statement shall 

apply to financial years which begin on or after january 1, 2013. 

earlier application is permitted.

jenoptik has utilised the option to apply ias 19r early. the 

changes resulting from this related to pension provisions, equity 

and the result for the fiscal year. the application of ias 19r is 

retrospective. in agreement with ias 8 „accounting policies, 

changes in accounting estimates and errors” the effect of the 

change in accounting should be presented, in both the consoli-

dated balance sheet using an adjusted balance sheet as of 

december 31, 2011 and an adjusted opening balance sheet as 

of january 1, 2011 as well as in the consolidated statement of 

comprehensive income using an adjusted consolidated state-

ment of comprehensive income 2011.

the effects of the change in accounting are shown in the sum-

mary below:

in KEUR
Other non-current 

assets Deferred tax assets
Shareholders` 

equity
Pension

provision

Balance as at January 1, 2011 as previously reported 9,080 50,895 282,487 6,443

Effects of change in accounting – 3,870 853 – 10,688 7,671

adjusted balance as at January 1, 2011 5,210 51,748 271,799 14,114

Balance as at December 31, 2011 as previously reported 7,022 55,421 310,767 6,640

Effects of change in accounting as at January 1, 2011 – 3,870 853 – 10,688 7,671

Effects of change in accounting in the year 2011 1,779 708 – 1,636 4,123

adjusted balance as at december 31, 2011 4,931 56,982 298,443 18,434
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the effects on the statement of comprehensive income were as 

follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Increase in interest result 1,538 1,227

Increase in earnings after tax 1,538 1,277

Decrease in other comprehensive income – 8,918 – 2,863

Earnings per share in euros as previously 
reported 0.85 0.60

Adjusted earnings per share in euros 0.88 0.62

the first time adoption of ias 19r has no material effect for the 

calculation of part-time early retirement obligations. further 

explanations are included in note 27.

Amendments to IAS 12 „Income Taxes“. regarding investment 

properties it is often difficult to evaluate whether existing tempo-

rary tax differences reverse through continued use or through 

sale. with the amendment to ias 12 it is now assumed that the 

measurement of deferred taxes is to be performed on the pre-

sumption that reversal is normally through sale. the adjustments 

had no material effects on the consolidated financial statements 

of jenoptik.

Changes to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International  

Financial Reporting Standards”. through this change to ifrs 1 

the references to the date of january 1, 2004 used until now  

as a fixed transition date are replaced by „time of changeover 

to ifrs“. furthermore, rules will now be included in ifrs 1 for 

the cases where an entity cannot comply with ifrs rules for a 

period of time because its functional currency was subject to 

hyperinflation. the adjustments had no material effects on the 

consolidated financial statements of jenoptik.

Amendment to IFRS 7 „Financial Instruments: Disclosures“. 

the changes to ifrs 7 relate to enhanced disclosure require-

ments for the transfer of financial assets. this is to make the 

relationships more understandable between financial assets, 

which shall not be entirely de-recognised, and the correspond-

ing financial liabilities. furthermore, the nature, as well as in 

particular the risk of continuing involvement, should be better 

assessable for de-recognised financial assets. with the changes 

additional disclosures are also required if there is a dispropor-

tionately large number of transfers with continuing involve-

ment, e.g. around the end of a reporting period. the amend-

ments have not resulted in additional disclosure requirements 

for jenoptik.

the following accounting statements published by the iasB 

and adopted by the eu, are not yet obligatory and have not 

been applied by jenoptik yet:

Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of the Financial State-

ments”. these amendments relate to the presentation of other 

comprehensive income in the statement of comprehensive 

income. the elements of other comprehensive income which 

can be reclassified later in the income statement („recycling“) 

should be presented separately in future from the items of other 

comprehensive income that are never reclassified. where the 

items are disclosed gross, i. e. without net effects of deferred 

taxes, the deferred taxes should no longer be disclosed in one 

total but allocated to the two groups of items.

the amendment shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after july 1, 2012.

IAS 27 „Separate Financial Statements (amended 2011)“. as 

part of the adoption of ifrs 10 the rules for the control princi-

ple and the requirements for the preparation of consolidated 

financial statements were removed from ias 27 and subse-

quently dealt with by ifrs 10 (see explanations to ifrs 10). as a 

result, in future ias 27 will only contain the rules for accounting 

for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in ifrs separate 

financial statements.

the amendment shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2014. the company is 

currently reviewing the effects on the consolidated financial 

statements.
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IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures  

(amended 2011)”. as part of the adoption of ifrs 11 “joint 

arrangements” adjustments were also made in ias 28. this 

standard regulates – as also to date – the application of the 

equity method. however, the scope of application will be 

extended substantially by the release of ifrs 11 since in future 

not only investments in associates but also in joint ventures will 

have to be measured using the equity method (see ifrs 11 

“joint arrangements“). the use of proportional consolidation  

is no longer applicable for joint ventures.

in future potential voting rights and other derivative financial 

instruments shall also be considered in assessing whether an 

enterprise has significant influence or in determining the inves-

tor’s share of company assets. 

a further amendment relates to accounting in accordance with 

ifrs 5 if only a part of an associate or a joint venture is held for 

sale. ifrs 5 is to be partially applied if only a share or part of a 

share in an associate (or in a joint venture) fulfils the criterion 

“held for sale”.

the amendment shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2014.

since jenoptik currently includes one joint venture in the con-

solidated financial statements on the basis of proportional con-

solidation, the application of ifrs 11 in connection with the 

amended ias 28 leads to a change in the structure of the con-

solidated statement of comprehensive income. applying this to 

the relationships in the fiscal year 2012 there would be, for 

example, a shift of contribution to income of about 0.7 million  

euros between eBit and the net financial result. according to 

the current evaluation there would be no effect on the overall 

result.

Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” 

and IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. this amend-

ment to ias 32 clarifies the requirements for the offsetting of 

financial instruments. the amendment explains the meaning of 

a current legally enforceable right to set-off and clarifies which 

gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net 

settlement as defined by the standard. as part of this clarifica-

tion the requirements for disclosure were amended in ifrs 7. 

the amendment to ias 32 is initially effective for financial years 

which begin on or after january 1, 2014. the amendment to 

ifrs 7 is initially effective for financial years which begin on or 

after january 1, 2013. the company is currently reviewing the 

effects on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”. with this stand-

ard the definition of control is newly determined and defined 

comprehensively. if one entity controls another entity the par-

ent company shall consolidate the subsidiary. according to the 

concept, control exists if the potential parent company has 

power as a result of voting rights or other rights over the 

potential subsidiary, it participates in the positive or negative 

variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and 

has the ability to use its power to influence these returns. the 

new standard could have an effect on the scope of the com-

panies to be consolidated.

the new standard shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2014. if the qualification 

of an investment as a subsidiary is determined in deviation 

between ias 27 / sic-12 and ifrs 10, ifrs 10 shall be applied 

retrospectively. early application is only permitted if this is 

simultaneous with ifrs 11 and ifrs 12 as well as with ias 27 

and ias 28 as amended in 2011. the company is currently 

reviewing the effects on the consolidated financial statements.
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IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”. ifrs 11 redetermines accounting 

for jointly controlled activities (joint arrangements). accord-ing 

to the concept a decision is to be made whether a joint opera-

tion or a joint venture exists. a joint operation exists if the par-

ties that have joint control of the arrangement have direct 

rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities. the indi-

vidual rights and obligations are accounted for proportionately 

in the consolidated financial statements. in a joint venture, on 

the other hand, the parties that have joint control have rights 

to the net assets of the arrangement. this right is represented 

by the use of the equity method in the consolidated financial 

statements, the option for proportionate consolidation is thus 

not applicable.

the new standard shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2014. there are specific 

transition rules for the conversion, e. g. from the proportional 

consolidation to the equity method. early application is only 

permitted if this is simultaneous with ifrs 10 and ifrs 12 as 

well as with ias 27 and ias 28 as amended in 2011. the impli-

cations for the consolidated financial statements of jenoptik  

are included in the explanations to ias 28.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”. ifrs 12 reg-

ulates the disclosure requirements with regard to the shares of 

other entities. the necessary disclosures are substantially more 

comprehensive that the disclosures required to date under 

ias 27, ias 28 and ias 31.

the new standard shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2014. the company is 

currently reviewing the effects on the consolidated financial 

statements.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value measurement”. with this standard the fair 

value measurement is uniformly regulated in ifrs financial 

statements. all measurements required to be at fair value in 

accordance with other standards have to follow the uniform 

requirements of ifrs 13. only for ias 17 and ifrs 2 will there  

be individual rules. 

fair value is defined as exit price in accordance with ifrs 13, 

i.e. as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 

to transfer a liability. as is currently known from the fair value 

measurement of financial assets a three-level hierarchy system 

will be implemented which is prioritised with regard to the 

dependency on observable market prices. the new fair value 

measurement can lead to deviating amounts compared to the 

requirements to date.

the new standard shall be applied for the first time to financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2013. the company is 

currently reviewing the effects on the consolidated financial 

statements.

IFRIC 20 “Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface 

mine”. this interpretation aims to unify the accounting for 

waste removal costs in surface mining. if, according to expecta-

tions, income is generated from further stripping activity the 

allo cable costs of the stripping activity are to be accounted for 

as inventory in accordance with ias 2. in addition, an intangible 

asset is created which should be capitalized with the surface 

mine asset, if the access to further natural resources is improved 

and the requirements defined in the interpretation are fulfilled. 

this asset shall be depreciated over the expected useful life.

ifric 20 applies for the first time to financial years beginning on 

or after january 1, 2013. there will be no effects from this on 

the consolidated financial statements of jenoptik.

the following accounting statements published by iasB but not 

yet adopted by the eu are not yet obligatory and have not 

been applied by jenoptik to date:
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ImPROVEmENTS TO IFRS 2009 – 2011

as part of the annual improvement project changes were made 

to five standards. the alignment of formulations in individual 

ifrs serves to clarify existing rules. in addition there are amend-

ments which have an impact on accounting, recognition and 

measurement as well as on disclosure. the standards affected 

are ias 1, ias 16, ias 32, ias 34 and ifrs 1. the amendments 

are – subject to being adopted under eu law – not applicable 

for the first time until financial years beginning on or after jan-

uary 1, 2013. the company is currently reviewing the effects 

on the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Finan-

cial Reporting Standards”. the change relates to accounting 

for a public loan at an interest rate below the market interest 

rate by a first-time ifrs user. for public loans existing at the 

transition period measurement may remain in accordance with 

previous accounting. the measurement rules according to 

ias 20.10a in connection with ias 39 are thus only valid for 

such public loans which are entered into after the transition 

period. the amendments are – subject to still being adopted 

under eu law – not applicable for the first time until financial 

years beginning on or after january 1, 2013. the company is 

currently reviewing the effects on the consolidated financial 

statements.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. the recognition and measure-

ment requirements of financial instruments under ifrs 9 will 

replace ias 39.

financial assets will only be classified into two groups in future 

and measured at amortized cost or at fair value. the group of 

financial assets at amortized cost comprises such financial 

assets that only offer a right to interest and capital payments at 

predefined times and, additionally, are maintained as part of a 

business model, the goal of which is to hold assets. all other 

financial assets form the group at fair value. under certain con-

ditions the financial assets from the first category – as until 

now – can be subject to allocation to the category at fair value 

(fair-value option).

changes in measurement of financial assets to the fair value 

category shall basically be recorded in profit or loss. however, 

for defined equity instruments an option can be exercised to 

record changes in other comprehensive income; and dividend 

claims from these assets have to be recorded against profit or 

loss.

the requirements for financial liabilities are principally adopted 

from ias 39. the main difference relates to the recording of 

measurement changes of the financial liabilities measured at 

fair value. in future these are to be separated: the portion  

relating to own credit risk shall be recorded neutrally under 

other comprehensive income, the remaining portion of the 

value change shall be recorded in profit or loss.

ifrs 9 – subject to being adopted under eu law – is not appli-

cable for the first time until financial years commencing on or 

after january 1, 2015. the company is currently reviewing the 

effects on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and IFRS 7 

“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”. the amendments allow 

the adjustment of prior year figures to be waived for the first-

time application of ifrs 9. originally, this simplification was only 

possible if ifrs 9 was applied early before january 1, 2012. the 

simplification brings additional disclosures at the transition time 

according to ifrs 7.

the amendments are, similar to the rules of ifrs 9 – subject to 

adoption still outstanding under eu law – applicable for the 

first time in financial years which start on or after january 1, 

2015. the company is currently reviewing the effects on the 

consolidated financial statements.



Details of the Group structurenotes to the consolidated financial statements

134 JENOPTIK 2012

Amendment of IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, 

IFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities” and IAS 27 

“Separate Financial Statements”. the amendments include a 

definition of the term investment companies and remove such 

companies from the scope of application of ifrs 10 “consoli-

dated financial statements”.

according to this, investment companies do not consolidate 

those entities controlled by them in their ifrs consolidated 

financial statements, whereby this exception from general prin-

ciples is not to be understood as an option. instead of full con-

solidation they measure interests held for investment purposes 

at fair value and record changes in value from period to period 

in profit or loss.

the amendments have no effect on consolidated financial 

statements which include investment companies, to the extent 

that the group parent is not an investment company itself.

the amendments are – subject to being adopted under eu  

law – not applicable for the first time until financial years begin-

ning on or after january 1, 2014. the company is currently 

reviewing the effects on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”, 

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” and IFRS 12 “Disclosures of 

Interests in Other Entities”. the amendments include clarifica-

tion and additional simplifications on transition to ifrs 10, 

ifrs 11 and ifrs 12. thus amended comparative information is 

only required for the preceding comparative period. further-

more, in connection with disclosure information on unconsoli-

dated structured entities, the obligation to disclose comparative 

information is not applicable for periods prior to the first-time 

application of ifrs 12.

the amendments of ifrs 10, ifrs 11 and ifrs 12 are – subject 

to adoption still outstanding under eu law – applicable for the 

first time in financial years which start on or after january 1, 

2014. the company is currently reviewing the effects on the 

consolidated financial statements.

ESTImATES 

the preparation of the consolidated financial statements in 

compliance with ifrs as applicable requires assumptions to be 

made for certain items which may have an effect on the 

amounts in the balance sheet or statement of comprehensive 

income of the Group and on the disclosure of contingent assets 

and liabilities. all assumptions and estimates are made to the 

best of our knowledge, in order to present a true and fair view 

of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of 

the Group. 

the underlying assumptions and estimates are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. as part of this the preparer of the consolidated 

financial statements has certain discretionary power. this 

mainly relates to: 

• the evaluation of impairment of goodwill (see note 14),

• the measurement of intangible assets (see note 14), tangible 

assets (see note 15) and investment properties (see note 16),

• the recognition and measurement of provisions for pensions 

and similar obligations (see note 27). 

• the recognition and measurement of other provisions (see 

note 29) and

• the realization of future tax credits (see note 10).
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consolidation principles

COmPANIES CONSOLIDATED

all material entities in which jenoptik aG exercises indirect or 

direct control (“control concept”) are included in the consoli-

dated financial statements. control, as defined in ias 27 “con-

solidated and separate financial statements”, is given where 

the possibility exists to govern the financial and operating poli-

cies of an entity to obtain benefits from its activities. inclusion 

in the consolidated financial statements is from the point at 

which control over the company is possible in accordance with 

the “control concept”. it ends when this is no longer possible. 

the consolidated financial statements of jenoptik aG include 

24 (2011 23) fully consolidated subsidiaries. of these 14 (2011 

14) are based in Germany and 10 (2011 9) abroad. 

as at october 1, 2012 the newly founded jenoptik robot 

malaysia sdn. Bhd., kuala lumpur (singapore), was included 

for the first time in the consolidated financial statements. 

furthermore, companies consolidated include one (2011 one) 

joint venture. hillos Gmbh, jena, is included in accordance with 

ias 31 on a proportionate basis with a share of 50 percent.  

as a result of this proportional consolidation the following 

amounts are included in the consolidated financial statements: 

in KEUR 2012 2011

Non-current assets 1,145 1,709

Current assets 6,676 7,274

Non-current financial liabilities 43 2,782

Current financial liabilities 4,371 1,962

Income 17,434 20,468

Expenses 17,018 19,890

31 subsidiaries, of which twelve are non-operating companies, 

with no material influence on the net assets, financial situation 

and results, are not consolidated. its total operating results 

amount to about 0.7 percent of the Group operating result. 

the estimated effect of a consolidation of all companies on the 

total assets of the Group amounts to approx. 2.3 percent of 

the total assets of the Group. 

all other interests in these companies, as well as all other 

investments are accounted for at fair value in accordance with 

ias 39. if no reliable fair value can be determined, measure-

ment is at acquisition cost. 

the list of jenoptik aG investments is held by the commercial 

register at the jena district court (hrB 200146). the list of 

investments of jenoptik in accordance with § 313 para. 2, no. 1 

to 4 hGB is published in the federal Gazette.

companies that have utilized the exemption clauses of § 264 

para. or § 264b hGB have been disclosed under obligatory and 

supplementary disclosures under hGB.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

the assets and liabilities of the domestic and foreign companies 

which are either fully or partially included in the consolidated 

financial statements, are subject to the uniform accounting poli-

cies applicable to the jenoptik Group. 

at the time of acquisition capital consolidation is performed by 

using the acquisition method. the assets and liabilities of the 

subsidiaries are recognized at this point at fair values. further-

more, identifiable intangible assets are capitalized as well as con-

tingent liabilities are recognized as defined in ifrs 3.23. the 

remaining difference represents the goodwill. this is not amor-

tized systematically in subsequent periods but subject annually  

to impairment testing in accordance with ias 36.

receivables and payables, as well as expenditure and income 

between consolidated companies, are eliminated. inter-company 

trade transactions are performed based on market prices and on 

transfer prices that are determined based on the “dealing at 

arm’s length” principle. profits on inter-company transactions 
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CURRENCy CONVERSION

translation of financial statements of companies included in  

the consolidation, prepared in foreign currency, is performed 

based on the concept of functional currency in accordance 

with ias 21 “the effects of changes in foreign exchange rates” 

using the modified closing rate method. since our subsidiaries 

conduct their operations financially, commercially, and organi-

sationally independently the functional currency is identical with 

the relevant country currency of the company. 

assets and liabilities are consequently translated at the balance 

sheet date rate and expenses and income, for practical reasons, 

at the average rate for the year. the difference arising on for-

eign currency translation is offset against shareholders´ equity 

as a special currency translation reserve with no effect on 

income.

if Group companies are no longer included in the consolidation 

then the relevant foreign exchange difference is released to 

income. 

in the separate financial statements of consolidated companies 

prepared in local currency receivables and liabilities are trans-

lated at the balance sheet date rate in accordance with ias 21. 

foreign currency translation differences are recorded in income 

under other operating income (see note 6) and expenses (see 

note 7).

the rates used for translation can be seen from the following 

table:

Average annual rate year-end rate

1 EUR = 2012 2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

USA USD 1.2946 1.4203 1.3194 1.2932

Switzerland CHF 1.2041 1.2993 1.2072 1.2165

China CNy 8.0930 8.4189 8.2207 8.1630

malaysia RGD 4.0347 – 4.0347 –

included in inventories have been eliminated. consolidation 

transactions affecting income are subject to deferred tax, 

whereby deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off-

set if there is a legally enforceable right to offset actual tax 

reimbursement claims against actual tax liabilities, or if these 

relate to income taxes that are administered by the same tax 

authority.

the consolidation methods applied have not changed in com-

parison to the prior year.

COmPANy ACqUISITIONS 

in the fiscal year 2012 there were no company acquisitions.

in the past fiscal year jenoptik (shanghai) precision instruments 

and equipment co., ltd., shanghai was included for the first 

time in the consolidated financial statements. the inclusion of 

the company was based on preliminary amounts since the  

reliability of the data basis at the time of initial inclusion could 

not be finally assessed. the finalization of these amounts in  

fiscal year 2012 did not lead to any material changes in the  

original amounts.

DISCONTINUED BUSINESS OPERATIONS

a disclosure of income amounting to keur 4,678 (prev. year 

keur 1,879), based on the reversal of a provision, was made in 

the fiscal year for those business operations discontinued in 

previous years. this presentation was selected to improve trans-

parency and clarity of the results of operations – including the 

required adjustment of comparative information.
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accounting policies

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

intangible assets acquired for a consideration, mainly software, 

patents, customer relationships, are capitalized at acquisition 

costs. intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized 

straight-line over their useful economic lives. useful lives are 

between three and ten years. the Group reviews its intangible 

assets with finite useful lives as to whether they are impaired 

(see section “impairment of tangible and intangible fixed 

assets”). 

for intangible assets with an indefinite useful life an impairment 

test is performed at least annually and their value is adjusted to 

reflect future expectations as appropriate. 

internally generated intangible assets are capitalized if the recog-

nition criteria of ias 38 “intangible assets” are met. manufac-

turing costs comprise all directly attributable costs. 

development costs are capitalized if a newly developed product 

or process can be clearly separately identified, is technically  

feasible and its production as well as its internal use or sale is 

intended. furthermore, in order to capitalize the development 

costs it should be reasonably certain that these are covered by 

future financial inflows and are reliably determinable. ultimately, 

sufficient resources should be available in order to finalize devel-

opment and to be able to use or sell the asset.

capitalized development costs are amortized over the expected 

sales period of the products. amortization is included in the 

research and development expenses. acquisition or production 

costs include all costs directly attributable to the development 

process and appropriate portions of the general overheads 

related to development. where the recognition criteria as an 

asset are not met the costs are treated as an expense in the 

year they are recorded. 

accounting policies

GOODwILL

the rules of ifrs 3 are applied to all business combinations. the 

jenoptik Group does not utilize the option under ifrs 3 to apply 

the full-goodwill method. subsequently, only the portion of the 

goodwill allocable to the majority interest is recorded.

Goodwill in accordance with ifrs 3 represents the positive differ-

ence between the acquisition costs for a business combination 

and the newly valued assets and liabilities acquired, including 

contingent liabilities, which remains after the purchase price has 

been allocated and, thus, the intangible assets identified. the 

assets and liabilities identified as part of this purchase price allo-

cation are not measured at their carrying values to date but at 

their fair values.

Goodwill is recognized as an asset and tested at least annually at 

a specific time for impairment or whenever there is an indication 

of impairment in the cash-generating unit. impairment losses are 

recorded immediately in profit or loss as expenses and are not 

allowed to be reversed in subsequent periods.

negative goodwill on capital consolidation is credited immedi-

ately to other operating income impacting income in accordance 

with ifrs 3.
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Accounting policies

depreciation and amortization are based primarily on the fol-

lowing useful lives:

Useful life

Buildings 25 – 50 years

Technical equipment and machines 4 – 20 years

Other equipment, factory and office equipment 3 – 10 years

if assets are no longer used, sold or abandoned the profit or 

loss from the difference between the sale proceeds and the net 

book value is recorded in other operating income or other 

operating expenses.

ImPAIRmENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

for tangible and intangible assets which have finite useful lives, 

an assessment is made at each year end whether the appropriate 

assets show any indications of impairment in accordance with 

ias 36 “impairment of assets”. if such indications are identified 

for individual assets or a cash generating unit then an impairment 

test is performed on these.

the cash generating units are primarily defined based on the 

structure of the divisions or of the business units forming the 

divisions.

as part of an impairment test initially the recoverable amount 

of the asset or rather the cash generating unit is determined 

and this is then compared with the relevant carrying value in 

order to determine any impairment losses.

the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value 

less costs to sell and its value in use. 

the fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from 

the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between 

knowledgeable and willing parties.

research costs shall be recognized as operating expenses in 

accordance with ias 38.

amortization of intangible assets is included in the respective 

expense items of the statement of comprehensive income.

TANGIBLE ASSETS

tangible assets are carried at historical acquisition or production 

cost less accumulated straight-line depreciation. the deprecia-

tion method reflects the expected course of future economic 

use. where necessary amortized acquisition or production costs 

are reduced by impairment losses. Government grants are 

deducted from acquisition or production costs in accordance 

with ias 20 “accounting for Government Grants” (see section 

“Government Grants”). production costs are based on directly 

attributable costs and proportional material and production 

overheads including depreciation. in accordance with ias 23 

“Borrowing costs” borrowing costs which are directly attribut-

able to the acquisition or manufacturing of a qualified asset are 

capitalized as part of the acquisition and manufacturing costs.

tangible asset repair costs are always expensed. subsequent 

purchase costs are capitalized for components of tangible assets 

which are renewed at regular intervals to the extent that a 

future economic benefit is probable and the related costs can 

be reliably measured.
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accounting policies

Finance lease. as lessee under finance lease the Group capital-

izes the relevant assets at the inception of the lease at the lower 

of the fair value of the assets and the present value of the mini-

mum lease payments. these assets are depreciated straight-line 

for the shorter of their useful economic lives or term of the leas-

ing agreement if the purchase of the leased asset is not prob-

able at the end of the leasing period. liabilities from finance 

lease agreements are stated at the net present value of the min-

imum lease payments.

if the Group is the lessor the net investment in the lease is capi-

talized as a receivable. finance income is recognized in the 

appropriate period through income ensuring a constant periodic 

rate of return on the net investment.

Operating lease. rental income from operating lease agree-

ments is recorded straight-line to income in accordance with 

the term of the appropriate lease. any discounts received as 

incentives to enter into a leasing contract are also apportioned 

on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

INVESTmENT PROPERTIES

investment properties comprise land and buildings held to earn 

rentals or for capital appreciation. these properties are not 

used for the production or supply of goods and services or for 

administrative purposes or for sale in the ordinary course of 

business. 

in accordance with ias 40 “investment properties” these are 

recognized at amortized acquisition or production costs (see 

note 16). the fair value of these properties is additionally dis-

closed in the notes to the financial statements. the fair value  

is determined using available purchase price offers applying 

official land values or using the discounted cash flow model.

straight-line depreciation is based on useful economic lives of 

25 to 50 years. 

the determination of value in use is based on the present value 

of the future cash flows expected. this is based on a market-

relevant interest rate before tax which reflects the risks of the 

use of the assets which have not yet been accounted for in the 

estimated future cash flows.

if the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated as lower 

than its carrying value it is then written down to the recover-

able amount. impairment losses are recorded immediately as 

expenses. 

where there is a reversal of impairment in a subsequent period 

the carrying value of the asset is adjusted to reflect the recover-

able amount determined. the maximum limit for reversal of an 

impairment loss is determined as the carrying value of the 

acquisition or production costs which would have been deter-

mined had no impairment loss been recognized in previous 

periods. the impairment loss reversal is recorded immediately 

to income.

GOVERNmENT GRANTS

ias 20 differentiates between capital grants for non-current 

assets and income-related grants. 

ias 20 basically provides for the treatment of grants to impact 

income in the correct period.

Grants for non-current assets in the jenoptik Group are deduct - 

ed from acquisition costs. accordingly the depreciation volume 

is determined on the basis of reduced acquisition costs.

LEASING

leased tangible assets fulfil the conditions for finance leasing  

in accordance with ias 17 “leasing” if all the significant risks 

and rewards related to ownership are transferred to the rele-

vant group company. all other leasing contracts are classified 

as operating leases.
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Accounting policies

for current receivables and current payables the amortized 

costs generally represent nominal value or repayment value.

the fair value is generally the market or stock exchange value. 

if there is no active market the fair value is determined using 

financial mathematical methods, e. g. by discounting estimated 

future cash flows at the market interest rate or by applying rec-

ognized option price models and checked by confirmation from 

the banks who deal with the transactions.

(A) PRImARy FINANCIAL INSTRUmENTS

SHARES IN COmPANIES

initial recognition is at acquisition cost including transaction 

costs.

for the jenoptik Group all shares in listed subsidiaries and invest-

ments in quoted stock corporations which are not fully consoli-

dated, partially consolidated or accounted for at equity in the 

consolidated financial statements, are classified as “available for 

sale” and valued in subsequent periods at fair value. changes in 

value of “financial assets available for sale” are recorded neutrally 

in other comprehensive income. where impairment is of a per-

manent nature this shall be recorded as expense. 

shares in non-quoted subsidiaries and other investments also 

qualify as “financial assets available for sale”. however, they are 

stated at their relevant acquisition costs since there is no active 

market for these companies and their fair values cannot be  

reliably determined with a reasonable amount of effort. where 

there are indications of lower fair values these are applied.

impairment losses on investment properties are accounted for 

in accordance with ias 36 if the value in use or fair value, less 

disposal costs for the relevant asset, have fallen below its carry-

ing value. where the reasons for accounting for an impairment 

loss in previous years are no longer relevant then an appropri-

ate impairment loss reversal is accounted for.

FINANCIAL INSTRUmENTS 

financial instruments are contracts that give rise to both a finan-

cial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instru-

ment of another entity. in accordance with ias 32 these include, 

on the one hand, primary financial instruments such as trade 

accounts receivable and trade accounts payable or financial 

receivables and financial payables. on the other hand, they also 

include derivative financial instruments which are used to hedge 

risks from exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations. 

financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the group 

balance sheet from the point at which the Group becomes a 

contractual party to the financial instrument. financial assets are 

capitalized on their settlement date. 

financial instruments are measured depending on their classifi-

cation in the categories “receivables and loans” (at amortized 

cost) and “available-for-sale” (at fair value).

the amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount 

at which the financial asset or financial liability is initially mea-

sured:

• less potential repayments and

• less any impairment losses or provisions for non-payment as 

well as

• plus / less accumulated allocation of any difference between 

the original amount and the repayment amount (for example 

premium) when finally due. the premium is apportioned using 

the effective interest method over the term of the financial 

asset or financial liability.



INFORMATION FOR shARehOldeRs

141

g
r

o
u

p
 n

o
t

e
s

c
o

n
so

li
d

a
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

st
a

te
m

en
ts

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

JenoPtiK 2012

grouP management rePort

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

resPonsibility statement

auditors’ rePort

accounting policies

CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS 

cash and cash equivalents are cash balances, cheques and 

immediately accessible bank balances at financial institutions, 

the original maturity of which is up to three months. these are 

measured at nominal value. 

RESTRICTED CASH

restricted cash is separately disclosed. 

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EqUITy INSTRUmENTS

financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost applying the 

effective interest method. financial liabilities which have an 

effect on income being mea sured at fair value are not effected. 

this type of financial liability does not currently exist. 

liabilities from finance leasing agreements are stated at the net 

present value of the minimum lease payments.

an equity instrument is a contract that represents a residual 

interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabili-

ties. subscribed capital was classified as shareholders´ equity, 

whereby the costs (reduced by the related income tax benefits) 

which are allocable directly to the issue of own shares were 

deducted from equity.

LIABILITIES TO BANKS

Bank loans attracting interest and overdrafts are accounted for at 

the amounts received less directly allocable issuing costs. finance 

costs, including repayment or capital repayment of payable pre-

miums, are accounted for in accordance with the accruals princi-

ple applying the effective interest method and increase the book 

value of the instrument where they are not repaid at the time 

they arise.

LOANS

loans relate to the amounts lent by the jenoptik Group which, 

in accordance with ias 39, have to be valued at amortized cost.

non-current non-interest bearing and low-interest bearing loans 

are accounted for at present value. where there are objective 

substantial indications of impairment then impairment losses are 

accounted for. carrying values are reduced using a valuation 

adjustment account.

SECURITIES

securities belong to the category “financial assets available for 

sale” and are measured at fair value. up to the sale the mea-

surement is accounted for neutrally under consideration of 

deferred taxes within other comprehensive income. on disposal 

of the securities, or where permanent impairment occurs, the 

cumulative gains or losses accounted for until now directly in 

shareholders equity are reclassified to the profit or loss for the 

current period. initial valuation is at cost on the settlement date 

and corresponds with fair value.

TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

trade receivables do not attract interest due to their short-term 

nature and are measured at nominal value less allowances  

estimated for bad debts. these account for both the individual 

default risk as well as the general default risk derived from 

experience values.

OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ASSETS

other receivables and assets are measured at amortized cost. 

all recognizable bad debt risks are accounted for in the form of 

write-downs. 

non-current, non-interest bearing or low-interest bearing mate-

rial receivables are discounted.
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Accounting policies

INVENTORIES

inventories are stated at the lower of acquisition or production 

cost and net realisable value. 

the net realisable value is the estimated selling price less the 

expected costs of completion and costs arising up to sale.

acquisition costs include all purchase costs as well as other 

costs incurred in order to bring the inventories to their current 

state. these include acquisition cost reductions such as price 

rebates, premiums or discounts.

production cost includes production-related full costs deter-

mined on the basis of normal utilization of capital. in addition to 

direct costs they include a share of material and production 

overheads as well as depreciation of assets used in production 

to the extent that these are attributable to the production pro-

cess. in particular those costs are accounted for which are 

incurred under the specific production cost centres. administra-

tion costs are accounted for if they can be allocated to produc-

tion. where amounts are lower at the balance sheet date due to 

decreased prices in the sales market, these should be applied. 

similar items in inventories are principally valued using the aver-

age method. if the reasons for previously devaluing inventories 

no longer exist and the net realizable value thus rises, the rever-

sals are recorded as decreases in the cost of materials in the 

appropriate period in which the increases in value take place. 

BORROwING COSTS

Borrowing costs which can be directly allocated to the building 

or production of a qualifying asset are also recognized as parts 

of the acquisition cost of this asset.

(B) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUmENTS 

within the jenoptik Group derivative financial instruments are 

used as hedges to control risks from interest and currency fluctu-

ations. they serve to reduce the volatility in results from interest 

and currency risks. the fair values were determined on the basis 

of the market conditions existing at the balance sheet date – 

interest rates, exchange rates – and the following mea surement 

methods.

derivative financial instruments are not used for speculative 

purposes. the use of derivative financial instruments is subject 

to a group guideline authorized by the executive Board which 

represents a written fixed guideline with regard to the treatment 

of derivative financial instruments. in order to secure risks from 

currency and interest fluctuations the Group mainly uses cash 

flow hedges. 

cash flow hedging is described as the process of fixing future 

variable cash flows. within cash flow hedging the jenoptik 

Group protects against interest and currency risks. currency 

derivatives, which can clearly be allocated to future cash flows 

from foreign currency transaction and capital services fulfil the 

criteria of ias 39 with regard to documentation and effective-

ness, are concluded directly with banks. 

changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments 

hedging a cash flow risk are documented. if hedging relation-

ships are classified as effective the changes in fair value are re-  

corded in other comprehensive income without affecting results. 

the reclassifications from shareholders´ equity to profit or loss 

are performed in the period where the underlying transaction 

impacts income. changes in value from financial instruments 

classified as non-effective are recorded directly in profit or loss. 
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DEFERRED TAx

the accounting for deferred taxes is in accordance with ias 12 

“income taxes”. deferred taxes are calculated based on the 

internationally accepted balance sheet oriented liability method. 

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are disclosed as 

separate items in the balance sheet in order to account for the 

future tax effect of timing differences between the measurement 

of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet as well as of tax losses 

carried forward.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are accounted for at the amount 

of the expected tax charge or tax credit in subsequent fiscal 

years based on the tax rate valid at the point of realization. the 

effects of tax rate changes on deferred taxes are recorded in the 

reporting period in which the legislation for the tax rate change 

is concluded. 

deferred tax assets on balance sheet differences and on tax 

loses carried forwards are only recognized if the realization of 

these tax benefits is probable.

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset where 

the tax authority and term are identical. in accordance with the 

rules of ias 12 deferred tax assets and liabilities are not dis-

counted.

PROVISION FOR PENSIONS AND SImILAR 

OBLIGATIONS

pensions and similar obligations include the pension commit-

ments of the jenoptik Group from defined benefit and defined 

contribution pension plans. 

in the fiscal year 2012 ias 19r was applied early. the changes 

resulting from this are included in note 27.

for defined benefit pension plans pension obligations are 

determined in accordance with ias 19r applying the so-called 

“projected unit credit method”. annual actuarial reports are 

obtained for this. 

ON-ACCOUNT PAymENTS RECEIVED

on-account payments received from customers are accounted 

for under liabilities unless they are for construction contracts.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

sales and profit from construction contracts are recorded accord-

ing to their stage of completion in accordance with ias 11 “con-

struction contracts” (percentage of completion method). the 

stage of completion results from the proportion of contract costs 

incurred for work performed until the end of the fiscal year to 

the estimated total contract costs (cost to cost method). losses 

on construction contracts shall be fully recognized immediately in 

the fiscal year in which the losses are identified irrespective of the 

stage of completion of contract activity.

construction contracts, which are measured using the percent-

age of completion method, are disclosed as assets or liabilities 

from construction contracts depending on the amount of pay-

ments on account or rather on the progress billings received. 

these are measured at production cost plus proportional profit 

in relation to the stage of completion reached. where the 

cumulative value (contract costs plus contract result) is higher 

than the amount of progress billings received, the balance for 

contracts in progress is disclosed as an asset under receivables 

due from construction contracts. if a negative balance remains 

after deducting the progress payments received, then this is 

disclosed as a liability under payables from long-term construc-

tion contracts. expected losses on contracts are accounted for 

through deductions or provisions. they are determined under 

consideration of recognizable risks.
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Accounting policies

provisions are measured at their discounted settlement amount 

at the balance sheet date where the interest effect is material. 

the settlement amount comprises expected price and cost 

increases. discounting is based on pretax interest rates which 

reflect the current market expectations with regard to interest 

effects and on those risks specific to the liability, and which are 

dependent on the appropriate term of the commitment. the 

interest portion of the increase to the provision is recorded in 

the financial result.

provisions and accrued expenses are measured at experience 

values from the past under consideration of the conditions at 

the balance sheet date. provisions for warranties are estab-

lished at the time of sale of the relevant goods or provision of 

the appropriate services. the amount of the provision is based 

in the historic development of warranties and the observation 

of all future potential warranty cases weighted according to 

their probability of occurrence. 

provisions and other accrued expenses are not offset against 

counter claims.

SHARE-BASED REmUNERATION

the long-term incentive components (lti) for the members of 

the executive Board as well as individual members of the exec-

utive management Board of jenoptik aG were accounted for 

as share-based remuneration with cash compensation. at the 

balance sheet date a non-current liability was set up amounting 

to the fair value of the payment obligation. the share program 

is allocated based on the annual target agreement. changes in 

fair value are recorded in profit or loss.

the mortality probabilities are determined by the heubeck 

“richttafeln 2005 G” for Germany or by the swiss lpp 2010 for 

switzerland. actuarial gains and losses are recorded without  

an effect on results in other comprehensive income. the service 

cost is disclosed under personnel expenses and the interest  

portion of the addition to the provision under the financial result.

the defined contribution pension systems (e. g. direct insur-

ance) offset the obligatory contributions directly as cost.

TAx PROVISIONS

tax provisions include obligations from current income taxes. 

deferred taxes are disclosed as separate items in the balance 

sheet and in the statement of comprehensive income.

tax provisions for trade tax and corporation tax or comparable 

taxes on income are based on the taxable income of the com-

panies included in the consolidation less payments made on 

account. other taxes to be assessed are accounted for accord-

ingly.

OTHER PROVISIONS AND ACCRUALS

in accordance with ias 37 “provisions, contingent liabilities 

and contingent assets” provisions are recognized where there 

is a current obligation to a third party as a result of a past event 

which will probably lead to an outflow of resources and the 

amount of which can be reliably estimated. other provisions 

are only recognized if there is a legal or constructive obligation 

to a third party for which there is more evidence of its exis tence 

than not at the closing date.



INFORMATION FOR shARehOldeRs

145

g
r

o
u

p
 n

o
t

e
s

c
o

n
so

li
d

a
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

st
a

te
m

en
ts

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

JenoPtiK 2012

grouP management rePort

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

resPonsibility statement

auditors’ rePort

accounting policies

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from  

past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not wholly within the control of the jenoptik Group.  

furthermore, present obligations can represent contingent liabil-

ities if the probability of an outflow of resources is not sufficient 

to recognize a provision and/or the amount of the obligation 

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. contingent liabili-

ties are measured at the level of the scope of the liability at the 

balance sheet date. they are not recorded in the balance sheet 

but disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

SALES

income from the sale of goods is recorded in profit or loss as 

soon as all material rewards and risks of ownership have been 

transferred to the purchaser, a price has been agreed or deter-

mined and it can be assumed that this will be paid. sales include 

the amount invoiced to customers for goods and services – 

reduced for deductions, conventional penalties and discounts. 

income from services is recorded depending on the stage of 

completion of the contract at the balance sheet date. the stage 

of completion of the contract is measured based on the services 

provided. income is only recorded when it is sufficiently probable 

that the company receives the economic benefit from the con-

tract. otherwise, income is only recorded to the degree that the 

costs incurred are recoverable.

income from rental of investment properties is recorded straight-

line over the term of the relevant rental contracts and in sales.

COST OF SALES

cost of sales includes the costs incurred in generating sales. this 

item also includes the cost of warranty provisions. amortization 

and depreciation on intangible assets and tangible assets are 

recognized as they arise and included in manufacturing cost, 

selling or administrative expenses. research and development 

costs not qualifying for capitalization as well as write-downs 

against capitalized development costs are also disclosed under 

research and development expenses. 

SELLING ExPENSES AND GENERAL ADmINISTRATIVE 

ExPENSES

in addition to personnel and non-personnel costs selling 

expenses include mailing, advertising, sales promotion, market 

research and customer service costs. General administrative 

expenses include personnel and non-personnel costs as well as 

depreciation and amortization relating to the administration 

function.

OTHER OPERATING INCOmE AND ExPENSES

income from the reversal of provisions is, in accordance with   

ias 8 “accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and 

errors” are recorded in profit or loss. to the extent that underly-

ing provisions were  set up in the functional costs the reversal of 

provisions is also allocated to the relevant functional costs. if a 

provision was set up in other operating expenses then a reversal 

of the provision is also shown in other operating expenses, 

unless the reversal of the provision is higher than other operating 

expenses before the reversal of the provision. in this case the  

disclosure of the reversal of the provision is in other operating 

income.

other taxes are included in other operating expenses. 
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Historical summary of financial data

in million euros 2006 1) 2007 2008 2009 2010 1) 2011 2) 2012

non-current assets 417.0 387.7 376.3 336.9 310.7 312.4 333.8

 Intangible assets 89.5 88.3 88.9 78.0 72.4 68.9 70.6

 Tangible assets 170.2 175.9 170.5 152.1 139.4 138.2 143.2

 Investment properties 34.6 36.0 34.8 24.5 22.1 20.6 19.6

 Financial assets 55.0 24.0 18.8 18.9 16.6 22.8 27.2

 Shares in associates 1.4 0.8 1.3 0.3 0.2 0.0 0.0

 Other non-current assets 11.2 10.8 10.6 11.0 9.1 4.9 4.8

 Deferred tax assets 55.1 51.9 51.4 52.1 50.9 57.0 68.4

Current assets 456.7 309.6 312.8 270.2 318.2 331.1 335.8

 Inventories 161.5 174.1 179.5 154.7 148.8 169.1 169.2

 Accounts receivable and other assets 137.8 119.5 118.8 103.2 103.3 111.9 120.6

 Securities 3.6 2.2 2.0 1.1 0.8 1.3 0.6

 Cash and cash equivalents 153.8 13.8 12.5 11.2 65.3 48.8 45.4

shareholders’ equity 299.4 280.9 292.8 240.0 282.5 299.5 330.3

 of which subscribed capital 135.3 135.3 135.3 135.3 148.8 148.8 148.8

non-current liabilities 333.2 208.8 133.1 205.8 165.3 172.7 177.6

 Pension provisions 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 6.4 17.4 31.2

 Other non-current provisions 22.3 22.1 18.4 18.6 17.6 12.4 12.1

 Non-current financial liabilities 281.6 161.7 92.4 158.2 125.9 123.1 115.8

 Other non-current liabilities 20.0 15.2 13.0 20.1 11.7 15.8 15.4

 Deferred tax liabilities 2.9 3.4 2.9 2.5 3.7 4.0 3.1

Current liabilities 241.1 207.6 263.2 161.3 181.1 171.3 161.7

 Tax provisions 1.2 1.1 2.9 2.6 2.4 6.8 6.0

 Other current provisions 41.1 39,9 35.8 40.6 61.9 49.7 52.0

 Current financial liabilities 78.8 45.9 113.7 13.6 19.5 4.1 4.7

 Other current financial liabilities 120.0 120.7 110.8 104.5 97.3 110.7 99.0

total assets 873.7 697.3 689.1 607.1 628.9 643.5 669.6

Change compared to prior year

 Non-current assets – 8.3 % – 7.0 % – 2.9 % – 10.5 % – 7.8 % 0,5 % 6,9 %

 Current assets 63.4 % – 32.2 % 1.0 % – 13.6 % 17.8 % 4,1 % 1,4 %

 Shareholders’ equity – 4.7 % – 6.2 % 4.2 % – 18.0 % 17.7 % 6,0 % 10,3 %

 Non-current liabilities – 9.8 % – 37.5 % – 36.3 % 54.6 % – 19.7 % 4,5 % 2,8 %

 Current liabilities 24.9 % – 13.6 % 26.8 % – 38.7 % 12.3 % – 5,4 % – 5,6 %

share of total assets

 Non-current assets (asset ratio) 47.7 % 55.6 % 54.6 % 55.5 % 49.4 % 48.5 % 49.9 %

 Current assets 52.3 % 44.4 % 45.4 % 44.5 % 50.6 % 51.5 % 50.1 %

 Shareholders’ equity (equity ratio) 34.3 % 40.3 % 42.5 % 39.5 % 44.9 % 46.5 % 49.3 %

 Debt capital (debt capital ratio) 65.7 % 59.7 % 57.5 % 60.5 % 55.1 % 53.5 % 50.7 %

Dividends 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 8.6

 per share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.15

 in % of subscribed capital 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 5.8 %

 Return on dividend based on  
 year-end price 31.12. 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 2.0 %

Net financial liabilities 3) 203.0 191.6 191.6 159.5 79.3 77.1 74.5

 in % of adjusted total assets 4) 32.4 % 32.3 % 32.7 % 30.9 % 16.2 % 14.7 % 13.5 %

historical summary of financial data in accordance with ifrs (1)



INFORMATION FOR shARehOldeRs

147

g
r

o
u

p
 n

o
t

e
s

c
o

n
so

li
d

a
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

st
a

te
m

en
ts

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

JenoPtiK 2012

grouP management rePort

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

resPonsibility statement

auditors’ rePort

Historical summary of financial data

in millio euros 2006 1) 2007 2008 2009 2010 1) 2011 2) 2012

sales 485.1 521.7 548.3 473.6 478.8 543.3 585.0

Gross profit 151.3 159.9 161.9 128.7 150.2 184.0 203.4

 in % of sales 31.2 % 30.6 % 29.5 % 27.2 % 31.4 % 33.9 % 34.8 %

eBitda 5) 69.9 79.1 67.5 23.3 60.1 76.8 77.7

 in % of sales 14.4 % 15.2 % 12.3 % 4.9 % 12.6 % 14.1 % 13.3 %

Result from operating activities 6) 38.2 35.3 37.1 – 19.7 29.0 49.2 54.8

 in % of sales 7.9 % 6.8 % 6.8 % – 4.2 % 6.1 % 9.0 % 9.4 %

earnings before tax 19.1 0.7 20.2 – 34.3 15.0 36.2 46.1

 in % of sales 3.9 % 0.1 % 3.7 % – 7.2 % 3.1 % 6.7 % 7.9 %

earnings after tax 16.1 – 4.6 16.6 – 33.9 9.0 35.3 50.2

 in % of sales 3.3 % – 0.9 % 3.0 % – 7.2 % 1.9 % 6.5 % 8.6 %

Cash flow from / used in operat. activities 7) 28.8 73.8 46.5 53.3 41.6 65.6 66.6

Free cash flow (before income taxes) 17.5 42.4 27.9 41.0 31.6 44.0 43.7

Changes compared to prior year

 Sales 18.3 % 7.5 % 5.1 % – 13.6 % 1.1 % 13.5 % 7.7 %

 Gross profit 21.2 % 5.7 % 1.3 % – 20.5 % 16.7 % 22.5 % 10.5 %

 EBITDA 21.1 % 13.2 % – 14.7 % – 65.5 % 157.9 % 27.8 % 1.2 %

 Result from operating activities 52.5 % – 7.6 % 5.1 % – 153.1 % – 69.5 % 11.5 %

 Earnings after tax 307.6 % – 128.5 % 460.9 % – 304.2 % – 292.2 % 42.2 %

Employees (average) 2,849 3,215 3,292 3,206 2,800 2,894 3,066

Personnel expenses (incl. pensions) 180.1 192.3 194.7 187.3 177.5 183.8 201.2

 Personnel ratio (in % of sales) 37.1 % 36.9 % 35.5 % 39.5 % 37.1 % 33.8 % 34.4 %

 Sales per employee (in KEUR) 170.3 162.3 166.6 147.7 171.0 187.7 190.8

Cost of materials (incl. purchased services) 227.1 252.2 252.5 206.6 207.6 230.5 242.0

 materials ratio  
 (in % company performance) 44.5 % 45.1 % 44.7 % 41.9 % 41.0 % 41.1 % 40.3 %

Research and development expenses 33.8 39.0 34.1 32.6 28.1 32.0 36.0

 in % of sales 7.0 % 7.5 % 6.2 % 6.9 % 5.9 % 5.9 % 6.2 %

Net value added 213.3 221.2 226.7 163.8 204.7 231.0 254.4

 in % of company performance 8) 41.8 % 39.5 % 40.1 % 33.2 % 40.8 % 41.1 % 42.4 %

 of which shareholders, company share 7.6 % – 2.1 % 7.3 % – 20.7 % 4.4 % 15.3 % 19.7 %

Return on sales based on EBIT 7.9 % 6.8 % 6.8 % – 4.2 % 6.1 % 9.0 % 9.4 %

Total turnover of assets 0.56 0.75 0.80 0.78 0.76 0.84 0.87

Total return on capital based on EBIT 4.4 % 5.1 % 5.4 % – 3.2 % 4.6 % 7.6 % 8.2 %

Return on shareholders’ equity before tax
(at balance sheet date) 6.4 % 0.2 % 6.9 % – 14.3 % 5.3 % 12.1 % 14.0 %

Adjusted shareholders´ equity ratio 9) 33.5 % 32.5 % 34.8 % 31.3 % 42.8 % 44.0 % 47.0 %

Non-current assets financed
by shareholders’ equity 71.8 % 72.5 % 77.8 % 71.2 % 90.9 % 95.9 % 99.0 %

Asset cover 10) 175.9 % 159.7 % 171.7 % 157.8 % 202.6 % 216.7 % 230.7 %

  1) continuing operations
  2) adjusted due to first time consolidation of IAS 19R
  3) financial liabilities less cash / cash equivalents and securities
  4) balance sheet total less intangible assets and cash including securities held as current investment
  5) EBIT before depreciation / write-ups on tangible and intangible assets
  6) operating income before interest and investment result
  7) earnings after tax + changes in provisions + despreciation / write-up, each excluding effects from first time consolidation and deconsolidation
  8) company performance = sales plus other operating income, investment result and income from securities
  9) shareholders’ equity less intangible assets / balance sheet total less intangible ssets, cash / cash equivalents and securities
10) shareholders’ equity / tangible assets without property => ratio of plant, machinery and office equipment financed through shareholders’ equity

historical summary of financial data in accordance with ifrs (2)
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Segment reporting

segment reporting 

the presentation of segments is in accordance with ifrs 8 

“operating segments”. 

ifrs 8 follows the management approach. accordingly the 

external reporting is based on the group internal organizational 

and management structure as well as on the internal reporting 

structure to the chief operating decision maker. the executive 

Board analyses the financial information which serves as a deci-

sion basis for the allocation of resources and for measuring 

profitability. the accounting policies for the segments are the 

same as those for the Group described under accounting prin-

ciples. important management indicators in the company are 

the operating result before net financial result and taxes and 

the free cash flow. 

for the fiscal year 2012 segment reporting is unchanged com-

pared to the previous year and is according to the business  

segments lasers & optical systems, metrology, defense & civil 

systems and other. 

Business activities can be analyzed into three operative business 

segments and the segment other which are managed by the 

executive Board and supported by the executive management 

Board. in addition to the members of the executive Board this 

body consists of the top management of the segments and an 

executive vice president. the three business segments are at 

the same time the reportable segments.

further sub-division of the segments is oriented towards the 

internal divisional structure, whereby the lasers & material pro-

cessing and optical systems divisions are combined to form the 

laser & optical systems segment and the industrial metrology 

and traffic solutions divisions are combined to form the metrol-

ogy segment. the defense & civil systems segment represents 

the division with the same name.

the lasers & optical system segment offers the complete value-

added chain of laser material processing from the component 

through to complex systems. the optical systems division offers 

opto-mechanical and opto-electrical systems, modules and 

components and is development and production partner for 

optical, micro-optical and optical coating components – made 

of optical glass, infra-red materials and of plastics.

in the metrology segment, the division industrial metrology is 

known as a manufacturer and systems provider for high-preci-

sion, contact and non-contact production metrology. the traf-

fic solutions division develops, produces and sells components 

and systems for traffic security. 

the main focus of the defense & civil systems segment is on 

the areas of vehicle, train and aircraft equipment, mechanical 

and stabilization technology, energy systems and opto-elec-

tronic systems.

the segment other includes jenoptik aG, jenoptik ssc Gmbh, 

the real estate companies, jenoptik north america inc. and 

jenoptik (shanghai) precision instruments and equipment co., 

ltd. with its business unit ssc. in the prior year all business 

units of jenoptik (shanghai) precision instruments and equip-

ment co. ltd. were provisionally allocated to this segment. in 

2012 the business units were allocated to their respective seg-

ments. 

the item consolidation includes the consolidation of the busi-

ness relationships between the segments as well as the neces-

sary reconciliations and reclassifications. 

the business relationships between companies of the segments 

of the jenoptik Group are based on prices which would also be 

agreed with third parties.
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segment reporting

in KEUR

Lasers &
Optical

Systems metrology

Defense
& Civil

Systems Other Consolidation Group

Sales 212,244
(217,099)

182,725
(140,081)

186,407
(183,345)

26,853
(25,932)

– 23,205
(– 23,158)

585,025
(543,298)

of which Germany 65,767
(65,974)

48,401
(44,198)

90,288
(108,235)

26,699
(25,871)

– 23,054
(– 22,447)

208,101
(221,831)

  Europe 60,237
(71,303)

33,961
(35,861)

56,490
(58,671)

58
(44)

– 58
(– 35)

150,688
(165,843)

  America 40,211
(43,954)

40,251
(23,595)

29,525
(11,240)

82
(17)

– 79
(– 676)

109,990
(78,131)

  middle East and Africa 13,663
(11,873)

25,303
(7,813)

8,115
(1,401)

0
(0)

0
(0)

47,081
(21,088)

  Asia / Pacific 32,365
(23,995)

34,809
(28,614)

1,990
(3,799)

14
(0)

– 14
(-0)

69,165
(56,406)

EBIT 27,109
(29,235)

25,652
(11,950)

7,787
(11,609)

– 5,710
– (3,640)

2
(7)

54,840
(49,161)

EBITDA 36,423
(40,539)

28,620
(15,385)

13,230
(16,571)

– 611
(4,324)

2
(7)

77,664
(76,826)

Result from investments – 1,392
(– 2,009)

148
(107)

– 1,008
(194)

209
(– 626)

1
(0)

– 2,042
(– 2,334)

Research and development
expenses

14,679
(14,127)

14,158
(9,584)

7,056
(8,232)

370
(353)

– 228
(– 314)

36,035
(31,982)

Free cash flow
(before income taxes)

17,558
(28,705)

24,259
(4,933)

5,453
(2,075)

– 3,625
(8,291)

58
(0)

43,703
(44,004)

working capital 51,095
(47,609)

63,171
(51,402)

98,113
(93,228)

– 9,489
(– 1,880)

– 53
(0)

202,837
(190,359)

Order intake 219,862
(224,444)

198,709
(166,739)

165,034
(254,450)

26,838
(25,932)

– 23,244
(– 23,628)

587,199
(647,937)

Tangible assets, investment
properties and intangible assets

87,182
(82,041)

15,304
(14,291)

36,323
(35,463)

94,633
(95,879)

0
(0)

233,442
(227,675)

 Investments excluding 
company acquisitions

15,251
(12,930)

3,275
(2,175)

6,352
(8,529)

6,347
(1,428)

0
(0)

31,225
(25,061)

 Depreciation and 
 impairment

9,314
(11,304)

2,968
(3,434)

5,443
(4,962)

5,099
(7,965)

0
(0)

22,824
(27,665)

Employees (annual average)
(without trainees)

1,272
(1,220)

745
(644)

869
(873)

180
(157)

0
(0)

3,066
(2,894)

EBIT = operating result

EBITDA = Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
Amounts in brackets relate to the prior year.

information by segment
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Segment reporting

working capital comprises inventories, trade accounts receiv-

able and receivables from construction contracts less trade 

accounts payable, liabilities from construction contracts and on 

account payments received. 

non-current assets comprise intangible assets, tangible assets, 

and investment properties.

there were no relationships with individual customers whose 

share of sales is material relative to group sales.

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Group 233,442 227,675

thereof Germany 218,100 211,573

 Europe 2,101 1,896

 America 12,157 13,129

 Asia / Pacific 1,084 1,077

non-current assets by region

order intake relates to the estimated volume of sales for the 

contracts taken on after income reductions under consideration 

of changes in the contract value. notices of intention are not 

included in the order intake.

free cash flow is calculated from cash flow from operating 

activities (before income taxes) less investments in intangible 

assets and tangible assets plus disinvestments.

the non-current assets include intangible assets, tangible assets 

and investment properties. the assets are allocated to the 

respective regions corresponding to the location of the com-

panies.



INFORMATION FOR shARehOldeRs

151

g
r

o
u

p
 n

o
t

e
s

c
o

n
so

li
d

a
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

st
a

te
m

en
ts

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

JenoPtiK 2012

grouP management rePort

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

resPonsibility statement

auditors’ rePort

notes to the statement of comprehensive income

notes to the statement  
of comprehensive income

1 SALES

sales increased overall by keur 41,726 or 7.7 percent to keur 

585,025 compared to 2011 and mainly result from the sale of 

goods. sales resulting from revenues from construction con-

tracts amounting to keur 7,365 (2011 keur 6,422) of which 

keur 3,894 (2011 0) are due to percentage of completion.

detailed disclosures on sales by segment and region are shown 

in the segment reporting.

2 COST OF SALES

in KEUR 2012 2011

Cost of materials 223,783 216,997

Personnel expenses 109,100 101,207

Depreciation and amortization 16,336 16,704

Other cost of sales 32,419 24,378

total 381,638 359,287

cost of sales includes the costs incurred in generating sales. 

this item also includes provisions made for transactions 

dependent on sales.

cost of sales increased overall by keur 22,351 or 6.2 percent 

to keur 381,638 compared to 2011. cost of sales thus rose 

less than proportionally compared to sales. 

cost of sales do not include impairment costs of intangible and 

tangible assets (2011 keur 32).

cost of sales for long-term contracts amounted to keur 7,287 

(2011 keur 5,364). the profit generated from this in the fiscal 

year amounted to keur 78 (2011 keur 1,128) and a loss had 

to be accounted for of keur 453 (2011 0).

3 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPmENT ExPENSES

research and development expenses include all expenses alloca-

ble to research and development. research and development 

costs paid for by customers are not included in the research and 

development expenses but allocated to cost of sales. 

research and development expenses increased overall by keur 

4,053 or 12.7 percent to keur 36,035 compared to the fiscal 

year 2011. the increase was almost proportional to sales. 

research and development costs include impairments amount - 

ing to keur 567 (2011 keur 164).

4 SELLING ExPENSES

selling expenses mainly comprise marketing costs, sales com-

missions, publicity work and advertising. selling expenses 

increased overall by keur 3,169 or 5.1 percent to keur 65,077 

compared to fiscal year 2011. in addition to the costs for fur-

ther expansion of the selling function internationally these also 

include costs proportional to sales such as costs of freight and 

selling commission.

5 GENERAL AND ADmINISTRATIVE ExPENSES

General administrative expenses include personnel and non-

personnel costs as well as depreciation and amortization  

relating to the administration function. General administrative 

ex-penses rose by keur 3,692 or 9.5 percent to keur 42,585 

compared to previous year. 

furthermore general administrative expenses include the audi-

tors fees amounting to keur 2,156 (2011 keur 1,106) of which 

for auditor’s fees keur 868 (2011 keur 870 ), fees for other 

services of the auditor keur 1,098 (2011 keur 206), for other 

certification services keur 49 (2011 keur 10), for tax services 

keur 140 (2011 keur 20).
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other operating expenses increased compared to the prior year 

by keur 751 or 3.0 percent to keur 26,004. the expenses for 

reorganisation and restructuring exclusively relate to optimiza-

tion of location in Germany and in the usa. detailed informa-

tion is included in the management report in point 1.1. the 

expenses of the erp projects mainly relate to the hcm and the 

jenoptik one erp (joe) projects.

expenses from exchange rate losses mainly includes losses on 

exchange rate fluctuations on foreign exchange receivables and pay-

ables between transaction date and payment date and exchange 

losses from the balance sheet date rate valuation. exchange gains 

from these transactions are disclosed under other operating income. 

a net view of exchange rate gains and losses leads to a net profit of 

keur 482 (2011 keur 80). 

additions to allowances against trade accounts receivable 

amounted to keur 1,631 eur. the increases to and reversal of 

provisions include increases of keur 2,020 and reversals of 

keur 3,535. further details on this can be found in note 29.

8  RESULT FROm INVESTmENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND 

JOINT VENTURES AND FROm INVESTmENTS

in fiscal year 2011 the result from investments in associates and 

joint ventures include a loss from the disposal of an associated 

company.

in KEUR 2012 2011

Impairments on financial assets and
non-current asset securities – 1,939 – 1,748

Results from investments – 103 409

total – 2,042 – 1,339

the impairments on financial assets and on non-current asset 

securities primarily relate to write-downs of loans to affiliated 

non-consolidated entities. this position also includes a reversal 

of a prior year allowance.

6 OTHER OPERATING INCOmE

in KEUR 2012 2011

Foreign exchange gains 5,535 8,449

Income from services, allocation and rental 3,096 3,266

Income from the reversal of allowances
on receivables 2,103 1,842

Income from government grants 1,108 2,507

Income from the disposal of fixed assets 600 1,814

Income from compensation / insurance
payments 470 67

miscellaneous 3,564 3,362

total 16,476 21,307

other operating income declined overall by keur 4,831 (minus 

22.4 percent) keur 16,476.

income from exchange rate gains mainly includes gains on exchange 

rate fluctuations on foreign exchange receivables and payables 

between transaction date and payment date and exchange gains 

from the balance sheet date rate valuation. exchange losses from 

these transactions are disclosed under other operating expenses.

7 OTHER OPERATING ExPENSES

in KEUR 2012 2011

Expenses of reorganisation
and restructuring 5,857 0

Foreign exchange losses 5,053 8,369

Expenses for ERP projects 4,141 696

Expenses due to penalties 2,872 0

Other taxes 1,060 769

Expenses for services and rent 819 4,493

Amortization of intangible assets
on first-time consolidation 561 1,611

Losses on disposal of fixed assets 180 3,592

Increase / reversal of provisions
and allowances 116 – 2,202

Impairment tangible
assets / investment properties 0 4,868

miscellaneous 5,345 3,057

total 26,004 25,253
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9 NET INTEREST RESULT

in KEUR 2012 2011

Income from securities
and financial asset loans 409 250

Income from fixed deposits 266 590

Income from guarantees 55 61

Other interest and similar income 594 882

total interest income 1,324 1,783

Interest expense on debenture loans
(impacting cash) 3,244 783

Interest expense on pension
provisions 743 610

Interest portion of leasing instalments
for finance leasing 91 282

Expense in connection with the premature 
repayment of guarantee loans 0 518

Other interest and similar expenses 3,931 10,242

total interest expenses 8,009 12,435

net interest result – 6,685 – 10,652

the net interest result improved by keur 3,967 to minus 

keur 6,685 (2011 minus keur 10,652). this is mainly due to a 

reduction of interest expenses of keur 4,426 to keur 8,009 

(2011 keur 12,435).

whilst the income from the fixed deposits reduced due to the 

persistently low interest level to keur 266 (2011 keur 590), 

other interest and similar income decreased by keur 288 to 

keur 594 (2011 keur 882). 

the interest expenses of the prior year was burdened with one-

time expenses in connection with the premature redemption of 

the guarantee loans (2011 keur 518). 

the rise in interest expenses for debenture loans to keur 3,244 

(2010 keur 783) reflects the interest for the new debenture 

loan placed in october of the prior year. this increase is matched 

by a significant decline in other interest and similar expenses to 

keur 3,931 (2011 keur 10,242). in the prior year this item 

included the interest for the guarantee loans which was sub-

stantially higher than that of the new debenture loans. apart 

from this, liabilities to banks declined in the year under review 

which also contributed to the reduction in other interest.

the interest proportion of the leasing instalments declined 

since in may of the year under report, the relevant leasing con-

tracts were prematurely repaid.

10 INCOmE TAxES 

income taxes comprise the current taxes (paid or owed) on 

income in the individual countries as well as the deferred taxes. 

the calculation of the current income tax expense for the 

jenoptik Group is subject to the tax rates applicable at the bal-

ance sheet date. 

the calculation of domestic deferred taxes is based on a corpo-

ration tax rate of 29.3 percent (2011 29.6 percent). in addition 

to corporation tax amounting to 15 percent (2011 15 percent) 

and the solidarity levy amounting to 5.5 percent (2011 5.5 per-

cent) of the corporation tax charge there was an effective trade 

tax rate of 13.48 percent (2011 13.78 percent). for foreign 

companies the calculation of deferred taxes is based on the tax 

rates applicable in each relevant country.

deferred taxes are included in the statement of comprehensive 

income as tax income or tax expense unless they relate to items 

not impacting results which are accounted for directly in other 

comprehensive income. in this case the deferred taxes are also 

accounted for in other comprehensive income not impacting 

results.

the tax expense which relates to the result of the continuing 

business divisions is classified according to its origin as follows: 

in KEUR 2012 2011

Current income taxes

 Domestic 3,879 4,156

 Foreign countries 1,661 248

total 5,540 4,404

Deferred tax income

 Domestic – 6,361 – 2,731

 Foreign countries – 3,283 – 799

total – 9,644 – 3,530

total taxes on income – 4,104 874
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current taxes on income include an expense of keur 235 (2011 

expense keur 206) for current taxes of prior fiscal periods. the 

deferred tax expense and income include income from a previous 

year of keur 1,373 (2011 income keur 594).

the deferred tax income includes an expense of keur 4,967 

(2011 income keur 3,282) based on the development of tim-

ing differences.

at the balance sheet date the jenoptik Group has the following 

unused tax losses carried forward for offsetting against future 

profits:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Corporation tax 424,698 438,764

Trade tax 591,675 601,276

the reduction in tax losses carried forward mainly results from 

utilization in the period under review. after accounting for all 

currently known positive and negative influencing factors on 

in KEUR

Deferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities

31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Intangible assets 1,899 1,249 2,530 2,949

Tangible assets 712 4,156 2,939 3,049

Financial assets 11,265 17,428 1,217 1,290

Inventories 5,496 3,780 185 46

Receivables and other assets 3,899 4,600 1,681 1,490

Provisions and accruals 13,522 7,683 398 0

Liabilities 1,210 1,756 2,006 2,039

Tax loss carried forward 48,991 39,980 0 0

Gross value 86,994 80,632 10,956 10,863

 (of which non-current) (66,253) (63,835) (7,487) (7,726)

write-downs – 10,759 – 16,746 0 0

Offsetting – 7,884 – 6,904 – 7,884 – 6,904

Balance sheet presentation 68,351 56,982 3,072 3,959

the future tax results of the jenoptik Group, it is expected that 

corporation tax losses carried forward of keur 164,086  

(2011 keur 135,652) and trade tax losses carried forward of 

keur 164,299 (2011 keur 131,227) will be utilized. 

with regard to these usable losses carried forward a deferred 

tax asset has been accounted for amounting to keur 48,991 

(2011 keur 39,980). of this keur 22,139 (2011 keur 17,960) 

relate to trade tax loss carry forwards.

with regard to the remaining losses carried forward no deferred 

tax asset is accounted for for corporation tax purposes on 

keur 260,612 (2011 keur 303,112) and for trade tax pur-poses 

on keur 427,376 (2011 keur 470,049). of the losses carried  

forward keur 13,526 (2011 keur 13,491) are restricted in terms 

of the time they can be carried forward.

furthermore, no deferred tax asset has been accounted for for 

deductible timing differences amounting to keur 36,400 (2011 

keur 54,511).

the following deferred tax assets and liabilities have arisen from recognition and measurement differences on individual balance 

sheet items and on tax losses carried forward:
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in KEUR 2012 2011

Earnings before tax 46,113 36,175

of which earnings before tax of discontinued operations 4,678 1,879

Earnings before tax of continuing operations 41,435 34,296

Income tax rate Jenoptik Group 29.3 % 29.6 %

expected tax expense 12,140 10,152

Tax impact of the following effects led to a difference
between actual and expected tax expense:

 Non-deductible expenses, tax-free income and permanent differences – 588 – 473

 Changes in allowances against deferred taxes and      
     non-recognition of deferred taxes – 17,413 – 6,176

 Effects of tax rate differences in 2012 – 467 245

 Effects of tax rate changes 638 – 2,277

 Taxes from previous years 1,608 – 390

 Other tax effects – 22 – 207

total adjustments – 16,244 – 9,278

actual tax expense – 4,104 874

the net balance of the excess deferred tax assets increased by 

keur 12,256. considering the deferred taxes offset neutrally in 

the year under review (keur minus 2,660), as well as the 

effects from foreign currency translation (keur 48), a deferred 

tax credit of keur 9,644 is disclosed in income. 

the following table shows the tax reconciliation of the 

expected tax expense for the relevant fiscal year to the actual 

tax expense disclosed. in order to calculate the expected tax 

expense the Group tax rate valid for the fiscal year 2012 of 

29.3 percent (2011 29.6 percent) was multiplied by the earn-

ings before tax.

11 NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST IN PROFIT / LOSS

the non-controlling interest of Group profit / loss amounts to 

minus keur 19 (2011 minus keur 26) and relates to the non-

controlling interests in a consolidated company.

12 RESULTS OF DISCONTINUED BUSINESS DIVISION

in connection with the sale of jena-optronik Gmbh in the fiscal 

year 2010 a provision for guarantee risks existed as of decem-

ber 31, 2011. in june 2012 the statutory period of limitation 

expires for these risks. consequently, the provisions set up for 

them were reversed. income tax only arose to an immaterial 

degree in this connection. the reversal of the provision had no 

effect on cash flow.

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

the earnings per share represent the earnings attributable to 

shareholders divided by the weighted average number of shares 

outstanding of 57,238,115 (2011 57,238,115).

2012 2011

Net profit of shareholder in KEUR 50,236 35,326

weighted average of outstanding 
shares 57,238,115 57,238,115

Earnings per share in euro – 
continuing operations 0.80 0.58

Earnings per share in euro
(undiluted = diluted) 0.88 0.62
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there are no restrictions on use of intangible assets. the order 

commitment for intangible assets amounts to keur 159 

(31.12.2011 keur 1,786).

the impairment losses accounted for against intangible assets 

in the period of keur 567 are recorded in research and devel-

opment expenses.

in KEUR

Development 
costs from 

internal 
development 

projects

Patents, 
trademarks, 

software, 
customer 
relations Goodwill

Other intan-
gible assets Total

acquisition / production costs
Balance as at 1.1.2012

16,073
(19,745)

44,723
(42,644)

65,758
(65,729)

1,129
(1,959)

127,683
(130,077)

Currency translation 1
(4)

– 65
(119)

– 73
(110)

– 6
(– 3)

– 143
(230)

Changes in companies consolidated 0
(– 1,785)

0
(– 19)

0
(– 454)

0
(– 58)

0
(– 2,316)

Additions 1,240
(533)

3,607
(1,238)

0
(0)

1,868
(334)

6,716
(2,105)

Disposals 1,152
(2,423)

824
(194)

0
(– 372)

91
(181)

2,067
(2,426)

Reclassifications (+ / –) 0 
(0)

177
(935)

0 
(0)

28
(– 922)

205
(13)

acquisition / production costs
Balance as at 31.12.2012

16,162
(16,073)

47,619
(44,723)

65,685
(65,758)

2,928
(1,129)

132,394
(127,683)

amortization, depreciation and impairments
Balance as at 1.1.2012

11,990
(14,842)

36,919
(33,337)

9,889
(9,518)

0 
(0)

58,798
(57,697)

Currency translation 1
(4)

– 55
(91)

1 
(0)

0 
(0)

– 53 
(95)

Changes in companies consolidated 0 
(– 1,781)

0 
(– 28)

0 
(0)

0 
(0)

0
(– 1,809)

Additions 849
(1,184)

3,064
(3,460)

0 
(0)

0 
(0)

3,913
(4,644)

Impairment 567
(164)

0
(212)

0 
(0)

0 
(0)

567
(376)

Disposals 1,152
(2,422)

494
(166)

0
(– 371)

0 
(0)

1,646
(2,217)

Reclassifications (+ / –) 0 
(0)

192
(13)

0 
(0)

0 
(0)

192
(13)

amortization, depreciation and impairments
Balance as at 31.12.2012

12,255
(11,990)

39,626
(36,919)

9,891
(9,889)

0 
(0)

61,772
(58,798)

net book value
as at 31.12.2012

3,907
(4,083)

7,993
(7,804)

55,794
(55,868)

2,928
(1,129)

70,622
(68,884)

(The amounts in brackets relate to the prior year.)

notes to the balance sheet

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
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in prior year the change in companies consolidated relate to the 

deconsolidation of innovavent Gmbh, Göttingen, as the result of 

a sale, as well as the first-time consolidation of jenoptik (shang-

hai) precision instruments and equipment co., ltd., shanghai.

apart from goodwill there are no intangible assets with an 

undefined useful life.

the impairment test is carried out at the level of the cash-gen-

erating unit which benefits from the synergies of the relevant 

business combination and represents the lowest level at which 

goodwill is monitored for internal company management. 

if the carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is higher than 

its recoverable amount then the allocated goodwill should be 

impaired in accordance with the impairment amount. the 

impairment test is based on the recoverable amount, i. e., the 

higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

jenoptik determines the value in use based on a discounted 

cash flow method. the basis for this is the five-year business 

forecast as approved by management and supervisory Board. 

this accounts for the experience of the past and is based on 

the management’s best estimate of the future development. 

the planning of the cash flow of the detailed forecast is based 

on different growth rates. these growth rates take into account 

the development and dynamic of the respective industrial sec-

tor and target markets. a perpetuity without a growth compo-

nent is assumed, the value of which is derived individually by 

management for each cash-generating unit from the fifth fore-

cast year. one-off effects in the final forecast year are eliminated 

before the calculation of the perpetual annuity.

for the impairment test risk-adjusted interest rates between 

6.59 percent and 8.84 percent (31.12.2011 between 7.60 per-

cent and 8.96 percent) are applied. the discount rates are 

based on a current cost of capital study for companies of the 

hdax and represent the weighted average capital costs before 

taxes of the jenoptik Group accounting for the individual risk of 

the cash-generating units. the cash-generating units are classi-

fied into three risk classes, whereby the allocation to the risk 

classes depends on the standard deviation of the results of the 

cGus for the years 2007 to 2011.

as at december 31, 2012 goodwill amounts to keur 55,793 

(31.12.2011 keur 55,868). as in the prior year there were no 

impairment losses incurred in the fiscal year 2012. the change 

results from currency effects. the goodwill on the cash-gener-

ating unit “shanghai”, which was accounted for for the first 

time in the prior year, will be allocated to the cash generating 

unit “segment / business unit industrial metrology”. the follow-

ing table summarises the cash generating units by segment:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Lasers & Optical Systems

Optoelectronic Systems business unit 38,074 38,086

Optical systems USA 1,328 1,354

Laser business unit 3,071 3,071

metrology

Industrial metrology business unit 4,155 3,586

Business unit traffic safety equipment 1,245 1,245

Defense & Civil Systems

Energy systems business area 7,920 7,920

Other

Shanghai 0 606

total 55,793 55,868

the following table shows the percentage allocation of good-

will to the segments:

in Percent 2012 2011

Lasers & Optical Systems 76 76

metrology 10 9

Defense & Civil Systems 14 14

Other 0 1

total 100 100

 

for all group companies and cash generating units to which 

goodwill is allocated as at december 31, 2012 a sensitivity 

analysis was carried out. even with a reduction in cash flows of 

15 percent and a simultaneous increase in the discount rate by 

3 percentage points to 9.59 percent to 11.84 points would not 

lead to a recoverable amount lower than carrying amount.
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restrictions on use of tangible assets amount to keur 42 

(31.12.2011 keur 455). tangible assets order commitments 

amount to keur 5,692 (31.12.2011 keur 3,664). 

15 TANGIBLE ASSETS

in KEUR
Land,

buildings

Technical 
equipment and 

machines

Other 
equipment, 

factory
and office 
equpment

Assets under 
construction Total

acquisition / production costs
Balance as at 1.1.2012

126,983
(129,212)

143,143
(139,075)

78,615
(77,754)

11,279
(3,160)

360,020
(349,201)

Currency translation – 145
(315)

– 331
(564)

– 62
(91)

– 1
(8)

– 539
(978)

Change in companies consolidated 0
(264)

0
(179)

0
(– 1,244)

0
(0)

0
(– 801)

Additions 2,727
(1,264)

4,340
(6,485)

7,932
(5,348)

10,831
(9,829)

25,831
(22,926)

Disposals 64
(407)

5,962
(3,990)

3,977
(3,648)

22
(142)

10,025
(8,187)

Reclassifications (+ / –) 4,222
(– 3,665)

1,696
(830)

221
(314)

– 8,718
(– 1,576)

– 2,579
(– 4,097)

acquisition / production costs
Balance as at 31.12.2012

133,723
(126,983)

142,886
(143,143)

82,728
(78,615)

13,369
(11,279)

372,706
(360,020)

depreciation Balance as at 1.1.2012 48,734
(44,517)

111,609
(104,539)

61,487
(60,740)

0 
(0)

221,830
(209,796)

Currency translation – 80
(164)

– 251
(187)

– 40
(53)

0 
(0)

– 370
(403)

Change in companies consolidated 0
(108)

0
(61)

0
(– 1,206)

0 
(0)

0
(– 1,037)

Additions 4,194
(3,884)

7,826
(8,447)

5,850
(5,431)

0 
(0)

17,870
(17,762)

Impairment 0
(154)

0
(2,180)

0
(48)

0 
(0)

0
(2,382)

Disposals 14
(– 1,080)

4,138
(3,867)

3,778
(3,521)

0 
(0)

7,930
(6,209)

Reclassifications (+ / –) – 615
(– 1,173)

– 1.041
(– 158)

– 277
(– 73)

0 
(0)

– 1,933
(– 1,404)

depreciation Balance as at 31.12.2012 52,219
(48,734)

114,005
(111,609)

63,242
(61,487)

0 
(0)

229,466
(221,830)

net book value as at 31.12.2012 81,505
(78,249)

28,881
(31,534)

19,486
(17,128)

13,369
(11,279)

143,240
(138,190)

(The amounts in brackets relate to the prior year.)

of the investment grants keur 443 (31.12.2011 keur 534) 

was deducted from the acquisition costs of the tangible assets. 

land and buildings of the Group of keur 81,505 (31.12.2011 

keur 78,249) include in particular the production and adminis-

tration buildings in jena, triptis, villingen-schwenningen and 

altenstadt.
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16  INVESTmENT PROPERTIES

 

in KEUR Investment 

acquisition / production costs
Balance as at 1.12.2012

34,260
(36,186)

Disposals 1,975
(5,891)

Reclassifications 801
(3,965)

acquisition / production costs
Balance as at 31.12.2012

33,086
(34,260)

depreciation  
Balance as at 1.1.2012

13,659
(14,106)

Additions 472
(574)

Impairment 0
(2,307)

Reversal 0
(380)

Disposals 787
(4,221)

Reclassifications 162
(1,273)

depreciation  
Balance as at 31.12.2002

13,506
(13,659)

net book value  
as at 31.12.2012

19,580
(20,601)

(The amounts in brackets relate to the prior year.)

investment properties held as at december 31, 2012 primarily 

include a real estate fund to which mainly properties located in 

the industrial area of jena-Göschwitz belong. this real estate 

fund has been included in the consolidated financial statements 

in accordance with ias 27 in conjunction with sic-12. 

during the fiscal year 2012 reclassifications were carried out 

from tangible assets to investment properties since the relevant 

properties now fulfil the criteria of ias 40. the purchase and 

manufacturing costs of the reclassified properties amount to 

keur 801 (31.12.2011 keur 6,255). 

the disposals mainly include the sale of land as well as an office 

building in the industrial area of jena-Göschwitz.

the measurement of investment properties is at amortized cost 

amounting to keur 19,580 (31.12.2011 keur 20,601). in the 

fiscal year 2011 there were no impairment losses (2011 keur 

2,307). additionally, no reversal of impairment was accounted 

for (2011 keur 380).

due to a lack of current market data the fair value is determined 

based on a discounted cash flow method. under this method 

the net rentals (excluding energy costs) are determined and dis-

counted over the total remaining useful lives of the properties. 

risk-adjusted interest rates are used as a discount rate. 

in total the fair values calculated for the investment properties 

amount to keur 22,828 (31.12.2011 keur 24,212). 

rental income from investment properties held at the fiscal year 

end amount to keur 2,258 (31.12.2011 keur 2,395). 

the direct operating costs for the fiscal year 2012 of the rented 

space of properties and movables held at the year-end amount 

to keur 1,219 (31.12.2011 keur 3,722) and for non-rented 

space keur 129 (31.12.2011 keur 200). the decline in expenses 

is mainly due to the fact that there are no impairment losses in 

the year under review (31.12.2011 keur 2,307).



notes to the consolidated financial statements

160 JENOPTIK 2012

Notes to the balance sheet

17 LEASING 

FINANCE LEASE

The Group as lessee. finance leasing comprises technical 

equipment and machinery. this relates to one rental contract 

which is based on a marginal loan interest rate of 5.4 percent.

the assets held under finance leases are included in capitalized 

tangible assets at keur 718 (31.12.2011 keur 2,846). the pur-

chase and manufacturing costs of the assets held under finance 

leases as at the balance sheet date amount to keur 5,031 

(31.12.2011 keur 8,272). the decline in assets which relate to 

finance lease contracts results from the premature release of a 

long-term contract for finance leasing.

in the fiscal year 2012 lease payments were keur 433 

(31.12.2011 keur 908), thereof keur 20 (31.12.2011 keur 280) 

have been charged against income.

leasing payments due in the future can be seen from the fol-

lowing table:

in KEUR
Up to
1 year

1 – 5
years

more than 
5 years Total

minimum lease
payments 44 0 0 44

Interest portion
included in payments 1 0 0 1

Present value 43 0 0 43

The Group as lessor. one Group company has concluded 

finance leases under which it is lessor. the contract is for the 

delivery of digital speed measurement equipment to lithuania.

the leasing contracts underlying this have a term of 76 and 83 

months, commencing in august and december 2009. the  

customer has a purchase option at the end of the term. until 

this time legal ownership remains with jenoptik robot Gmbh, 

monheim am rhein. 

for the finance leasing transactions described above amounts 

due from finance leasing of keur 2,223 (31.12.2011 keur 

2,787) have been accounted for in the fiscal year 2012. out-

standing minimum lease payments and their present value, 

determined based on an interest rate of 5.7 percent, are pre-

sented as follows:

in KEUR
Up to
1 year

1 – 5
years

more than 
5 years Total

minimum lease
payments 400 2,509 0 2,909

Interest portion
included in payments 13 673 0 686

Present value 387 1,836 0 2,223

unrealized finance income amounts to keur 686 (31.12.2011 

keur 462).

OPERATING LEASE

The Group as lessee. operating leasing mainly consists of rental 

income for trade properties as well as for office and data pro-

cessing equipment. 

payments under leasing agreements amounting to keur 8,618 

(31.12.2011 keur 8,281) have been charged against income.

as at the balance sheet date the Group has open commitments 

from non-cancellable operating leases which are due as fol-

lows:

in KEUR
Up to
1 year

1 – 5
years

more than 
5 years Total

minimum lease
payments 8,308 24,478 28,382 61,168

The Group as lessor. within operating leases the Group rents 

out trade properties. income from leasing tangible assets and 

investment properties in the period under review amounted to 

keur 4,271 (31.12.2011 keur 4,762). 
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at the balance sheet date the following minimum lease pay-

ments are agreed between the Group and lessees:

in KEUR
Up to
1 year

1 – 5
years

more than 
5 years Total

minimum lease
payments 3.670 5,275 615 9,560

rental income with no specified term is included as the amount 

of rental income until the earliest possible date for cancellation. 

probable sub-letting of space or extension options on rental 

contracts have not been included in the calculation.

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Shares in non-consolidated
affiliated companies 3,020 2,299

Investments 15,137 14,826

Loans to non-consolidated
affiliated companies and investments 1,288 2,949

Non-current securities 1,353 1,592

Other loans 6,407 1,127

total 27,205 22,793

during the fiscal year 2012 impairment of keur 3,351 

(31.12.2011 keur 18,107) was accounted for against financial 

assets. thereof keur 1,992 is related to loans to two non-con-

solidated affiliated entities. furthermore, expenses of valuating 

a low interest loan were taken into account with an amount of 

keur 917.

the additions to other loans result from a loan extended as part 

of a co-financing commitment. 

19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

other non-current assets include:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Amounts due from leasing contracts 2,223 2,400

Reinsurance coverage 1,521 1,564

Derivatives 167 7

Surplus amount from funded
pension obligation 1) 0 0

miscellaneous 869 960

total 4,780 4,931

1) Prior year changed due to early application of IAS 19R. See notes for details 27.

the derivatives relate to forward exchange contracts which 

provide long-term protection against risk. derivative financing 

instruments are explained in detail under note 35.

20 DEFERRED TAx

the development of the balance sheet item of deferred taxes is 

described under note 10.

21 INVENTORIES

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Raw materials, consumables and supplies 64,442 65,631

work in progress 87,856 88,553

Finished goods and merchandise 16,972 14,932

total 169,270 169,116

inventories increased marginally by keur 154 compared to the 

prior year. 

the carrying value corresponds to the lower value of net realiza-

ble value and acquisition or production costs. at the fiscal year 

end cumulative write-downs of keur 34,017 (2011 keur 33,364) 

were accounted for against the net realizable value. reversals of 

previous write-downs amounted to keur 826 (2011 keur 162) 

because the reason for impairment in prior years no longer 

exists. the utilization of inventories mainly affected cost of sales.
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for the credit line of a subsidiary amounting to keur 30,000 

receivables of keur 22,708 and inventories of keur 64,800 were 

factored or assigned as of december 31, 2011. the credit lines 

expired at september 30, 2012 and were no longer extended 

since the companies joined the cash pool of jenoptik aG. there-

fore the global assignment to the lending banks no longer exists 

at the closing date of december 31, 2012.

22  CURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND 

OTHER ASSETS

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Trade accounts receivable 100,110 92,299

Receivables from non-consolidated
affiliated companies 4,413 1,718

Receivables from investment companies 1,959 3,073

Other assets 11,160 12,287

Receivables from construction contracts 
less on-account payments 3,018 2,496

Total 120,660 111,873

trade accounts receivable rose compared to the prior year by 

keur 7,811 as a result of increased sales. the fair values of 

trade accounts receivable correspond with their carrying val-ues. 

receivables from construction contracts less payments received 

on account include customer-specific construction contracts 

with asset balances where production costs incurred, including 

profit portions, exceed payments received on account. during 

the fiscal year payments on account amounting in total to 

keur 781 (2011) keur 3,996) were offset against receivables 

from construction contracts.

there are no further restrictions to access for other assets in 

addition to those outlined under note 21. 

Bad debts are accounted for using allowances. other current 

receivables are predominately not subject to interest.

the following table shows the changes in allowances against 

trade accounts receivable:

in KEUR 2012 2011

allowances at the beginning
of the fiscal year 3,156 4,787

Increase 3,729 1,149

Utilization 306 1,361

Reversal / Removal 208 1,428

Currencies – 18 9

allowances at the end
of the fiscal year 6,353 3,156

the gross amount of trade accounts receivable before allow-

ances amounts to keur 106,463 (31.12.2011 keur 96,956). 

of this allowances have been made against keur 8,409 

(31.12.2011 keur 5,850) of receivables. the aging structure of 

trade accounts receivable is as follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Not due 68,128 68,406

Overdue 29,926 22,700

  of which less than 30 days 18,708 15,295

  of which between 30 and 60 days 8,255 3,056

  of which more than 60 days 2,964 4,349

total 98,054 91,106

there was a further increase in overdue receivables not pro-

vided for compared to the prior year. at the closing date these 

amounted to keur 29,926 (31.12.2011 keur 22,700). over-

due receivables not provided for are principally due from public 

contractors, companies in the automotive industry and its sup-

pliers. there was no need to make allowance for these at the 

closing date because receipt of the total payment is expected. 
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other current assets include:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Other receivables from tax authorities 3,680 3,986

Accruals 3,153 2,035

Receivables from pension trust 1,363 1,264

Subsidies receivable 991 1,600

Derivatives 715 400

Other current assets 1,258 3,002

total 11,160 12,287

the derivative financial instruments are described in more detail 

in note 35. 

23 SECURITIES HELD AS CURRENT INVESTmENTS

securities available for sale:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Fair value 561 1,288

securities held as current investments mainly consist of money 

market funds. 

24  CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS 

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Checks, cash in hand, credit bank 
balances and funds due at any time
with a term of < 3 months 45,355 48,828

with regard to the change in the balance of cash and cash 

equivalents we refer to note 34.

25  SHAREHOLDERS’ EqUITy  

the development of jenoptik aG’s equity is shown in the 

statement of movements in shareholders’ equity.

SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

the subscribed capital of the company amounts to keur 

148,819 and is allocated to 57,238,115 no-par value shares.

at the beginning of july 2011 thüringer industriebeteiligungs 

Gmbh & co. kG, erfurt, thüringer industriebeteiligungsge-

schäftsführungs Gmbh, erfurt, bm-t beteiligungsmanagement 

thüringen Gmbh, erfurt, stiftung für unternehmensbeteiligun-

gen und -förderungen in der gewerblichen wirtschaft thürin-

gens (stuwt), erfurt, thüringer aufbaubank erfurt and freistaat 

thüringen, erfurt announced that they had exceeded the 

thresholds of 3 percent, 5 percent and 10 percent of the voting 

rights in jenoptik aG as of june 30, 2011 and they were entitled 

to 11.00 percent of the voting rights (6,296,193 shares) at this 

date. thüringer industriebeteiligungs Gmbh & co. kG purchased 

the voting rights from ece industriebeteiligungen Gmbh.

ece industriebeteiligungen Gmbh, vienna, austria, announced 

to us on july 5, 2011 that it had dropped below the thresholds 

of 25 percent, 20 percent and 15 percent of the voting rights 

in jenoptik aG on june 30, 3011. according to this ece indus-

triebeteiligungen Gmbh had a right to 14.01 percent of the 

voting rights (8,021,886 shares) on this date. of these 1.97 

percent of the voting rights (1,125,000 shares) were allocated 

to ece industriebeteiligungen Gmbh in accordance with § 22 

para. 1 sent. 1 no. 6 wphG (securities trading act). alpha 

holding Gmbh, hinterbrühl, ece european city estates Gmbh, 

hinter-brühl, hps holding Gmbh, hinterbrühl and humer pri-

vatstiftung indirectly have shareholdings via ece industrie-

beteiligungen Gmbh. these are allocated 12.05 percent of the 

voting rights (6,896,886 shares) in accordance with § 22 para. 

1 sent. 1 no.1 wphG and 1.97 percent of the voting rights 

(1,125,000 shares) in accordance with § 22 para. 1 sent. 1 no. 

6 wphG in connection with § 22 para. sent. 2 wphG.

erGo lebensversicherung aktiengesellschaft announced to us 

on june 16, 2011 that it had exceeded the thresholds of  

3 percent and 5 percent of the voting rights in jenoptik aG. 

according to this erGo lebensversicherung aktiengesellschaft 
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had a right to 5.75 percent of the voting rights (3,288,872 shares) 

on this date. meaG munich ergo assetmanagement Gmbh  

and meaG munich ergo kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbh have 

announced to us that they exceeded the thresholds of 3 per-

cent and 5 percent of the voting rights in jenoptik aG on june 

16, 2011. according to this both had a right on this date to 

6.62 percent of the voting rights (3,790,528 shares) which 

were to be allocated via erGo lebensversicherung aktienge-

sellschaft to meaG munich ergo assetmanagement Gmbh 

under § 22 para. 1 sent. 1 no. 6 in connection with § 22 para. 1 

sent. 2 wphG and to meaG munich ergo kapitalanlagegesell-

schaft mbh under § 22 para. 1 no. 6 wphG.  

mrs. Gabriele wahl-multerer, Germany, communicated to the 

company on october 10, 2012 that she had dropped below 

the threshold of 3 percent of voting rights in jenoptik aG on 

october 4, 2012. according to this mrs. Gabriele wahl-mul-

terer held 0.05 percent of the voting rights (28,490 voting 

rights) as at april 23, 2010. of these 0.05 percent (28,490 vot-

ing rights) were to be allocated via Zoom immobilien Gmbh 

under § 22 para. 1 sent. 1 no. 1 wphG. Zoom immobilien 

Gmbh, munich, Germany, communicated to the company on 

october 10, 2012 that it had exceeded the threshold of 3 per-

cent of voting rights in jenoptik aG on october 4, 2012. 

according to this Zoom immobilien Gmbh had a right to 0.05 

percent of the voting rights (28,490 shares) on this date.

templeton investment counsel llc., fort lauderdale, usa, com-

municated to the company that it had exceeded the threshold of 

3 percent of the voting rights in jenoptik aG on september 13, 

2010. templeton investment counsel llc. holds 3.11 percent of 

the voting rights (1,780,218 bearer shares). all these voting 

rights shall be allocated to templeton investment counsel llc. in 

accordance with § 22 para. 1 sent. 1 no. 6 wphG.

voting rights announcements of the last few years and share-

holders no longer active are also published on our website 

under www.jenoptik.com in the section investors / share / voting 

rights announcements.

AUTHORIzED CAPITAL

By resolution of the annual General meeting on june 9, 2010 

the resolution “authorized capital 2009”, which was limited until 

may 30, 2014, was cancelled and redrafted as follows: the 

executive Board is authorized, with the approval of the supervi-

sory Board, to increase the nominal capital of the company by 

up to keur 35,000 up to may 30, 2015 through one or several 

issues of new no-par value bearer shares in exchange for cash 

and / or non-cash contributions (“authorized capital 2010”). the 

new shares can be adopted by one or several banks under the 

obligation of offering them to shareholders (indirect subscrip-

tion right). the executive Board is authorized, with the approval 

of the supervisory Board, to exclude the subscription rights of 

shareholders in certain cases. exclusion is possible for fractional 

amounts, for capital increases in exchange for non-cash contri-

butions, also in particular as part of business combinations or 

for the purchase of companies, parts of companies or invest-

ments in companies, for capital increases in exchange for cash 

contributions to the extent that the share of nominal capital 

attributable to the new share, under consideration of annual 

general meeting resolutions or the use of other authorizations 

to exclude the subscription rights under the direct or corres-

ponding application of § 186 para. 3 sent. 4 aktG (stock cor-

poration act) since this authorization became effective, neither 

exceeds a total of ten of one hundred (= 10 percent) of the 

nominal capital in existence at the time of registration of the 

new shares, nor overall ten of one hundred (= 10 percent) of the 

nominal capital in existence at the time of the issue of the new 

shares and the issue price of the new shares is not materially 

lower than the stock exchange price, as well as for the issue to 

employees of jenoptik aG and of companies with a majority 

affiliation with it.

the executive Board, under approval by the supervisory Board, 

decides on the details of the issue of the new shares, in particu-

lar on their conditions as well as on the content of the rights of 

the new shares.
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CONDITIONAL CAPITAL

By resolution of the annual General meeting on june 3, 2009 

the nominal capital of the company is conditionally increased 

by up to keur 23,400 through the issue of up to 9,000,000 

new no-par value bearer shares (conditional capital 2009). the 

conditional capital increase will only be executed to the extent 

that the creditor or owner of the option certificates or conver-

sion rights, which were issued by the company or a domestic 

or foreign company in which the company holds a direct or 

indirect majority holding, on the basis of an authorization reso-

lution of the annual General meeting dated june 3, 2009 to 

may 30, 2014, exercises its option or conversion rights and / or 

– the creditor obliged to convert the issued convertible bonds, 

which were issued by the company or a domestic or foreign 

company in which the company holds a direct or indirect 

majority holding, by may 30, 2014, based on the resolution of 

the annual General meeting dated june 3, 2009, fulfils its right 

to conversion and own shares are not utilized nor fulfilment is 

made in cash. 

the new shares participate in profits from the beginning of the 

fiscal year for which, at the time of their issue, there is not yet a 

resolution by the annual general meeting for the appropriation 

of profit. the executive Board is empowered to determine fur-

ther details of the issue and terms of the convertible and / or 

option bonds and of the implementation of the conditional 

capital increase.

RESERVES

Capital reserve the capital reserve includes the adjustments 

recorded from the first-time application of ifrs and the differ-

ences on capital consolidation which were offset against 

reserves up to december 31, 2002.

Other reserves the other reserves comprise the results gener-

ated in the past but not yet distributed by companies included 

in the consolidated financial statements less paid dividends. 

furthermore, changes in the value of securities available for 

sale to be accounted for without impacting income amounting 

to minus keur 89 (2011 minus keur 208) are included in other 

reserves. likewise, the effective part of the change in value of 

derivatives to be recorded with no impact on income as part  

of hedge accounting is also included and amounts to minus 

keur 2,254 (2011 minus keur 2,662).

additionally, remeasurement losses of pension liability valuation 

are included amounting to keur 12.112 (2011 keur 3.571).

movements in deferred taxes not impacting income increased 

reserves in the fiscal year 2012 by keur 2,660 (2011 keur 

1,204). the balance of deferred tax assets in equity amounts in 

total to keur 4,571 (2011 deferred tax liabilities keur 1,911).

furthermore, in this fiscal year payments were made on account 

to silent shareholders. a reclassification was not made from 

shareholders’ equity to other liabilities to silent shareholders of 

the real estate companies in the fiscal year 2012.

OwN SHARES

on resolution of the annual general meeting on june 9, 2010 

the executive Board was authorized to purchase own individual 

shares by may 31, 2015 at a calculated maximum of ten from 

one hundred of nominal capital (= 10 percent) for purposes 

other than to deal in own shares. the purchased own shares 

together with own shares already purchased and still held by 

the company (including shares allocated under §§ 71a ff. stock 

corporation act) may not exceed 10 percent of nominal capital 

of the company. the authorization can be exercised either 

completely or in partial amounts, once or several times in pur-

suing one or several permitted purposes by the company or 

also by the subsidiaries or for its own or the account of third 

parties. a purchase is carried out as selected by the executive 

Board as a purchase via the stock exchange or using a public 

purchase bid. further details of re-purchase of own shares are 

described in the publicly available invitation to the annual Gen-

eral meeting 2010 on our internet page under www.jenoptik.

com in the section investors / annual General meeting.
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26  NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

this balance sheet item represents a reconciling item for shares 

of other shareholders in the consolidation capital from the cap-

ital consolidation as well as their allocable profits and losses. 

these shares are attributable to a foreign company.

27  PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS AND 

SImILAR OBLIGATIONS

provisions for pensions are set up on the basis of provision 

plans for commitments for retirement, invalidity and surviving 

dependants benefits. the cover by the Group varies depending 

on the legal, fiscal and economic situation of each country and 

depends, as a rule, on the length of service and the salary of 

the employee. pension provision within the Group is based on 

both defined contribution and defined benefit plans. under 

defined contribution plans the company pays contributions on 

the basis of statutory or contractual conditions or on a volun-

tary basis to state or private pension plans. once the contribu-

tions have been paid, the enterprise does not have any further 

obligations to provide benefits.

most pension plans are based on defined benefit plans, whereby 

these are distinguished between provision-based and externally 

financed pension plans.

pension provisions for the benefit obligations are determined 

applying the projected unit credit method in accordance with 

ias 19r. under this method future commitments are valued at 

the balance sheet date according to proportional benefits 

earned and trend assumptions are considered for the relevant 

values which affect the amount of the benefit. actuarial calcu-

lations are required for all benefit systems. 

jenoptik determines the net interest expense (income) on the 

net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying 

the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obliga-

tion at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined 

benefit liability (asset).

revaluation arising from defined benefit plans comprise actuar-

ial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding 

interest).

the Group’s benefit commitment covers approximately 934 

persons entitled, comprising 455 active employees, 85 former 

employees and 394 pensioners and widows.

the assets held by mitarbeitertreuhand e. v., jena are offset 

against the pension obligations as plan assets in agreement 

with ias 19r. the pension obligations of hommel-movomatic 

suisse sa are also covered by plan assets and are thus pre-

sented on a net basis.

jenoptik has utilised the option to apply ias 19r early. the 

application of ias 19r is retrospective. the changes resulting 

from this in the prior year relate to pension provisions, share-

holders´ equity and the result for the financial year as well as 

the deferred taxes. 

the prior year information below relates to the amended prior 

year financial statements on the basis of the retrospective appli-

cation of ias 19r.

the change in the defined benefit obligation (dBo) is presented 

as follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

DBO as at 1.1. 50,323 39,792

Currency effect 65 0

Current service cost for fiscal year 580 509

Interest cost 1,991 1,807

Actuarial gains and losses 11,831 1,321

of which due to changes in balances – 439 5

of which due to changes in parameters 12,270 1,316

Transfers 0 8,543

Pension payments – 2,298 – 1,649

DBO as at 31.12. 62,492 50,323
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the effects of the expense recorded in the profit or loss is sum-

marized as follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Current service cost 580 509

Net interest expense 743 611

total expense 1,323 1,120

the above amounts are included in the personnel expenses of 

the functional areas. interest cost on the obligation and the 

interest on the plan assets are included in net interest.

the change in plan assets is as follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Plan assets as at 1.1. 31,901 25,678

Currency effect 58 0

Return on plan assets 1,248 1,194

Result on plan assets less interest income 
on plan assets – 302 – 1,179

Contributions 349 0

Other changes – 26 0

Transfers 0 7,472

Pension payments – 1,974 – 1,264

Plan asssets as at 31.12. 31,254 31,901

the net obligation at the balance sheet date is as follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Present value of funded commitment 53,152 42,750

Plan assets – 31,254 – 31,901

Net obligation of the funded commitment 21,898 10,849

Net obligation of the unfunded commitment 9,340 7,573

total 31,238 18,422

the portfolio structure of plan assets is as follows:

in KEUR 2012 2011

Shares and other securities 4,122 3,677

Investments 3,475 3,145

Insurance contracts 7,527 7,472

Loans (loans and receivables) 13,117 13,468

Cash equivalents 3,013 4,139

total 31,254 31,901

for the shares and other securities within plan assets an active 

market exists.

the actuarial assumptions were selected as follows:

in percent 2012 2011

Discount rate as at 31.12. between 1.85
and 2.83 

Germany 4.37
Switzerland 2,4 

Cost of living increase 2.00 2.00

Future salary increases 2.75 2.75

Future pension increases 0 – 2.0 0 – 2.0

the interest income on plan assets is assumed at 4.37 percent 

(2011 4.65 percent), the appropriate discount rate used for cal-

culating the dBo. the actual return on plan assets in the fiscal 

year 2012 amounted to keur 946 (2011 keur 15).

a change in the actuarial assumptions above of one percent-

age points respectively as at december 31, 2012 would influ-

ence the dBo as follows:

Change in DBO

in KEUR Increase Decrease

Discount rate at 31.12. – 7,962 10,058

Future salary increases 88 – 73

Future pension increases 7,514 – 5,466

the sensitivity analysis presents the change in the dBo if one 

assumption is adjusted. since the changes do not have a 

straight-line effect on the calculation of the dBo due to finan-

cial mathematical effects, the cumulative change to the dBo 

from the adjustment of several assumptions cannot be directly 

deduced.
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actuarial gains or losses result from changes in balances and 

differences in actual trends (e. g. income increases or pension 

increases) compared to the calculation assumptions. in accord-

ance with the rules of ias 19r this amount is offset against 

other comprehensive income in shareholders´ equity.

the weighted average remaining service period amounts to  

13 years as of december 31, 2012.

the pension plans of esw Gmbh, wedel, and jenoptik ssc 

Gmbh, jena, are financed by a cta construct. the pension plan 

of hommel-movomatic suisse sa, peseux, includes a risk partici-

pation of the beneficiaries, by payments of both the employer 

and the employees.

the expected pension payments from the pension plans as of 

december 31, 2012 are presented as follows (not discounted):

in KEUR

in 2013 1,983

in 2014 to 2017 9,386

from 2018 19,668

28 TAx PROVISIONS

tax provisions are presented in detail under note 10.

29 OTHER PROVISIONS

the development of other provisions and accrued expenses is as 

follows: 

in KEUR Personnel
warranty 

obligations

Provision 
from 

disposals

Obligation 
from 

property 
sales

Trademark 
and 

license fees
Restruc-

turing
Anticipated 

losses
miscella-

neous Total

Balance as at 1.1.2012 17,903 14,217 11,975 2,873 1,636 1,087 768 11,679 62,138

Currency translation – 12 – 8 3 0 0 – 39 – 2 – 12 – 70

Additions 12,257 12,841 1,775 0 65 6,377 2,673 5,948 41,936

Compound interest 138 9 0 0 0 2 0 26 175

Utilization 11,918 5,559 1,559 996 1 590 300 3,484 24,407

Release 1,008 3,466 4,837 1,873 0 106 106 4,259 15,655

Balance as at 31.12.2012 17,360 18,034 7,357 4 1,700 6,731 3,033 9,898 64,117

material items within personnel provisions are part-time early 

retirement of keur 2,709 (31.12.2011 keur 4,420) and long-

term service awards of keur 2,160 (31.12.2011 keur 1,700). for 

the part-time early retirement obligations actuarial reports were 

prepared with the assumption of a salary increase of 2.0 percent 

(2011 2.0 percent). the amount of the obligation for top-up pay-

ments already earned as of december 31, 2012 amounts to 

keur 568. in the coming fiscal year top-up amounts of keur 327 

are to be made, in the years following that top-ups amounts of 

keur 241 are to be made.  

additionally, personnel provisions include performance premi-

ums, profit sharing and similar obligations. 

the provision for warranty obligations includes expenses for 

specific as well as for general warranty cases. the calculation  

is mainly based on experience values. 

the provisions from disposals mainly include expenses and 

accruals from the sale of discontinued business units and con-

tractual commitments in connection with these as well as  

legal and consulting costs. releases of keur 4,678 relate to a 

provision for guarantee risks in connection with the sale of  

jena-optronik Gmbh in the fiscal year 2010. with regard to  

this we refer to the explanations under note 12.
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the following table shows the terms of the expected cash 

flows of the economic benefits:

in KEUR
Up to
1 year 1 – 5 years

more than 
5 years 31.12.2012

Personnel 12,909 2,454 1,997 17,360

warranty obligations 15,236 2,798 0 18,034

Provision from  
disposals 3,952 3,405 0 7,357

Obligation on
property sales 4 0 0 4

Trademark and 
license fees 0 1,700 0 1,700

Restructuring 6,673 58 0 6,731

Anticipated losses 3,033 0 0 3,033

miscellaneous 7,397 2,488 13 9,898

total 49,204 12,903 2,010 64,117

30 SHARE-BASED REmUNERATION

at december 31, 2012 the jenoptik Group held share-based 

payment instruments in the form of virtual shares for executive 

Board members and some members of top management.

the virtual shares are measured as share-based remuneration 

instruments with cash compensation at their relevant fair values 

at the balance sheet date. the virtual shares will be paid out at 

the end of their four-year contractually fixed term. 

in fiscal year 2012 the following effects resulted in the profit 

and loss and in the balance sheet in connection with the share-

based payments:

Profit or loss Balance sheet

in KEUR 2012 2011 2012 2011

Virual shares – 1,460 – 191 2,273 813

the basis of measurement for determining fair value is the 

share price of jenoptik aG. subject to the consent of the 

supervisory Board the executive Board shall be granted virtual 

shares with a total volume of 108,737. the virtual shares allo-

cated for the fiscal years 2009 and 2012 were recorded at the 

balance sheet date 2012 at their fair value of eur 7.38 per vir-

tual share and included in provisions. 

the provisions for obligations from property sales include risks 

in connection with the property assets, including obligations 

for the payment of maintenance expenses and for adoption of 

rental guarantees. the release relates to a property fund dis-

posal. the provisions in the prior year are partly utilized. the 

other risks did not materialise and thus the remaining provision 

was released in 2012.

as in the prior year the provision for trademark and license fees 

still relates to risks in connection with potential patent infringe-

ments.

the increase in the provision for restructuring includes the 

expenses of location optimization in Germany and in the usa. 

these include costs of location transfers, compensation pay-

ments for employees as well as costs of cancelling contract 

relationships.

the provision for anticipated losses primarily includes the 

remaining obligation for a development contract.

miscellaneous provisions include provisions for price audit risks 

as well as for potential contract penalties and compensation 

claims. furthermore, these relate to many recognizable specific 

risks and uncertain obligations which are accounted for at the 

probable amount required to settle them. detailed information 

on these can be found in the management report under point 

6 risk report.
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the development of the virtual shares of the executive Board is 

illustrated in the following table:

dr. michael mertin Number 2012 Number 2011

1.1. 117,544 72,222

Granted 75,572 45,322

Granted for dividend
protection old shares 3,491 0

Paid out 0 0

31.12. 194,059 117,544

frank einhellinger
(Board member until 31.3.2012) Number 2012 Number 2011

1.1. 60,622 42,722

Granted 6,000 17,900

Granted for dividend
protection old shares 1,980 0

Paid out 0 0

31.12. 68,602 60,622

Rüdiger andreas Günther
(Board member since 1.4.2012) Number 2012 Number 2011

1.1. 0 0

Granted 21,694 0

Paid out 0 0

31.12. 21,694 0

with regard to all further information we refer to the remuner-

ation report in the Group management report. 

members of the executive management Board are granted vir-

tual shares. the system for allocation and payment of the virtual 

shares principally follows the system described for the executive 

Board.

the following table shows the development of the virtual 

shares of the executive management Board:

members of executive 
management Board Number 2012 Number 2011

1.1. 12,878 0

Granted 17,521 12,878

Paid out 0 0

31.12. 30,399 12,878

31 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

details of current and non-current financial liabilities can be 

seen in the following table:

in KEUR Up to 1 year
1 – 5 

years
more than

5 years 31.12.2012

Bank
liabilities

4,650
(3,428)

65,158
(68,164)

50,618
(52,936)

120,426
(124,528)

Liabilities from
financing leases

42
(681)

0 
(1,416)

0 
(590)

42 
(2,687)

total 4,692
(4,109)

65,158
(69,580)

50,618
(53,526)

120,468
(127,215)

(The amounts in brackets relate to the prior year.)

the fiscal year 2012 was characterised by the further stabiliza-

tion and improvement of the liquidity situation within the 

Group.

for current financial liabilities, which only comprise the current 

portion of long-term loans amounting to keur 4,650 and 

finance leasing amounting to keur 42, interest rates have been 

agreed ranging from 1.61 percent to 8.05 percent.

in addition to debenture loans, non-current liabilities to banks 

include property loans of keur 26,526 (31.12.2011 keur 

28,645). these are secured by mortgages. for non-current 

financial liabilities interest rates have been agreed ranging from 

2,09 percent to 4,39 percent.

as at december 31, 2012 the Group had access to credit lines 

amounting to keur 73,294 of which keur 60,617 remained 

unused.



INFORMATION FOR shARehOldeRs

171

g
r

o
u

p
 n

o
t

e
s

c
o

n
so

li
d

a
te

d
 f

in
a

n
c

ia
l 

st
a

te
m

en
ts

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

in
fo

r
m

a
ti

o
n

JenoPtiK 2012

grouP management rePort

consolidated financial statements

notes to the consolidated financial statements

resPonsibility statement

auditors’ rePort

notes to the balance sheet

32  OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

other non-current liabilities comprise:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Cancellable financial instruments 11,832 11,216

Other non-current liabilities 2,887 4,075

Derivatives 698 518

total 15,417 15,809

in previous years the jenoptik Group had formed two property 

companies in the legal form of a Gmbh & co. kG, in which an 

silent shareholder held shares. one silent shareholder was paid 

out in the fiscal year 2012. the silent shareholder of the second 

fund has an extraordinary right of notice as of december 31, 

2014. the real estate companies were included fully in the con-

solidated financial statements in accordance with ias 27 in  

connection with sic-12. for the jenoptik Group the extraordi-

nary right of notice represents a conditional purchase price 

obligation which is accounted for at the present value of the 

expected compensation payment. any necessary measurement 

adjustments to the conditional purchase price obligations will 

be recorded against equity without any impact on profit and 

loss. in accordance with expected use this item is presented in 

non-current liabilities. 

further information on derivatives can be found under note 35 

financial instruments.

33  OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

this item includes:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Trade accounts payable 40,868 40,026

Liabilities from on-account
payments received 28,693 33,526

Liabilities to non-consolidated,
affiliated companies 3,797 2,135

Liabilities to participating interests 37 112

Other current liabilities 25,533 34,864

total 98,928 110,663

trade accounts payable increased by keur 841 and liabilities 

from on-account payments received decreased by keur 4,833.

normal market interest rates have been agreed for liabilities to 

non-consolidated affiliated companies. this item includes liabili-

ties to joint ventures amounting to keur 3,206.

miscellaneous current liabilities comprise the following:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Liabilities to employees 9,792 7,983

Other liabilities from taxes 4,664 5,648

Liability to shareholder of a joint venture 2,750 0

Accruals 1,591 963

Liabilities to employees‘ accident
insurance 1,119 1,032

Other liabilities for social security 716 584

Interest liabilities from financial
obligations 519 610

Derivatives 242 2,167

Cancellable financial instruments 0 9,188

Purchase price liabilities 0 2,083

miscellaneous liabilities 4,140 4,606

total 25,533 34,864

the cancellable financial instrument, as described under note 32, 

relates to the right of notice of a silent shareholder of a con-

solidated real estate company under ias 27 in connection with 

sic-12. the exercise of this right of notice in the fiscal year 2012 

led to the payment of the liability. 

liabilities to employees also include holiday entitlements and 

flexi-time credits.

the derivative financial instruments are described in more detail 

in note 35.
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34 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOw STATEmENT

the cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 

include liquid funds disclosed in the balance sheet amounting 

to keur 45,355 (2011 keur 48,828). cash and cash equiva-

lents are defined as the sum of cash balances and credit bank 

accounts with a term of less than 3 months.

the cash flow statement provides information on cash flows, 

separately for cash flows from operating activities, from invest-

ing activities and from financing activities. changes in balance 

sheet items required in the development of the cash flow state-

ment are not directly derivable from the balance sheet since 

effects of foreign currency exchange and changes in companies 

consolidated are non-cash effective and are eliminated. cash 

flow from operating activities is indirectly derived from the  

earnings before tax. the earnings before tax is adjusted for non-

cash expenses and income. cash flow from operating activities 

 is calculated after accounting for changes in working capital. 

cash flow from operating activities amounts to keur 66,578 

(2011 keur 65,580 keur) and is thus slightly above prior year 

level. a significant operative improvement in cash flow is re-

flected in the cash flow from operating activities before income 

taxes which has risen by keur 6,385. the expansion of business 

volume also led to an increase in working capital in the fiscal 

year 2012. however, compared to the prior year this increase in 

working capital is substantially reduced and is thus an influenc-

ing factor for the operative improvement of jenoptik. 

the cash flow from operating activities is additionally influ-

enced by the income tax payments which increased by 

keur 5,387. 

the cash flow from investing activities amounted to minus 

keur 33,817 (2011 minus keur 29,339 and is particularly 

affected by the payments for investments in tangible assets 

amounting to keur 24,511 (2011 keur 22,922). the pay - 

ments for investments in intangible assets of keur 6,716  

(2011 keur 2,105) reflect the investments as part of the  

jenoptik one erp project as well as the licences necessary  

for this. 

the cash flow from financing activities amounted to minus 

keur 36,141 (2011 minus keur 53,660). the improvement of 

keur 17,519 is primarily influenced by the financing of the 

Group, the lower interest payments as well as the dividend paid 

in the fiscal year 2012 of keur 8,585 (2011 0). 

the change in Group financing includes payments from or to 

affiliated non-consolidated companies and investments as well 

as payments to atypical silent shareholders of the real estate 

companies. in particular the payment made to a silent investor, 

on the basis of him giving notice, amounting to eur 10.7 mil-

lion euros had an effect on the balance in the past fiscal year. 

in the prior year the partial compensation of eur 17.2 million 

was made to a silent investor.

the reduced interest payments are mainly due to the decline in 

interest expenses on loans which have fallen due to the issue of 

the debenture loans in 2011. in the prior year there were also 

payments for prepayment penalties for the premature repay-

ment of a loan.  

more information can be found on the consolidated cash flow 

statement under note 2.3 financial position in the Group man-

agement report.
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUmENTS

as part of its operating activities the jenoptik Group is exposed 

to credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks within the financial 

area. market risks relate principally to interest rate and exchange 

rate fluctuation risks.

more detailed information on risk management and monitoring 

of risks is given in the management report under point 6 risk 

report. further information with regard to notes on capital 

management are included in the management report under 

point 2.3 financial situation. 

the following comments relate exclusively to the quantitative 

effects of the risks in the fiscal year.

the risks described above have an effect on the following 

financial assets and liabilities. the following carrying values of 

the financial assets and liabilities represent their market values.

in KEUR

market
 values

31.12.2012

market
 values

31.12.2011

financial assets 165,555 157,820

Cash and cash equivalents 45,355 48,828

Financial assets available for sale 1,914 2,879

Receivables from finance leasing 2,223 2,787

Loans and receivables 115,181 102,919

Derivatives with hedging relationships 882 407

financial liabilities 193,162 207,732

Trade accounts payable 40,868 40,026

Liabilities to banks and 
other financial obligations 120,426 124,528

Liabilities from finance leasing 42 2,687

Other non-derivative financial liabilities 30,886 37,806

Derivatives with hedging relationships 940 2,685

in the table bottom left the shares of non-consolidated a 

ffiliates and investments are not included in the financial assets 

available for sale, because they are evaluated at acquisition 

costs. for detailed information we refer to the accounting poli-

cies.

the following table shows the fair value hierarchies which exist 

for the financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair 

value in accordance with ifrs 7:

in KEUR

market
 values

31.12.2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets available 
for sale 1,914 1,755 0 159

Derivatives with hedging 
relationships (asset) 882 882 0 0

Derivatives with hedging 
relationships (liability) 940 940 0 0

fair values that are always available as quoted market prices are 

allocated to level 1. the measurement parameters underlying 

level 3 are not based on observable market data.

the explanations of the changes in fair values are included 

within the relevant comments on the balance sheet items. 

the gains and losses of the financial assets available for sale

are included in other comprehensive income amounting to 

keur 62. additionally, an amount of teur 36 was reclassified 

from other comprehensive income into profit / loss. 

the risk of credit or default is the risk that a customer or con-

tracting partner of the jenoptik Group does not meet his con-

tractual obligations. from this results the risk, on one hand, 

that financial instruments suffer impairment related to credit-

worthiness and, on the other hand, the risk of partial or full 

default of contractually agreed payments. 

credit risks are mainly inherent in trade accounts receivable. 

these are accounted for by setting up allowances. the jenoptik 

Group is exposed marginally to default risks from other finan-
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cial assets which primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, 

loans and derivatives. the maximum risk of default is equal to 

the carrying values of the financial assets at the balance sheet 

date of keur 165,555 (31.12.2011 keur 157,820). the gross 

amount of trade accounts receivable before allowances amounts 

to keur 106,463 (31.12.2011 keur 96,956). the allowances 

accounted for in the fiscal year are related to non-current loans 

and receivables amounting to keur 3,351, current receivables 

amounting to keur 3,729, and financial assets available for sale 

amounting to keur 228.

the liquidity risk of the Group is that the Group is potentially 

unable to meet its financial commitments. this can, for  

example, be due to inadequate availability of cash and cash 

equivalents, capital repayment of financial liabilities, payment 

of suppliers and obligations from finance leasing. in order to 

guarantee liquidity and financial flexibility, credit lines and cash 

availability are planned using a five-year financial plan and a 

5-month liquidity forecast on a rolling monthly basis. the 

liquidity risk has decreased further but still remains the focus of 

the Group and will be limited by an effective cash and working 

capital management as well as by credit facilities yet unused. 

through the very stable long-term financing since 2011 provided 

by the issuance of debentures amounting to keur 90,000 and 

the positive cash flows of our operating companies in the fiscal 

year 2012, our liquidity risk has continued to be minimised. 

since the long-term loans granted have a fixed maturity date 

no liquidity burden from repayments is to be expected until 2015.

Gross and net debt of the Group have continued to fall.

the cash outflows falling in the terms between 1 and 5 years 

and over 5 years mainly comprise debenture loans since their 

remaining terms amount to 3.75 or 5.75 years.

Carrying value Cash outflow

in KEUR 31.12.2012 Total up to 1 year 1 –  5 years over 5 years

Variable interest-bearing liabilities to banks 36,842
(37,808)

40,826
(44,309)

1,783
(2,314)

30,890
(33,737)

8,153
(8,258)

Fixed interest-bearing liabilities to banks 83,584
(86,720)

99,375
(109,067)

6,828
(6,052)

47,270
(52,605)

45,277
(50,410)

Fixed interest-bearing liabilities
from finance leasing

42
(2,687)

42
(3,457)

42
(904)

0
(1,926)

0
(627)

total 120,468
(127,215)

140,243
(156,833)

8,653
(9,270)

78,160
(88,268)

53,430
(59,295)

(The amounts in brackets relate to the prior year.)

cash outflows for variable-interest bank liabilities are based on 

an interest rate of 2.1 percent (2011 3.5 percent). fixed interest 

liabilities are charged interest at rates of between 3.5 and 

9.5 percent.

further details are described under note 31.
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the jenoptik Group is primarily exposed to interest rate fluctu-

ations in the area of medium-term and long-term interest-bear-

ing financial assets and liabilities due to fluctuations in market 

interest rates. this risk is met by concluding hedging transac-

tions depending on the market situation.

Carrying values

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Interest-bearing financial assets 53,050 52,904

         of which variable interest 45,355 48,828

         of which fixed interest 7,695 4,076

Interest-bearing financial liabilities 120,468 127,215

         of which variable interest 36,842 37,808

         of which fixed interest 83,626 89,407

with a fluctuation in the market interest rate as at decem-

ber 31, 2012 within a range of 100 base points an opportunity 

loss or gain of keur 77 (2011 keur 41) would result for the 

fixed-interest financial assets.  

 

for financial liabilities with fixed interest within the same range 

an opportunity loss or gain of keur 956 (2011 keur 894) would 

result. 

a change of 100 base points for the variable-interest financial 

assets would have an impact of keur 453 (2011 keur 488) and 

for the variable-interest financial liabilities an impact of keur 

248 (2011 keur 378). Because of the low interest rate level at 

balance sheet date the maximum interest decrease is 40 base 

points. this would result in an impact of keur 99.

jenoptik aG meets the risks with interest hedges.

Nominal volume market values

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Interest cap 12,000 20,000 30 0

Interest swap 1 8,000 0 – 501 0

Interest swap 2 4,000 0 – 159 0

at the balance sheet date jenoptik aG holds keur 24,000 vari-

able-interest liabilities to banks secured by interest derivatives. 

an interest cap for keur 12,000 and for a further keur 12,000 

two interest swaps were concluded.

the derivatives have the following structure:

Interest cap KEUR 12,000 (2011 KEUR 20,000)

Term April 28, 2012 to October 28, 2016

Interest rate ceiling 2.00 percent

Reference interest rate 6-month Euribor Reuters

Interest swap 1 KEUR 8,000 (2011 0)

Term April 28, 2012 to October 28, 2018

Fixed interest rate 1.985 percent p.a.

Variable interest rate 6-month Euribor Reuters

Interest swap 2 KEUR 4,000 (2011 0)

Term April 28, 2012 to October 28, 2016

Fixed interest rate 1.615 percent p.a.

Variable interest rate 6-month Euribor Reuters

under the interest cap liabilities of keur 12,000 are secured 

against the 6-month euribor rising above 2.00 percent for  

4.5 years. the underlying and hedge transactions form a hedge 

item. the market value of the caps as at december 31, 2012, 

amounts to keur 30. since the derivative has no internal value 

but only a fair value at the closing date the change in market 

value is recorded in profit or loss.

for both interest rate swaps the variable interest of additional 

liabilities of keur 12,000 is swapped into fixed interest and, 

thus, the interest fluctuation risk eliminated. interest swap 1 

has a market value of keur minus 501 and interest swap 2 a 

market value of keur minus 159 as at december 31, 2012. the 

underlying and hedge transactions are evaluated as highly 

effective though the synchronised structure of the parameters 

and the market value fluctuation is recorded as a cash flow 

hedge in other comprehensive income without impacting profit 

and loss.
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the interest swaps mentioned lead to expected cash flows as 

follows: within one year amounting to keur 223, between two 

and five years amounting to keur 818, and above five years 

amounting to keur 132.

Currency rate risks arise from the fluctuation in the financial 

assets and liabilities denoted in foreign currency. 

in order to hedge currency risks forward exchange contracts 

are used. in the fiscal year 2012 forward exchange contracts 

with a nominal value of keur 42,211 were used in order to 

hedge and document the underlying transactions as cash flow 

hedges. in the prior year forward exchange contracts were 

concluded and accounted for as cash flow hedges. their total 

volume in the prior year amounted to keur 53,274. these 

transactions relate to the exchange rate hedging of major cash 

flows in foreign currency from the operating business (in par-

ticular sales and material purchases). 

the following positive market values arise from derivative finan-

cial instruments:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Transactions to hedge against
currency risks from future cash flows
(Cash flow hedges):
Forward exchange contracts:   

 non-current 137 7

 current 715 400

Interest cap 30 0

total 882 407

the following negative market values arise from derivative 

financial instruments:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Transactions to hedge against
currency risks from future cash flows
(Cash flow hedges):
Forward exchange contracts:

 non-current 38 518

 current 242 2.167

Interest swaps 660 0

total 940 2.685

the market values shown above were calculated and confirmed 

by the banks.

the gains and losses of hedging are included in other compre-

hensive income amounting to keur 2,254 without impacting 

on profit and loss. there was a reclassification from other com-

prehensive income into profit or loss amounting to keur 46.

forward exchange contracts hedge foreign currency risks of 

keur 34,414 for a time frame of until the end of the year 

2013. foreign currency risks of keur 7,813 are hedged for a 

time frame of until the end of the year 2014 as well as until 

january 2015.

forward currency transactions are analyzed by currency sales 

and purchases as follows:

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

USD / EUR sale 39,417 50,923

USD / EUR purchase 1,215 443

GBP / EUR sale 187 0

GBP / EUR purchase 333 342

CHF / EUR sale 1,061 1,058

CHF / EUR purchase 0 508
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the underlying transactions mainly relate to the sales of prod-

ucts. the risk hedged is always the currency risk. 

since forward exchange contracts are for the purpose of hedg-

ing cash flow and the hedging relationships are assessed as 

effective, the change in fair value is accounted for in sharehold-

ers´ equity. 

in accordance with the currency hedging strategy of jenoptik 

for 2012, 100 percent of all underlying transactions in foreign 

currency within the Group were hedged. 

the main foreign currency transactions within the jenoptik 

Group relate to the us dollar (usd). the table shows the net 

foreign currency risk position in usd:

in KUSD 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Financial assets 24,326 24,747

Financial liabilities 6,228 2,208

foreign currency risk from
balance sheet items 18,134 22,539

Foreign currency risk from
pending transactions 19,570 50,891

transaction related foreign
currency item 37,704 73,430

Items hedged economically
by derivatives 38,202 68,310

net position – 498 5,120

there are no net risk items in usd at the closing date. thus, a 

change in the usd exchange rate only has an effect on the 

measurement of the increase in derivatives of keur 498 at the 

closing date. a change in the us dollar exchange rate as at the 

balance sheet date of 5 percent would have a positive or nega-

tive impact of keur 19 and a change of 10 percent a positive 

or negative impact of keur 38 on shareholders´ equity in the 

balance sheet. 

36  COmmITmENTS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND 

CONTINGENT RECEIVABLES

compared to the prior year the volume of guarantees has 

slightly increased and amounted to keur 10,662 as at decem-

ber 31, 2012 (2011 keur 8,651), whereby approximately 34 per-

cent is secured by counter-guarantees.

in KEUR 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Guarantees for non-consolidated
affiliated companies 10,105 6,897

Guarantees for third parties 557 1,753

Contingent liabilities from guarantees 10,662 8,650

the increase in the volume of guarantees for affiliated non-con-

solidated is substantially due to the issue of a rental guarantee 

amounting to keur 3,504 (2011 keur 0) as part of the sale of 

a property. 

furthermore, a warranty guarantee exists in connection with 

the klinikum 2000, jena and amounts to keur 5,500 (2011 

keur 5,500), the partial release from liability of which is still 

outstanding by the free state of thuringia. from jenoptik’s 

view potential claims from warranties remaining only amount 

to keur 481 (2011 keur 481). 

the obligations for guarantees for third parties amounting to 

keur 557 keur (2011 keur 1,753) have continued to reduce 

as expected. furthermore, these risks are completely covered 

by other companies and therefore do not represent a direct risk 

for jenoptik.

in connection with a property in france there is potentially an 

obligation to remove environmental contamination. the obliga-

tion is no yet finally determinable both in terms of substance 

and amount and is therefore a contingent liability.
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Other notes

37 OTHER FINANCIAL COmmITmENTS

financial commitments from rental and leasing contracts are 

described in note 16.

in addition to order commitments for intangible and tangible 

assets, there are further purchase orders and other financial 

commitments amounting to keur 55,928 (2011 keur 60,748).

38  LEGAL DISPUTES

jenoptik aG and its Group companies are involved in several 

court or arbitration cases. 

for more information on pending legal disputes which may 

have significant influence on the economic position of the 

Group, we refer to the section “legal risks” in the Group man-

agement report. 

for any potential financial burdens from court or arbitration 

cases, adequate provisions have been accounted for regarding 

process risks and process costs.

39  RELATED PARTy DISCLOSURES ACCORDING 

TO IAS  24

related parties are defined in ias 24 “related party disclosures” 

as entities or people which / who control or are controlled by 

the jenoptik Group to the extent that these are not already 

included in the consolidated financial statements as consolidat-

ed companies or, companies and people that on the basis of 

the constitutional conditions or contractual agreement, have 

the possibility to substantially direct the financial and business 

policies of the management of jenoptik aG or to participate in 

the joint management of jenoptik aG. control exists if a share-

holder holds more than half of the voting rights in jenoptik aG. 

the largest single shareholder of jenoptik aG is ece industrie-

beteiligungen Gmbh, hinterbrühl, austria which holds in total 

directly and indirectly less than 15 percent of the voting rights 

and, thus, does not control jenoptik aG.

members of the executive Board and supervisory Board of 

jenoptik aG also qualify as related parties. in the fiscal year  

2012 there were no provisions of goods or services between 

the company and members of the executive Board or super-

visory Board. 

two members of the supervisory Board are members of manage-

ment of ece industriebeteiligungen Gmbh and / or of its control-

ling company which should therefore be classified as related  

parties as defined in ias 24. hower there were no provisions of 

goods or services with them in fiscal 2012. two further members 

of the supervisory Board are members of the board in other enti-

ties with which jenoptik had an exchange of goods and services 

in the fiscal year 2012 as part of normal business activities. all 

transactions were conducted under conditions which are normal 

between unrelated third parties. 

the composition of relationships to non-consolidated compa-

nies and joint ventures as further related parties is shown in the 

table below.

Of which with

in KEUR Total
Non-consolidated 

companies Joint venture

Sales 2,191 2,191 0

Purchased services 2,817 2,395 422

Receivables from operations 6,372 5,866 506

Liabilities from operations 3,834 628 3,206

Loans 1,288 1,288 0
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obligatory and supplementary disclosures under Hgb

furthermore, there are guarantees in the Group to related par-

ties amounting to keur 5,983.

 

information on the remuneration of the executive Board and 

supervisory Board required to be disclosed by ias 24.9 is pub-

lished in the remuneration report of the Group management 

report from page 48. as well as under obligatory and supple-

mentary disclosures for hGB in the notes to the consolidated 

financial statements on pages 181 and 185.

40  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

the executive Board authorized the consolidated financial 

statements on march 11, 2013 for review and approval by the 

supervisory Board.

the executive Board proposes to the supervisory Board to 

transfer an amount of eur 25,000,000.00 of the net profit 

2012 of jenoptik aG to other revenue reserves.

the exective Board recommends to the supervisory Board to 

propose to the annual General meeting that a dividend of  

eur 0.18 per qualifying no-par value share be paid. thus, an 

amount of eur 10,302,860.70 of the balance sheet profit  

of eur 22,661,857.90 shall be distributed and an amount of 

eur 12,358,997.20 be carried forward.

there were no further events of significance after december 31, 

2012.

in january 2013 jenoptik purchased 100 percent of the shares 

in dcd systems pty. ltd., a supplier of traffic safety technology. 

the acquisition underlines jenoptik´s international orientation. 

the transaction is not expected to have a significant impact on 

the consolidated financial statements 2013.

obligatory and supplementary disclosures 
under hGB

OBLIGATORy DISCLOSURES UNDER § 315A HGB AND 

§ 264 PARA. 3 OR § 264B HGB

the consolidated financial statements of jenoptik aG have 

been prepared in accordance with § 315a hGB in line with the 

rules of the iasB with an exemption from preparation of con-

solidated financial statements under hGB. at the same time the 

consolidated financial statements and Group management 

report are in line with the european union directive on consol-

idated accounting (83 / 349 / ewG), whereby this directive has 

been interpreted accordingly in compliance with standard 

no. 1 (Gas 1) “exempt consolidated financial statements 

under § 315a hGB” issued by the German accounting stand-

ards committee (Gasc). in order to achieve comparability with 

consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with 

the German commercial code all disclosures and information 

required by hGB, and which are in addition to the obligatory 

disclosures necessary for ifrs, are published. 

due to their inclusion in the consolidated financial statements 

of jenoptik aG the following fully consolidated affiliated Ger-

man companies have taken advantage of the simplifications of 

§ 264 para. 3 or § 264b hGB: 

• saaleaue immobilien verwaltungsgesellschaft mbh & co. 

vermietungs kG, pullach im isartal 

• leutra saale Gewerbegrundstücksgesellschaft mbh & co. 

vermietungs kG, jena

• jenoptik robot Gmbh, monheim am rhein 

• hommel-etamic Gmbh, villingen-schwenningen

• jenoptik automatisierungstechnik Gmbh, jena

• esw Gmbh, wedel

• jenoptik optical systems Gmbh, jena 

• jenoptik diode lab Gmbh, Berlin

• jenoptik laser Gmbh, jena

• lechmotoren Gmbh, altenstadt

• jenoptik polymer systems Gmbh, triptis

• jenoptik ssc Gmbh, jena

• jorent techno Gmbh, jena
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NUmBER OF EmPLOyEES

the average number of employees is analysed as follows:

2012 2011

Employees 3,066 2,894

Trainees 116 114

total 3,182 3,008

proportionally consolidated companies employed an average of 

33 (2011 34) employees in the fiscal year 2012. 

COST OF mATERIALS AND PERSONNEL ExPENSES  

in KEUR 2012 2011

Cost of materials

Raw materials, consumables, supplies and 
purchased merchandise 184,577 180,072

Cost of purchased services 57,343 50,409

total 241,920 230,481

Personnel expenses

wages and salaries 178,991 156,178

Social security and pension costs 22,224 27,657

total 201,215 183,835

German corporate Governance code

the executive Board and supervisory Board of jenoptik aG sub-

mitted the statement on conformity with the recommendations 

of the government commission on the German corporate Gov-

ernance code in the version dated may 15, 2012 in accordance 

with § 161 aktG (German stock corporation act) on decem-

ber 13, 2012. the statement has been made permanently 

accessible to the shareholders on the internet page of jenoptik 

aG under www.jenoptik.com in the section investors / corporate 

Governance. the statement is also viewable at the business 

premises of jenoptik aG (carl-Zeiß-straße 1, 07743 jena).
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executive board

executive Board

weitere mandate bei:

Dr. michael mertin
Chairman of the Executive Board of JENOPTIK AG None

Rüdiger Andreas Günther
member of the Executive Board of JENOPTIK AG 
(since 1.4.2012)

• Schmitz Cargobull AG (member of Supervisory Board)
• Kverneland Group, Norway (until 30.4.2012, member of a compa- 

rable control body)
• Schöller Holding GmbH (until 31.3.2012, Chairman of Supervisory 

Board)

Frank Einhellinger
member of the Executive Board of   JENOPTIK AG (until 31.3.2012) None

the following summary shows the remuneration of the execu-

tive Board for the fiscal year 2012. in addition to the direct and 

the fringe benefits include contributions to professional disability 

and accident insurance as well as the provision of company cars.

with regard to more detail on the remuneration system we refer 

to the remuneration report in the management report from 

page 48.

pension payments were made to former executive Board mem-

bers amounting to keur 283 (2011 keur 299). pension provisions 

for former executive Board members at the balance sheet date 

amounted to keur 4.973 (2011 keur 3,911). the interest cost 

recorded in fiscal 2012 for these existing provisions amounted to 

keur 170 (2011 keur 200).

in the fiscal year 2012 – as in preceding years – no loans or 

advances were given to members of the executive Board or super-

visory Board. consequently, there were no loan repayments. 

the executive Board members do not hold any shares at the bal-

ance sheet date.

the following gentlemen were appointed members of the executive Board during the fiscal year 2012:

indirect components of remuneration this also includes the fair 

value of the share-based remuneration instrument (lti).

in KEUR

Dr. michael mertin
(Chairman of the 
Executive Board)

Frank Einhellinger
(member of the Executive 

Board until 31.3.2012)

Rüdiger Andreas Günther
(member of the Executive 

Board since 1.4.2012)

Fixed remuneration 510.0 83.3 285.0

Variable remuneration 731.5 81.3 210.0

LTI 2012 measured at issue price 365.8 29.0 105.0

LTI 2012 price advance in 2012 1) 192.0 4.6 55.1

total remuneration 1,799.3 198.2 655.1

Retirement benefits 240.0 24.8 60.0

Fringe benefits 30.2 4.9 34.8

overall total 270.2 29.7 94.8

1) measured at fair value per December 31, 2012, for Frank Einhellinger per march 31, 2012.
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Supervisory Board

supervisory Board
the following ladies and gentlemen were appointed members of the supervisory Board during the fiscal year 2012:

member of: Additional appointments at:

RUDOLF HUmER 
Entrepreneur 
(Chairman of the Supervisory Board)

Personnel Committee 
(Chairman)
mediation Committee 
(Chairman)
Nomination Committee 
(Chairman)

• Baumax AG, Austria (Ccb member)
• Baumax Anteilsverwaltung AG, Austria (Ccb member)
• Ühinenud Farmid AS, Estonia (Ccb member)
• K.A.m. ESSL Holding AG, Austria (SB member)
• ECE Capital OÜ, Estonia (Ccb member)

mICHAEL EBENAU 1)

Trade union secretary, first authorized
representative of IG metall
Jena-Saalfeld and first authorized
representative of IG metall Gera

Personnel Committee
mediation Committee

None

BRIGITTE EDERER
member of the Executive Board  
of Siemens AG

(since 6.6.2012)

•  Boehringer Ingelheim RCV GmbH, Austria (SB member)
•  Österreichische Industrieholding AG (ÖIAG), Austria 
  (SB member)
•  Siemens France Holding SAS, France (ig, Ccb member)
•  Siemens Holdings plc., Great Britain (ig, Ccb member)
•  Siemens S.p.A., Italy (ig, Ccb chair) 
•  Siemens Nederland N.V., Netherlands (ig, Ccb chair)
•  Siemens AG, Austria (ig, SB chair)
•  Siemens S.A., Spain (ig, Ccb chair)
•  Siemens Sanayi ve Ticaret, A.S., Turkey (ig, Ccb member)
•  Siemens Holding S.p.A., Italy (ig, Ccb chair)

mARKUS EmBERT 1)

Dipl.-Ing. für Elektrotechnik 
(Degree in Electrical Engineering)
at ESw GmbH (until 6.6.2012)

Capital market
Committee
(until 6.6.2012)

None

CHRISTIAN HUmER
Chairman of the Executive Board of ECE 
European City Estates GmbH, Austria

Personnel Committee
Nomination Committee

None

wOLFGANG KEHR 1)

Trade Union secretary at IG metall,
Bezirk Frankfurt / main  
(until 6.6.2012)

Personnel Committee
(until 6.6.2012)
mediation Committee
(until 6.6.2012)

None

THOmAS KLIPPSTEIN 1)

Chairman of Group works’ Council
of Jenoptik

Personnel Committee
Audit Committee

None

RONALD KRIPPENDORF 1)

werkleiter der JENOPTIK Katasorb GmbH
(since 6.6.2012)

None

1) Employee representative    Abbreviations:    SB – Supervisory Board    Ccb. – Comparable controlling body    ig – Internal group appointment    Dep. – Deputy
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supervisory board

member of: Additional appointments at:

DIETER KRÖHN 1)

Process coordinator at ESw GmbH
Capital market Commit-
tee (until 6.6.2012)
Audit Committee

None

CHRISTEL KNOBLOCH 1)

Process coordinator at JENOPTIK
Automatisierungstechnik GmbH
(until 6.6.2012)

Capital market
Committee

None

SABINE LÖTzSCH1)

Dipl. mathematikerin,
managerin IT-Helpdesk  
der JENOPTIK SSC GmbH (since 6.6.2012)

None

DR. LOTHAR mEyER
Former Executive Board Chairman of
ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG
(until 6.6.2012)

Audit Committee
(until 6.6.2012)
Capital market Commit-
tee (Chairman until 
6.6.2012)

•  UniCredit Bank AG (SB member)
•  ERGO Versicherungsgruppe AG (SB member)

HEINRICH REImITz
member of the Executive Board of
ECE European City Estates GmbH,
Austria

Audit Committee
(Chairman)
Capital market Commit-
tee (until 6.6.2012)

•  Ühinenud Farmid AS, Estonia (Ccb member)

STEFAN SCHAUmBURG 1)

Trade union secretary of IG metall,
Administration of the board of directors,
Head of Union Pay Policies Department
(since 6.6.2012)

Personnel Committee
(since 6.6.2012)
mediation Committee 
(since 6.6.2012)

•  GKN Driveline Deutschland GmbH (SB member)
•  GKN Holdings Deutschland GmbH (SB member)

PROF. DR. RER. NAT. HABIL.,
DIPL.-PHySIKER 
ANDREAS TÜNNERmANN
Director of the Institute for Applied Physics 
and Lecturer for Applied Physics at the
Friedrich-Schiller-University and Head of the 
Fraunhofer Instituts for Applied Optics and 
Fine mechanics Jena

Personnel Committee
mediation Committee
Nomination Committee

•  BioCentiv GmbH (SB Chair)
•  Docter Optics GmbH (Ccb member)

GABRIELE wAHL-mULTERER
Dipl.-Kauffrau, entrepreneur
(until 6.6.2012)

Capital market Commit-
tee (until 6.6.2012)

•  Seniorbook AG, munich (SB member)

mATTHIAS wIERLACHER
Chairman of the Board of Thüringer
Aufbaubank
(since 6.6.2012)

Audit Committee
(Dep. Chairman
since 6.6.2012)

•  Analytik Jena AG (SB member)
•  mittelständische Beteiligungsgesellschaft Thüringen mbH
 (SB member)
•  bm-t beteiligungsmanagement thüringen GmbH  

(ig, SB member)
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SUPERVISORy BOARD REmUNERATION

the members of the supervisory Board received the following total remuneration payments in the fiscal year 2012:

with regard to more detail on the remuneration system of the 

supervisory Board we refer to the remuneration report in the 

Group management report from page 51.

at the end of the fiscal year 2012 the members of the supervi-

sory Board held in total 960,095 shares or financial instruments 

related to them and, thus held more than 1 percent of the 

nominal capital of jenoptik aG. these include 675,000 shares 

which are held directly and indirectly by mr. rudolf humer.

Of which
Prior year 1)

(where not paid in 2011)

in KEUR

Total 
remuneration

2012

Fixed annual 
remuneration 

2012

Variable 
remuneration 

2012

meeting fees 
(plus 

reimbursement 
of expenses)

Value added 
tax 2)

Fixed annual 
remuneration 

2011

Variable 
remuneration 

2011

Rudolf Humer (Chairman) 3) – – – – – 14.8 3.7

michael Ebenau
(Dep. Chairman) 61.9 40.4 15.9 5.6 9.9 42.9 13.4

Brigitte Ederer (from 6.6.2012) 22.8 13.6 6.8 2.4 3.6 – –

markus Embert (until 6.6.2012) 15.4 10.2 3.8 1.4 2.5 23.8 8.9

Christian Humer 44.4 27.8 8.9 7.7 – 25.0 7.5

wolfgang Kehr (until 6.6.2012) 18.7 12.8 3.8 2.1 3.0 29.8 8.9

Thomas Klippstein 59.1 36.5 10.6 12.0 9.5 29.8 8.9

Christel Knobloch
(until 6.6.2012) 15.2 10.2 3.8 1.2 2.2 20.0 7.5

Ronald Krippendorf
(from 6.6.2012) 20.1 11.4 5.7 3.0 – – –

Dieter Kröhn 52.7 33.1 10.6 9.0 7.0 21.5 7.5

Sabine Lötzsch (from 6.6.2012) 20.1 11.4 5.7 3.0 – – –

Dr. Lothar meyer
(until 6.6.2012) 22.1 15.4 3.8 2.9 3.5 35.7 8.9

Heinrich Reimitz 56.2 35.7 8.9 11.6 – 30.0 7.5

Stefan Schaumburg
(from 6.6.2012) 24.4 14.2 5.7 4.5 – – –

Prof. Dr. rer. nat. habil. Andreas 
Tünnermann 52.6 35.7 10.6 6.3 8.4 35.7 8.9

matthias wierlacher
(from 6.6.2012) 30.6 19.9 5.7 5.0 – – –

Gabriele wahl-multerer
(until 6.6.2012) 15.4 10.2 3.8 1.4 2.5 23.8 8.9

total 531.7 338.5 114.1 79.1 52.1 332.8 100.5

1)  In the prior year the Supervisory Board remuneration was presented individually using the so-called accrual principle. This method of disclosure was, based on GAS 17, changed such that now all emolu-
ments earned for activities performed in the past fiscal year are presented. Therefore, the components of remuneration for activities of the Supervisory Board in 2011 which were not paid until 2012 and, 
thus, not yet recorded in the disclosure of Supervisory Board remuneration in the prior year consolidated financial statements, were uniquely separately presented. 

2)  Included in fixed remuneration and meeting fees; the gentlemen Rudolf and Christian Humer and mr. Heinrich Reimitz have a limited tax liability in Germany due to their place of residence being abroad 

and, thus, no value added tax was incurred on their remuneration, but rather withholding tax in accordance with § 50 a (1) N0. 4 EStG (Income Taxes Act) was paid.
3)  By way of written declaration to the Executive Board the Supervisory Board Chairman, mr. Rudolf Humer, waived all remuneration claims due to him for his activities as Supervisory Board Chairman and 

Committee member from April 1, 2011. This also applies to any meeting fees and a potential performance-related payment.
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ResPonsiBility statement

we hereby confirm that to the best of our knowledge that, in 

accordance with the accounting principles applicable for 

reporting, the consolidated financial statements present a true 

and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of 

operations of the Group and the Group management report 

michael mertin

chairman of the executive Board

rüdiger andeas Günther

member of the executive Board

gives a true and fair view of the business performance, includ-

ing the results of operations and the situation of the Group, 

and describes the main opportunities and risks associated with 

anticipated development of the Group.

jena, march 11, 2013

assurance By the leGal representatives
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auditoRs ´ RePoRt

We have audited the consolidated financial statements pre-

pared by JENOPTIK Aktiengesellschaft, Jena, comprising 

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the 

consolidated balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, 

consolidated statement of cash flows, and the notes to the 

consolidated financial statements, together with the group 

management report for the business year from January 1 to 

December 31, 2012. The preparation of the consolidated 

financial statements and the group management report in 

accordance with IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, and the  

additional requirements of German commercial law pursu-

ant to § 315a Abs. 1 HGB (Handelsgesetzbuch “German 

Commercial Code”) are the responsibility of the parent 

company`s management. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on the consolidated financial statements and on the 

group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial state-

ments in accordance with § 317 HGB and German generally 

accepted standards for the audit of financial statements pro-

mulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those 

standards require that we plan and perform the audit such 

that misstatements materially affecting the presentation of 

the net assets, financial position and results of operations in 

the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the 

applicable financial reporting framework and in the group 

management report are detected with reasonable assurance. 

Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and 

legal environment of the Group and expectations as to possi-

ble misstatements are taken into account in the determina-

tion of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-

related internal control system and the evidence supporting 

the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and 

the group management report are examined primarily on a 

test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit inclu-

des assessing the annual financial statements of those entities 

included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be 

included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation 

principles used and significant estimates made by manage-

ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 

consolidated financial statements and group management 

report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis 

for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the con-

solidated financial statements comply with IFRSs, as adop-

ted by the EU, the additional requirements of German com-

mercial law pursuant to § 315a Abs. 1 HGB and give a true 

and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results 

of operations of the Group in accordance with these requi-

rements. The group management report is consistent with 

the consolidated financial statements and as a whole provi-

des a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably 

presents the opportunities and risks of future development. 

Berlin, march 11, 2013

KPmG AG 

wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

NEUmANN   BÜCHIN

wirtschaftsprüfer   wirtschaftsprüfer

auditors´ report
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additional information executive management board

executive management board 
(aS at January 2013)

bernhard dohmann
metrology segment 

head of traffic Solutions division

dr. thomaS fehn
lasers & optical Systems segment 

head of lasers & material processing division

rüdiger andreaS günther
chief financial officer  

volkmar hauSer
metrology segment  

head of industrial metrology division

melanie Jaklin
head of hr, purchasing, Supply chain & Shared Services  

dr. michael mertin
chairman of the executive board and employment director 

dr. dirk michael rothweiler
lasers & optical Systems segment  

head of optical Systems division

dr. Stefan Stenzel
defense & civil Systems segment 

head of defense & civil Systems division
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Scientific advisory council

Scientific adviSory council
(aS at January 2013)

dr. michael mertin
Jenoptik ag, Jena, chairman

prof. dr. hartmut bartelt
ipht institut für photonische technologien e. v., Jena

prof. dr. karlheinz brandenburg
ilmenau

prof. dr. gerhard fettweiS
technische universität dresden,  

fakultät für elektrotechnik,  

vodafone chair mobile communications Systems

prof. dr. Johann löhn
Steinbeis-hochschule berlin

prof. dr. rer. nat. habil. Jürgen petzoldt
technische universität ilmenau,  

fakultät für elektrotechnik und informationstechnik,  

institut für elektrische energiewandlungen und automatisierung

prof. dr. rer. nat. Jürgen popp
ipht institut für photonische technologien e. v., Jena

prof. dr. roland Sauerbrey 
forschungszentrum rossendorf, dresden

prof. dr. michael Schenk
iff fraunhofer-institut für fabrikbetrieb und -automatisierung, magdeburg

prof. dr. hartwig Steffenhagen
rheinisch-westfälische technische hochschule (rwth), aachen

prof. dr. günther tränkle
ferdinand-braun-institut, leibniz-institut für höchstfrequenztechnik, berlin

prof. dr. andreaS tünnermann
iof fraunhofer-institut für angewandte optik und feinmechanik, Jena

prof. dr. bernd wilhelmi
Jena
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additional information financial glossary

f inancial gloSSary a – z

A

AccruAls: balance sheet liabilities that include 
 future payments and reductions in value as expenses 
for the accounting period. the exact amount and /  
or time of payment for these items are not yet deter-
mined by the balance sheet date, but their occur-
rence is quite certain. 

AccruAls And deferrAls: payments made or 
received  during the accounting period, but which  
refer to a period after the balance date. 

AffiliAted compAnies: Jenoptik ag and all its 
subsidiaries, whether or not they are included in the 
consolidated financial statements.

Asset rAtio: figure used in the analysis of the 
 asset structure which describes the ratio of non-cur-
rent assets to total assets. 

AssociAted compAnies: companies not com-
pletely or majority owned by the parent company, 
but upon which the parent company exercises sig-
nificant influence (with an ownership interest of 
more than 20 percent).

At-equity evAluAtion: the evaluation of an 
 interest in an affiliated company reflecting the com-
pany’s shareholders’ equity and annual earnings 
 proportionate to the interest held. 

B

Book-to-Bill rAtio: order intake to sales for  
a fiscal year. a ratio of over 1.00 indicates that order 
intake surpassed sales for the fiscal year, likely lead-
ing to an increase in order backlog. this is usually also 
a good indicator of a future rise in sales.

Borrowed cApitAl: capital that a company re-
ceives as a credit to finance fixed and current assets.

c

cAp.: in a contractual agreement of this sort, the pur-
chaser pays for a guaranteed interest rate cap for  
an agreed period of time. if the market interest rate 
rises above the cap on the specified interest deter-
mination dates for the next interest period, the cap 
seller must pay the difference.

cApitAl expenditure: expenditure on items re-
quired for production purposes over a period of 
more than a year, such as buildings, machinery and 
computer programs. capital expenditure is subject 
to depreciation throughout its useful life.

cAsh flow: a corporate analysis figure that sheds 
light on the earnings and financial strength of the 
company which indicates the amount of liquid funds 
the company has at its disposal within a specific pe-
riod of time as a result of its economic turnover.

commerciAl pApers: money market papers with 
a term of between 7 and 270 days. they are placed 
on the money market mostly by companies with a 
very good credit rating. the terms of these debt in-
struments can be determined flexibly to meet the 
needs of the companies. interest payments proceed 
through the calculation of a loan discount.

consolidAtion: the incorporation of partial 
 accounts into a total account, such as the incorpora-
tion of the individual balance sheets of group 
 companies into a group balance sheet.

consolidAtion of Assets And liABilities: 
adjustments necessary in consolidated financial 
statements that offset all group-internal receivables 
and payables – not only the positions included in  
the balance sheet.

consolidAtion of equity: equity relationships 
between companies within a group are consolidated 
as a part of the overall consolidation process. this 
entails offsetting the book value of the investment in 
the subsidiary against the shareholders’ equity of the 
subsidiary.

consolidAtion of income And expenses: 
only expenses and income arising from transactions 
with third parties outside the group may be inclu d-
ed in the consolidated income statement. therefore 
 income and expense items which arise from the 
group-internal supply of goods and services need to 
be offset against each other in the consolidated 
 financial statements.

consolidAted compAnies: companies inclu d-
ed in a group’s consolidated financial statement.

corporAte governAnce  (code): this code 
determines the guidelines for the transparent 
 management and supervision of a company. the 
recommendations of the corporate governance 
code provide for transparency and increase trust in 
responsible management. the recommendations 
protect the shareholders in particular.

d

deBenture loAns: debenture loans are another 
form of (long-term) external financing for companies, 
in addition to bank credits and bonds. the borrower 
is granted a loan against a debenture by large finan-

cial intermediaries (in general credit institutions) with-
out having to access the organized capital market.

deBt: this includes all long-term and short-term in-
terest-bearing third-party capital, including bonds, 
participatory capital, bank loans and loans from so-
cial welfare funds.

deferred tAxes: temporary tax expense differ-
ences between individual or consolidated group 
 accounts in accordance with commercial law and 
tax returns. this figure is a measure of the relation-
ship between company results and tax expenses.

depreciAtion: capital expenditure is subject to de-
preciation throughout its entire useful life, with the 
purchase price being amortized over a period of time. 

derivAtives: derivatives are derived financial in-
struments dependent on the price development  
of the underlying assets (e. g. shares, interest rates, 
currencies, or goods). the basic forms are futures 
and options.

disAgio: the difference between the amount of a 
loan to be repaid and the amount received when the 
loan was granted.

disinvestment: the effect of depreciation sur-
passing replacement investment (e. g. to maintain 
production machinery). 

due diligence: due diligence is the intensive in-
vestigation and evaluation by external experts of  
the financial, legal and commercial situation of a 
company including risks and prospects. this analysis 
is a prerequisite in, e. g., the preparation process for 
ipos, the acquisition or sale of companies or com-
pany segments, the granting of credits and for capi-
tal increases.

e

eBit: earnings before interest and taxes.

eBitdA: earnings before interest, taxes, deprecia-
tion and amortization. 

eliminAtion of group-internAl profits 

And losses: for the purposes of the consolidation 
process, group-internal profits and losses arising 
from the delivery of goods or services between group 
companies are not considered valid until the asset  
in question departs from the group. the elimination 
of group-internal profits and losses is made possible 
through the evaluation of deliveries and services 
 according to uniform group acquisition and produc-
tion costs.
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f

free cAsh flow: the free cash flow is the cash 
flow available. the amount of the free cash flow  
is regarded by financing institutions as an indicator 
for the ability to repay credits and is therefore often 
used as basis to calculate the financing capacity.  
the free cash flow is calculated taking the cash flow 
from operating activities (before income taxes and 
interests) less investments from operating activities 
plus disinvestments. 

free floAt: Scattered company shares held by a 
large number of different investors. 

finAnciAl liABilities: these include all current 
and non-  current interest-bearing  external finances, 
e. g. bonds, bank liabilities, and leasing liabilities.

g

goodwill: the purchase price of a newly acquired 
company minus its shareholders’ equity (assets minus 
liabilities).

h

hedging: through hedging, existing securities can 
be protected against negative price trends though the 
pur chase or sale of derivatives (futures, options, swaps).

i

ifrs / iAs (internAtionAl finAnciAl 

 reporting stAndArds): these internationally 
valid accounting standards ensure the comparability 
of consolidated financial statements and, through 
their particular transparency, satisfy the information 
requirements. the sections of the ifrS are known as 
the iaS (international accounting Standards), while 
the newer sections are referred to as ifrS.

J

Joint venture: economic cooperation between 
companies, usually limited in time and scope which 
is run by the partner companies together.

m

mArket cApitAlizAtion: number of shares 
multiplied by share price.

minority interests: interests in Jenoptik  
group companies that are not majority-owned by 
Jenoptik ag or the group companies. they are  
included in the earnings and net assets of the sub-
sidiary company.

o

option: the right to purchase (call option) or sell 
(put option) the underlying of an option (e. g. securi-
ties or currencies) at a previously agreed price  (exer cise 
price) at a specific time or within a specific period of 
time. 

p

percentAge-of-completion method:  
a procedure in accordance with iaS 11, which com-
putes sales revenue, order costs, and order results 
deriving from partial payments on a long-term cus-
tomer-specific contract or similar services in accord-
ance with the degree to which the project is com-
pleted. this method is also valid when the order has 
not yet been fully completed although the customer 
has paid the invoice. 

prepAid And deferred expenses: payments 
which are made or received in advance in the period 
under report but concern a period after the balance 
sheet date.

proJected-unit-credit method: a method 
used to evaluate pension obligations in accordance 
with iaS 19, which includes the expected future in-
crease of salaries and pensions in addition to the 
pension benefits secured before the cut-off date.

purchAse price AllocAtion: the method of 
dividing the purchase price of a newly acquired com-
pany among its assets and liabilities.

r

return on sAles: earnings after tax divided  
by sales.

return on equity: ratio of earnings after tax 
and capital employed.

r + d rAtio: r + d expenditure as a percentage  
of sales.

revenue reserves: reserves that are accumu-
lated from undistributed profits.

s

shAreholders’ equity: the capital contributed 
by a company’s owners (shareholders) that is gradu-
ally accumulated within the company in the form of 
reserves. it is available for use by the company in the 
long term.

shAreholders’ equity rAtio: ratio used in 
capital structure analy sis depicting the ratio of the 
shareholders’ equity in the total capital (sharehold-
ers’ equity divided by the balance sheet total).

swAp: an agreement between two companies to 
exchange cash flows. in the case of an interest 
swap, fixed interest payments are swapped for float-
ing payments for a nominal fee.

t

treAsuring: management of finances – a major 
task of the corporate finance area. the aim of  
treasuring and its control instruments is to optimize 
liquidity and profitability of the company. 

v

vAlue Added: the growth in value that is created 
through company operations, in addition to goods 
and services purchased from outside the company. 
value added is then distributed as labor costs, taxes, 
interest, profits and dividends. 

w

working cApitAl: Sum of inventories and re-
ceivables from operating activities less trade ac-
counts payable, poc (percentage of completion) lia-
bilities and on-account payments received.
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editor  
Jenoptik ag, public relations, 07739 Jena, germany

lAyout

hilger & boie design, wiesbaden

print

druckhaus gera gmbh, gera

imAges 

hilger & boie design, wiesbaden (title),

eric Sahlin, San francisco (p. 26, 27), 

frank peinemann, köln (p. 31), 

Jeibmann photographik, leipzig (p. 2, 5, 24, 25, 28 – 33)

the contents of this publication address men and women equally.  

for better readibility, the masculine forms are used normally.

in case of differences of opinion the german text shall prevail.



whAt wAs

key fIgures of JenoPtIk

(in million euros) 2012 2011
change  

in %
Oct. – Dec  

2012
Oct. – Dec.

2011
change  

in %

Sales 585.0 543.3 7.7 161.9 159.4 1.6

 Domestic 208.1 221.8 – 6.2 58.0 69.3 – 16.3

 Foreign 376.9 321.5 17.3 103.9 90.1 15.4

EBITDa 77.7 76.8 1.1 18.9 23.7 – 20.4

EBIT 54.8 49.2 11.5 12.7 14.3 – 10.9

EBIT margin (EBIT in % of sales) 9.4 % 9.1 % 9.4 % 9.0 %

Earnings before tax 46.1 36.2 27.3 9.7 10.2 – 4.4

Earnings after tax 50.2 35.3 42.2 20.2 13.9 –

Free cash flow (before income taxes) 43.7 44.0 – 0.6 17.0 19.9 – 14.4

Investments in tangible  
and intangible assets 31.2 25.1 24.3 14.0 7.7 82.7

Order intake 587.2 647.9 – 9.4 150.1 134.2 11.8

(in million euros) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
change  

in %

Order backlog 446.8 448.5 – 0.4

Employees 3,272 3,117 5.0

seLected InvestMent coMPAnIes (as at february 2013)

The above mentioned investment companies are not necessarily direct shareholdings of JENOPTIK aG.

1) not consolidated

1) “Others“ include holding, real estate, consolidation.

 100 %  esW gmbh 
germany, wedel

 50 %  hIllos gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  hommel-etamic gmbh 
germany, villingen-schwenningen

 100 %  hoMMel-etaMIc america corp.  
usA, rochester hills (MI)

 100 %  hommel-etamic France sa 
france, Bayeux cedex

 100 %  hommel-Movomatic suisse sa 
switzerland, Peseux

 100 %  JenoPtIK automatisierungs technik gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  JenoPtIK Diode lab gmbh 
germany, Berlin

 99 %  JenoPtIK do brasil Instrumentos  
de Precisão e equipamentos ltda. 
Brazil, são Bernardo do campo

 66,58 %  JenoPtIK Japan co. ltd. 1) 
Japan, yokohama city (kanagawa) 

 66,60 %  JenoPtIK Korea corp. ltd. 1) 
korea, Pyeongtaek

 100 %   JenoPtIK laser gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  JenoPtIK north america, Inc.  
usA, Jupiter (florida)

 100 %   JenoPtIK optical systems gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %     JenoPtIK optical systems, Inc. 
usA, Jupiter (florida)

 100 %    JenoPtIK Polymer systems gmbh 
germany, triptis

 100 %  JenoPtIK robot gmbh 
germany, Monheim

 100 %  JenoPtIK robot Malaysia sDn. bhD.  
Malaysia, kuala Lumpur

 100 %  JenoPtIK (shanghai) Precision Instruments 
and equipment co., ltd. 
china, shanghai

 100 %   JenoPtIK south east asia Pte. ltd. 
singapore

 100 %   JenoPtIK ssc gmbh 
germany, Jena

 100 %  lechmotoren gmbh 
germany, Altenstadt

 100 %  Multanova ag 
switzerland, uster

 100 %   PhotonIc sense gmbh 
germany, eisenach

 100 %  traffipax Inc. 
usA, Linthicum

key fIgures of JenoPtIk

who we Are

JenoPtIk Ag

Provider of reliable, efficient and 

precise laser technology for 

industrial materials processing. 

Jenoptik covers the entire val-

ue-added chain – from semicon-

ductor material, laser sources, 

laser systemsas well as system 

and automation technology for 

entire production facilities to 

exhaust cleaning systems.

Provider of integrated optical 

systems and precision optics 

designed to meet the most 

stringent demands in terms of 

quality. Jenoptik is development 

and production partner for 

opto-electronic and opto-me-

chanical systems, modules and 

assemblies based on optical, 

micro-optical and optical coat-

ing components made from 

glass, crystals as well as plastic.

Manufacturer of high-precision 

contact and non-contact metrol-

ogy systems. Jenoptik has 

many years of expertise in the 

development of tactile, optical 

and pneumatic measuring tech-

niques as well as in the realiza-

tion of customer individual 

applications pre-process, in-pro-

cess, post-process or in the 

metrology room.

supplier of components and 

systems for greater worldwide 

road traffic safety. the product 

portfolio includes speed mea-

surement and red light monitor-

ing systems as well as oeM 

products and systems for detec-

tion of other traffic violations. In 

the field of traffic service provid-

ing, every aspect of the accom-

panying process chain is cov-

ered.

the focus areas are military and 

civil vehicle, rail and aircraft 

equipment, drive and stabiliza-

tion technology and energy sys-

tems as well as laser distance 

and infrared sensor systems. 

optoelectronic instruments and 

systems for the security industry 

as well as software, measure-

ment and control technology 

complement the spectrum.

executIve boarD

corPorate center

lasers & MaterIal 

ProcessIng
oPtIcal sYsteMs InDustrIal MetrologY traFFIc solutIons

DeFense &

cIvIl sYsteMs

lasers & oPtIcal sYsteMs segMent MetrologY segMent
DeFense & cIvIl sYsteMs

segMent

(in million euros) 2012 2011
change  

in %
Oct. – Dec. 

2012
Oct. – Dec.

2011
change  

in %

Sales 585.0 543.3 7.7 161.9 159.4 1.6

of which lasers & Optical Systems 212.3 217.1 – 2.2 50.6 57.9 – 12.6

  Metrology 182.7 140.1 30.4 57.7 46.6 23.8

  Defense & civil Systems 186.4 183.3 1.7 53.4 52.8 1.1

  Others 1) 3.6 2.8 28.6 2.1 2.1 1.5

EBITDa 77.7 76.8 1.2 18.9 23.7 – 20.3

of which lasers & Optical Systems 36.4 40.5 – 10.1 5.2 7.6 – 31.6

  Metrology 28.6 15.4 85.7 12.7 6.8 86.4

  Defense & civil Systems 13.3 16.6 – 19.9 2.2 7.2 – 69.4

  Others 1) – 0.6 4.3 – 114.0 – 1.2 2.0 5.0

EBIT 54.8 49.2 11.4 12.7 14.3 – 11.2

of which lasers & Optical Systems 27.1 29.2 – 7.5 2.3 4.4 – 47.7

  Metrology 25.6 12.0 113.3 12.1 5.8 108.6

  Defense & civil Systems 7.8 11.6 – 32.8 0.2 5.8 – 96.6

  Others 1) – 5.7 – 3.6 – – 2.5 – 1.7 –

EBIT margin (EBIT in % of sales) 9.4 % 9.1 % 7.8 % 9.0 %

of which lasers & Optical Systems 12.8 % 13.5 % 4.5 % 7.6 %

  Metrology 14.1 % 8.6 % 21.1 % 12.4 %

  Defense & civil Systems 4.2 % 6.3 % 0.4 % 11.0 %

R + D output 49.1 45.4 8.1 13.3 14.6 – 8.9

of which lasers & Optical Systems 19.0 16.8 13.1 4.7 4.6 2.2

  Metrology 16.9 13.9 21.6 4.7 5.4 – 13.0

  Defense & civil Systems 13.1 14.6 – 10.3 3.8 4.5 – 15.6

  Others 1) 0.1 0.1 – 0.1 0.1 –

Order intake 587.2 647.9 – 9.4 150.1 134.2 11.8

of which lasers & Optical Systems 219.9 224.4 – 2.0 52.7 57.5 – 8.3

  Metrology 198.7 166.7 19.2 40.7 34.2 19.0

  Defense & civil Systems 165.0 254.5 – 35.2 56.0 39.5 41.8

  Others 1) 3.6 2.3 56.5 0.7 3.0 – 77.0

(in million euros) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
change  

in  %

Order backlog 446.8 448.5 – 0.4

of which lasers & Optical Systems 105.2 101.3 3.8

  Metrology 87.4 69.0 26.7

  Defense & civil Systems 255.8 279.9 – 8.6

  Others 1) – 1.6 – 1.7 –

Employees 3,272 3,117 5.0

of which lasers & Optical Systems 1,349 1,296 4.1

  Metrology 814 719 13.2

  Defense & civil Systems 913 924 – 1.2

  Others 1) 196 178 10.1

shareD servIces



DATES 2013

MARCH 26, 2013

Publication of the Annual Report 2012

MAY 8, 2013

Publication of the Interim Report

January – March 2013

JUNE 4,2013

General Meeting of JENOPTIK AG 2013

AUGUST 13, 2013

Publication of the Interim Report

January – June 2013

NOVEMBER 12, 2013

Publication of the Interim Report

January – September 2013

CONTACT

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Katrin Fleischer

Phone + 49 3641 65-2290

Fax + 49 3641 65-2804

E-Mail: ir@jenoptik.com

PUBLIC RELATIONS

Phone + 49 3641 65-2255

Fax + 49 3641 65-2484

E-Mail: pr@jenoptik.com

www.jenoptik.com
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